














DATE:

TO:

FROM:

RE:

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ENGINEERING

MEMORANDUM

August 14, 2006

Katherine Doucett
County Administrator

John Fechtel, Public Works Director
Assistant County Administrator

Legal Closing of a Portion of Clover Road

A Petition for Closing of Road" was filed to legally close a portion of Clover
Road. The attached maps show the general location and a more specific
location. Please note the road on Mr. Rodgers' property is a pond-dam road.
We have had minor maintenance issues here in the past

Mr and Mrs. Rodgers, the petitioners, have hired an attorney (see attached)
to pursue this legal closure at no cost to Lexington County. Their request is
to legally close the portion of the road between Saber Drive and Little Creek
Drive, approximately 969 feet in length. We are working with them to
establish drainage easements needed for the remainder of the road.

We have also notified
Safety, for input from
Rucker does not object

We are placing signs on Clover Road to notify the
closure this week.

Please place this on the Public Works Committee
to County Council the same day.

440 BALLPARK ROAD • LEXINGTON, SOUTh CAROLINA 29072 .(803)-785-8201

Bruce Rucker, Asst. Sheriff and Director of Public
Public Safety. The attached letter indicates Chief
to the partial closing.

public about the proposed

agenda to be reported out



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
)

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON ) CIVIL ACTION NOS.

Phillip Dean Rodgers and Barbara N,

Rodgers, )

)

Petitioners, )

) PETITION FOR CLOSING OF ROAD
versus ) (SECTION 57-9-10, SC CODE OF LAWS,

) AS AMENDED)
South Carolina Department of Highways)
and Transportation, and County of
Lexington, South Carolina,

)

Respondents.

Come now the Petitioners and allege as follows:

1. That they are owners c3f a tract of land located in Lexington County containing 9.47

acres more or less and another tract containing 1956 acres more or less which abuts on and is

served by a road known as Clover Road which is an unpaved county maintained road which

adjoins their property on the north and on the east. For particular reference of the tracts owned

by the Petitioners reference is made to Slide 430, Page 1 n the RMC Office for Lexington

County

2. That a portion of said Clover Road which adjourns tract 2 of Petitioners containing

1956 acres, as shown on said plat, crosses the top of a pond dam. The road there is narrow,

ungrarded and otherwise dangerous.

3. The portion of this road sought to be closed is as follows: All that portion of Clover

Road which lies between Saber Drive and Little Creek Drive, a distance of some 969 feet more

or less between the southern intersection of Saber Drive as it intersects with CloverDrive and the

northern side of Little Creek Drive as it intersects with Clover Road.



4. That the only other abutting property owner is Mrs. Ann H. Bouknight and a copy of

the Petition and Notice have been sent to her by Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested.

5. That there is no substantial public interest to be served by continuing this road as a

public way, and to the contrary, it constitutes a danger in its present state and perhaps imposes an

unneeded liability upon the property of the Petitioners.

6. That noLice of intention to file this Petition has been published in the Twin City

News, a newspaper published in Lexington County, wherein the road is situated.

WI-IEREFORE, Petitioners pray that the Court order that the foiegoing portion of Clover

Road be closed and that the title of the property within said roadway be determined by the Court.

JuliusIH. Bagget Esquire
P. OBox 3070
Batesburg-Leesville, SC 29070
(803) 532-4100

Attorney for Petitioners
Phillip Dean Rodgers and
Barbara N. Rodgers

June IZ- ,2006

Batesburg-Lcesville, South Carolina



.JuIv 21. 2006

County of Lexington
I)epartnient of Public Safety

14ssLstcu,t SheriffDirector of Public LSafi?4'

Mr. John Fechtel
Director of Public Works
440 BaIt Park Rd.
l.exington, SC 29071

I)ear Mr. l1echtel:

We received the inforiiiatioij in reference to the closing of Clover Rd. After
discussion with Sheriff Metts and the Public Safety l)epartment heads, we
concur that this is a reasonable request and we have no disputes with
closing the named section of Clover Rd. If I can be of further assistance in
future endeavors please contact me.

Sincerely

212 South Lake Drive• Lexington South Carolina 29072
Phone (803) 785-8683 Fax (803) 785-8627

E-Mail loems@lex-co corn

Chief Bruce F. Rucker 549
i1exington County
Assistant Sheriff
Director of Public Safety

It
JUL 2

(ON f.Oi)NTf
:iThCNT



C

0$



/ 

//P
hi

lli
p 

R
w

L
ig

er
s // / / 

C
ou

nc
iL

D
is

tr
ic

t 2
 

cc
6:

.x
io

 c
q 

/ 

/ I' 
C

62
 V
 

/7
 

/ 
/ /

/ 
7 

/7
 

7 
/ 

/ 
7 

) 
/ 

C
C

6X
 i$

 o
 

e 
N

 

/ 

I 

A
nt

lo
ui

y 
L

a;
ig

fo
rd

 
0 

03
' 

7 

/ / 

cc
6,

0:
c6

 



DATE

TO:

FROM:

RE

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ENGINEERING

MEMORANDUM

August 14, 2006

Katherine Doucett
County Administrator

John Fechtel, Public Works Director
Assistant County Administrator

New Stormwater Ordinance

Attached is the draft of the new Stormwater Ordinance! and the existing
Stormwater Ordinance. We request first reading on the new draft ordinance
at the next County Council meeting on August 22.

Developers, engineers and contractors are in the process of reviewing the
new draft Stormwater Ordinance to assist us in working through this process.

The new ordinance should satisfy the new NPDES (National Pollution
Discharge Elimination System) requirements needed for our Phase II permit
and has also been submitted to all of our municipalities for their
consideration in our Delegated Review discussions.

/ih

Attachments

440 BALLPARK ROAD • LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA 29072 .(803)-785-8201



Lexington Coun

S tormwater



TABLE OF CONTENIS

Title
Authority
Jurisdiction
Findings
Purpose
Construction and Scope
Severability
Rules of Language and lnterpretai
Relationship with Other Laws,
Amendments

Conflicting OrdinancesRepea
Definitions
Reserved

Es

Application Process
ft. tagenient Design Manual
ft. Ownership an Lexington County Participation
ft. aintenanc Construction, Inspection, and Notice of Termination
ft. erco se Protection

Noti tion of Spills
ft Performance Bonds
ft. Reserved

Division ft Detection and Removal of Illicit Discharges and Improper Disposal
Sec. ft. Illicit Connections, Illicit Discharges and Improper Disposal

ft. Detection of Illicit Connections and Improper Disposal
ft Waste Disposal Prohibitions
ft. Discharges in Violation of Industrial or Construction Activity NPDES

Stormwater Discharge Permit
Reserved

2

ORDINANCE ft Stormwater Management

Division ft General Piovisions
Sec. ft.

ft.
ft.
ft.
ft.
ft.
ft.
ft
ft.
ft.
ft.
ft.
ft.

Division ft
Sec. Regulationsft.

ft.

ft.
ft.
ft.
#.

equirements



Division ft Mon tUring and Inspeclions
Sec ft Monitoring

ft. Inspections
ft. Reserved

Division ft En lorceinent, Penalties and Abatement
See, ft. Enfircenent

ft Conflicting Ordinances Repealed
ft. Civil Penalties

Div is or

ft. Additional legal measures
ft. Corrective Action
ft. Stop Work
ft. Permit Suspension and Revocation
ft. Criiii i ia I Pena It ics
ft. Reserved

Division ft Variances
See ft.

ft.
ft.

Di\ is on ft A peIS
Sec. ft.

ft

1



DIVISION # — (FNERAL PROVISIONS South Carolina Stormwater Management and
Sediment Reduction Act [S C Code 48-14-10 Ct seq.I

Sec. fi. Title, to obtain NPDES permits for land-disturbances

This ordinance shall be known as the 'Slorniwater Sec. th Purpose.
Managemeni Ordinance of Lexington County, South Carolina

(a) It is the purpose of this ordinance to proteci, maintain,
Sec. 4. Authority, and enhance wtLter quality and the environment of

Lexington Coanty and the short-term and long-term
This ordinance is adopted pursuant to the authority public health, safety, and general welfare of the

conferred upon Lexingion County by the South Carolina citizens of Lexington County by establishing
Constitution, Act No 194 of the Acts and Joint Resolutions of requirements a rocedures to control the potential
197t enacted hy the General Assembly of the State of South adverse effe n i creased stonnwater runoff and
Carolina, approved April 23, 1971. in 1976 South Carolina related p utant load associated with both future
Code of Lass Sections 4-9-30, 4-9-40 and Chapter 14. fitle dcvcl eni and existi developed land Proper
48, as amended, and in compliance with the requirements iii gement of storm ter runoff will and further the
imposed upon Lexington County by the National Pollutant tirpose of this Or inance In minimize damage to
Discharge Elimination System ("NPDES") Permit No I blic and private roperty, Insure a functional
SCS0000000 issued in accordance with the federal Clean a lage sy s i, reduce e effects of development on
Water Act, the South Carolina Pollution Control Act and Ia d ream —hannel e sion, attain and maintain
regulations promulgated there under Wa quality ndards, enhance Ihe local

vironment associ with e drainage system,
See. 4. Jitnsdiction. reduce local flooding, aintain the predeveloped

runoff acteris tics of area in mis of flow rate,
The provisions of this Ordinance shall apply to all I ds vol e an ptillatant con ntration, and facilitate

within the jurisdiction of Leington County, an thus e onortic des - opment while mitigati associated
municipalities which, by approval of SCI)l lFC and y written pollutant, fib rug, erosion, and ainage U sacts
agreement executed with Lexingion Cotinty, conn-ac to have
these provisions administered within their corporate limits (b It is flirt ci the purpose of this ordi e 10 comply
All lands under the jurisdiction of another entity ssi the 'ith the eral and corresponding state slormwater
power of eminent domain are exemp the pros ision - of dis - arge )ES) regulations (40 CFR 122 26 and
this Ordinance, however, such Ia are regu by the

'
SC lation -9 12226) developed pursuant to the

Department of Health and Lnv nmental Control CDI IEC lean 'ater Act çd to assure Lexington County the
1976 SC Cude of Law tIe 48-18-70 and ode of ml rfty 0 taLe qnv action required by such
Regulations 72-300 et se regula ns i otp and comple with as NPDES

perniit s nwater discharges Among other
Sec. 4. Findings. gs, thes egulations require Lexington Cotinty to

esla sb gal itithority which authonzes or enables
The I ington Cou Co eil niakes the foil Lejin on County at a minimton to

findine

Prohibit ill en discharges io the lexingion Ctiunp,'
Uneuniroll water ru dl y have s ni ' nt, MS4 -and receiving waters,

dverse pact u the hea , s ety and ener
hare of xinglon ounty an the ality of e of (2) Control the discharge to Ihe I.exinreton County

its tizens he pote tat impa - o neontro d MS4 and rert fling "aters of spills dumping, or
storms iter can cad to "tie deer atio of "ale disposal of niiteriats other than stormwaler,
qualiiy d geii al nve?e ecos 'stem hrough
excessive illegal p lutant ischarge erosio (3) Address specific categories of non-storniwater
lluoding the y limitu or r,inioving design ed discharges and similar other incidental non-
and potential u s stormy ater discharges listed in the Storoiwater

Management Program (SWMP),
(b) Lexinglon Couniy required by fe eral law 33

USC l342(p) and CFR 12 6] to obtain a (4) Requite erosion and sediment controls Ii, protect
National Pollutant Dis arge , ruination System water quality on all new and re-development
permit from the South Car Department of Health projects,
and Ens imonmental Control ("SCDHEC") for
atormwater discharges from the Lexington County (5) Require sturniwater disch,irge rate and volume
Stonnwater system The NPDES permit requires control during and following development, re
Lexingitin County to impose controls to redticc the development, or constnictitm so as to replicate
discharge of pollutants in storrnwaier to maximum existing or natural conditions hydrology on all
extent practicable using management practices, new and re-development pntjects,
control techniques iind system, design and engineering
melhods. and such other provisions which are (6) Define procedures for mud carry out such
detennined to be appropnate for the control of such procedures of site plan review and site inspection
pollulanis of all conslrtictitin proleets within Lexington

County,
(c) Additionally, certain facilities that discharge

storniwaier associaied with an industnal activily, (7) Control the discharge to Ihe Lexington County
including construction activities, tire required by the MS4 and receiving waters of pollutants us such

4



c]uiiiitns that water tliialliv statiiLiris are not being
tiiet Or to other 'vise address p st-construction
long—term water ttntltty lins includes ill
1 eeessiry me ails riced ed to corn its with State a' 1(1

Federal regulations regard] tiC sio-rnsctiter
010 agernent quantity and quality,

(X) t)ei(tte proceditirs for addi e>stng Ctii/etl
Ct]iit1ttatnfs witluri lire Lecirigtort County,

(9) Ens ii, e adeq Li U Ic tong erni opt rat ton in]
itta nitenance of flest Nlaoagernettt Practices
(BNil's), and

(e) [his Qi d inanee is to he eonstruett to further its
purpose of controlling and rcducotg politilant
dtsch,uges, runoti vototnes and ruittd I rates to the
Lexirlgttiri County NIS'! aid to the st tiers of the State
to asstire the ohlrg,ittoils tinder its NI'DLS permit
issued by tile SCD}-FI3C is required h3 33 USC 13-12
anil -to 00<12226

St-c. #. Corisli nrtion and Scope

(a) 'the provisions iii this Ordntanee shalt apply
thiouihoui the ntotteoq)orated areas of Lexington
County

(U The (2lihtlt—Works__Deparmieotith-eetor__]iLj(i liL'
W2!k or his designee strall he pritnari ft respoitsi hie
foi lie coordination tint enfhireenacni ofthe previsiiis
of ih is Ordinance the SWM t', and tes itiglon
Coutt ty's NPDES Pet intl.

Sec. ft. Sn erahilir'.

and agencies to ss'lt Dl
of lesingiorl Cooniy,

this f)rdniance may he intended in the salle inannei is
pres err bed his' I iw for its on t itt at adopt ton

Sec. ft. Citrillicting Ortliri:inres Repeitirti

Att orthui,ittees or pails of ordinances in eotitltct with ihe
proxrstoits iii this Ordtmi]trlee are iletetly repeated F his

Ordrnattee shtntt prevail in nov and ill itinflirts stitti
guitietines, ittlinnals. or otltei publications

Sec. II. I}eflritltoris.

for t tie pu i pose ot this Ord in tin cc, dc tin i tion 5 00111 a in ed in
South Catotttta regulations 61—9 t22 2 <intl 72—301 are
incorporated tietein by refetettee \Vttete the same ssords tile
defined tn both the aforeirietllioned tegtitatr,,tts, bitt arc not the
same, the definitions cont,otied in 1< 6D9 1222 and 72—301
shalt he tised tot the purposes of this Oidiilante. Additional
term - phi axes oil d words sit at I have the nie in' rig Cr veit in tile

-\ppendts

Should atiy 'vor put. se, clause 0! pros isron of Firs
(ID) Cauy out all nispeetron, sitts'eitlanee arid nidirlattre he decla invalid unconstilotronal by a conti of

monitorog procedures nccesstuv 10 detcrnntte competent inn coon, such dcc arattott sItaR not affect t}tic
compliance and ttt'tlcontphance svtth pctnitt ordtrlance a a whole or tuty p hereof except that spertlie
coilditions inehitlnig the prohibition on ithcit ptos isto dir_lured by s t court to he tnvatiil or
drxdtarges to tile lexington Ci,tini storm sewer trtleo st itiiiti:it
systeill and receiving si aters,

- cc. . n 's of _anb age an nierprcialion
( t I) Attoss' the use of t_oss inipact I3evetoptnciit

strniegrcs to eotittoi tile dense of titnoti and (a) - e ssotd ''shalt'' i. rlrandato v, tire word ' ttltts'" is
associated poittrt,trits to inline predeveloped peritussts'e
hydwlogv.

(h 'F tte tire] 'Sr 511:111 control ic gcricia
(Ut t<etttitre or otherwise aitosv for the creat

streattl buffers and open spaces to pro e aleis (c) Words tised Ftc present te Se sttatl ieliitle the
Fiat could be used lot flood stot,ige si rmwtttrr lutiire, am sords used in the s igutar ii (tide lire

tte,itiiicrtt and control tttld iectet'tioti, and pioril, t d the plural the singular, i Ic the context
ietti iv nil tales the coniran'

(151 Develop. iniptcmcrit and enlrttce action pta s to
address pottntuto toad uetiott 5 ct'mptv ss iii 0 -\t iuhht 0 'ends, bodies
Tot at Maximum Dii Loads (i'M I) adopted h ' efci ci -e is mat tie those
tile -date of Soti C:nroitna or to oIlier rse rtreet lit ss ot 'rs\ ise iii cated
svtiret quality attdards seth' t )i FEC

Sec. . Relitit, shi s r oilier law's, recitiahons and
((4) Fitittite enfttrceti 'iii rI' ails id autiur izatiotts irthrianre,

(C) It r stilt furl i tire p ose of s oidtnan to Thenever e provisions id ihrs Oriliritince impose urine
hhsll delegated r 'less a thorrtv ftoiii SCDHEC to res ctrse standards than air requtred in (IF utider an oilier

the Los' ntgton Coruity ublic Wor Ls t)epartmeot for lass- egulat ton or ordinance, tlte req u i rettients coriiaitted in
tssutng t.ati istritbttiei pen its tot c 051, tiott this ide sii,ilt pres au \\'tieiieser the provistoits o('aais' other
prorpeis , regntat roil or ordinance t equire niore restrier t ye standards

hail are ret1iiiied iii this ailicte, the reqtnieniertls of such i:ns',
(d) Th ippiieati '1 ol' this lidirlarlec titid Ic provis arts iegtdtition itt iitdiitance shall prevail

and r erettees 'pressed rein sha he t mininin,
stormsv, er natmac ntrtit req tretrlcnrs and s —Il tlrtt he Sec. ft. ,tirirndments
deeraaed a i oncoti or t ir rep e I of aits (it (icr owe rs
gianied h'. s ttile Inti hitiorl, fsiie ciru tietensti o
new develop eilt, ret -Ce pmeni, id evict rIg
deveiopinettts Ira Feate tltal contptviti ' w rh these
nstttitttiiiti requireti nts ssill not pro ide adequate
designs or protectiorl Iii local prop ' so residents, ot
the eos ironitaent, it is e prope - owner, lessee iii
person esponsible (ii I,, siurhing aetis ities io
es teed tim it age mien I Pr tic trees Clint rot t echn t q ties iii

svstettt, utesigia and engineering methods and such
other programs and cniitiols as are tequtred he the
Lc'xingioui Cotinty Nil (1(5 permit



Sets. il Reserved. Sec. #. Inspection dui ing Construction

DIVISION ft - ORGANIZATION AN!) ADMINISTRATION

Sec. . Regulations.

The Lexington County Council, may, in its discretion,
amend or change this Ordinance or adopt additional
regulations oi resolutions to implement this Ordinance,
comply with the NPDES permit implement the SWMP, or to
othenvise further the goat of protecting the quality of the
waters into which the Lexington County storm sewer system
outfalls flow through the control of runoff volume and rate and
pollutant concentrations and loads

Nothing in this Ordinance or in this Section shall be
constnjed as Innitation or repeal of any ordinances of these
local governnients or of the powers granted to these local
governments hs the South Carolina Constitution or South
Carolina statutes, including, without limitation, the power to
require addiiional or more stnngent stortnwatcr management
requirements within theirjurisdiclional boundaries

6

(d) Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and
easy access to thr necessart areas to perform the said
responsibilities shall he removed promplly by the
property owner oi lessee at the written or verbal
request of the Pulike—Works-QeportrnentDircctor of
Public Works or lijesi cc '[he costs of clearing
such access shalt he home by the propern owner or

In eases where an imminent threat to the health or
sitety of the general public or the environment is
suspected, the PoI.c \k'orks DcpartmentDirect iii of
Pubtic Works or los designee shall perform said
responsibilities iii tI etermine if nan] cdi ate act ion
necessary Such responsibilities shall be made with or
without the consent of the property owner or lessee If
such consent is refused, the Peblic \i.'orLe
DepeentDirecior sif Public Works or his_desettiee
may seek issuance of an administranve search warrant
or olher enforcement measures authorized in lii,
Ordinance to rcniove such threat

Sees. # Reserved.

Sec. ft. Lrington County Stortrniater Managenient
Program.

See. #. Coordination with Other Agencies.

Die Public Works Department shall periodically inspect
the s.ork completed under the approved Land Disturbance
Permit Application Frequency of such inspections shalt he
established for all land disturbing activities within the
jurisdiction of Lexington County. Permit Notice of
Termination G'JOT) procedures shall include inspection
procedures to assure that the work has been earned out in
accordance with the pernot and this Ordinance The project
NOT process shalt include phasing so that portions ot a project
can he closed at vanous lime periods and the necessary
documentation This pri s and documentation requirements
are detailed in the St t,vat Management Design Manual

Sec. ft. Rig f-Entry

The SWMP developed by Lexington County to cotttply
(a)' ic Peblie—Werk. lineotor of Public

with the NI'DES Stortnwaler Permit sen'es as the basis for irks or his designee. ml! have right-of-entry on or

Lexington Coun's prognirn implementation and i o the pr c y of any erson subject to this Article

administration The SWMP. as amended from time to tinie by an at ' rmit/ eument i ued hereunder 1 lie

Lexington County, is hereby adopted for the life of Lexnigton
I-h to Worl:r 1k ' L2rt_ ior of Public Woiks or

County's Stormwater NPDES permit as the official operational is desienee shall be ovided a. dy access to all parts

plan The SWMP plan shall be viewed as an extension of this of the premises fir the p rposes 0 specting,

Ordinance and is hereby given identical auttords' to see that its mon it n sampt ing, mv torying, xarnin ing and
requirements are both complied with and enforced 'u ing ofr onts, and perft iing ans ther duties

necessary to de rmine complia Ce with
Ordnianee

The Public Works Department shalt coordinate Lex gton (h Where a t property owner or lessee h security

which manage and perform funclio elatoi the prolect n dc, anee bet e entry onto the preniises, the person

of receiving waters Authority n expressly rese for oth shall ake nece -amy arrangements with the necessary

County s actis ities with other federal, stale, and beat agen 'ies, t -asures i orce requiring proper identification and

agencies or iestricted by s ute is placed with e Public ies that, Uli presentation ot'suitable

Works Department for e protection n4 preserv ion of ide cat n, the -
\Vorks-lkpaientDireetor

penuitted en without delay for the purposes ofcoordinate with Staie a d Fede A
receis ing waters The ublie

WoE,,5nment

shatt of Pub W -s is dcsienec porsemid—will he

jurisdiction
gc cies Ii ving

pe ormin ch responsibilities identified in (a)

hIre V,'orks Dc-pa Haonsu-wth4he-& (c) 1 he Public Works Department shall have the right to

C itmes4-of-Trms: dmg-thitrs. set up on the pen on's properly such devices as are

armageme - necessary to conduct sampling and/or metering of the

the -al-on d person's operatious as they relate to stonnwatcr

the-Sou faiola par - 'an management
h -

ad

atasetenanee—s
- thin.-mgton

N etc IDA

Lexington County m enteagreemen with other

Sec. ft. Cooperati with 0 Cr Go etnnien

goverpmentat and private e ties to carry out t e purposea of
this ordinance These agreei ems may net e, bul are not lessee

limited to, enloroenient, resolu n of d ,utes, cooperative
monitoring, cooperative nianagei nt stormwater systems, (e)

and cooperative implementation of stormwater management
programs



(a) Federal regulations gas cr01 tig storntscater
managentetit, as sped bed in State Code of Lass s 1Cr
C I' R 122 26, and Stoic Code of Regulations R 6 —9
et seq arid R 72300 et seq are adopted as tire
mi n ni tint requirements fur iii e rita!] anens ciii of
stormss'ater within Lcsutgton Cotmty aa tlefincd iii We

respect sC regulations

(9) 'fir eorrtply svitli ill i'ederal arid State regul.ttiaty
tet1itrreriients, promulgated or ui'ptrsed pttrsutttit 10
rite Clean Waler Act arid the SC Stormss 'icr
N tattagement ,,itd Erosion Reductitin ,\ct,
.ippl cable to rite rtianagentertt of stor inwcttci
d ,suhai ges to r 1mm the L exirtgittri County MS4

(10) 'lu ciii ,et all ,ict 'tries necessir)' to carry stir! lire
SW P arid cttttet t 'quirettterits tr,elttded ni tire
.estngton Couttt3 ES perittit, rite SWEIP and
this Ordinance, d 10 pursue tire necessary rite,,, is
and resources i tured to ty fttlIill tins
rcsponsth tity

l) To issue any petirtit, eertttierrttrttt or license th,,t ft I) o esciop id tropic rertt strategic plans liii
ito's he reqtttred in comply ss itit Ui is Ord itt utee compis ing ssit 'FMDI,s Such plans sitat I

and Federal mtd St,,te regulations pertaining to include an inirial e diltgen procedures to hilly
'bit t water ni art .iget lie,] t he ii, gi on County is isse the p rob let,, a d al tern tt Se solutions so is

asttttort zed by SCDI [EC to issue such Lai,d I proc d with cost-cf 'disc st 'ft tons
t2ts'tttihanee pettittEs as a tceogntzcd del _atc

h or, ty (I 2) 'to en act s cia I cost— and c -dir -sitarit p ri tgra ms
trill ,.', d assist land de elt' 'is and e I 'uhf ic

(2) 'lu deny a facility connection In the 1St or Wor S Departtriemtt in meetrrtg t ' 5 er cittatilits'

discharge to waters of the State ii State I 'deral aid ualrty dtscttcttee rec1tttrei,ients of ibis
Esgutations and tins Ordinance ,tre trot met Cirdinan ittid the Stttrtrtssarer Nlatragerttettt

esign 51: nd
(3) (;ieue and cr1' the ta'sittg n Cotti,

Stouiissater Ma genrent Dcstgn Man ttl as ,nt (Li Foe or into ,tg cements svitli ,ttliei gos'eiriruenlal

eslenston of is Otdinance ''Ic l)esrun \laiitial 'ties rr puvo persons 'Sr entittes to prov,de or
str:tll he used o curt' cv strut id engirt critic proc e a 's' cc to conduct :iitd carry our such
standards, curt' tietton i snagetit nt proewses activities as atttttrtrtzed he this Ordinance

eed ures .. t I other a tu cia ecessa fir
niphance tI, Itis lrd,itttuce (II) 'is tarnta,n lite stoniiwtter s3slen] euinsisicrit

with the provisiotts cii' the l,estngtttn Ctriittls'
(4) 'lu tequire the situ rttnl 'f a and D,stitrh:tncc NUDES peimtt, the SWNIP titid this Ordinaiicc

Perrrttt pltc,mrtttrr ktr I tattd is hrng
acttv ics, to lude a p a tir rriitrol stc twa ' (tS)
uid tfanls t I other c ''till 'nts dcta 'd n
lie hex t "ton Cot ty S torts sai c Cvi artaget itt

I sign Mar tat
(t 6)

(5) Irovi ' for tire , ,ttectton of the it: urat re, 'trees
of serist ye anti "hiy s seeptihl areas i
impacts 0 u\ccssit a polluted stoniorottu t
'i'Ias ma" t hide the cret,titsrt o watershed— (17)

specific plans :tt will itnatt ttr itt erwase direct
t,mttd devetopmci actis ittes . d reqtitre tie
med tic! tori of' es cc 'is 'c and ti ted storrii svat cr

Imotti any are:,
See. ft. Pri,Iiit,itioris arid l'enipIioris

(a) Jo person shall (I) develop ittis' t,irtd C) erigitue tn
airs' industry or enterprise. (3) construct operate or
t]i:tuuatri any landfill, hay:,, dotts waste tre,,liiii_mrt,
tIispt'sal or recovery factttry, or any triter mndtisrr,,,l iii
rd it ed act lit v, (1 ) dispose of' :ttty tt:tzard otis or irsi
substance or itilter pollutant or (5) otliertvtse pievent
the transport cf sedtnaent ,intti oUter poll tttants
ass, is ti tes ss' t it sri rn ''sate r 'nit tdf bes'ond property
hottttdartes witi,,,ttl raving ptitviilcd for cotnplittnee
svitit this Ordinance

DIVISR)N 4— S't'ORL\IW,A't'ER OIjA\TiTY.&ND QI.tAt.i'l'\'
MAN,'\CEMLNl' ItEQUIREMEN'ti

See. #. Regimlabinirs.

(5) 'In req urre per tot tiattee bonds of any persoit to
seetire that pci'sons eoritpliiiicc svitit Lt,rid
iiisttrrhance Peuimtt, permit, certificate, license iii
atttliorrsanott issued or approved hy the Ptitilte
Works Department put su:mt to tit us Ordinance, tue
Ss\t\t P and Feder ,ml and Statc lass's

(h) I lie Pnhlie 'Works l)ep:tttraaetit shall he iesportsrbic fun
day to day ccsorditi,,tion iniplerrientation intl
enforeerttrnt of this Ordinance atid tite S 'c t\ Ii arid
well ta rite long—terni itiariagernent ol the County's
drainage Wrtho,it liittttat,on, the Ptthlie \Voi Ps
Deparl miii shall Ii aye I lie fo I loss' i rip specific powers
and duties

'to drt cet, review arid recoin ittetid for approval by
I estngton County Council, the storii,sr:tter

ruanagemctar opct atiug huclgel

'to direct, res icsr and reenna'tacnd for appi oval try
t.es t ngtota Coo or v C ouri cii tIe des sat's' cit art ges to

tie esisttr,g stt,rni\' alter rti:tntgetttcrit proot ui's

io deten iii i e apprtpri tile lies, to ii it

penalties, anti to bake necessar and apprttir tate
act tons to collect any fee or cii fbi cc ans' pctt alt'
,m_sseased pursuant tti this On clui:titee

(6) It, requ're the dcs'eiopniettt ut a Stctniiss',it er
i'oilttttota Prevention Plan (SW]'i'P) fctr au itmr'
tintt 'c—develop rr 'ciii projects ti id en tore c men

sucit SWPPI'

(7) 'to approve I ''rid di sttnrh i ng pills tn d to req iii rc tic
a cundttton of such appros'ats,stntetttral tir iton—
St nt ttral coot it its, p r:tc t tees, t! e\'r ecs, oper.itt rig
pictecdures, or outer nteeli:tt,icuis to pruteet public
nil private pit'pemty t'rcurii flciudrng and eicusuttt
Intl artain i'MDI,—naandaic d pctttutatit lottd
isduetions and water quttlttv st:ur,d:irdc



(h) The following development activities are exempt from
the provisions of this Ordinance

(I) Land disturboig activities undertaken on
lorestland for thc production and harvesting of
timber and timber products and conducted in
accordance with best management practices and
minimum erosion protection measures established
hy the South Cajolina Forestry Commission
pursuant to Section 48-18-70 ofihe 1976 Code of
Laws of South Carolina, as anicnded

It shall be the responsibility of the property owner, lessee
or person responsible for mid disturbing activities to provide
adequate coniruls to meet the design and engineering
standards

Sec if. Land Disturbance Permit Application Process

All land disturbingaetiviiies shall rcquire the creation and
submittal of a Land Disturbance Permit Application for reviesv
by the Public Works Department. The entire application
process and requirements shall be detailed in the Storniwater

Management Design Manual

8

It shall he the responsibility of the applicant (property
owner, lessee or person responsible for land disturhuig
activities) to provide a coniplete L,and Disturbance Application
Package that meets all the requirements of tIns Ordinance, the
SWMP, and oiher State and Federal regulations

Sec. . Siormwater iIanagement Design Manual

Infonnation and requirements for ncw and re-
development proi ects in special protection areas that
will be created to address TMDLs, known problem
areas and other areas necessary to protect, inanititn,
and enhance waler quality and the environment of
Lexington County and the public health, safety, and
general welfare of the citizcns of Lexiocton Count)

(e) Land Disturbance l'einiit Application requirements.

(f) Construction docunient requirements,

Requited and recommended inspection and

maintenance schedules and activities for all
components of he stormwater management system,
including construction-related BMI's

ftc Manual mas hit updated periodically to reflect ihe
advances in echnology and experience gathered with lime
The most current version shall he the used by Lexington
County for conveyance imnnil lIMP design, construction and
maintenance

See. 4 Oinership and Lexington County Participation

(a) Properly owners and I ,cssees are responsible kr
mamnt,nning stonnwaier quantity mid quality facilities
and all conveyance structures located on their

Sec. #. SWTtIP

To establish the minimum requirements, processes and

_____________ guidance on the design, evaluation and implementation ol land

___________________________ disturbing or pollutant c macharging activities and stormw ater
management conveyances and facilities in Lexington County,

(2) Activities undertaken by persons who are The Public Works Depa tent is authorized to develop iind
otherwise regulated by the provisions of Chapter adopt additional poli ;, iteria, processes, specifications,
20 of Title 48 the South Carolina Mining Act and standards f the p Cr implementation of the

requirements o us Ordinance, 'deral and Slate laws and tlte
(3) Certain land disturbing activities undertaken h) SWMP in tormwater Mana ment Design Manual I he

persons who arc exempt from ihe provisions of Manual all include design andards, procedures and ertiena
the Stormwater Management and Sediment for o ueting hydrologi hydraulic, pollutant load
Redtietion Act as set forth in Section 48-14-40 of cv nat n, and dos treani in act for all components tit the
the 1976 code of Laws of South Carolina , as .toirnwatc n is en system though the intention of the

amended manual is L abtish t ifonn de gn practices it neither
replaces e need for engine 'ring jud ent nor precludes the
use o nformiiation not presen Other eepted engineering
pro dures may used to cond t hydrok ic, hydraulic and

The Public Works Deportment shall develop and pollut t to. stu es if ,ipprov by the Public Woiks
implement the necessar1 operations according t t Departm
Lexington Cotnity SWMP The SWMP serves as th asis for
compliance with the NPDFS Stormwater Permit ' ted to Th Design Manna all contain at a mm mm the ollowing
Lexington County under the provisions of 'fitle 33 U C, 40 eomp nents
C FR 12226 and R 61-9 12226 The SWMP Plan more
hilly describes the actions Lexington County will emplo liir (a) P mit appli ' tion amid site NOT processes,

compliance -the NPOES Slot msvat ermit ines the Ic

and conditions of Lexington C9 ry's atitlioimty operate i (b eimnit proval tnrements,
storinssater system / (c) Hydr gie, hydra9Rc, and water quality design
Se-c. 4. Design and Enkccring st.6i. criteria , e-,i'n standards) for the purposes of

ntrol run - rate, volume alt d pollutant load

Design and neering st'dards de - e th desired cvel Sn 'ested efercnce material shall he included fur

of quality d perfo nec storm's r manag nt gnidai in computations needed to meet the design

systems all land disturba e pro ets mid existing facilities standards,
in or to meet the purpose ot isO niance The standards
esia ish the mini technic req rements cc to

expres. complian throu calenlati s, 9ps and scum

or others s necess'

The Pub Works 'partnie is auth rize to devek
and adopt polie , enteri specifi tions, a d st ards for

the proper impl entation 01' the require tents this
Ordinance. Federal d State ass a d the S 'MP n
provide a sound tee teal h. r tie act ievement it
stormwaler management, eluding water quality and quantity
objectives These standar , shall be presented or use in the
Stormssater Management D sign Manual he standards
defined in the most current vers , n of th ' laoual shall serve (g)
as the requirements to meet this Or n



property Prior to the its mince of a lanil development
permit, die property ooiier shah execute a legal
document entitled "Cot eritints tor Pertnittent ______________

Marnteo,tnee of Stor mw.it Cr S stem'', or the lessee
shall e\eet'te a legal docinnent entitled "Covenants for

Mainteitarice of Storniss'ater Sa stern an Leased
Property (the Covenants') The property o's ncr or
the lessee, is the ease may he, shall record the
Covenants in the 0111cc of the

The location ofthe facility the
recorded location of the Cos en ants doentnetit, and a
note statnig the property nsvner s or I essecs
respotisihility shall he -hosvn on a plat, or in the ease (I) reqore that ic applicant grant any ticeessltrs'
of a Lessee, is an cxli th ii arlaehed to Ilte Lessee's easenieiit iver, titi otigli or undei the applicant's
Covenants, I hat is also recorded in the C H [tee of the proper to pros I ' access to ot itt at Itage br such

_______ ______________ In the ease of a a C he,
lessee, the property osi ocr shall he nttttted on any
C oseti ant a, i d be req n I red to conduct ot.i itt I cit alice ) req tire that lIt e ' I pl tcatii arte nt Pt t Ii ohiat a Il-out

aeti 'ttt L's it pon the terti iii tat ion of a lease rig reern eat tI t e Ott Hers of I L (lice I y over, tli o a oh or tinder
where tlae storniwri ittanagenietit faetltt is to he

(h) The properly owner or lessee shall grrirtt to Lexington erite , ' v easer -nts necessrirs' for the

Conots' a perpetual noui—e\elnsl\ e trati,sberahle 'or, ritetton ' d 'nataL lncc of suite (and failing
easenteurt from a puhluc street that allows br poblic the obtaining o nch ease cot t.exington Conuttv
tnspectioti ,tntd emergency tepair ofrill ceiitipnnetits of ittay. at its opnt t, rcsstst ii such matter he
the drrruti,nre systetii. uteltidung all conveyances and all pta 'ise. eotidetttrua in, dedie, ioo Or otherwise,
water qoriritty and quality cotttrol baeiltties At the t sit -eel to (dj belt v, sstlh s' cost htictared
request of the PoN-io—tt'oi ks—Departaieot I )urecio 'I thterehy ft e patd hy I cx aton Cm t ),
Poblue Works or his desugnec, the prntieos' 0' tet ot
lessee ,stiall grant iii Lexoigion Canttty riglit—t—svays C3) [n it etnent rIte pros is ii oh ditional

slur water control, both Lexi ii mti o on ry atid

(c) Lextngtott Counts' has own and niaittt,tui all drat age devehi er must he ni agreement svi t lie proposed
laciltty at iticltides the additional storage orss steni cotiiponents thai ate constructed tindet or

euttiutent c acttvcollect stornisvatcr ruittoll tl- i a COIL v-owned ro,t

he ltieared so tha eu1ttited eisen clot he ec. # 'thur ance, Co sir iirtiiin. Irislit-cihoir, and Nor(d) Stontts,iler quantity ad qoaltrv eonitol Ilici es shrill

ehl'eet t s'els' tised an ow' ncr slit nil d it en an cc NI a in ten an ccl C 0th uwater nit all rigeti tent 55 stein is

respotusihtuhtl can he early dçl cl'vds and eutteal 'ar the act 's'enieni of its pitrpttse of coittrolhttug

plats
stuarir atei irnufl' manttt arid ctuualrn' and the short—term ,tnut
ho g—ternr pa Ii lie a I thi a abel. raid getter.' I ste I fare Of t lie

(e) stiigloo County shi, iese -e the right to accept lt ens of Lexiitgtoit Conitty

ownership and niainlc_tir, 'e 0 II iii pm I of
A per io,ittent tiia,ntetirirtee plan for the stotaisvriterseortnw'atet -
unaarueetitc'nt avsicttt shall he inelticlecl Ln tIme Latud

(I) i e Covvcs shall. ctb\' lint ntrrti ,,tiintenra e Diattahancc Perrtitt Application As pail ofihie

req I eitten \tae pe tied at oc 'cssri ' tntcr"a Is iy ma, rite it 111cc P1 au, tlt e hit op cay a" ne i oi lessee of

the pr et Is owcç,ti less\ff the c se ni ' be such I mi lily shall spec L hically agree to lie t esponsihle
br per tiianetit matttletu,iriee in oi dcr Iii Itrttisfer

(g) Ifa triciltts or an'' pitr ,uf,e storitus titer as's otamntcarittec respotustliulity a letter iul acceptance hy

not being ala ttamncd is cc
DepattitietulDtrciov fl',;

lair d, the l'o the oew owner0) aeceptitia pemnianeitt utuntutettattee

I Voik's uiut responsibility shall he tiled sstth the l'iihtlic Works

ill notify the pro et t) ,msvrter or I nssec, 5 die case t')epai t itierit

na as' he, ti writing
-

itoperty tot ite i tit cssee, as il
case mat' he, flails to it lit or rttatnt, the facility (hl
wmtltmn the allotted mite, e PahI Vorks Depatlnacutt
niny rndlnoi ize the stiut k to - rfori,ued by the
Coon I y tie others Itt sit cli crises the p ii iliertv ow icr or
tessee, as Ilte ease tii,is he, shall renotiiitse the
County or doable its direct and rel,oed expenses If
the pik'petO owner ar lessee as the ease mas' be fails
to rcuttihtiase the Couoty. cite County ma authorized tit Ic) It the cuiti struct i tin is it, tie phased, rio state w'ork,
tile a lien for sod costs against die litper0 or the related to ihie eotistrtic_oitn of storniw',iier tnanagenietd
1,essee',s le.ssehold niteresi, as the case itmy he, raid to Iaeihitmes shall procec'ul ittitil the pre'eethotg stage iii'
enlorce the ten ha' toiticitil foreclosote pic'ceedings '5 ark' is itispeeted ,iriit approved, atttt'ss s1teeiticalts'

addressed iii the appioseet Land Drstoth.oiee Peni,}i

(dj The pet it nec shrd I tiutti 'st the Psala1io—Works
l4tsfiaiiotentf)mreehri ot Public Wott,s at his d,ggjginee
behi,re eotonienc_irtg iiiy svork to oti1sletoe'irl the

Cr) \Vhen the t'obhieWt'rk's'I)epm4riicntDireetrtr tit Puhlie
\Vortss or his designee uletennines chit iditilional
storrige capacity or polluilitia reduction lieytittd drat
reqtoreth by the appl'crout for on—stee shottaw'ater
toanagetoeat is necessary in order to enhatree or
provide fur the public health, safc' atitt general
welfac e, to correct unaeec plable or uottesi t able
existing utidittons or'la pituvide proteetttrn iii a mote
desirable I,,shiion for t\itiire developtncttt, t,csmngttin
Cout ate tutay

As putt ufthie 1_and l)tsitirbance I"erttto Application,
dc itIspI t cant shall suihm it eoostmeti urn and Bi'-i I'
niaiiitcitri,iee and inspection sehcdittes Required anet
recotoitierided seheiltilca for t3MP inrnitertaacc and
irispeel isitn are to he rous'ided in Ibte 5ititt 111w tiler
N'lruiiageiaenl hlaesrgn yI,iuitiat

U° -\ property 05 ncr or lessee trras hire or contract others
to tier for iii niecessars' ,ti,oniteiranee acuauus but
t,exirtglirn County wilt hold the persitli annie in hue
Curs eutriti Is itS chic res pu irs I h he party sI itittl tt legal

act iou s described to (gi he access riry'

9



approvcd Land Disturbance Permit and upon
completion of any phase or designated component ot
the site Notification schedules shall be provided for
in the Siormwater Manadement Design Manual All
self-inspections, maintenance actions! BMP
replacenicnts, and changes to the approved Land
Disturbance Permit shall be documented and
presented upon request to the Publ+e—Works
DepartateisaDirector of Public Works or his designee

(e) The pennittee shall notify the Public Works
Department that the site- or portion or the site, is
sufficiently stabilized to begin the NOT process If
portions of the site are to closed prior io others, a
proposed schedule shall be included in the approved
Land Disttirbance Permit The NOT process shalt at a
mininium require

(I) a final plat showing the location of all stormwater
system components and responsible party for the
maintenance of the system References shall be
made to any all ownership and lessee Covenants
established for ensuring the maintenance and long
term functioning of the stormwater system The
plats shall also show conflicts with tither new or
existing easement,

(2) that all eomt
management
Disturbance
the function
addition, the

/and
(f) Thc

Wor

(2) Pmat accepte of an" road into the Official
Lexington Coui Road Inventory r desiatton
or road owner \ and assoe ed stormwater
management systeni

(3) Release of any bond held bs Lexington County

(4) Approval and/or iicocptance for recording of map,
plot or drawing, the intent of which is to cause a
division of a single parcel of land into two or
more parcels

Sec. #. Watercourse Protect 'on

Every peroin owning propeity through which a
watercourse passes, or such person's lessee, shall keep and
maintain that part of the watercourse within the properts' free
oftrash, debris, excessice vegctitiOfl. and other obstacles that

would pollute, contnminaite, or significantl) retard the flow of
water through the watercourse In addition, the owner or lessee
shall maintain existuig Pt ivately owned structures within or
adjacent to a watercourse, so that sticli structures will not
become a hazard to the use, function, or physical integrity of
the watercourse

To assist in the compliance with State and Federal laws
and regulations, the Public Works Department shall develop,
at its discretion, special protection areas which require
additional control of stor-nwater quality and quantity than
provided b minimum dt-sigo standards Such areas may
coitstst of watershed core ondiog to adopted TMDLs, known

flooding problems an oltu on impairmeots, or other areas
necessary to protec maintain, nd enhance water quality and
the environmen t Lcvirgton C nty and the public health,
safets, and a erat welfare oftb 'itizens of Lexington
County

miwater s stems cr ted as the result of any new
d re-dc I me ro ct shall connected to the existing

drainage sy n n a matt r to so as ot degrade the integrity
ofthe eN tog system, whe r natural manmade, and shall
have oonstrated this to the hUe V/or Department prior

lance of th-4OT Disehar points s It be coofined to

ousting natura r man-n de drainage
tar discharges e to flow nto

Itection systems notpvned and inamnt ed by Lu ington
v, the ow ners,,Asf all such systems, pn te or p lie, shaft

vided the opportuoity to r 'me such plans
systems shall maintain the right to

sb their system Puvate systems shalt
property, incltiding private ponds

led as jtmrisdictionat waters of State
systems, but instead protected

to

water of the State

ing other requirements of law, as soon as any
io responsible for a facilits or operation and maintenance,

-eonsmble for emergency response for a facility or
aon has information of any known or suspected release
iatenals which are resulting or may result in illcgatl

lischarges or pollutants discharging into stormwater, die storm
drain system, or waters cf the Stale, said person shall take alt
necessary steps to ensure the discovery, containment, and
cleanup ofsueh release In the event of such a release of
hazardous matenals said person shalt immediately notify all
necessary agencies oItho occurrence via emergency dispatch
services This shall inehade the Lexington Count) Public
Safety Department and Public Works Department to the ecent
of a release of non-Itazaidous materials, said person shall
notify the Public Works Department in person or by phone or
facsimile on the same htsioess day Notifications ut person or
h) phone shall he confirmed by written notice addressed and
mailed to the Public Wc:ks Departnieot within 5 business days
ofthe phone notice 'l'he ow ncr or operator of such
establishment shall also retain an no cite written record ofthe
discharge and the actions taken to prevent its recurrence Such
recoids shall he retnuied for at least 5 years Pailure to provide
notification ofa release is provided above is a violation of this
ordinance

The owner. operator, or other ilesignated responsible party
will bear all costs of cleaning up any spills In die event that
lexington County departments clean up a spill, the owner,
operator, or designated responsible party will he required to
reinihurse the County for funds used in the clean-tip

See. 4. Performance Bonds

(2) documentation from the owner of the apç
Land Disturbance Permit, including any isions

and as-built construction drawings, inspeet\Qn
reports, and storniwater system ownership
transfers,

(3) a final inspection o

Spills

(1) ihe u
eompont



A persoil is required to obtiti ii ti sure cii cash bond,
irrevocable lidtet 0! cred it, other nie all I I security
acceptable to tile i 'uhi ic Works liepu taicilt, made payable to
Les ingion County, prior to the issuance of aily bui id i ug and/or
gi ad tug permit for construction o i' a neat or re-development

requiring a stotm's ater managenleilt sa aunt '(he amount of
the see u ritv stall lot be less tli iii iii ice tho is nil it (S 3,000)
dollars per acre of dtsturbed area or Is aillended iii tile Public
Wop ks Deparlmeni 's fec schedule is pohi shed and approved
liv I.e Sill eton Coin it y Council

(d) 'I he Public—Works—I )t'pirtmentDo cetor ulFubhc
\\tii k s or his desieiiee Ill ay require ciii trots for iii
cxeillpt flilni thc prohibition provision iii (a). (h), and
(Li above the fottitsenig, pins ided thai a teosonabto

rtetennmariciii is made cliii thrv lire not a signiticani
source ofp0t hut toil

I) thnpoltuied nidustiiai euotuig water, bitt cintv
under hi. iriihorization anti direclion of the Public
Wes ha -9t pa onienipetorofl'ithiic\',prksir
his des tice and appropr tale N PDF.S pc nil it

(2) Water ii no Ii u silul g perils i niecl or requited hy a
goverilnieni agency, d iverieil stream flows, rising
ground waiei s. and unpol I tiled pumped i.' (mod
isaters toil unpolluted ground water infiltiation

'fhe Ptiht Ic \\'ni Ks Depai talent shah take ,tppt opriate
steps til deleci and elin,in,ite illicit uouileciions ti the
Lexington t2Iiiiilt Stonlilvatci Sr stem. inehuting tile
adoption cii a program to screen itlicit disctitrges and
identt' their source or sOui eec, porfonti instiectuins.
and let v lines is not removed

'he Puhhe Wistks Dcptu uncut s'hall take ,i1ipiimpriate
steps tel detect and ehiiiiittiiic. improper iliseillii tics
Tttese steps nina include piogranas 10 seteen bar
disposal. progianis to provute for ptibhic education and
puhhc inlonll,ilion. inspection eva' fines, and other
appropriate activities iii facililate lie proper
nianagenieni md disposal ill used ott, to' ic uiaiei ials,
and househimitil hazardous ;s'asie

Sec II. W'asie t)ms Ii sal Proh i bin liii

(a) No peison shall rhn,w, deposit. leave, niriuiit,iuil, keep
or pet nit 0 he ulirn',s,i, deposited, left, III tti,uiiiaoled,
ill or upon any pubtic or pris'aie propeoy, dna ew'av,
parking ,trcit, street alley, stdeas ilk conipimuotit of itte

Sets. if. Rescrvt'tI

'ftic bond so required in ttm is seccton stial t include
l,ros'isinils relative to forteittire or tar lure to cililipletc work (3) Discilarge t ni poiltlhe \' ater snurces,

spec i lied in the approved I ..u nil Disturb tuulce Ferns it, found, ott d u its, air eoi id it 'In i ng cotid cii', at ion,

coitiphiance with all the provisions iii hits Ordnlanee and other tin lioti water sp gs, av,iier from citiwl space

rippheable laws attd iegnlannns, md ant time lunlittiliolts The imps, baiting dra s lttssti ssateting. individual

bond shalt released otse (t) scar after die ciimplc'tittn of the ear 55'lishluig. echllnruilitcd swnntnulg 11001
NO'f process by the PuWiet'ou ks—Depau tnseuim Do color of disharees, tb',; i'roin ri part an habitats and

ohio Woi ks om his des iottee, 5 igni'ing tIme siornlwater ss etlainls md stree ssasli waler

liii t,tgenlent sy.si cmli as being ill etlill ph liii ice ss ii h lie ap pros'ed
pin and the provisions of this Oiduiance 'ftse bond shall not (4) )is iarges u low's froi lite lighting
he ful ha until the NOT process is t outplete A Pt ovision mu)'
he made for parltal ieleaae ofthie tmitiount of thic bond pra-rata (5) Other 5ittit,ir Occa. coat itici cntal non-

upitit conipletioti ,ind acceptance ol the s arious stages 01 stnr s',iler d iseliargc

development as speci l'mcal ly dcl itleated, dcsei il,ed, and
scheduled in itse approved Ltntcl Disturhatiec l'ulilli 3 (e) Ihe even of an aeon ital dis arge or an
developer shath itotit\' the lauhtie__Wuuks4)epartsmtsulll crior of unavoidabto I into the t_esii 'Ion Cou y N'1S4 of

Public \\'iirks or his tlesiouiet' upoit eoiuplettoti etf e eh stage our pollitti ihe persots citicern shall i fmiiiit the

thi,ut is read; for the NOT process Le-,ugt Counta gsPe—W5ii ks—Dc toot ciu
it Ptthuic Vorks hr his clesigllce tin die same business

ct ', or no Ici tier than 24 tioiuis, of the naittie. tti,nltity
and me of tic 'urrenee of tile d isehargc 'l'hie persia

t)IVIS!ON if — DEFECtION AM ElOV.\l. ( ' tl,LICI'I 'i'nccr ed shall he ttiin1eihiite steps to conlaul the

CONNECTIO' - kM) DISCII RGI'. ANI) si ue, tr it the sV,. te or oilier actions 10 Itiituitltre

IMI'ROI'E ISI'OS U. affec of e ctisel ' oe on time ,\tS4 aitd teceis'iog
waters e p s shall also take mmcd late sieps to

See. #. Illicit Cminiieetions Illiril Iii 'barges nd 'sure no i tinieilce ut lie discharge 'I lie owner,

tmprn Disposal, tip 'Cur, oilier desigtiaiutl iespunsihle liii)' asill
heiu a costs of cleaning up any spiiis In lie event

(a) s untawitil fot an' ctsoi o conttc'ct any pipe. open that I c\ingtuuri Couata detiluhuents clean lilt a spilt

channel, or any oili co veyarIce system that the owner. tuttetatur. or dasignated responsible parts

d sell Itt gus a - hung. excel sto iwatc I ti r a pm ored 'vi II he req iii red 10 re i nibu rse iii e C on iii liii (hinds

water s iell is prosed y C l'mihlic Wo 'a used In rile clein—up

'palullcn ulto the - 154 rir a atet fille Sta

ib) It is t. ass fiil Ii any pers utlo con rue I ' operatic Disposal.
of any s cli illicit ameei liii regard Ic. a mif;s etti e r the
coilaccilo 'sas 'i inissib ' whui eons ucieci (Cu)

tmpiopc.r cii nectitins t ;'iolt tioil ol i us iii di e

musi he disco leetcd tnt r ' irected, if ieeessar, lo
the sans lhcti tif the Pub mcorks
DepartuweitiDirecio cf i'ohlic Works u his drienec
and iit' uittler fecte i ,, 5 toe, or he a menu es or
departnienis regulating I ' discha

ti)
(e) it is u n I iw lii I for a nv person to thi ow, ul rn iii, run or

othcns'ise drseh arge to air" compoor'oi of Lexington
County s N 54 or to the water a of tIre State or to
cause, peunir or allow to stiller to he thriossti, dronied,
ran, cii itlriw to seep iii otherwise disctt,iige mb such
system or rece sing svti icr ,it I ni irer uif any aatui
cx ecpi tug urn I y such st twin or surface wit em as here i

See if. Detection ni Illicit Connct'iinus and hni1ii miper

acnthoriicd

ii



storm drain system, or water of the U S , any refuse,
rubbish, garbage, titter pet fecat matter, or other
discarded or abandoned objects, articles, and

accumulations, so thai the same may cause or
contribute to pollution 'lard debris, including natural
fotiage, ma', be deposited in the public right of way
hut not in or on any stormwater conveyance
structures, including in lets and gutters or t:cpt—io
streets, hut not in—the—gutter, but only if a collection
service by or through the County' is available Wastes
in proper waste receptacles may be placed in the street
for collection, but again only if collection by or
through the County is in place No waste or yard
debris shall be placed m the street without such a
collection service

Notc[lDA2t

(b) Upon refusal by any property owilcr to pemiit tin
inspector to enter or continue an inspection, the
inspector shall terminate the inspection or confine the
inspection to areas concerning which no objection is
raised The P.ablicWorks—DepsrtmeistDirectiir of
Public Works or hit ilcsigggc shall document the

- refusal and the grounds for such and promptly seek
appropriate comptilsoty process

(c) In the event that the Put,lt-orks-DepmetDirector
of l'tihlic Woiks or us designee reasonably believes
that discharges from the property into the Lexington

County M54 may cause an imminent and substantial
threat to human health or the environment, the
inspection may take place at any time and withotit
notice to the owner of the property or a representative
on site The inspector shall present proper credentials
upon reasonable request by the owner or

representative

(d) Itaspection reports shall be maintained in a permanent
file located in the Public Works Department's office

When the P*1b110-W&mrks—DepattmentDirector of Public
Wnrks or hit, dejggee finds that s', ork done under mis
Land Disturbance permit for new and re-developments
issued under the provisions of tIns Ordinance fails to
confbrm to the upproved Land Disturbance Permit, or
that the work has not been done, the P+jbtie—Wo.ks
DepartmeetDirector of Public Works or his desigjjye
may', as deemed necessary by written Notice of
Violation (NOv), direct conformity to said Plan(s)
Actions may include

I) isstung a written order to comply, to suspend
work. or to tevoke the permit issued, or

(2) seeking redress through legal action,

(3) withholding the release of permanent electric
power to the site, and/or

(4) withholding ',itlier needed permits for the site

The NOV shall serve as a legal requirement to remove
the violation(s). Alter the issuance of the NOV, the
PcerkD:paatmentDircctor of Public Workjg
his dosienee is hereby given the authority to le y fines
as described in this section Upon failure to address
the NOV and fines,

Sees. #. Reserved,

Sec. 4. i1onitoring.

(e) At any time during oil inspection or at such other times
as the Public Wit -s DeparUnent or his designee nay
reqticst info iott rom an owner or representative,
the owner represen tive may identify areas of his
facility r estab lishitten material, or processes that
con n or might reve a trade secret If the Puhhe

Sec. 4. Discharges in Violaticin of Industrial or bs—Dcpartmenti eotgr of Public Works or bis
Construction Activity NPDES Storm 'Water esi lee has no c ar and convincing reason to
Dtsetiarge Permit. stion soc identific tion, all material, processes

a inf a on obtain within such areas shall he

(a) Any person subject to an industrial or construction con ic ously Ia 'ted '-C - FIDENTIAL — TRADE

activity NPDES Storm Water Discharge Permit shill - ''REF' The t de secre designation shall be
comply with alt provisions of such permit Proof of freely granted to any atenal c 'med to be such by

compliance with said permit may he required in a the own or representa e unless here is clear and

l'onn acceptable to the l2stbhe-Works cony cing vidence for de ing Soc esignation In
Depactmen4Directni of Public Works or his desi cc event th PuhLc—Works - 'parlms. tDtreeIor of
prior to or as a condition of a subdivision m . site Public Works his dest°nce s not a with the

plan, htnlding permit, or development or imp oventent trade seer desigitation, the aterial ,hall he
plan, upon inspection of the facility. dunng an - tenipor y desi;nated a trade secret n e owner or

enforcement proceeding or action, or lhr any ott r cpresent 'ye may request an appea of the Public
reasonable cause \\ irks Dep mont' s decision in the manner in which

all s h appea arc handled in this ordinance

Sec. # 'cry
DIVISIONS-MONIT9ftINCAND - 'ECTIO,'S

DIVISION 4- . - F MENT, PENALTIES, AND
A1EMENT

(a) The ublic 's Dc ment monito lie Sec. 4 F,nforc tnt
ant my and concen tion pollutants in stormwater

discharges from the are, an r locations designated
in l,esingto unty's S\\ IP

Sec. 4. nspcctio s.

(a) The 'taN 's—D.k,rsmentl) ecto of Ptih
Works his dest cc, hethçg propc crede tials and _____________________________

identi flea n, may m. her and '4ispect a prope es for

regular i ectionc, per die vestiga s,
monitonng, o ervtition e urement, n.forc-ement,
sampling and te 'ng, to e eetuate the rovisions of
this ordinance and e SWMP pmogr The l2taNFo

W,'ork's—Dt1gmrtrneetDi ctor of Pubt Works or his
i-'riee shall duly noti'' the ow r of said propeoy

or the representative on 'sit e nispection shall he
conducted at reasonable times

t2



(h) \Vh eli the Pu hi ik s—i )eparsnsemD recur of Pub'ie
Works cir his designee aletet iii 'nes tlta I t,tt owner Ii as
faded to maintain a slot iiiwater mairaicertienl facility,
Tittela NOV shall he ptovrded to Ihe aisstier or the
person In possession. ehartee or eonti ol of such
propeny stat] ng the torture of the violation, the
proposcal penalty, the tit000ne of [iliac in whteh to
correct aielieieneies, the date on s hich ala i nspeetiori
svrtl he made to make stit o that correel ise tictiott has
been perfoi a] ed, and lie tit oposed peit ally s tm carte t
eortective action is not t,Lken bc the tttspeeiron date It
shall he sufficient nottitcation to deliver the ttotiee to
the petsiatt to svlaona it is addressed, ir to deposit a
copy of such in the Untied States Mail, properly
stamped, certified and atidressed to tile address oseti
for ta' purposes t he NOV may addt ess the coin
site, or a speetfie p00 iota of the site so as not to unduly
impede [he developnaeot of areas being managed foi
the cotoiatl ait stornawater monoff ,iiol associated

pollrttaiits

Arts' person vir'lattno tuty pros'tsitio ci thts ot,lritttitee shall
he sithject tn a civil penalty of iitit I tore than one tliousatsd
diillats (SLOOP) fair each violanoia Each separrte day ofa
viiil,ilion, coitstilutes a new and separiite violal ion

Sa_ a ddiritotal legal lra'nr Cs

(a) Where Les napton Cootaly is fined and/ui placed undr I
a eottt1ilt,iiiee schedule by the stale or fedc ral
governttieial for a violation(s) of its NtfiuliS permit,
and Leitiglott County cat] tdenti' Pie PCI son(s) ss ho
caused such viol aeuott(s) to occar Lcsittgton County'
niay pass iii rocigthe pci ti I ty and cost ol cci tttpl i altec

at pe rst i n9ç( N,

(h)

fiseTnotmiitaey

may insolote
uc o other appiopi iate action or

r'dings at lass' o 'quos', incladitig ettntrnal
aaetar of tins t'hdttiance oi touinvrttiou, for the en ''leer

)rdniance, mitt ,it[y' court of
have the rttzlil to issue

pcnuiiiierrt
P1iitecions. ttaandat is or oth sppt olli iii foi 'as of

lo the event a vi 0>,on oits Ord ice has ti, he n

mi ecly' air relief

rrc' ion,'eted within Iii ' pplieahle ti,tae penu
a the lot or'so ton Cainrit

edo land iiiil'
hits cotiti actor nsay

ect the violation and [tie eicsts itacul red
a ac can fittclntfut
ent . -ts) shill he

inspection, idniinistratioti,

,raJioticounl,i\es are cotlecied

collected l't cam the bond, if-,
plac and sir IC, etit to ver such costs, or sli all become a

Is and s 'ill lie collected iii the samei upon

Al ntad I )istutbaiaee pernttt itt,iy' he stispenated or revoked
if tine oi ttiiire of the ltihtaiss ing s'iiilanons hase hcen

(a) vtotirtioris nit' the cuncloiotts of the I ,anaf l)rsttirhartce
Permit Application .ipin's'al,

(h) eonstroction not iii accordances' ithu ilic letter or iiitc'ni

ofitic qtpros cd plans

(c) ion—cc] inpl lance 'a'' tla eoi recti on riot i ct(s) or stop wci I

ordei (5), dr

res

A C tilt H

(ci When [lie th,hhAVorks't )eannseistl lii ceta,r of h'uhli
Works or Ins destanc,' itciernaines Pta] nit owner or'

any pioIerty is causing iii partially' citisirig flooditto,
erosion, ot tton—eooipfiniee as rh ssalei iai,tlity
sland,nd oi this Ordinance, upon providing valid prool
of ccii napacts the 'oN ie—We-4n
Ds'paiti.ie,oD.rectur of Public Works or His abode
can iealoire osst'ers to reniose the proven not ci in a
concerleal, pnidenl n],ittiler

(d) The Cootilvl5ohli'-Works-Lk'pannieotsAtloriat'v 5
hereby aloe eted ro take ,rl I a aetu oi ictessars' it
correct situations cleseri d in (a), (h) no
including aelions th ne necessan to retail fiont
the propeily' stteh jeel ia,ooble co itiiitrs
eoiasiiliiiiiig lion—c ai1tli.oace s a liii' )ohinaiae

See. 0 Siaija \\'o
Ic) Noihoie ' ' taroc'd in I s Ordunat 'e sh, inrpa]r it'

mgI ii tibili a ' eCiiti is' lohh+e- anks Any perso hit shall proceed sstth aoy work sahieh

'paitoient—s—Attort to e,s misc aiay' and all other rent ires a land Disturbance lemntit hereunder ssithoot firsi

eniedies available, ill, 'or i eqtoly', oaelndtng suho tting a plait titid ohtaiaittg the penoit, adare applicable,
wtilaoitr inst ' on. lhae tao iapoiietive ci shall ave ruhiiaatioeally placed ott Ihe subjeel properts' a stop
under em reeney eunistane s iv -Fe there isa - iv ' order wIt t ch oem earn' wiih it a ci", I penalts .aee—oI-tss,i

'[tiger of dily tub 'or deatit iaindicd-dlars (S2Pi4_ahsaible tl,e_neoal_aiiioo,it-o±'

,lptit,eahk_ho1ict.ai[d_keantl.lian1ei4_o4_41ny—iittiei_al'pl4odilc
(I') The , ilurozed ifciiecitte I aoeoey ii its pooatecl peo,iltic—,—pi iiii.hi-l,ttirig—ef-ihie sio1i—cirk-—oualci I lie stop

ageiaI ni s' obtain unetive elief'tai onis latinias avork order tiiav alitias' Or ieqnitc' eairrecliOn irfNOV issues, nil

of the pro suons of 'is tjrdui see, at] t ,itry C on shall otherwise sta'p at I other pt at] cci related activities Wy

daro.iged re—tile nil ieh 5 iclatiiuns tti iv, upon persia in violation of a stop saork order us suhicct to

propel all O in of s tie Ii , at — es i ih lain ay tas eat oo pcaaml n ioot', it- ,ios—andaU-e& o poiem- iis the - pi a'p*-,—ana4

tlaeteli,ie by a ci' ictiuiia panaent ol'all lees, bonds, arol peraalries priait hi the httittl
the stop sunk oi ilei—req-iein'a'soeli-e-q.i-q'iiseiat

(g) 'flits Or alinanee may' Is ' enforced by'- - other renaedy Note[OSJ,
of law to equit' that the 'ublie Wa l)eparttssent is

authoriced to pursue, to nic d ie ,oitltoririec anti
paiss crc ciii len'ed itt Ii Ic '[I govern mel Os tiy' tIne Ci en era I

,Assenihlv nil SandIa Ctuolitta The penallies arid oilier
renseilies puos'ided ot los Article are cotiaulative and
nail e',elarsive arid tttay' he itidepeoeleritla ,oid ecotsinitied

separ lit IY pursued rgri list the sanae person for the
actus'ity' couastocituag a vtolatioo of tins Article 'the
enfiiinenaetat ol'ariy' reniaedy provided taeiein shall nut
prevent lie eiafaireenieol oftuiv otheu ienaedy or
remedies iii other poo'isioras ofehis Crate or oilier
Iasvs ,irtif regciluituc'os

Sac, . Pa'riunt Suspension and Rea,icaloiui

Sec. P. Cia ii Penalties

II



(d) the existence of an immediate danger to a downstream
area in the judgment of the Pub1ie-Werkc
Depaom€ntDirector of Public Works or his designee

Sec. # Criminal Penalties

In addition to any applicable civil penalties, any person
who negligently, willfully or intentionally violates any
provision of tins Ordinance shall be guiliy of a misdemeanor
and shall be punished within the jurisdictional limits of
magistrate court Each day of a violation shall constitute a new
and separaic offense

See. 4 Reserved.

See. 4.

DIVISION — VA RL4NCES

The Public Works Department may grant a variance froni
the requiremenis of this ordinance if exceptional circumstances
applicable to a site exist such that strict adherence to the
provisions ofthe ordmance will iesult in unnecessary hardship
and will not Fulfill the intent ofthe ordinance

See. 4.

The Psiblio-We455-DeØltme4l4Dire'
!mesinte shall eondudhçre'
variance and issue a decisioi
receiving the icE

See. # rved.

See. 4.

Any
of the Publi
hm,,esincc may
appeal with the Pub]
days of the issuance
the person to whom the decision or notice of viol ion is
directed fails or neglects to hgped the notice of olation
within (30) thirty days of the iiance of said cision or
Notice of Violation, the decision r siolati hecomes final

Sec. 4.

The Peht.e-Wo+ks-DepartnleetDircctpr ol Public Works or
his designee will res iew the appeal and will either res erse his
decision or send the decision and notice to the lh
arb'piiTh'i!mitt,hêi The notice of appeal shall stale
the specific reasons why the violation or decision of the Public
Works Department is alleged to he in error

Sec. 4.

The int'iira'propnate iTmittee here shall hear and
determine such appeals in a quasi-judicial capacity within 30
days or such other times as maybe mutually agreed upon and

will render a decision within ID working days after the appeal
has been heard

Sec. 4

Any person aggrieved by the decision of the tiri
tiny appeal the decision to the

Lexington County Magisi rate Court in accordance with its
rules and procedures

Sec. 4 Reserved.

DIVISION#—C lARCE5AJD FEES

Sec. 4. Fundin0/\
NO'I'E This section allows for the
establishment of a slormwater utility

)n to all hs r chJkcs, fees, and penalties.
exinetot ntx all ave the r'to develop and intpose a

mp±entarion of this
Storniwa Management Or nance

antçassociatedprog s and plans

to Couanes. \

14

Department shall have (right to
appropriate fees for any person tir

ili1sj ng a new discharge to waters of the
)s1ilty or lo a wet weaiher

ill' payable as part of any perntit
-c,,ilating the discharge of
Ices shall be established on the

loting to the quantity and quality of

NOFE This section allows for the
establishment of additional fees

Costs associated with field inspection of land development
or construciion activities other than those routinely performed
by the Public Works Departnient as part of compliance
monitoring shall be assessed a fee represcniiag the cost in
labor, equipnient, and maierials expended in tile conduct of tIle

inspectionS

DIVISION 4— APPENDIX

Definitions

"Applicant" is a person, firm, governmental agency, partnership, or
any other entity who seeks to ohitin approval or a permit under ilie
requirements of this Ordinance and who will he responsible for the
land disturbing 'activity and related maintenanre thereof

''As-built drawings" ai'e revised construction diiwings that show in
tile installed locaiion of the new facilities On a project, Including
the stormwater system This lena imd "record rlrasvings" shall he
svlionymous

"Best Management Practices (BMPs)" are any structural or non-
stnictui'al measure or facility used For the control of stormwaier
runoff, he it for quantity or quality conuol RMI's also includes
schedules of activities, prohibitions ofpractices, maintenance

A written request for a variance shall be requires
state the specific variance sought and the reasons, ssii
supporting data, a variance should be granted Then
shall include all information necessary to evaluate the
proposed variance

Sec. 4.

NO I'E This section allows for the
establishment of addiiional fees

fl

4. Field inspecfiun.

iolation If



proccdiircs, treatotetit eqo irentents, operating procedures, and
other it' anageme n t p ract ices to con to it site rum) I, 5 p I age or leaks,
sludge or waste dts1xis,il, diatnage tioiii lass material storage, or
otlteiwise prevent or reduce the polliitioit ot wateis of the Stale

Construction means all)! baitding ni erec000 of a stitictare Or any
p rep ,ti,ta ott for dte 510110

'DirL cliii (If Ptihtic Winks'' iiaeaiis tic Director of theE t'xiiigtoii
Cotints' I 'U hI IC Vi' tirks I )epltJililelit

--12eve In per me ails lily person whO IC is in hi S 0s5'Il Ii Lii at f, or as
all it WI 101 (ii as an agent br an owner of property, nit d svti o makes
application for the pci tint necessaiy to disturb land or vegetation or
to encroach upon a 10,1101 drainage eti,iiiiiet. or to eticioneit tillOlt

the thesigitated floodpInn

''Fiosion'' nteans the general pintcss ho which soils or tuck
Ft agi nents al-c detac hod and moved by the aeti oil of ss iii d, ss ate r,

'Land Distuthatiec t'einiit Applteatitiii'' means the set of drawings,
specifications, design cnttutatiiins, SWPPP and odter doeomeitts
that eotiiprise ,itt of the tntomtatioii for the control cif stomtwatcr
loi land dishirhances which is requited as part of tie iNPDES l,iiiil
distiitbance peniiut, granted by l'tihlic Woiks Dc1iaitment mid by
this Ordnianee Aji1sros tI ofitlis application eonstitntes the
issuance of and ''I_and t)istarhaiiet t'crrmt"

ic' iii gton Con it)' SIt tnlis' ater S vs toni'' or '5 U 11111" ate r S s'stenl
01 ''t,e\ingtnn Conlit) 51S4'' nle,ins lie convevaliet ilr system tit'
conveyances (inclnding roads svttli (trlltiiage sysienis, lughwa)5,

right—of—war', municipal streets catch basins, curbs, gutteis,
di te lies, in in—ill ade ehai I ite is, storni (Ira us, dctcn ct nit ponds, and
other storniwater flicit it es) v, hieh is (a) owned or operated by
Lexington County, (Ii) designed or used for collecting itt
eOnsv ytng stormwatet , (e) not a eon blued sewer systetit, and (d)
not part of a Pubticly Owned Treatnwnt Works (l'O'l'W)

"I essec" means the person in a tease agreement svitli ,i property
ow tic! br use ot the p iiperty

'Low I nipaet Develolinleitt (I ID)" is a set of print iples and design
counpoitetits used to ntanage stornlss'atcr natioff by ntiuiiicking
natural conditions mid liiiiultno otlutattt transport tttunngti source
con tio

''SI a it it rut ,ioce'' mel any act! on net tsar" to p rcsei "C Sto nllwate I
Sr steiti eompone , itiel odin g wove - ices, the it itics ,iitd PSiPs ni

flu nper worki condition, in ord to serve the ntleuudcd parpi'scs
set foith lot 5 niditiance and tot event stroctttrlil laihilre olsuch

Owtter 'means inty petson who acts in his own hotiatfon ati
application foi the pctiiiit neecssaiy to disturb land or segetatioti iii
to eutcroaclt upon a Inalor dranitige cliatinel. ot to encroach upoti
the designated fkwidplant atid the person if so designated h)
dcl' nitt or on legal docu ni en is, as t lie rcspo n s ihl C 11111 iv fur
tnaintrninCe of a sturtnwatcr svsicni

''I'elsoo means ills and all persons, natural or ,Iittt[CliiI and
uirtndes an' itidis'idnal, associatiiin, l'irni, corpor.itioti, husniess
tnist, estate, trust i.otneiship, iss'o or more persons hat no a tout
0! ciititmuo interest state or fedcu at or an agent (it etnptovce
lttc reuf or ans' othcr legat entity

t'ollatutt'' means Wedged sNul, solid waste, tticiiietator residue,
Ito hackos'ash, Sew,igc, girhag c, sew age sludge, ni on inns,

"er s5'st C

s hitS' if the
iduiig, ss itliotit

ice, and gi as tty rump

Lrscnt (lit" is an at it tioi I zati oit by a property owner to the gene rat
' ' 1St" inc ait

public, a corporatloli, or a certain person or persons lot the use of
ally (irs ignated part ol Ii is property toi ii speettic tnt pose "New Dcv opment'' or "Re-ldevei

fol lowiti actions tIn 'oaken by aliy

:'FIiMA ss6rd's tiiit,ition, y pi ito lttslite niitis'itt

"I tt'od/ilot'ding is a tentporan' rite in die tes'et of ss'ater nch (a) dis'isiuit of a It' tract, oi paicci :stans hs'

restitts in die tnuitthatioti of areas itot tirihitiarity cu\'cic(t 1,, water ptat or (lee ,

I 'or I lie purpose ut this OrdInance, a Ilisad shall hecoiistrue to he
any unindatton sslitc'h tims a rettiin ticqttciicy of 10(1 yeaus or '55, (h) le coitsti 'tton, tnst:ittatioti, 01 atteiatoiti of land, a

antI shalt he known itS lie base flood St cOne, iii erviotls stit face or drainage laeilits

'Illicit connection" nieans a connect Ito the l,exing i County (c) 'tearitt_ seraptn_ ortlhhitig 01 otherwise significantly
Stounsvatcr S)steut wInch results a discharge that is nc di, tutu, the stitl, 'gt'iation, mud, sand itt rock ofa

coil i psisesi entirely (lIst omits i r ri I n( It e'scept sclt,irges rsu at it site,
to alt NPDLS peniul (other tb ilic NPDL peniii hr the
lox itigton County Stoniiss'ater Sr toni) (d) a ding, i cnio ng, exposing, excas'ai trig. let cling,

gra no. it gog hut rtiwine, damping pihioo

"lintiroper dispo' ' itieans dispos I other iii. ltitough ai diedgi , or otherwise disturbing the siut, s'egetation,

illicit eonnec ii that results in a ttieit rseltarge, ineludtug, htit ntud, sand (it rock ot'a site

tot tititiie 0 the disposal ot'tised oi 'and t xie nialci oils resulting
tuoni ilie mptoper ni,ut,io ient titstic tibs Ices i 'P1)115'' cans National Pollatani Dischaige lsluiiitiariiin

S - ci See "('lean Water Act"

itlitit diseht or ''I 'cal disc ge'' mea san actis'ttr s telt

results in a disc aigc to iii I exuigli County 'torn sater Sys 'ii ''ODES permit" inc,itts the NPDFS for storinssater

it irceising wate tltat is n eoiilposc entitel) ifsto iissatei diselitrges issued to l,exttigton Count2' purstiant 10 the Clean

e't ept (a) drscltargc ursuwit t all Nt'l) S perint otliet ban lie Wltiel Act and the teeleral sbormss hid discharge i cgut,itions (40

Nl'l IllS for Lexuigtori Thuntr) in 1(h) dis barges icstilting nun Ct1R 12:26) that allows tint restiittitig pottutanl louts as necessair'

tlte fire—fighting activities
' to meet w'atei qn,d,tc' siandarcls

''I_and Disturhanee'' is an' ac sit2' usia sing cle,iintg grading, ''Outfall 'or 'Diselinge point" ilicaus the point ss'lterc Lexington
ttiiispottino, fihluiig, tir an' othie -Ktts'ity which e,iiis s land to he County Stomiw,itei System or otliei municipal and pitvale systenis

exposed to (he danger of erosion, o which might ' eale an diseliartucs to ss ,itei s of the Slate/I) nited Stales

hihicr,uion in the natural drainaocss'ay

'I_and Disturhiiiice l'erintl'' iticans tie legal dtictnni_nt ahtoss'ing
t,iiul to be disturhc'd hota its existitig eiitidttuin

5



chemical wastes, biological materials, radioactive materials, heat,
wiecked or diseaided equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt, and
industrial, municipal. and agricultuial waste discharged into water

'l'roperty Owner'' means the legal ow ncr of the property.

'Public Works Department" means the Lexington County Public
Works Department, the Director of Public Woi ks or any of that
department's duly authorized represeatatives or designees

"Receiving waters" means the waters into which the Lexington
County Stormwater System outfalls Pow and which are located
within thejurisdictional boundaries cf Lexington County and
include, without limitation, the lakes, rivers, streams, ponds,
wetlands, and groundwater of Lexington County

"Regulation" means any regulation, rule or requirement prepared
by and/or adopted hy the Lexington County Council pursuant to
this Ordinance

"SWMP" means the Lexington County Stormwater Management
Program, which contains components that are required as part ol
the NPDES storniwater permit 'fhcse components are
documented In the SWMP Plan

"Stormwater" means stormwater runotf, snowniclt runoff, and
surfimee runoff and drainage

Stormwater management" means the collection, convey cc,
storage, treatment and disposal of stormwater runoff in am ncr to
meet the objectmvc' of this ordinance and its temms, mncludmn hut
not limited to, measures that control the increased volume and ate
of storm" ncr runoff and water quality' i acts Lu d by
manmade changes to the land

"Stormwater management fac4t', also referr to as 13 ,or
stmctural BN'lPs, are any struch&re used for e coil ol of
slormnwater runoll, he 0 for quaia s'or qua ' eontr

"rMDL" is a Fe' atomy v evelo d to repre' it the mm
of a pollutan at a waterbody c' inco orate while meeting
water qu 'standards TMDI. are ' rthe efined as the legal
docume developed by A and SCD C signatin
pollutant I d a permi ed disc 'wee is all ed input in a

watcrhody

'Variance" meansihe moth ation o e minin rti st water
management rcquire'ients con tied in is Ordin cc the

SWMP for specific cir'bQmstance ss'here s met adhe nec to e

requirements would result/n unnec 'sary h dship a d not ft
the intent ofthis Cirdinance\\

"Watercourse" is any natural o>ui'made convey used to
transport runoff from (inc tocation\'t the next

"Water Quality" nieans those character ie sfstonnwater runoff
that relate to the physical, chemical, hiotogical, or radiological
integrity of water

"'55' amer Quantity ' means those characteristics of storinwater runoff
that relate to the rate and volume tif the stormw amer runoff

16



STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND SEDIMENT CONTROL ORDINANCE

LEXIN(;TON COUNtY, SOUTH CAROLINA



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1 - PURPOSE, AUTHORITY, AND JURISDICTION.]
1.10 Purposel
120 Authority 1
1.30 Jurisdictionl

SECTION 2-DEFINITIONS 3

2.10 Rules of Language and Iriterpretation3
2.20 Definitions3

SECTION 3-PROCEDURE 9

3.10 Perrnit9
3.20 Exemptions9
3.30 Approval ProcesslO
3.40 Approval or Disapproval of Application 11
3.50 Other Authorization or Requirementl2
3.60 Expiration of Permitl2
3.70 Responsibility of Applicant 12

SECTION 4-PLAN REQUIREMENTS 13

4.10 Requirements for Stormwater Management and Sediment Control Plan Preparation 13
4.20 Provisions for Flood Hazard Reduction20
4.30 Reference 23

4.40 Certifications 23

SECTION 5- ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT 25

5.10 Inspection25
5.20 Enforcement25
5.30 FeeSehedule 26
5.40 Waivers and Var] ances 26

5.50 Appeals 27

SECTION 6- MAINTENANCE 29

6.10 Maintenance During Construction 29
6.20 Maintenance Responsibilities After Development 29

SECTION 7 - LEGAL STATUS 31

7.10 Conflict with Other Laws 31
7.20 Repeal of Conflicting Regulations 31
7.30 Separability Clause 31
7.40 Amendments 31
7.50 Effective Date 31



SICT1ON I - PU14N)SE, AU'FIIORITV, AND JURISI)ICTION

1.10 Purpose

In order to protect the general health, safety, and weltare of the people of Lexington County. South
Carolina, this Stonmvater Management and Sediment Control Ordinance is enacted to prevent the
erosion of soils, to pre\'ent the sechmentation of streams, to control stormwater runoll from
developing areas, to reduce ihe damage potential of flood water, protect properties near land
disturbing activities, to i evem the eloing of ditches, to prevent the silting of lakes, to provide
unobstructed and sanitaiy channels for storm water runoff, to prevent flooding caused by the
encroachment of buildings or other structures on natural waterways and drainage channels, to prevent
pollution of surfhee water and groundwater, to promote groundwater recharge. and to preserve the
natural scenic beauty of Lexington County fhr posterity.

1.20 Authority

The authority and direction for this Ordinance are contained in Act No. 194 of the Acts and Joint
Resolutions of 1971 enacted by the General Assembly olthe State olSouth Carolina, approved April
23. 1971. in 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws Sections 4-9-30.49-4O and Chapter 14. Title 48, as

amended.

1.30 .Jurisdietiou

The provisions ofthis Ordinance shall apply to all lands within the jurisdiction ofhexington County,
South Carolina. and those municipalities which, by approval ofSCDl-LEC and by written agreement
executed with the County, contract to have these provisions administered within their corporate
limits. All lands ander the jurisdiction ofan entity with the power of eminent domain are exempt
from the provisions of this Ordinance; however, such lands are regulated by the SC Department of
l-Iealth and Environmental Control, 1976 SC Code of l.anvs Section 48—18—70 and Regulation 72—300,

as amended.

SF1.1 ION 1- IIJRFOSI AIj [IIORITY, \I1 IIJRLSl)Ill)N I



SECTION 2- l)EIINITIONS

2.10 Rules of Language and Interpretation

a The word "shall" is mandatory; the word "may" is permissive.

It 'l'he particular shall control the general.

c. Words used in the present tense shall include the future, and words used in the singular include
the plural. and the plural the singular, unless the context clearly indicates the contraiy.

d. All public officials, bodies and agencies to which reference is made are those of Lexington
County, South Carolina. unless otherwise indicated.

2.20 I)efinitioris

Words used in this Ordinance shall have their customary meanings as determined by the standard
dictionary definition except for the following specific words and terms which arc herein defined. In
any case, the Planning Engineer shall have the right to define or interpret anyword or term contained

within this Ordinance.

Construction — Any bLlilding or erection ofa structure or any preparation for the same.

Development - any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate. inchiding, hut not
limited to, buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading. paving, excavating,
drilling operations, or permanent storage of' niaterials,

Drainauev - a natural or manmade land depression with the purpose of collection and removal of
surface or subsurface water from a given area either by gravity via natural means or by systems
constructed to remove water and is commonly applied herein to surface water.

Easement - A grant or reservation made by the owner of land for use by others liar a specific purpose
or purposes, and which must he included in the conveyance of land affected hy such easement.

Elevated Ijuil - A non-basement building built to have the lowest floor elevated above the
ground level h means of fill, solid foundation perimeter walls, pilings, columns (posts and piers.
shear walls, or breakaway walls.

Embankment or Fill - A deposit of soil, rock or other material placed by man

Erosion - 'l'he general process by which soils or rock fragments are detached and moved by the action

of wind. waler, ice and gravity.

SECFION - I)FI IN! IONS 3



Flood - A temporary rise in the level of water which results in the inundation of areas not ordinarily
covered by water. For the purpose ofthis Ordinance, a flood shall be construed to be any inundation
which has a return frequency of 100 years or less, and shall be known as the base flood.

Flood Maps - The maps which are made a part of this Ordinance as though copied herein, and which

designate within the unincorporated jurisdiction of Lexington County and within those municipalities
which, by executed agreement, have contracted for the provisions of this Ordinance to be
administered within their respective corporate boundaries, the elevation andlor boundaries of land
subject to inundation by a flood. The specific studies and maps listed below shall be incorporated
herein, including any amendments thereto, as well as any authorized studies received from the U. S.

Corps of Engineering or other agency which specifically relate to the flooding of land within the

County and which clarify or extend the information contained in the following:

County Drainage and Flood Maps:

County DraingçMap - a map maintained by the Department of Planning and Development
which identifies the existing natural and man-made Major Drainage Channels of the County
that carry existing and future run-off in accordance with the design requirements of this
Ordinance.

County Flood Map - a map maintained by the Department of Planning and Development
which identifies any land area, in addition to FEMA Flood Plains, that are susceptible to
being inundaled by flood waters resulting from a flood with a return frequency of 100 years
or less.

FEMA Flood Maps:

Flood Tnsurance Rate Map (FIRM) - An official map of a community on which the Federal
Emergency Management Agency has delineated both the areas of special flood hazard and
the risk premium zones applicable to the community. The areas of special flood hazard
identified by the Federal Emergency Management Agency in its Flood Insurance Rate Map
for Lexington County, South Carolina (unincorporated areas), latest edition with
accompanying maps and other supporting data, to include the FEMA worksheets maintained
by the Department of Planning and Development (WM #2-17), and any revision thereto, are
adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this Ordinance.

Flood Insurance Study - The official report provided by Federal Emergency Management
Agency. The report contains flood profiles, as well as the Flood Boundary-Floodway Map
and the water surface elevation of the base flood.

Flood Plain - Any land area determined by the Federal Emergency Management Ageney(FEMA) or
Lexington County as susceptible to being inundated by flood waters resulting from a flood with a
return frequency of 100 years or less.

Flood Prone Area - Any land area determined by Lexington County to have a tendency to be
susceptible to being inundated by water from any source.

4 S[C1ION7-DEFINi1IO4S



I:Ioodproo tuig — \ny combination of str icturail and non—sti-uctund n ocli fications. additiuis. chaiues,
or adjustments to new or existing structures which has the effect of reducing or cliniinating the
potential for flood damage to real estate or improved real property, to water and sanitary fhcilities, or
to structures and their contents.

Floodway — The channel of river or watercourse, and the adjacent hind areas, thatmust he reserved in
order to discharge a flood within a return frequency of 100 years without cumulatively increasing the
water surihce elevation mote than one loot.

Floor - lhc top surface of au enclosed area in a building (including basement), that is, top of slab in
concrete slab construction or top of wood flooring in wood Frame construction

Grading — Any displacement of soil by stripping, excavating, filling, stockpiling, or any combination
thereof including the land in its excavated or Ii lied state.

Land — Any ground, soil, or earth, including marshes, swamps, drainageways. and areas not
permanently covered by water within the County.

Land Disturbance — Any activity involving clearing, grading, transporting, tilling or any other activity
which causes land to be exposed to the danger of erosion, or \vhicll might create an alleration in the
natural d rainageway.

Lowest Floor - the lowest floor of the lowest enclosed area, which is defined as any structure with
more than one solid wall (including basemcni).

Maior Drainage Channel — A natural or man—made channel within a Major Drainage System.
Such channels are showi on the County Drainage Map, a map attached to and made a part of this
Ordinance as though copied herein which is maintained by the Department of Planning and
Development and which identifies the existing natural and man—made Major Drainage Channels of
the County.

Manullictured I-Ionic — A structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a
permanent chassis and designed to he used with or without a permanentfoundation when connected
to the required utilities. The term also includes park trailers. travel trailers, and similariransportable
structures placed on a site hr 180 consecutive days or longer and intended to he improved property.

Natural \Vaterway - Waterways that are part of the natural ropouraphy. They ustially maintain a
continuous or seasonal flow during the year and are characterized as being irregular in cross-section
\\ith a meandering course. Construction channels such as drainage ditches shall not he considered
natural waterways.

New Construction - Structures for which the "start of construction" commenced on or after the
effective date of the initial Flood Insurance Rate Map for lexington County, South Carolina
(unineotorated areas), which is June 15, 1981, and includes any subsequent improvements to such

structures.

Permit - A certificate issued to perfhrm work authorized under the provisions of the Ordinance.

SECI ION 2- DEl NI lIONS S



Planning Engineer - Lexington County Planning Engineer

Pollution - The presence in the environment of any substance, including, but not limited to, sewage,
sediment, industrial and other waste, air contaminant, or any combination thereof in such quantity
and of such characteristics and duration as may cause the environment to be contaminated, unclean,
noxious, odorous, impure or degraded, or which tends to be injurious to human health or welfare; or
which damages property, plant, animal or use of property.

Post-Development - The conditions which exist following the completion of the land disturbance in
terms of topography, vegetation, land use and rate, volume or direction of stormwater runoff

Prc-development - The conditions which exist prior to the initiation ofthe land disturbance in terms
of topography, vegetation, land use and rate, volume or direction of stormwater runoff

Recreational Vehicle - a vehicle which is a) built on a single chassis; b) 400 square feet or less when
measured at the largest horizontal projection; c) designed to be self-propelled or permanently
towable by a light duty truck; and d) designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but as
temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal uses.

Registered Landscape Architect - A landscape architect properly registered and licensed in South
Carolina or permitted by the Licensing Board.

Registered Professional Engineer - A person who is registered by the State of South Carolina
pursuant to Chapter 22. Title 40, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended.

Registered Tier B Land Surveyp - A person who is registered by the State of South Carolina
pursuant to Chapter 22, Title 40, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended.

Runoff- That portion of the precipitation on the land which reaches the drainage system.

Sedimentation - The process which operates at or near the surface of the ground, or deposit soils,
debris and other materials either on other ground surfaces or in water channels.

Stop Work Order - An order directing the person responsible for the land disturbing activity to cease
and desist all or any portion of the work which violates the provisions of this ordinance.

Structure - Anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires a location on the ground, or
attached to something having a location on the ground, including, hut not limited to, tennis courts,
swimming pools, fences, and buildings.

Subdivision - As defined by the Lexington County Subdivision Regalations(latest edition).

Substantial Damage -Damage of any origin sustained by a structure whereby the cost of restoring the
structure to its before damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the appraised value,
which could be determined by the County Assessor, of the structure before the damage occurred.

6 SICTION 2- I)CIINITIONS



Substantial Improvement - Any combination ofrepairs, reconstruction, alteration, or improvements
to a structure, taking place during the life of a structure, in which the cumulative cost equals or
c\ceeds fifty percent ofthe market value of the structure. 'l'he market value of the structure should
he (I) the appraised value ofthe structure priorto the start ofthe initial repair or improvement, or(2)
in the case of damage, the value of the structure prior to the damage occurTing. For the purposes of
this definition, "substantial improvement' is considered to occur when the first alteration of any wall,
ceiling, floor, or other structural part of the building commences, whether or not that alteration

affects the external dimensions ofthc structure. Ihe term does not, ho\\cvcr, include any project for
improvement of a structure required to comply with existing health, sanitary, or safety code

specifications which arc solely necessary to assure safe living conditions.

Veuetation - All plant growth, including trees. shrubs, mosses, aacl grasses.

Watershed - The drainage area contributing stormwatcr runoff to a single point.

S[C 'IO 2 I,rFINI I ION'S 7



SECTION 3- PROCEDURE

3.10

3.30 Approval Process

The applicant shall make application to the Department of Planning and Development for a Land
Disturbance Permit (Level 1,11 or III) to disturb land in Lexington County. Such application shall hc
accompanied by Storrnwater Management and Sediment Control Plans prepared in accordance with
the provisions of Seclion 4 of this Ordinance. Most land disturbances will generally conform to the
following categories; however, the Planning Engineer may require a Level HI Permit in those cases
where extensive land disturbance is planned for a development with a disturbed area of less than one

quarter ( 1/4) acre.

Land Disturbance Permit Level I Required For:

* Clearing Activities where no new improvements are involvecL

Land Disturbance Permit Level II Required For:

* All developments with a disturbed area of less than one quarler (1/4) acre ; andlor
* All encroachment andlor alteration activities within a Flood Plain or Major Drainage

Channel where no Drainage or Flood Study is required

Land Disturbance Permit Level III Required For:

* All developments with a disturbed area greater than or equal to one quarter (1/4) acre; and/or
* All encroachment andlor alteration activities within a Flood Plain or Major Drainage

Channel where a Drainage or Flood Study is required

3.40 Approval or Disapproval of Application

3.41 All Storm \Vater Management and Sediment Control Plans shall be subnutted to the Lexington
County Planning and Development Office. The plan shall contain supporting computations,
drawings, and sufficient information describing the manner, location, and type of measures in
which stormwater runoff will be managed for the entire land disturbance. The approved plan
shall serve as the basis for water quantity and water quality control on all subsequent
construction. A copy of the plan shall he available on the job site and the issued Land
Disturbance Permit shall be posted at the job site in a conspicuous place.

3.42 Upon receipt of a completed application for a Land Disturbance Permit Level I or II, the Planning
Engineer or his designee shall accomplish the review of the plans and have either the approval,
denial, or review comments transmitted to thc applicant within ten (10) working days. Upon
receipt of a completed application for a Land Disturbance Permit Level III, the Planning
Engineer or his designee shall accomplish the review of the plans and have either the approval,
denial, or review comments transmitted to the applicant within twenty (20) working days. A

8



completed application is defined as a completed application fonu as well as all required
submissions. If notice is not given to the applicant or if action is not taken by the end of the 20th

working day period, the applicants plan will he considered approved.

3.43 If an application is denied, the applicant may elect to correct the indicated deficiencies in
eonfornmnce with the provisions of this Ordinance and resubmit the application to the
Department of Planning and De\ elopment with no additional fee assessed.

3.50 Other Authorization or Requirement

Where any authorization, bonds, or other securities are required by applicable laws, regulations or
ordinances for any part of the proposed work to he done under the plan, the applicant shall, upon
request, furnish the Department of Planning and Development with satisfactory evidence that such
requirements have been met before the commencement of work under an approved application.

3.60 Expiration of Permit

A Land Disturbance Pcnuit will remain valid fbr up to five(S) years ibm the date of issuance.
provided that the project is in compliance with this Ordinance and is not inactive fir a period of

twelve consecutive months.

3.70 Responsibility of Applicant

During any land disturbance operation, the applicant shall he responsible for carrying out the

proposed work in accordance withthe permit, approved plan, specifications, and time schedule, and

in compliance with all requirements of this Ordinance.

SECTEON I - I'R<E (U (RU 9



SECTION 4- PLAN REQUIREMENTS

4.10 Requirements for Stormwater Management and Sediment Control Plan Preparation

4.11 General requirements for all Stormwater Management and Sediment Control Plans will
include, but not limited to the following:

a. Select land where the drainage pattern, topography and soils are favorable for the
intended use. Tracts of land vary in suitability for different uses. Knowing the major
characteristics of the land area and kinds of soil helps in identiing and evaluating
potential problems.

b. Expose the smallest practical area of land for the least possible time during development.

c When feasible, retain and protect natural vegetation. Save topsoil, where practical,for

replacing on graded areas.

d. Use temporary plant cover, mulching, or structures to control runoff and protect areas
subject to erosion during construction.

e. Wherever possible, utilize natural drainage structures, vith minimal or no man-made
improvements, to handle tile increased mn-off from development.

f Engineer the drainage systems of the development accoroing to the "Lexington County
Development Guidelines".

g. Use sediment basins or other forms of silt traps, where practical, to remove heavy
sediment loads from runoff waters leaving the disturbed area.

h. Install the permanent vegetative cover and the long-term erosion protection structures as
soon as practical in the development proeess

4.12 Specific Requircmnts for the permanent stormwatcr management portion of the
Stormwater Management and Sediment Control Plan approval process will include, hut
not limited to the following:

a. Stormwater management must be addressed on a watershed basis to provide a cost
effective water quantity and water quality solution to the specific watershed

problems.

h. All Stomi Drainage Systems win be classified based on the size of the
contributing Drainage Basin or Sub-Watershed as follows:

10 SCTIQ\ 4- PLAN REQUIRF\IEVTS



Minor Drainage Systems: 0 - <40 Acres

All street drainage, curb and gutters, pipe systems, culverts, ditches and channels
which drain less than 40 acres will be designed to carry flows resulting from a ten
(0)—year frequency stonm Minimum allowable pipe diameter shall be IS inches.

The plan shall identif' all drainageways.

2. Collector Systems: 40 - <100 Acres

All drainage s stems draining at least 40 acres hut less than 100 acres shall he
designed to carry flows resulting from a twenty-five (25)- year frequency storm.

[he plan shall identil\' all drainageways

3. Major Drainage Channels: 100 —<300 Acres

All drainage systems draining at least 100 acres but less than 300 acres.
Encroachment upon Major Drainage Channels and the adjacent overflow land shall
be avoided as much as possible. All unavoidable improvements such as channel
improvements, culverts or bridges along these channels shall he designed to earn a
flow resulting from a flthT (50)-year frequcnc storm.

In a subdivision, as defined by the Lex rigton County Subdivision Regulations, an
easement sufficient to accommodate the low from a fifty (50)—year frequency storm
shall he dedicated to Lexington County for maintenance of the channel. In all other
development activities, the plan shall identify all drainageways.

4. County or Flood Plains: 300 and more Acres

All natural chaiutels, creeks or rivers draining more than 300 acres. Encroachment
upon these channels and the adjacent overflow land shall be avoided as much as
possible. All unavoidable improvements such as culverts or bridges along these

channels shall he designed to carry a flow resulting from a One-hundred (100)-year

frequency storm.

If there arc no detailed Flood Studies and Base Flood Elevations available iii these
areas, the applicant shall provide a detailed flood study delineating the 100-year
Flood Plain and the Floodway. 100— year flood limits along with l3asc Flood
Elevation and the Floodway will he shown on the Stormwater Management and
Sediment Control Plans and also on the Final Plat ifapplicable In a subdivision, as
defined by the l.exington County Subdivision Regulations, the propert\ lines shall
stop at the Flood\vay line and the Floodway shall he dedicated to lexington County.
In all other development activities, the plan shall idcnti' all drai nage\vas.

5. All Drainage Systems regardless of its size or classification shall he analyzed and
revised as necessary to ensure that overflow of the system would not result in a

SE'c noN I . NAN RECuIIIREhIFh1S I I



likelihood of dwelling flooding, property damage or public access and/or utility
interruption be greater than one percent in any given year. All hydrological
computations shall be based on the contributing watershcd being frilly developed.

c. All hydrologic computations shall be accomplished using a volume based hydrograph
method acceptable to the Planning Engineer. The storm duration shall be the 24-hour
rainfall event, applicable SCS distribution with aS minute burst duration time increment.
The Rational or Modified Rational Method is acceptable for sizing individual culverts or
stormdrairis that are not part of a pipe network or system and do not have a contributing
drainage area greater than 20 acres. The storm duration for this method shall be equal to
the time olconcentration of the contributing drainage area or a minimum of S minutes,
which ever is greater.

d Stormwater management requirements for a specific project shall he hased on the entire
area to be developed, or if phased, the initial submittal shall control that area proposed in
the initial phase and establish a procedure and obligation for the total site control.

e. Stormwater quantity control is an integral part of overall stormwater management.
Detention Ponds to control the peak mn-off and volume may be required in areas where
there are known drainage problems or where the downstream natural or manmade
channels are inadequate to accommodate projected run-oft. The requirement for a
detention pond andlor downstream capacity improvements will be determined by the
Planning Engineer. Lexington County strongly encourages developers and engineers to
make use of existing natural channels in their natural slate, not to encroach into the
natural floodprone areas and use channel improvements and/or detention ponds only as a
last resort.

The following design criteria for flow control shall be used where required by the
Planning Engineer on a case-by-case basis:

1. Post-development peak discharge rates shall not exceed pre-dcvelopment discharge
rates for 2 through 25 year frequency 24-hour duration storm event unless the
subject development is in a known problem watershed such that additional flow will
negatively impact the watershed or there is insufficient flow capacity downstream in
which case the peak discharge rates after the development may he restricted up to
1/2 (one half) the pre-development rates or whatever the system capacity
downstream.

2. Where ponds are the proposed method of control the person responsible fbr the land
disturbance shall submit to Lexington County, when required, an analysis of the
impacts of stormwater flows downstream in the watershed for the 2 through 100
year storm events. The analysis shall include hydrologic and hydraulic calculations
necessary to determine the impact of hydrograph timing modifications of the
proposed land disturbance, with and without the pond. The results of the analysis
will determine the need to modit the pond design or to eliminate the pond
requrement. Lacking a clearly defined downstream point of constriction, the

12 SECTO\ 4. PLA4 RLQUIRFNENTS



downstream impacts shall be established, with the concurrence of l exington
County.

IT Discharge velocities shall be reduced to provide a non-erosive velocity flow from a
structure, channel, or other control measure or the velocity of the I 0-year, 24-hour

storm runoft in the receiving \vatenvay prior to the land disturbance.
whichever is greater.

All ponds, other than a retention or detention pond engineered as part of a storm\vater
system, that impede, encroach or alter a major drainage channel or flood plain must be
capable of accommodating stonmvater from a 100 year storm event based on built-out
conditions for the watershed.

IL Where existing \vetlands are intended as a component of an overall storniwater
management system, the approved Storniwater Management and Sediment Control Plan
shall not he implemented until all necessary federal and state permits have been obtained.

i. All storWwater management and sediment control practices shall be designed,
constructed and maintained with consideration for the proper control of mosquitoes
and other vectors.

4.13 Types of Stormwater Management and Sediment Control l'lans

For the purposes ofthis ordinance, stormwater management, erosion and sedimentation plans
shall he divided into three levels: Level I. II and lIT.

a. l..evel I Stormwater Management and Sediment Control Plan

All clearing activities where no new improvements are involved shall submit a Level I
Stormwater Management and Sediment Control Plan.

This plan does not require preparation or certification by a registered engineer, registered
landscape architect, or a Tier B Land Surveyor.

h. Level II Stonitwater Management and Sediment Control Plan

All developments with a disturbed area of less then one quarter (1/4) of an acre shall

submit a Level 11 Stoniawater Management and Sediment Control Plan.

A Level II Stormwatcr Management and Sediment Control Plan is comprised onlyofa
narrative description accompanied by a sketched plan.

This plan does not require preparation or certification by a registered engineer, registered
landscape architect, or a Tier B Land Surveyor.

e. Level Ill Stormwater Management and Sediment Control Plan

SIcTION . PLA\ RLQTEMf\TS 13



All developments with a disturbed area of one quarter (1/4) of an acre or greater must
submit a Level III Stormwater Management and Sedimen Control Plan.
In addition to a Level III permit, all developments with land disturbing activities
involving five (5) acres or more must provide water quality protection and apply for a
National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit.

A Level III Stormwater Management and Sediment Control Plan must be prepared,
certified and sealed by a registered professional engineer, registered landscape architect
or a Tier B Land Surveyor.

4.14 The Level 1 Stormwater Management and Sediment Control Plan shall contain the following,

as applicablc:

a. Completed application form and clearing schedule with a certification by the person
responsible for the land disturbance that the land disturbance will be accomplished
pursuant to the plan and that Lexington County has the right to conduct on-site
inspections;

b. an anticipated starting and completion date of the various stages of land disturbance
activities and the expected date the final stabilization wiN be completed;

c. a description of the sediment control measures to be used during land-disturbing
activities. These activities are required to utilize Best Management Practices to control
erosion and sediment, and to utilize appropriate measures to control the quantity of
stormwater runoff;

4.15 The Level H Stormwater Management and Sediment Control Plan shall contain the
following, as applicable:

a. Completed application form and construction schedule with a certification by the person
responsible for the land disturbance that the land disturbance will be accomplished
pursuant to the plan and that Lexington County has the right to conduct on-site
inspections;

h. an anticipated starting and completion date of the various stages of land disturbance and
the expected date the final stabilization will be completed;

c. a description of the sediment control measures to be used (luring land disturbance. These
activities are required to utilize Best Management Practices to control erosion and
sediment,, and to utilize appropriate measures to control the quantity of stormwater
runoff;

d general description of topographic and soil conditions of the tract;

e. a general description of adjacent property and a description of existing structures,
buildings, and other fixed improvements located on surrounding properties and;

14 SECTION 4-PLAN RI.QuIRI:MLNTs



a sketched plan (engineer's, landscape architect's or surveyors seal not required) to
accompany the narrative shall contain:

a site location dra\ving of the proposed project, indicating the location of the
proposed project in relation to road\vays, jurisdictional boundaries, streams, and
rivers;

2. the boundary lines of the site on which the work is to hc performed;

3. the location of temporary and permanent vegetative and structural erosion and
sediment control measures;

4.16 The Level Ill Stormwater Management and Sediment Control Plan shall contain the
ollowing, as applicable:

a. Completed application form and construction schedule with a certification hythe person
responsible !br the land disturbance that the land disturbance will he accomplished
pursuant to the plan and that Lexington County has the right to conduct on—site

inspections;

h .Av icinity map sufficient to locate the site and to show the relationship of the site to its
general surroundings at a scale of not smaller than one (I) inch to one (1) mile.

c. A site plan completed by a registered professional engineer, rcgistered landscape
architect or a Tier B Land Surveyor and drawn to a scale of not smaller than one (1) inch

to two hundred (200) feet. showing:

the boundary lines of the site on which the work is to he performed, including the
approximate acreage of the site;

2. existing contours with intervals of not more than two (2) feet, extending not less

than one hundred (100) feet outside of the site boundary lines;

3. proposed contours of disturbed areas with inter\als of not more than two (2) feet:

4. proposed physical improvements on this site, including present developmentand

future uti Ii zation if future cleve I opment is planned,

5. a plan for temporary and permanent vegctatie and structural erosion and sediment
control measures which specify the erosion and sediment control measures to be

used during all phases of clearing, grading, filling. construction, and permanent
development and shall describe their proposed operation;

6. an approved concept plan or preliminary development plan which provides for
stormwater mnoff control during construction and during the life of the facility. A

SIC lION 4. PlAN REQUIRENIEmS 15



time schedule and sequence of operations indicating the anticipated start and
completion dates of each development operation;

Should an approved preliminary development plan include a time schedule for
phased construction over atime period ofmore than six months, then an anticipated
construction schedule for each specific phase may be submitted separately provided
the proposed time schedule for each construction phase does not deviate from the
approved preliminary development plan by more than three months.

7. a complete and adequate grading plan for borrow pits and material processing
facilities where applicable, including restoration and re-vegetation measures;

8. a general description of the predominant soil types on the site;

9. a description of the maintenance program for sediment control facilities including
inspection programs, vegetative establishment of exposed soils, method and
frequency of removal and disposal of solid waste material removed from control
facilities and disposition of temporary structural measures.

Procedures during construction shall include the inspection of all sediment and
erosion controls at least once every seven calendar days and after any storm event of
greater than 0.5 inches of precipitation during any 24-hour period;

10. Plans to minimize vehicle tracking of sediments from land disturbing activities onto
paved public roads carrying significant amount of traffic (ADT of 25 vehicles/day or

greater)

11. All developments with land disturbing activities involving five (5) acres, or more
must provide water quality protection as outlined in Document #1416 Chapter 72,
Section 72-307C of the S. C. Stormwater Management and Sediment Reduction

Regulations.

12. Water quality must be guaranteed on those sites which disturb ten acres or more and
that the stormwater runoff drains to a single outlet from land disturbing activities by
using one of the following methods:

(a) The plan shall control runoff during the land disturbance by a sediment basin
where sufficient space and other factors allow these controls to be maintained
until the final inspection. The sediment basin shall be designed and constructed
to accommodate the anticipated sediment loading from the land disturbance and
meet a removal efficiency of 80 percent suspended solids or 0.5 ML/L peak
settleable solids concentration. whichever is less. The outfall device or system
design shall take into account the total drainage area flowing through the
disturbed area to be served by the basin or,

(h) Other practices may be acceptable if they achieve an equivalent removal
efficiency of 80 percent for suspended solids or 0,5 ML/L peak settleable solids

16 SECTION 4- PL4N RrQUIREMCNI



concentration, which ever is less. The efficiency shall be ca]culated lbr
disturbed conditions for the 10—year 24—hour event

(c) Permanent water quality ponds having a permanent pool shall he designed
to store and release the first 1/2 inch of runoff from the site over a 24 hour

period. The storage volume shall be designed to accommodate, at least, 1/2
inch of runoff from the entiie site.

(d) Permanent water quality ponds, not having a permanent pooi. shall he
designed to release the first inch of runoft horn the site over a 24—hour

period.

13. The name and address of the property owner and developer;

1 4 Title, scale, north arrow, date and name of indi\-idual or organization preparing pint.
with seal.

4.20 Provisions for hood hazard reduction

All development within the FI3Mi\ or County Flood Plains, Major Drainage Channels and other
flood-prone areas as designated by the Planiiing Engineer are subject to the following provisions as

applicable:

a. Whenever a regulatory 100 year flood boundary line is proposed to he relocated due to 1111,
excavation or errors and discrepancies discovered on the Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM), an
application shall be made to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), fora Letter
of Map Revision (LOMR) or a Letter olMap Amendment (LOMA), through Lexington County.

The applicant is responsible hr providing all documents requ red by FEM\ which may include
topographic maps, hydraulic and hydrologic data and any applicable review fees to he submitted

to Lexington County prior to final plat approval in subdivision developments and prior tofinal

inspection in other types of land development.

The County shall notify adjacent communities and the State Coordinating Office prior to any
alteration or relocation ofa watercourse and submit copies of such notifications to the Federal
Insurance Administrator.

h. Design all eulverts, bridges, and other drainage structures in accordance with the
specifications and design standards of the Planning Engineer's Office so that a 100—year

frequency flow through a Major Drainage Channel will not overtop any roadway.

c. Applicants shall obtain all necessary permits horn those governmental agencies from which
approval is required by state or federal law.

d. The Planning Engineer shall review subdivision proposals and other proposed new developments
to determine whether such proposals will be reasonably secure from the effects of flooding. If

any subdivision proposal or other proposed new development is in a flood-prone area. the

SEC I IO\ 4- PL REOUIKCMES is 1 7



Planning Engineer shall require the submission of the base flood elevation-data, and any such
proposal shall be reviewed to assure that:

I. All such proposals are consistent with the need to minimize flood damage with the flood
prone area.

2. All public utilities and facilities, such as sewer, gas, electrical, and water systems, are located
and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood damage.

3. Adequate drainage is provided to reduce exposure to flood hazards.

4. Where a flood study is required by the Planning Engineer, base flood discharges shall be
based on full watershed development.

5. All floodway delineations will be based on maximum 1.0 foot rise and all flood\vays
\Vithin the subdivision shall be dedicated to Lexington County.

6. All base flood elevations shall be based on the National Geodetic Vertical Datum
(NGVD) or the North American Vertical Datum (NAVD).

e. The applicant shall design new and replacement water and sewer systems within flood prone
areas so as to minimize or eliminate infiltration of flood waters iato the system. On-site waste.
disposal systems shall be located to avoid impainnent to the system or contamination from the

system during flooding.

fi All new construction and substantial improvements of residential structures shall

1. have the lowest oor, including basement, elevated to at least two (2) feet above the 100-year
frequency flood elevation. If a building pad is used, the ground shall be sloped from the pad
down to the 100-year frequency flood elevation over a distance often or more feet.

2. have all mechanical and utility equipment, and air conditioner units, hot water heaters,
washers, dryers, other similar equipment and their operating components, designed andlor
elevated, to at least one (1) foot above the 100-year frequency flood elevation, to prevent
water fiom entering or accumulating in its components. Under limited circumstances flood
proofing (i.e. placement in water tight cases) may be allowed.

g. All new construction and substantial improvements of non-residential structures shall:

1. have the lowest floor, including basement, elevated to at least two (2) feet above the flood
level of a flood with a return frequency of 100 years.

2. together with attendant utility and sanitary facilities, be designed so that below the elevation
of a flood with a return frequency of 100 years, the structure is watertight with walls
substantially mpermeable to the passage of water and with structural components having the
capability of resisting hydrostatic loads and effects of buoyancy; and

48 SECTION 4-PLAN REQUIREMENTS



3. where fioodprooting is utilized for a particular structure, a registered engineer or architect
shall certif3' that the fioodproofing methods are adequate to withstand the flood depths,
pressure, velocities, impact, uplift forces, and other factors associated with a flood with a
return frequency of 100 years, and a record of such certificates shall he maintained in the
Department of Planning and Development.

h. For the purpose of detennining compliance with the National Flood Insurance Program and
Related Regulations, the County shall:

• require that the elevation (mean sea level) of the lowest floor (including basement) of all new
or substantially improved structures in a floodplain be provided;

2. require that, if the structure has been floodproo fed, the elevation (mean sea level)to which

the structure was floodproof'ed he provided; and

3. maintain a public record of all such infonuation with the Department of Planning and
Deve lo i men t.

No encroachments, including fill, new construction, substantial improvements, or other
development shall be permitted in the floodway. Floodways may or may not be shown on the

Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM). In areas where floodwa s are not shown on the FIRM maps
or stop short of a subject property. the Planning Engineer will determine the floodway limits.

This may lie accomplished by extending the limiis to the adjacent property, by a study done by
the applicant and approved by the Planning Engineer, by an existing or new study by the County
or by relocating the proposed development sufficiently away from the waterway.

Manufactured home location and placement shall adhere to the following:

1. no manufactured home shall he pennitted in the regulatory floodway,

2. manufactured homes that are placed or substantially improved within zones A -30. Al-I and

AFi on the FIRM on sites inside or outside of a manufactured home park on which a
manuflictured home has incurred "substantial damage" as aresultofa flood, shall be elevated
on a permilanent foundation such that the lowest floor of the manufactured home is elevated

two feet above the base flood elevation. The manufimetured home shall hesecurely anchored

to an adequate1 anchored foundation system to resist flotation. collapse and lateral
movement in accordance with the Standard Building Code Appendix H and the FIIMA

publication Manufactured I-Ionic Installation in I' ood Hazard Areas' (FI3MA 85);

3. manuflietured homes to he placed or substantially improved on sites inside or outside ofa
manufitetured home park mthii zones A -A30, AH and AEon the FIRM that arenot subject
to the provisions of paragraph (j) (2) shall he elevated so that the lowest floor of the
manufiictured home is elevated two feet above the base flood elevation. lhe manufactured
home shall be securely anchored to an adequately anchored loundation system to resist
flotation, collapse, and lateral movement in accordance with the Standard Building Code
Appendix I-I and the FIEMA publication 'Manuliictured Home Installation in Flood Hazard

Areas" (FEMA 85);

SNC ('N . PLAN RPQUmEPIPN] 19



4. all mechanical and utility equipment, and air conditioner units, hot water heaters, washers,
dryers, other similar equipment and their operating components, shall be designed and/or
elevated, to al least one (1) foot above the 100-year frequency flood elevation, to prevent
water from entering or accumulating in its components. Under limited circumstances flood
proofing (i.e. placement in water tight cases) may be allowed, and

5. manufactured homes located in the floodplain in accord with the above shall he
secured with anchored tie-downs in accord with Section 60.3 of the Code of Federal
Regulations, as amended.

k. New construction or substantial improvements of elevated buildings that include fully enclosed
areas formed by foundation and other exterior walls below the base flood elevation shall be
designed to preclude finished living space and designed to allow fhr the entry and exit of
floodwaters to automatically equalize hydrostatic flood forces on exterior walls. Designs for
complying with this requirement must either be certified by a registered professional engineer or
architect or meet the following minimum criteria:

1. provide a minimum of two openings having a total net area of not less than one square inch
for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding;

2. the bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one foot above grade; and

3. openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, valves or other coverings or devices
provided they permit the automatic flow of floodwaters in both directions.

1. Electrical, plumbing, and other utility connections are prohibited below the base flood elevation.

m. Recreational vehicles located in a floodplain area must comply with the requirements of 44 Code
of Federal Regulations Chapter 1 Section 60.3(c)(14).

4.30 Refereilce

All calcuiations, formulae and data used in the preparation of Stormwater Management and
Sediment Control Plans shall be subject to review by the Planning Engineer who may require other
calculations made, formulae used, or data supplied.

4.40 Certifications

The following certifications shall be on the Stormwater Management and Sediment Control Plans:

Applicant's Certification

20 SEC1 ION 4. PLAt.' REQUIK}:M}IN IS



"1 (We) hereby certi f that a! I clearing, grading. construction, and/or development \Vi II be done pursuant to

this plan and I (we) are responsible for the land disturbance and related maintenance thereoL Lexington

County authorities will be al owed to enter the project site for the purpose of on—site inspections.

Date Owner/Person Financially Responsible

Designer's Certification

I hereby certi f' that this plan is designed to contain soil on the property concerned to the maximum extent.
to provide for the protection of the property and the proposed improvements thereon li-om the effects of
flooding, to piovide for the control oithe runoff from the property, and that all the provisions fhr sediment
control and storm drainage are in accordance \\lth the Stormwater Management and Sediment Contiol
Ordinance (hr Lexington County, South Carolina.''

Date Signature

S.C. Registration Number
_Registered Professional Engineer

Registered Landscape Architect, or
_Tier B Land Surveyor

SECT ]O 4 - PI.A KEQT4IRE TEE I S 21



SECTLON-5-- AIMINIESTRA-TION AM)-ENFORCLMEN-T--

5.10 Inspection

The Planning Engineer or his authorized representative shall inspect the work done under the
approved plan perioc.ically as deemed advisable. An inspection report shall be filled out upon
completion of each official inspection. Inspection reports shall be maintained by Lexington County
on all detention and retention structures and those inspection reports shall include the following
items:

a. The date of inspection;

b. The name of the inspector;

c. The condition of (if applicable):

1. Vegetation,
2. Fences,
3. Spillways,
4. Embankrnents,
5. Reservoir area,
6. Outlet channels,
7. Underground drainage,
8. Sediment load, or
9. Other items which could effect the proper function of the structure.

d. Description of needed maintenance.

5.20 Enforcement

5.21 Wherever the Planning Engineer or his authorized representative finds that the work done or
not done under any Land Disturbance Permit issued under the tenets of this Ordinance fails
to confurm to the approved plan or plans, he shall direct conformance to the plan as he deems
necessary, to include the issuance of a written order to comply, to issue a stop work order, to
revoke the permit issued, or to seek redress through legal action, or to withhold the release
of permanent electric power to the site.

5.22 All violations of the provisions of this Ordinance by any person, partnership, or corporation,
whether public or private, that come to the attention of any responsible individual concerned
shall be reported to the Planning Engineer.

5.23 Violation of the provisions of this Ordinance or failure to comply with any of its
requirements shall constitute a misdemeanor. Any person, firm, or corporation who violates
this Ordinance or fails to comply with any of its requirements shall, upon conviction thcreof
be fined not more than the maximum allowable penalty jurisdiction of the Magistrates Court.
Each day such violation continues shall be considered a separate offense. The Planning
Engineer or other appropriate County official may also seek injunctive relief or any other

22 ADKUVISTRATTON ANT) [N) oRcr.MEN I



appropriate action in courts of competent jurisdiction to enforce the provisions of this
Ord ina iicc.

5.30 Fee Sclicduk

The application for a Land Disturbance Permit to disturb or change land iii lexington County shall
he accompanied by a non-refundable fee. The fee schedule for obtaining a Land Disturbance Permit
shall he established by Lexington County Council.

5.41) Waivers and Variances

5.11 Waivers

l'he Planning Fngtneer ma grant waivers from the stormwater management requirements of
this Ordinance for individual land disturbances if there are exceptional circumstances
applicable to the site such that strict adherence to the pro\'sions of tlus Ordinance will resuft
in unnecessary hardship and not fulfill the intent of the Ordinance. The Planning Engineer
may require a written request from the applicant containing descriptions, drawings, and any
other information that is necessary to evaluate the proposed land disturbance(s). A separate
written waiver request may he required if there are subsequent additions, extensions, or
niodihcations which would alter the approved stormwater runofi characteristics to a land
disturbance receiving a \vai\-er. A project may he eligible for a waiver of stormwater
management for water quantity control ifihe applicant can demonstraic that:

a. the proposed project will have no significant adverse impact on the receiving natural
waterway or downstream properties, or

h the imposition of peak control requirements fUr rates of stormwater runoff would
aggravate downstream flooding.

5.42 Variances

The Planning Commission may, upon application to it and showing of undue hardship, grant
variance and exception to any- of the provisions of this Ordinance, providing such variance or
exception is in harmon' with the general purpose and intent ofthi s Ordinance. A written request
for variance shall he provided to the Planning Commission and shall state the specific variance(s)
sought and the reason(s) with supporting data for their granting. Ihe Planning Commission may
request and consider the opinion of the Planning Engineer before deciding upon any variance. In
any event, the conditions and criteria for granting an appeal or variance request regarding
property within the identified Floodplain or Floodway shall he as ouch ied in 44 Code of bederal
Regulations Chapter 1. Section 60.6 (Latest edition). based on a showing of all of the following:.

a. Good and sufficient cause;

h Determination that failure to grant variance would result in exceptional hardship to the
applicant;

SI:c iO -AD MEN IS RAE MN AND ENFCIRC r:\wM 23



c. A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights,
additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, create nuisance, cause fraud
on or victimization of public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances; and

d. A variance is the minimum ncccssary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief

5.50 Appeals! Hearings and Citizen Complaints

5.51 Any person aggrieved by this Ordinance or by the decision of the Planning Engineer may
appeal to the Planning Commission which acts as the local Hcaring Board by written notice
to its Secretary. Such appeal shall be filed within thirty (30) days after the decision.

a A hearing by the Planning Commission is available following a request to determine
the propriety of:

1. the denial or revocation of a Land Disturbance permit

2. a citizen complaint concerning program operation

3. the issuance of a notice of violation or non-compliance with the plan

4. the regulations included in this Ordinance

5. the issuance of fines as a result of this Ordinance

6. the issuance of a stopwork order as a result of this Ordinance

b. All hearings shall be initiated by the Planning Commission which shall give notice
to all parties of the hearing.

1. All parties must receive the notice of hearing not less than thirty (30) days;

2. The notice will be sent by the Secretary of the Planning Commission;

3. The notice shall include:

(1) A statement of time, place, and nature of the hearing;

(2) A statement of legal authority and jurisdiction under which the hearing is to be
held;

(3) A reference to the particular sections of the statutes and rules involved;

(4) A short and plain statement of matters asserted.

24 ADMINISThM ION AND ENFORCEMENT



c. All requests fin hearings must be received two (2) weeks proF to the scheduled
monthly meetings of the Planning Commission hy its Secretary in oi-der to he liend
at its next mcetmg.

d. After hearing all parties, a decision \viIl be issued by the Planning Commission based on
the majority of the members voting on tile appeal -

5.52 Any person who shall kel aggrieved by any decision on an appeal to the Planning
Commission may appeal to SCDI-IIEC in accordance with 1976 SC Code oIL aws Section 48—
18-70 and Regulation 72-314.

SIC '(ON S - A[[¼1 [Nh [RA IN AND IN[ ME[ I 25



SECTION 6- MAINTENANCE

6.10 Maintenance During Construction

The applicant is responsible for maintenance and the preventive maintenance of all completed
stormwater management practices to ensure proper functioning. The responsible inspection agency
shall ensure preventive maintenance through inspection of all stormwater management practices.

6.20 Maintenance Responsibilities After Development

Temporary and permanent erosion, sedimentation and stormwater management facilities, once
installed and after a final inspection has been completed, shall be maintained in one of the following
manners:

a. Facilities maintained by owner - The owner of the property on which work has been done
pursuant to this ordinance, or any other person or agent in control of such property, shall
maintain in good condition and shall promptly repair and restore all grade surfaces, walls, drains,
dams and structures, vegetation, erosion and sediment control measures, and other protective
devices. Such repairs or restorations and maintenance shall be in accordance with the approved

plan.

The facilities to be maintained by the owner shall provide adequate access to permit County
authorities to inspect and, if necessary, to take corrective action. If the owner or any other person
or agent in control of such property fails to maintain properly the facilities for which he is
responsible under the provisions of this ordinance, the Lexington County shall give such owner,
person or agent in control written notice describing specifically the deficiency. If the owner,
person or agent in control fails, within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of such notice, to
take or commence corrective action, such owner, person or agent shall be subject to the penalties
found in this ordinance.

b. Facilities maintained by Lexington County -All facilities to be maintained by Lexington County
must he designed and constructed in accordance with the requirements of this ordinance and all
such facilities shall be dedicated to the County by deed with attached record drawings, after the
County has accepted the conveyance of such facilities by appropriate action of the county
governing body. Such deed shall include sufficient ingress-egress easements to permit the
County to properly maintain such facilities.

26 SECTION 6- MAINTENANCE



SECTION 7 - LEGAL STATUS

7.10 Conflict with Other Laws

Whenever the provisions of this Ordinance impose more restrictive standards than are required in or
under any other ordinance, the regulations herein contained shall prevail. Whenever the provisions
of any other ordinance require more restrictive standards than are required herein, the requirements
of such shall prevail.

7.20 Repeal of Conflicting Regulations

All ordinances and resolutions regulating sediment control adopted prior to these regulations arc
hereby repealed.

7.30 Separability Clause

If any section, clause, or portion of this Ordinance shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction
to be invalid or unconstitutional, such finding shall not affect any other section, clause, or portion of
the Ordinance.

7.40 Amendments

This Ordinance maybe amended in the manner as prescribed by law for its original adoption, Before
the County governing body amends this Ordinance, they must seek the advice of the Planning
Commission who will make a recommendation for each amendment within thirty (30) days.

7.50 Effective Date

This Ordhance shall take effect and be enforced from and after January 1, 1996.

28



DATE.

TO:

FROM:

RE:

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ENGINEERING

MEMORANDUM

August 14, 2006

Katherine Doucett
County Administrator

John Fechtel, Public Works Directorç
Assistant County Administrator

Through Truck Prohibition — Calvary Church Road

Councilman Jim Kinard would like to revisit this issue as soon possible. The
attached letter dated March 14, 2002 was faxed to me from SCDOT on 8-11-
06. This issue was discussed in 2002, but I do not think County Council took
any action. Basically it is prohibiting large trucks from using Calvary Church
Road (SCDOT maintained) unless it is a local delivery. Although SCDOT
indicates an ordinance is preferred, I am trying to get clarification on the
means by which they will accept our request.

Please place this on the Public Works Committee agenda for their
consideration

440 BALLPARK ROAD • LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA 29072 .(803)-785-8201



Mr John J. Feebtel, Director
Lexington County Public Works
440 Ballpark Road
Lexington, South Carolina 29072

Re: Truck Traffic Calvary Church Road (Road 5-164)

Dear Mr. Fechtel:

Thank you for your February 20, 2002, letter concerning the aforementioned roadway.
You had requested that through trucks be prohibited on Calvary Church Road between
SC Route 6 and US Route 21.

A review of this request revealed that Calvary Church Road is a 20 foot wide secondary
road that runs between US Route 21 arid SC RoUte 6 vith no posted speed limit The
roadside dcvelopment along Calvary Church Road is single-family homes. It appears
that trucks utilize this road as a short cut between US Route 21 and SC Route 6.

Based on our review, we have no objection to prohibiting through trucks on Calvary
Church Road, between US Route 2land SC Route 6. However, before the signs are
installed, we would prefer that the County pass an ordinance stating that through trucks
are prohibited on this road. The ordinance indicates the support of the local government
that is responsible for enforcement. Without this concurrence. the sign would serve no
purpose since the restriction would not be enforced. Upon notification from the County
of the ordinance passage, the Department's maintenance forces will proceed to erect the
signs

Thank you for your assistance in this mai

8 @05 @9:18 8832538401 SCOOT DISTRICT 1 PAGE @2/82

March 14,2002

Lexington County Traffic

rely

IBC :rkb
CC: Resident Maintenance Engineer
File: Dl! HBR tfty.

Engineering



The Committee Minutes are left out intentionally until approved by the
Committee. Upon the Committee's approval, the minutes will be available on the
internet.



County of Lexington
Community Development Department

212 South Lake Drive
Lexington, SC 29072

Phone: (803) 785-8121
Fax: (803) 785-8188

MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning and Administration Committee
Lexington county council

THROUGH Katherine Doucett, county Administrator

FROM Ronald T. Scott, Community Development Directorç—

DATE: August 14, 2006

RE Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program
Amendment to 2006 Action Plan

On May 23, 2006, county Council voted in favor of utilizing unallocaed CDBG funds to help
pay for a new position within the Economic Development Department This position will be
funded with CDBG and other County funds The responsibilities of the position will include
addressing the goals and national objectives of the CDBG program.

Attached is a letter to HUD documenting our intent to amend our 2006 CDBG Action Plan by
allocating $27,163 for the new economic development position. The Action Plan describes how
the County will expend its CDBG funds This amendment to the Action Plan is not considered
substantial, ahd no public notice is required. The attached letter will serve as sufficient
documentation to HUD of the amendment

We recommend Council approval of the letter to HUD notifying them of this amendment to our
2006 Action Plan. This will allow the County to utilize CDBG funds for the economic
development position.



County of Lexington
Community Development Department

212 South Lake Drive
Lexington, SC 29072

Phone: (803) 785-8121
Fax: (803) 785-8188

August 23, 2006

Mr Louis E Bradley, Director
Community Planning and Development
Columbia Field Office
US Department of Housing and Urban Development
Strom Thurniond Federal Building
1835 Assembly Street
Columbia, SC 29201-2480

Re Amendment to Lexington County Annual Action Plan - Program Year 2006

Dear Mr Bradley

As the Certifying Officer for Lexington County's Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program,
I am hereby informing you of our intent to amend our Annual ActLon Plan for Program Year 2006

It is my understanding that our Community Development staff met with you and Brad Evatt on April 27,
2006 Among the topics discussed was the possibility of our utilizing CDBG funds for a new economic
development position in the County's Economic Development Department During the meeting it was
clarified that use of CDBG funds to support such a position is an eligible expenditure, provided that the
position address the goals and national objectives of the CDBG program

On May 23, 2006, Lexington County Council voted in favor of utihzing unallocated CDBG funds to help
pay for the new economic development position within the Economic Development Department This
position will be funded by CDBG in the amount of $27,163 and with other County funds The
responsibilities of the position will include addressing the goals and national objectives of the CDBG
program

As described in our 2005 — 2009 Consolidated Plan Citizen Participation Plan, Page B-3, we have
determined that this amendment does not constitute a substantial amendment to the 2006 Action Plan
Therefore, no public notice was required and this letter will serve as documentation to BUD of the
amendment

We appreciate your guidance and assistance If you have any questions or need any further information,
please contact our Community Development Department

Sincerely,

Katherine L Doucett
County Administrator

cc Kirk Van Laan
Ronald I Scott
George Bistany



County of Lexington
Community [)evelopment Department

212 South Lake Drive
Lexington, SC 29072

Phone: (803) 785-8121
Fax: (803) 785-8188

MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning and Administration Committee
Lexington County Council

THROUGH: Katherine Doucett, County Administrator

FROM Ronald I. Scott, Community Development DirectoC..__

DATE: August 14, 2006

RE: CDBG Community Advisory Committee

Recently we have determined a need to establish an advisory committee for our Community
Development Block Grant Program (CDBG). The primary responsibilities of this committee will
include providing input into the annual allocation process and other CDBG activities, and
providing input to staff in selecting projects for the Minor Housing Repair Program. Several
Urban Counties utilize similar advisory committees to assist them in identifying areas of need

Attached are the draft policies for the CDBG Community Advisory Committee. These policies
were prepared by staff and reviewed and agreed upon by the County Attorney.

We recommend Council approval of the CDBG Community Advisory Committee.



CDBG Community Advisory Committee
The Lexington County CDBG Community Advisory Committee is established to
provide input to and maximize the effectiveness of the CDBG program.

The CDBG Advisory Committee shall be composed of at least five (5) members.
The members of the Committee act in an advisory role to CDBC staff. All
members shall reside in Lexington County or represent organizations or
businesses serving residents of Lexington County.

Meetings will be held at least four (4) times annually. Meetings will be held more
frequently if deemed necessary by the Committee. Meetings are held at the
Lexington County Administration Building unless otherwise decided.

The primary responsibilities of the CDBG Community Advisory Committee are to:

1. Review proposals for allocating the CDBG funds, and make
recommendations to CDBG staff.

2. Review applications and make recommendations to staff for minor home
repair assistance based on established eligibility criteria.

3. Review Annual Action Plan and Consolidated Annual Performance and
Evaluation Report and make recommendations to CDBG staff.

4. Provide input on the needs of low and moderate-income residents of
Lexington County.

5. Provide input on how to affirmatively further fair housing.
6. Provide input on affordable housing needs in Lexington County.



County of Lexington
Community Development Department

212 South Lake Drive
Lexington, SC 29072

Phone: (803) 785-8121
Fax: (803) 785-8188

MEMORANDUM

To: Planning and Administration Committee
Lexington County Council

Through Katherine Doucett, County Administrator

From Ronald T, Scott — Community Development DirectorJ—

Date. August 4, 2006

Subject. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program
Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER)
Program Year 2005 (July 1, 2005— June 30. 2006)

The Countys srxth year of participation in the Community Development Block Grant Program
ended on June 30, 2006. Year-end reporting requirements include the submission of a
narrative report on goals accomplished in conjunction with our 5-year Consolidated Plan and
financial reports for the year

Prior to submission to HUD, this report is made available for public comment for 15 days and is
presented at a public hearing. The 15-day comment period began August 11 and will end
August 25, 2006. The public heanng is scheduled for Thursday, August 24 at 2:00 pm in
Council Chambers. Following the public hearing and comment period, any comments received
are incorporated into the report and the final report is submitted to HUD. The report is due no
later than September 28.

The CAPER is being submitted to County Council for information purposes. Approval is not
expressly required, as the activities have already been approved through the Consolidated
Plan and Annual Action Plan process. If there are questions, staff will be prepared to review
high{ights olthe report for the Planning and Administration Committee.

We recommend that Council accept the attached Consolidated Annual Performance and
Evaluation Report.



Lexington County
South Carolina

2005 I 2006

Consolidated Annual Performance
and Evaluation Report

PROGRAM YEAR 2005

JULY 1, 2005 — JUNE 30,2006

Lavztgto,t Cottnuj, Srn th Cr,, oh, G
2005/2005 Ca,isolclo Cd A, two!! 'cub' TIVI! CC (111(1 Eva 1,,c tioi Reporr



Staff

RONALD T. SCOTF

Director

GEORGE BISTANY

Community Development Administrator

JASON BOOZER

Community Development Technician

Lexington County

Community Development Block Grant Program
212 South Lake Drive

Lexington, South Carolina 29072

(803) 785-8121
F (803) 785-8188

www.Iex-co.com

Lexington County, South Carolina
2005/2006 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evoluotzo,i Report



Table of Contents
TAB

INTRODUCTION 1

AVAILABLE FUNDS 2

SOURCES OF FUNDS

LEVERAGING OF FUNDS

EXPENDITURES

SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES

TIMELINESS OF EXPENDITURES

PROJECT EXPENDITURES

ASSESSMENT OF PROGRESS TOWARD 5-YEAR GOALS 4

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, EDUCATION AND OUTREACH ACTIVITIES

GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION

PROJECT PROGRESS

COMPLETED PROJECTS

CONTINUED PROJECTS

AMENDMENTS TO PLAN DURING YEAR 6

AFFIRMATIVELY FURTHERING FAIR HOUSING 7

IMPEDIMENT ISSUES

ACCOMPLISHMENTS DURING THE PROGRAM YEAR

AFFORDABLE HOUSING ACTIVITIES 8

CONTINUUM OF CARE

OTHER ACTIONS
10

OBSTACLES TO MEETING UNDERSERVED NEEDS

GAPS IN INSTITUTIONAL STRUCTURE

PUBLIC HOUSING AND RESIDENT INITIATIVES

MONITORING

EVALUATE AND REDUCE LEAD BASED PAINT HAZARDS

Lcxinq!oI Coii,ittj, Surith Q,ro/iiri
2005/2005 o/,d,/ed AFImIQI JQlJ()ri/I(l!(C (Jud Epcliiulafl Repott



TAB

OUTREACH TO MINORITY AND WOMEN- OWNED BUSINESSES

HUD / CDBG PROGRAM REQUIREMENTS 11

NATIONAL OBJECTIVES AND ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES

DISPLACEMENT / RELOCATION

MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES

PROGRAM INCOME

SELF-ANALYSIS 12

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

CITIZEN COMMENTS 13

NOTICE OF AVAILABILiTY AND PUBLIC HEARING 14

PUBLIC HEARING SLIDES 15

INS REPORTS
CO4PR01 - HUD GRANTS AND PROGRAM INCOME 16

CO4PRO2 - LIST OF ACTIViTIES BY PROGRAM YEAR/PROJECT 17

CO4PRO3 - CDBG ACTIVITY SUMMARY REPORT 18

CO4PRO6 - SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED PLAN PROJECTS 19

CO4PRO7 - DRAWDOWN REPORT BY VOUCHER NUMBER 20

CO4PRO8 - GRANTEE SUMMARY ACTIVITY REPORT 21

C04PR23 - PROGRAM YEAR SUMMARY OF ACCOMPLISHMENTS 22

C04PR26 - CDBG FINANCIAL SUMMARY 23

SUPPLEMENTAL REPORTS

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS 24

CAPER ATTACHMENT FOR CDBG PROGAM INCOME 25

Lexington County, South Carolina
2005/2 006 Consolidated Annual Performanse and Etialuatien Report



aai
Lexington County, South Carolina, became an Urban Entittement County on July 1, 2000. This

designation provides the County with an annual formula allocation of Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) funds from the United States Department of Housing and Urban

Development (HUD). CDBG project activities are targeted to provide decent housing, a suitable

living environment, and to expand economic opportunities for low and moderate-income

persons and neighborhoods located in the unincorporated areas of the County. The County has

completed its first year of activities for the Consolidated Plan for Program Years 2005-2009.

The County's CDBG program is housed within the Community Development Department. In

addition to CDBG, the Community Devetopment Department coordinates the permitting and

development functions for the current and future residential, commercial, and industrial

interests of Lexington County. These activities are accomplished by several divisions in

cooperation with other County departments and outside agencies.

This report reflects the activities and expenditures for Lexington County's CDBG Program during

Program Year 2005, July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006. Program Year 2005 new projects

were identified in the County's Annual Action Plan submitted to HUD in May 2005. Following

submission of the 2005 Action Plan, an additional project was added in December 2005. The

following is a list of all projects added in ProgramYear 2005:

• Highway 6 Fire Station (previously referred to as Fire Station at Fish Hatchery Road)

o Law Enforcement Center at the Lexington County Airport at Pelion

• Old Barnwell Road Water
• Low and Moderate Income Neighborhood Study

• Lloydwoods Sewer (added December 2005)

In addition to these projects, several projects were carried over from previous years, these

included the following:

• Happy Town Road, Water and Fire Improvements
• Bellemeade Drainage Phase II
• Greater Columbia Community Relations Council

• Double Branch Community Planning

Lexiriglon County, South Corohua
2005/2006 Consodoted AnuvolPeT),7rtoiiee cud EuoluoOorJ Report



—I
SOURCES OF FUNDS

The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) awarded Lexington

County $1,123,954 for the 2005 Program Year. This award was made as a formula grant under

the regulations of HUD's Community Development Block Grant Program (CDBG). The funding

was allocated through the County's Annual Action Plan for 2005 and the County's annual

budgetary process.

The total amount of CDBG funds available during the 2005 ProgramYear is reflected in Exhibit

I, including carryover funds from previous Program Years and program income received during

the program year

EXHIBIT I

2005 Program Year
Total Funding: $2,220,131

Carryover
Funding From

Previous
Years

$1,096,177
(49%)

2005 CDBG
Allocation

$1,123,954
(51%)

Lexington County, South Carolina
2005/2006 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report



LEVERAGING OF FUNDS

Lexington County is very conscious of the value of partnering with other entities to leverage

resources and support for various community development projects. The County makes every

reasonable effort to extend its HUD-provided funds with other sources of revenue.

Recent examples of leveraging include the following:

• L!oydwoods Sewer: $240,000
o Leveraged funds from the South Carolina Department of Commerce, and

SCDHEC contributed to this project.

• Old Barnwell Road Water: $20,000 (in-kind estimate)

o Assistance in engineering and project management provided by the Lexington
County Joint Municipal Water and Sewer Commission.

• Highway 6 Hre Station: $20,000 (in-kind estimate)
o Assistance in project management provided by the Lexington County Public

Safety Department.

• Law Enforcement Center at Pelion: $20,000 (in-kind estimate)

o Assistance in project management provided by the Lexington County Public

Safety Department.

• Greater Columbia Community Relations Council (GCCRC): $70,000 (in-kind estimate)

o Assistance through volunteer and administrative support, bookkeeping, office

space, computer maintenance and software, online services, and staff support

for the fair housing public services project.

• Bellemeade Drainage Improvements: $12,732 (in-kind estimate)

o Assistance in engineering and project management provided by the Lexington
County Public Works Department.

• Happy Town Neighborhood Road Paving: $256,351 ($51,912 in-kind estimate)

o Assistance in engineering and project management provided by the Lexington
County Public Works Department.

o Tap fees waived by the Town of Swansea

o Utilizing "C" funds (revenue generated from tax on gasoline) the County paved

another road in this neighborhood (Jasper Sutton) at a cost of $204,439.

• Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless (MACH): $9,825
a Leveraged funds from the City of Columbia and Richland County contributed to

this project.

Lexi,tglort County, South Caroix' a
2005/2006 ConsohdotedANtIUd Perfounartce a/u] Rr,o?uotro,/ Report



Exhibit II is a summary of the $349,083 leveraged to date for Program 'Year 2005 projects.

Old Barnwell Road
Water
Highway 6 Fire
Station
Law Enforcement
Center at Pelion

Lexvigiou County, South Carolina
2005/2006 Consobdoted Aitriiia/ Prfonn once and Evaluation Report

EXHIBIT II

Project

Lloydwoods

CDBG Leveraged Funds

of Commerce
Sewer $95,000

.
•

$190,000 — SC Dept.

$50,000 — SCDHEC

$180,000

$546,440

• $20,000 Lexington Co. Joint Municipal
Water and Sewer Commission flTKind)

Total
Investment

$335,000

$200,000

$671,240

• $20,000 —- Lexington Co. Public Safety
Department (In-Kind)

• $20,000 —- Lexington Co. Public Safety
Department (In-Kind)

$566,440

Greater Columbia
CommuniW
Relations Council
Fair Housing

— $50,000
• $70,000 — Greater

Relations Council
Columbia Community $120,000

Education

$691,240

Total Leveraged: $350,000 ______



SUMMARY OF EXPENDITURES

During the 2005 Program Year, a total of $761,431.57 in CDBG funds was expended on

activities identified in the 2005-2009 Consolidated Plan. HUD requires that a minimum of 70

percent of CDBG expenditures (not induding planning and administration) benefit LMI persons

or households over a one to three-year repoing period. During the 2005 program year, all

funds (100%) other than planning and administration were expended on activities benefiting

[MI persons and households.

Expenditures were made during the Program Year for various activities including a waterline,

road paving, drainage improvements, fair housing education, and public safe facilities. Exhibit

III is a summary of the expenditures for the 2005 Program Year.

EXHIBIT III

Planning —
1% Old BarnII Road

Water
fl D/1 10

Ptanning and
Administration

17%

Greater Columbia
Community
Relations

0/I 10

Law Ent. Center
Pelion

Lexuigto!l Cowrty, Sue I: Co 701117 (I

2005/2006 Co,Rsolid(I ted Ai to' oI Pe,forr rid Sue! 1011011 Ro, I

2005 Program Year Total
Expenditures $761,432

Happy Town Water
6%

Happy Town Road

Bellemeade
Drainage

26%

Improvements
31%

I

Double Branch

Station 4%



TIMELINESS OF EXPENDITURES

Ensuring timely expenditures of available CDBG funds is a priority. The CDBG program staff
constantly monitors expenditures and funds available. As shown in Exhibit IV, the County spent
approximately 35% of its total available funds during the program year.

EXHIBIT IV

Lexington County, South Carolina

• Total AvaiiabI
S Total Expended

2005/2606 Consolidated Annual Peiforinance and Evaluation Report

Available Funds and Total Expenditures
Program Years 2004 and 2005

$3,500,000

$3,000,000

$2,500,000

$2,000,000

$1,500,000

$1,000,000

$500,000

$0

2004 2005



PROJECT EXPENDITURES

The County's expenditures on projects are shown in Exhibit V below:

Lavinyto;i County, South Caroluin
2005/2006 Consolidated Annual Performance wxd EvaInc lion Report

EXHIBIT V



t' j

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The priorities identified in Lexington County's Consolidated Plan for Program Years 2005 - 2009

are:

• Ensure adequate and dependable public facilities are available to provide for basic and

essential needs and services.

• Ensure adequate and safe infrastructure to meet basic needs of residents.

• Develop and produce plans and studies that will assist in identifying and evaluating
community needs and establish detailed strategies for implementation.

• Establish or support programs that provide needed public services and/or increase the

level of service provided by existing programs.

• Support and provide assistance to nonprofit and for-profit entities that create,
increase or retain employment opportunities for LMI residents.

• Provide and/or support adequate, safe and affordable housing.

• Provide mechanisms and forums for collaboration, coordination, and community
capacity building.

• Support programs that provide housing and services for homeless populations.

A variety of projects have been implemented since the program's inception that addresses these

priorities. Projects have included infrastructure such as water, sewer, and road improvements,
neighborhood initiatives addressing public health and safety including storm water drainage
systems, fair housing education, homeless analysis, public service projects, public safety
facilities and fire services equipment. These activities benefit many low and moderate-income
areas and residents across the County.

The 2000 Census showed that Lexington County had a significant number of block groupswith
51% or more LMT persons. The majority of these areas are located in the mostly rural southern
portion of the County. These rural areas lack many of the public facilities and infrastructure

necessary to foster a strong and healthy community. For that reason, the County continues to
focus on the infrastructure-related activities that provide basic services to these rural

neighborhoods. The infrastructure and public safety aspects of our plan help build strong and

healthy communities that encourage economic opportunities and contribute to enhanced quality
of housing, greater employment, and a better quality of life.

Lexington County, South Carolina
2005/2006 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report



TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, EDUCATION AND OUTREACH
ACT IVITIES

7/7/05
Greater Columbia Community Relations Council
Technical Assistance Meeting — Fair Housing Project

7/15/ 05
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless

Monthly meeting

7/20/05
Lexington County Joint Municipal Water and Sewer Commission

Old Barnwell Road Water Project

7/21/05
United Way of the Midlands
Columbia Metro Affordable Housing Trust Fund - Steering Committee Meeting

7/22/05
AIDS Housing of Metro Columbia

Monthly Meeting

7/27/05 — 7/28/05
HUD
CPD Regional Feedback Session — Atlanta, GA

srai1 wtar.tttI*Emt
8/ 15/05— 8/19/05
HUD
Environmental and Labor Compliance Training — Atlanta, GA

8/24/05
HUD
Environmental Training — Columbia, SC

8/25/05
CDBG Performance Report (CAPER) and Needs Assessment
Public Hearing — Columbia, SC

8/26/05
AIDS Housing of Metro Columbia
Monthly Meeting

L?Xulqto UI Counlij, South Ca,oh; o

2005/2006 Gonsobduted Annual Performance cud Euoliiatroi Report



TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, EDUCATION AND OUTREACH
ACTIVITIES

- s r4 i9
____

9/ 6/05
United Way of the Midlands
Columbia Metro Affordable Housing Trust Fund - Steering Committee Meeting

9/7/05
Lexington County Sheriff's Department
CDBG Planning Meeting

9/9/05
American Red Cross of Central South Carolina
Richland/Lexington County Emergency Food and Shelter Board Meeting

9/13/05
Lexington Chamber of Commerce
PubUc Forum — Blueprint to Address HomeTessness

9/15/05
Columbia Metropolitan Convention Center
Intergovernmental Summit — BJueprint to Address Homelessness

9/16/05
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless

Monthly meeting

9/18/05 — 9/22/05
National Association of County Community and Economic Development
Annual Training Conference — Salt Lake City, UT

9/29/05
United Way of the Midlands
Food, Shelter, Safety, Transportation Committee Meeting

9/30/05
AIDS Housing of Metro Columbia
Monthly Meeting

Lexington Countij, South Carolina
2005/2006 ConsolidatedAttune! Pcrfonnanee and Evaluation Report



TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, EDUCATION AND OUTREACH
ACTIVITIES

Lexington Interfaith Community Services
Technical Assistance meeting

HP & G and Company
Doubte Branch Road neighborhood study presentation

10/13/05
Lexington Medical Center Foundation
Technical Assistance meeting

10/14/05
Greater Columbia Community Relations Council
Monitoring / Technical Assistance meeting

10/17/05
Midlands Workforce Development Board
Technical Assistance meeting -

10/18/05
City of Cayce
Lloydwoods Sewer project meeting

Greater Columbia Community Relations Council
Housing Committee meeting

10/19/05
Lexington County Sheriff's Department
Code Enforcement staff meeting

10/21/05
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless

Monthly meeting

10/ 24/ 05
Communities in Schools
Technical Assistance meeting

Irmo / Chapin Recreation Commission
Technical Assistance meeting

[cxitiyLoIL Cow Lty, So,' t Ca, ohi 'a

2005/2006 Co,,solidated A,, u,aIPerfornai ICC COd 600711(1(1011



TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, EDUCATION AND OUTREACH
ACTIVITIES

10/26/05
State Housing Finance & Development Authority - South Carolina Partners in Homeownership

Quarterly meeting

: .. 1ff

11/8/05
Lexington Interfaith Community Services
Technical Assistance meeting

11/9/05
Irmo / Chapn Recreation Commission
Technical Assistance meeting / site visit

11/14/05
Joint Municipal Water and Sewer Commission
Old Barnwell Road pre-construction meeting

Columbia Urban League
Technical Assistance meeting

11/15/05
Workforce Enforcement Act
Luncheon

11/16/05
Midlands Technical College
Integrating Office 2000

11/17/05
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless
Homeless County press conference

11/18/05
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless

Monthly meeting

11/21/05
Midlands Homeless Shelter Site Selection Committee

Weekly meeUng

11/22/05
Growing Home Southeast
Technical assistance meeting

Lexrngton County, South Carolina
2005/2006 Consc1rdoted Annual Performance and Evaluation Report



TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, EDUCATION AND OUTREACH
ACTIVITIES

11/29/05
Brookiand Community Development Corporation / City of West Columbia

Technical Assistance / Presentation of Double Branch Road Study

05:

Midlands Homeless Shelter Site Selection Committee

Weekly meeting

12/6/05 — 12/7/05
State CDBG Program
Implementation Workshop

12/8/05
United Way of the Midlands
Food, Shelter, Safety, Transportation Committee Meeting

12/9/05
Richland County Community Development Department
Annual City/Counties Community Development Meeting

12/13/05
American Engineering
Technical Assistance Meeting Lloydwoods Sewer Project

12/20/05
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless — Grants Committee

2006 Planning meeting

1/17, 1/20, 1/24, 1/26, 1/31
Midlands Technical College
Conversational Spanish Class

1/19/06
Lexington County Planning Commission
Presentation of 2006 Requests for Funding

1/24/06
United Way of the Midlands
Emergency Food and Shelter Committee Meeting

Lex7;?gtOli Cc ii trj, Sci' h Cc, raluic
2005/2006 Cc, ,so lidc ccl Ac Pu 'ci Pcrfcrvfl,, cc a rid Era ci cc Report



TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, EDUCATION AND OUTREACH
ACTIVITIES

1/27/06
USC School of Medicine
HIV/AIDS Supportive Housing Meeting

1/31/06
SC Department of Commerce
Five-Year Consolidated Pan Presentation

2/2, 2/7, 2/9
Midlands Technical College
Conversational Spanish class

2/3/06
Central Midlands Council of Governments
Bike / Pedestrian Subcommittee — Monthly Meeting

2/8/06
HPG & Company
Meeting to finalize Double Branch Road neighborhood HUD environmental review

2/17/06
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless

Monthly Meeting

2/21/06
United Way of the Midlands
Food, Shelter, Safety, Transportation Committee — Monthly Meeting

2/22/06
South Carolina HIV/MDS Council
Meeting to discuss CDBG and SCHAC programs and potential partnerships

2/24/06
HIV/IAJDS Supportive Housing
Quarterly Meeting

2/27/06
State Housing Finance and Development Authority
2006 HOME workshop

Lexington County, South Carolina
2005/200G Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluatzcn Report



TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, EDUCATION AND OUTREACH
ACTIVITIES

Sc Dept. of Health & Environmental Control / STD-HIV Division
HOPWA tot workshop

3/5/06 — 3/7/06
SC Department of Commerce
2006 SC Rural Summit — North Charleston, SC

3/9/06
Midlands Technical College
Conversational Spanish Class

3/9/06
Central Midlands Council of Governments
Bike / Pedestrian Subcommittee — Monthly Meeting

3/14/06 — 3/15/06
HUD
Construction Management Workshop

3/16/06
City of West Columbia
Meeting on Cooperative Agreement

3/ 171 06
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless

Monthly Meeting

3/20/06
Joint Municipal Water and Sewer Commission
Labor Standards Compliance Meeting

3/21/06
Greater Columbia Community Relations Council
Housing Committee Monthly Meeting

3/22/06
HUD
2006/2007 CDBG Projects Meeting

3/31/06
Columbia Housing Authority
City/Counties/Housing Authority Quarterly Meeting

LwtngtaIl Couitty, SouLh 02; alum
2005/20 06 Co,Lsahdaled A, L71IC/ PC,JbT uI(IACC U7}(J EU(I1LICIIG/ RC)C7



TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, EDUCATION AND OUTREACH
ACTIVITIES

4/4/06
USC College of Social Work
Homelessness Gaps Analysis Workshop

4/6/06
Fair Housing Resolution published in The State newspaper
United Way of the Midlands
Food, Shelter, Safety, Transportation Committee — Monthly Meeting

4/7/06
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless — Grants Committee
Continuum of Care application meeting

4/11/06
Greater Columbia Community Relations Council
Housing Committee Monthly Meeting

4/14/06
2006/2007 Annual Action Plan
Public Hearing

4/18/06
Richland County
Heirs Property Workshop

4/19/06
Richland County
Fair Housing Workshop

4/22/06
Lakeview Educational Center
Fair Housing Forum — Greater Columbia Community Relations Council

4/27/06
HUD
Technical Assistance Meeting

4/28/ 06
USC School of Medicine
HP//AIDS Supportive Housing Meeting

Lexington County, South Carolina
2005/2006 Cortsohdated Annual Performance and Evuluabon Report



TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, EDUCATION AND OUTREACH
ACTIVITIES

4/29/ 06
Dutch Square Mall
2005 Fair Housing Poster Contest — Greater Columbia ComnnuHtj RelahonsCouncil

Lexington County Register of Deeds
Meeting to discuss Land Forfeiture Commission

5/5/06
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless - Grants Committee
Continuum of Care application meeting

5/11/06
Lexington County Planning Department
Introduction to GPS

5/12/06 & 5/17/06
Lexington County Economic Development Department
Meeting to discuss new economic development position

5/17/06
Highway 6 Fire Station & Law Enforcement Center
Pre-bid Meeting

5/18/06
Lexington County Sheriff's Department
Meeting to discuss Code Enforcement and Demolition projects

5/19/06
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless

Monthly Meeting

5/25/06
Greater Columbia Community Relations Council
Meeting to discuss remaining funds and project extension

6/1/06
City of Columbia — Housing and Community Department
Meeting to discuss minor housing repair program

hex,, q1o County, So,, CL Carol,, La

2005/2006 Ca, ,nhdo (cc! AiLI ,,,ol Perfonn once and Eualuatiozt Report



TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE, EDUCATION AND OUTREACH
ACTIVITIES

6/2/06
Central Midlands Council of Governments
Meeting regarding minor housing repair program

6/6/06
Richland County
Meeting regarding minor housing repair program

6/7/06
Lexington County Landfill
Meeting regarding demolition and clearance program

6/7/06
HUD
Meeting regarding minor housing repair program

6/8/06
Bid Opening
Highway 6 Fire Station and Law Enforcement Center at Petion Airport

6/13/06
Lexington County Economic Development Department
Meeting regarding demolition and clearance program

6/14/06
Greater Columbia Community Relations Council
Annual Luncheon

6/15/06
Midlands Area CDBG Administrators

Quarterly Meeting

6/19 — 6/23/06
National Community Development Association
Annual Training Conference, Hollywood, FL

6/27/06
Forfeited Land Commission
Meeting regarding demolition and clearance program

6/29/06
Midlands Workforce Development Board
Quarterly Luncheon

Lexüigton County, South Cci rolina
2005/2 006 Consol,daled Annual Perfonnanco and Eualuatcc'n Report



GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION

Lexington County's CDBG program provides funds for projects in unincorporated areas of the

County where there are predominantly [MI persons. Incorporated towns and cities (Batesburg-

Leesville, Cayce, Chapin, Gaston, Gilbert, Irmo, Lexington, Pelion, Pine Ridge, South Congaree,

Sphngdale, Summit, Swansea, West Columbia) are eligible to receive funds from the State of

South Carolina CDBG program.

During the program year, the County continued to focus its CDBG funds on infrastructure and

public facility needs. CDBG funds were also expended on fair housing education public services,

activity that provided fair housing educabon and a planning activity that analyzed area

homeless data. The map shown below shows the areas of the County with predominantly

[MI Block Groups. The [MI areas are mostly in the rural southern portion of the County. The

concentrations of [MI support the County's continued focus on the needs of these rural

population areas.

MuniciaDirles

At Leasi 51% LiiI

{J:! Lo,ungton County

West
Cotumbia

Lexi; tgton Cot Hj, So,ill, Cci,oh, Ic'

2005/2006 Cottsoltdu ted Ant too I Perforn tot icc' cnid Pun/tic' (ton /&pot I



COMPLETED PRO]ECTS

The fotlowing projects were completed during the program year and are described on the

following pages:

Happy Town Water/Fire Improvements

Happy Town Road Improvements

Bellemeade Drainage Improvements Phase II

Double Branch Community Planning

Lexington County, South Carolina
2005/2006 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report



Happy Town Water! Fire Improvements HUD Activity Numbers 15,

Happy Town Road Improvements

Funded: 2001, 2003, 2004

Total Expenditures: $1,583,638.32

16, 20, 24

The Happy Town Neighborhood Water/Fire Improvements project was completed in the

Fall of 2005. The project included installation of water lines and additional fire hydrants

in the predominantly [MI Happy Town neighborhood located in the southeastern area

of the County near the Town of Swansea. The Road Improvements project addressed

the need for road paving in the same area.

The project was the result of an amendment and reprogramming of funds that were

previously allocated for a sewer project in the same neighborhood. The Town of
Swansea is the utility provider for the project.

text; iqto; Cow ny, South Carolina
200 / 2006 Ca, solula lad ,XruttIai J'eiforrrzaiiec a rid Evalzta non Report



Bellemeade Drainage Phase II HUD Activity Number: 21

Funded: 2004

Total Expenditures: $634,614.50

The Bellemeade subdivision, located in a predominantly LMI area in the southeastern

portion of the County, had a long-standing problem of poor drainage and flooding. The

poor drainage and flooding conditions affected the quality of life of the neighborhood
and created potential public health hazards. The CDBG program, in coordination with

the County's Public Works Department, developed this project to address theseneeds.

The first phase of the project completed in June 2004, consisted of installing
approximately 1,000 LF of concrete pipe, junction boxes and catch basins. During the

construction of phase I of the project, additional drainage improvement needs were
identified. The second phase of the project consisted of installing an additional 2,030
LF of concrete pipe, junction boxes and catch basins in the neighborhood.
Approximately 42 homes are located in the project area and benefit from both phases
the project

Lexington County, South Carolina
2005/2006 Consolidated Annual Perforrnanee and Evaluation Report



Double Branch Community Planning HUD Activity Number: 26

Funded: 2004

Total Expenditures: $8,000

Prior to and during Program Year 2004, the Brookland West Columbia Community

Housing Development Corporation (BWCCHDC) met wfth County staff several times

expressing the need for improvements to the Double Branch community. After much
discussion with the BWCCHDC and the City of West Columbia, it was agreed that an

update of a 1998 study of the area would be the best approach to determine what

progress had been made over the six year period and to determ!ne current cost

estimates. Later an environmental study of the area was added to the project since

one would have to be done before any construction project involving CDBG funds could

be undertaken. The project is now complete and the results of the study and
environmental review were utilized in preparation for a waterline project in 2006.

Lextiiqon C:ou, Hj, South Corolurn
2005/2006 Consolidated Au, ucJ Poujot ,,ooec and EL/G11,CID1O1I Report



CONTINUED PROJECTS

The following projects were continued into the new program year and aredescribed on

the following pages:

Highway 6 Fire Station (aka Fish Hatchery Road Fire

Station)
Greater Columbia Community Relations Council

Iloydwoods Sewer
Old Barnwell Road Water

Law Enforcement Center at Pelion Airport

Lexington County, South Carolina
2005/2006 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluatiot Report



HIGHWAY 6 FIRE STATION
MUD Activity Number: 22

[iigibility Citation: 570.201 (c) Funding:

National Objective: 570.208 (a) (1) Low Mod Area CDBG 2004: $435,000.00

MUD Matrix Code: 030 Fire Station/Equipment CDBG 2005: $111,440.00

Highway 6 between Fish Hatchery
Location:

TOTAL: $546,440.00
Road and Meadowfield Road

Expenditures 43 349 00
toDate: $ /

Ensure adequate and dependable public facilities are available to provide
Priority Need: for basic and essential needs and servLce.

Objective: Create suitable living environments

Outcome: Availabuity/AccessibUitY

Outcome Units: Public Facility: Improved access for 11,991 people

hficiaries: Estimated Completion Date:
This project will serve approximately 78.5 sq January 30, 2007

miles of LMI block groups. This will reduce
insurance rates and decrease response times.
Accomplishments to Date:

i. Environmental Review Completed
2. Land Acquisition — Completed
3. Bidding and Contracting Completed
4. ConstructiOn — In progress

Current Status:
Project is under construction.

I Administered by: Lexington County _______

Lexington Gnu!!], South Coru!,,Ru
2005/2006 Consohduted A ,ir un! / 'cr/o/ In u/cc c/n (I Eon limbo, Rupoti

Description:
This project was originally identified as the
Route 6 Combined Public Safety Services
Center. During the program year 2004,
County Council decided to amend the
project to include a fire station only. The
station will provide coverage to a large
rural area of the County that is currently
more than five miles from any fire safety
facility. The project will include costs for
architectural design, land purchase and
construction costs.



GEATER COLUMBIA COMMUNITY RELATIONS COUNCIL
HUD Activity Number 23

Description:
This is a fair housing education project
implemented by the Greater Columbia
Community Relations Council. The primary
goals of the project are to meet the
County's requirement by the CDBG
program to affirmatively further fair
housing and provide citizens with multiple
opportunities to educate themselves on fair
housing issues and concerns.

Eligibility citation: 570.201 (e)

National Objective: 570.208 (a) (1) Low Mod Area

HUD Matrix code: OSJ Fair Housing Activities

- Census Tracts 205.09, 207.02,
Location:

208.00, 209.01, 214.02

Funding:
CDBG 2004: $50,000.00

TOTAL: $50,000.00

Expenditures
to Date: $26,589.22

Priori NeedS Establish or support programs that provide needed public services and/or
increase the evel of service provided by existing programs.

Objective: Create suitable living environments

Outcome: Availability/Accessibility

Outcome Units: New access to this benefit: 16,298 people

Beneficiaries: Estimated completion Date:

This project will benefit all persons living in June 30,2007
predominantly low and moderate-income
areas of the County.
Accomplishments to Date:

5. Fair Housing Forums (2005, 2006) — completed
6. Fair Housing Poster Contest (2005, 2006) — completed
7. Fair Housing Workshop — completed

current Status:
Additional activities are being planned for 2006/2007.

Administered by: Greater Columbia Community Relations Council

Lexington County, South Carolina
2005/2006 ConsoidatedAnnual Performance ond Euolriat,oa Report

L
EQUAL HOUSING
OPPORTUNITY



OLD BARNWELL WATER
MUD Activity Number: 28

This project is being carried out by the
Lexington County Joint Municipal Water
and Sewer Commission. The project
includes the construction of an 8" water
main to senie homes located in the area
and looping of the existing system. The
project will also increase the Commission's
capacity to better serve this and nearby
low and moderate-income areas.

Lex7n9(o:l County, South Coroiuia
2005/2006 Corrsolida;ed Aanoa I iorfonnonce ond Eva Ioanor Rupot

Description:

Eligibility Citation: 570.201 (c) Funding:

National Objective: 570.208 (a) (1) Low Mod Area CDBG 2005: $180,000.00

1-IUD Matrix Code:
03 - Public Facilities and TOTAL: $180,000.00
Improvements

Expenditures
Location: Census Tract 21018.2 $65,484.90to Date:

Priority Need: Ensure adequate and safe infrastructure to meet basic needs of residents.

Objective: Create suitable living environments

Outcome: Availability/Accessibility

Outcome Units: Infrastructure New access for 2,635 people

Beneficiaries: Estimated Completion Date:

There are approximately 33 homes on this June 30,2007

road that will benefit from the project.
Accomplishments to Date:

1. Bidding and Contracting — Completed
2. Engineering and Design — Completed
3. Bidding and Contracting — Completed
4. Construction — In Progress

Ctn nearly complete.
County Joint Municipal Water and Sewer Commission



LAW ENFORCEMENT CENTER AT PELION AIRPORT
HUD Activity Number: 29

Thescription:
This project was originally part of the
planned Route 6 combined Public Safety
Services Center. During the program year
2004, County Council decided to amend
the project to construct separate facilities.
The project will include construction of a
6,327 square foot building to serve
approximately 5,487 persons (3,236 [MI)
in the south region of the County.

Eligibility Citation: 570.201 (c)

National Objective: 570.208 (a) (1) Low Mod Area
HUD Matrix Code: 03E Neighborhood Facilities

Location:
Lexington County Airport at Pelion

Funding:
CDBG 2005: $664,249

TOTAL: $664,249
Expenditures $31,122to Date:

Ensure adequate and dependable public facilities are available to provide
Priority Need: for basic and essential needs and service.

Objective: Create suitable living environments

Outcome: Availability/Accessibility

Outcome Units: Public Facility: Improved access for 5,487 people

Beneficiaries:
This project will serve a large area of LMI block
groups. The project will provide greater law
enforcement coverage for the area that will
improve the quality of life for residents.

Estimated Completion Date:
June 30, 2007

Accomplishments to Date:
1. Environmental Review — Completed
2. Land Acquisition — In Progress

Current Status:
Evaluating acquisition issues
Administered by: Lexington County

Lexington County, South Carolina
2005/2005 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report



Lloydwoods Sewer
HUD Activity Number: 30

Description:
This project is being carried out by
the City of Cayce. The project
includes the construction of a
pump station and force main to
connect the Lloydwoods
subdivision to the City of Cayce's
sewer system. The project will
etiminate the need for the existing
wastewater treatment plant that
has a history of poor quality
effluent discharges and poor
operation practices.

Eligibility 570.201 (c)citation:
National 570.208 (a) (1) Low Mod

Objective: Area
MUD Matrix 03 - Public Facilities and
Code: Improvements

Location: Census Tract 20702.2

Funding:

CDBG 2005: $95,000.00

TOTAL: $95,000.00

Expenditures to
$0Date:

Priority Need: Ensure adequate and safe infrastructure to meet basic needs of residents.

Objective: Create suitable living environments

Infrastructure: New access for 2,404 people

Beneficiaries: Estimated completion Date:

There are approximately 33 June 30,2007

homes in this subdivision that will
benefit from the project.
Accomplishments to Date:

1. Engineering and design — Completed
2. Bidding and contracting — In Progress

Current Status:
Bid opening scheduled for August 15, 2006.
Administered by: City of Cayce — Planning Depament

tcxzngtc'i Cc /1 ty SocUt Cc, citric
2005/2006 Cv, tschcia ted Ar c tic! Petforrit (iH CC IIr,d P tic icc troi Rcpor

Outcome
Units:

Outcome: Availability/Accessibility



w k

AWendrnëntW6PJan Dth-ing&Xear U

During the program year, the County amended the Annual Action Plans for Program Years 2001

— 2005 to provide $95,000 in CDBG funds to the City of Cayce. The public was informed of the

proposed amendment through a notice published in The State newspaper on November 25,

2005. No comments were received, Correspondence describing the Annual Action Plan
Amendment was submitted to HUD on December 29, 2005.

The purpose of the Amendment was to assist the City of Cayce in funding sewer improvements
that would address public health issues in the LJoydwoods Community, a ow and moderate-

income area located in the unincorporated portion of the County. The Lloydwoods community
has private sewer service that no longer functions in an acceptable and compliant manner. To

resolve the problems, the community will be connected to the City of Cayce's sewer system.

The following pro]ects from Program Years 2001 — 2005 provided the requested funds:

• Walter Shealy Road — Unexpended funds ($3,648)
• Quality of Life Study — Project cancelled ($3,800)
• Double Branch Road Community Planning — Project amended ($42,000)
• Low and Moderate Income Study — Project cancelled ($32,586)
• Law Enforcement Center at Pelion — Project amended ($6,991)
• Unclassified funds ($5,975)

Lexuigton County, South Carolina
2005/2006 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report



Under the South Carolina Fair Housing Law enacted in 1989, it is unlawful to refuse to sell, rent

or finance a dwelling on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, familial status, national origin, or

handicap. The Fair Housing Law applies to apartments, houses, mobile homes and vacant lots

to be used for housing. With few exceptions, anyone who has control over residential property

and real estate financing must adhere to these regulations. This includes rental managers,

prope owners, real estate agents, landlords, banks, developers, builders, and individual

homeowners who are selling or renting their property.

The South Carolina Human Affairs Commission (SCHAC) is the agency that enforces the South

Carolina Fair Housing Law and has the authority to investigate complaints, subpoena witnesses,

issue orders, hold hearings and enforce findings. HUD has also designated the SCHAC as the

Fair Housing Enforcement agency to address complaints filed in South Carolina relative to the

Federal Fair Housing Law. The SCHAC is composed of fifteen members, with two members

from each Congressional District appointed by the Governor, with the advice and consent of the

Senate, and three members at-large appointed by the Governor.

In accordance with applicable statutes and the regulations governing the CDBG program, the

County conducted an analysis of impediments to fair housing choice within the State, has taken

appropriate actions to overcome the effectsof any impediments identified through that analysis,

and has maintained records reflecting that analysis and actions taken. The purpose of the

Analysis was to identify barriers to housing choice and recommend strategies for affirmatively

furthering fair housing.

The Analysis of Impediments identified multiple, often interrelated, areas of need. These

impediment issues emerged from an extensive review of policies and practices in the public and

private sectors, interviews with key service providers, and an examination of socio-economic

data. The eight (8) identified impediment issues and accomplishments made during the during

the program year to address them are as follows:

IMPEDIMENT ISSUES

o Issue 1: Affordable housing supply is inadequateto meet demand

ci Issue_2: Manufactured housing provides a seemingly affordable housing option for

many County residents, but associated costs can pose additional, unforeseen economic

hardship on such residents.

o Issue_3: Low-income elderly residents are in special need of affordable housing.

ci Issue_4: public transportation is geographically limited, leaving most residents of the

County without service.

o 5: Low-income and minority residents are experiencing a greater number of loan

denials.

Lexu tgtou Coi , tiy, So ,i Ox Ca, alt,,a
2005/2006 Co,Lsol,dated .Autu,'al ptfOri?VlF1Ce (lfl(l EUCIIIOLtOIt Raoort



o Issue_6: There is a notable rack of emergency shelter and transitional housing options

for special populations in the County.

o Issue 7: The growth of minimum wage jobs in the area helps reduce unemployment,
but does little to advance housing choice among the County's working poor.

o Issue 8: There is a lack of formal coordination among public and private housing and

service providers.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS DURING THE PROGRAM YEAR

The Greater Columbia Community Relations Council (GCCRC) works to promote positive
relationships, equal opportunity and fair services, and awareness and appreciation of cultural

diversity for the Greater Columbia region. During Program Year 2005, the GCCRC partnered

with the Lexington County CDBG program to carry out fair housing activities for low and
moderate-income areas of the County. The partnership included providing the GCCRC with up

to $50,000 in CDBG funds to carry out fair housing activities leveraged with $70,000 from the
GCCRC. The goals of these fair housing efforts include educating low and moderate income

County residents on fair housing law, credit education, homeownership, and other housing

issues.

To date, the GCCRC has completed fair housing activities that have included a housing
workshop, fair housing forums in 2005 and 2006 and Lexington Countyschool participation in
fair housing poster contests in 2005 and 2006. For the 2006/2007 program year, the County
has approved allowing the GCCRC to extend its agreement and, utilizing unexpended funds,
provide another fair housing workshop, a fair housing fair and Lexington County school
participation in the 2007 fair housing poster contest.

In addition to the activities completed by the County through partnership with the GCCRC, the
County continued its support of fair housing related events. In March 2006, Lexington County
Council adopted a resolution designating April as Fair Housing Month and April 17 —23 as
Community Development Week. The fair housing month resolution was published in The State

newspaper on April 6, 2006. County Council also adopted a resolution in May 2006 designating
the month of June as Homeownership Month to support and promote the benefits of

homeownership.

Data from the State of South Carolina shows many affordable housing efforts being made in

Lexington County from various agencies helping address the issue of inadequate supply.
During the program year these included:

• 12 low and moderate income-housing units throughout the County assisted by the State
HOME Investment Partnerships program totaling $825,000 in funds.

• 96 housing units throughout the County assisted by the State Housing Finance and
Development Authority's Mortgage Revenue Bond Program resulting in $9,132,216 in total

development investment.

• 1 housing unit in the County assisted by the South Carolina Housing Trust Fund totaling
$11,500 in funds.

Lexington Courtly, South Carolina
2005/2006 Consolidated Arin,iol Performance and Evaluation Report



• 2,077 families throughout the County assisted in project and tenant-based rental assistance

by the Section 8 Rental Assistance program totaling 9,565,277 in assistance.

Creation of a solid infrastructure will support economic and residential development. The Old

Barnwell Road water project has generated new residential Housing development in the area

which is expected to have many positive impacts on the community.

Leveraging of resources is an important component of the Lexington CountyCDBG program. As

shown elsewhere in this report, several of the County's current CDBG projects have included

significant leveraging. Additionally, staff has identified potential projects that may involve other

local governments to further maximize resources.

Potential funding sources for affordable housing and partnerships for affordable housing are
actively pursued by the County's CDBG staff through activities that include reviewing available

grant opportunities and gathering information on the efforts of housing providers who are
assisting residents of Lexington County.

Manufactured housing remains a common choice for affordable housing in the County. To
improve the quality of this housing, the County's Building Inspectionstaff requires and enforces

underpinning on all manufactured housing units and make sure each new unit has been

certified to meet HUD manufactured housing standards. Requiring underpinning encourages
energy efficiency by restricting airflow beneath the units that helps reduce cooling costs in the
summer and heating costs in the winter. County staff also inspects each new unit to make sure

all mechanical systems are working properly. This increases energy efficiency bymaking sure

all systems are operating at proper levels and helps owners prevent costly repairs that may

result from malfunctioning systems.

Increasing awareness of energy efficiency issues among consumers and mobile home park

owners is encouraged through the efforts of the South Carolina Energy Office (SCEO), the
Manufactured Housing Institute of South Carolina and other organizations. The SCEO helps

identify ways to minimize utility bills white maintaining comfortable living conditions. The SCEO

concentrates on educating residential builders, inspectors and homeowners about building
practices and behavioral changes that will lead to greater energy efficiency. The Manufactured

Housing Institute of South Carolina is a non-profit business association representing more than

11000 member companies involved in the manufactured and modular housing industries in the

Palmetto State.

Further efforts supporting the need for affordable housing include ongoing communication and

interaction with the Homebuilder's Association of Greater Columbia (HBAGC), the Greater

Columbia Association of Realtors (GCAR) and other members of the housing development
community. The County recognizes that there are complex issues surrounding affordable

housing and strives to continue ongoing efforts to address them through communication and

contact with these groups. The County's Building Official is an active member of the HBAGC

and attends their events regularly.

Economic Development continues to be a priority for the County and bears a direct relationship

to affordable housing. The County's Economic Development Staff works closely with the
Central South Carolina Alliance (CSCA), the South Carolina Department of Commerce, and many

others to actively recruit higher-tech/higher-wage industries particularly to the less developed

Lexington County, South Cu,oltna
2005/2005 Coasoitdzted A it, jot! 'erfc'rmmi cva ,vi Eva/ti at an Rcpoi I



areas of the County. Increased development reduces residential tax burdens, creates greater
affordabibty options for new and existing homeowners, and leads to additional transportation

options. During 2005, the South Carolina Department of Commerce reported 270 jobs created
in Lexington County with a total capital investment of $88,000,000.

Lexington County continues to be actively involved in the efforts of the Central Midlands
Regional Transit Authority (CN1RTA). The CMRTA was established in October 2002 with the

goals of providing safe, dependab!e, accessible and affordable public transportation throughout
the Midlands area including Lexington County. Since 2002, the CMRTA has provided
transportation for more than 2 million passengers, expanded route services and introduced 43

new ADA accessible buses that offer a safer and more comfortable mode of transportation.

Participation in the CMRTA provides the County with the opportunity to address the
transportation needs of County residents and participate in regional long-range planning

activities.

By participating in groups such as the Midlands Coalition for the Homeless, AIDS Housing of
Metro Columbia, Red Cross Emergency Food and Shelter Board, United Way Food, Shelter,
Safety and Transportation Board and coordination with the affordable housing initiatives of
other area entitlement communities (City of Columbia, Richland County, State of South

Carolina), the County continues to actively support efforts to provide affordable housing options

for special needs populations.

The County has ongoing collaboration and discussion with all interest groups serving the elderly
to identify any potential housing or other needs that could be addressed by the County's
Community Development Block Grant Program. Staff routinely attends meetings and events
sponsored by these groups to continue to be aware of needs and issues of the elderly. The
2005-2009 Consolidated Plan process actively involved these service providers in identifying
services and needs.

Lexmgtoir County, South Carolina
2005/2006 Consolidatcd Annual Pe,forrnance and Evaluation Raport



Fair housing awareness is an ongoing effort of the County CDBG staff. The CDBG Program has
established a fair housing information center within the CDBG offices. This library of
informatton includes the following:

Lexington County
Fair Housing Library

Title
{

Source

Fair Housing, Equal Opportunity for All

Borrowing Basics, What you don't know can hurt you

100 Q & A About Buyjpg a New Home

HUD

Fannie Mae

HUD

Knowing and Understandinyjour Credit Fannie Mae

Homebuyers Vocabulary HUD

Fair Housing is the Law in SC SC Human Affairs Commission

Notice on Predatory Lending Law in SC State of SC

Guide to Single Family Home Mojgge Insurance HUD

Rehab a home with HUD's 203(k) HUD

Firewise Communities State of SC

Empowerment Center Brochure City of West Columbia

çppperative MinistryBasic Senjices Handbook

Pink & Blue Family Resource Directory pjl Services Center

The CDBG Program actively encourages and supports the efforts of non-profit organizations and

other groups serving special needs populations. Ongoing discussion, collaboration and
participation in meetings with these groups contribute to assisting the County's special needs

populations in a variety of ways including improved population counts.

Lexington County supports the efforts of Midlands Technical College and expansion of its
programs to the rural, undersenied areas of the County. Expanded educational opportunities

result in a more educated workforce, higher-paying jobs, and greater housing options for

residents of the County.

The Lexington County CDBG Program continues to pursue efforts toward coordination and

communication among area service providers and affordable housing providers. The County is

actively involved in various groups and associations and compiles information on efforts being
made in the area on an ongoing basis. The County has developed and continues to maintain an

inventory of services, programs and service populations.

Other efforts the County has made affirmatively furthering fair housing and related activities

during the program year are shown in the following table:

Lan,uflo, I Con tty, Son it!: Ca n-nitric
2005/2006 Con soltdclcd A nIL Luci Pcifor,i a, Ice and Eva iii ahoy Report



Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing Activities
Program Year 2005

July 1, 2005 — June 30, 2006

7/7/05
Greater Columbia Community Relations Council
Technical Assistance Meeting — Fair Housing Project

7/21/05
United Way of the Midlands
Columbia Metro Affordable Housing Trust Fund - Steering Committee Meeting

7/22/ 05
AIDS Housing of Metro Columbia

Monthly Meeting

8/26/05
AIDS Housing of Metro Columbia
Monthly Meeting

9/6/05
United Way of the Midlands
Columbia Metro Affordable Housing Trust Fund - Steering Committee Meeting

9/13/05
Lexington Chamber of Commerce
Public Forum — Blueprint to Address Homelessness

9/15/05
Columbia Metropolitan Convention Center
Intergovernmental Summit — Blueprint to Address Homelessness

9/16/ 05
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless

Monthly meeting

9/29/05
United Way of the Midlands
Food, Shelter, Safety, Transportation Committee Meeting

9/30/ 05
AIDS Housing of Metro Columbia
Monthly Meeting

Lexington County, South Carolina
2005/2006 Consolidated Annual Performance and E,'alitatioq Report



Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing Activities
Program Year 2005

July 1, 2005 — June 30, 2006

10/14/05
Greater Columbia Community Relations Council
Monitoring I Technical Assistance meeting — Fair Housing Project

10/13/05
Greater Columbia Community Relations Counci
Housing Committee meeting

10/21/05
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless

Monthly meeting

10/26/05
State Housing Finance & Development Authority — South Carolina Partners in Homeownership

Quarterly meeting

11/17/05
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless
Homeless County press conference

11/18/05
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless

Monthly meeting

11/21/05
Midlands Homeless Shelter Site Selection Committee

Weekly meeting

12/5/05
Midlands Homeless Shelter Site Selection Committee

Weekly meeting

12/8/ 05
United Way of the Midlands
Food, Shelter, Safety, Transportation Committee Meeting

12/20/05
Mid!ands Area Consortium for the Homeless — Grants Committee

2006 Planning meeting

Lextngtoi Cou, y, SoiiII Ca, cii, a
2005/2006 ConsolidaTed 4i ia! Pc,jbrrn wire a, id Rualna lion Report



Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing Activities
Program Year 2005

July 1, 2005 — June 30, 2006

1/24/06
United Way of the Midlands
Emergency Food and Shelter Committee Meeting

1/27/06
USC School of Medicine
HIV/AIDS Supportive Housing Meeting

2/17/06
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless

Monthly Meeting

2/21/06
United Way of the Midlands
Food, Shelter, Safety, Transportation Committee — Monthly Meeting

2/24/06
HIV/AJDS Supportive Housing
Quarterly Meeting

2/27/06
State Housing Finance and Development Authority
2006 HOME workshop

3/2/06
SC Dept. of Health & Environmental Control / STD-HIV Division
HOPWA 101 workshop

3/17/06
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless

Monthly Meeting

3/21/06
Greater Columbia Community Relations Council
Housing Committee Monthly Meeting

3/28/06
Lexington County Council
Meeting - Fair Housing Resolution approved unanimously

Lenngtoix County, South Curohna
2005/2006 consohcfclod Annual Perjbnnance and Evaluation Report



Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing Activities
Program Year 2005

July 1, 2005 — June 30, 2006

4/4/06
USC Coflege of Social Work
Hometessness Gaps Analysis Workshop

4/6/06
Fair Housing Resolution published in The State newspaper
United Way of the Midlands
Food, Shelter, Safety, Transportation Committee — Monthly Meeting

4/7/06
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless — Grants Committee
Continuum of Care application meeting

4/11/06
Greater Columbia Community Relations Council
Housing Committee Monthly Meeting

4/19/06
Richiand County
Fair Housing — Lunch and Learn Workshop

4/22/06
Greater Columbia Community Relations Council
2006 Lexington County Housing Fair

5/5/06
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless — Grants Committee
Continuum of Care application meeting

5/19/06
Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless

Monthly Meeting

5/25/06
Greater Columbia Community Relations Council
Technical Assistance Meeting

Lexingto,t CourTy. South Cc,rohiw
2005/2006 Consolido toO A uiuo I Perform ci Ce cod H cab a ac, Report



Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing Activities
Program Year 2005

July 1, 2005 — June 30, 2006

6/1106
City of Columbia — Housing and Community Development Department
Technical Assistance Meeting

6/2106
Central Midlands Council of Governments
Technical Assistance Meeting

6/6/06
Richland County Community Development Department
Technical Assistance Meeting

6/7/06
HUD
Technical Assistance Meeting

6/13106
Lexington County Economic Development Department
Technical Assistance Meeting

6/ 29/ 06
Regional Community Development Departments
Quarterly Meeting 2006

Lexington County, South Ca,ohnc
2005/2006 Consolido ted Annual Peiformance cud Evaluatiort Report



As previously described, Lexington County's approach to affordable housing continues to be the

concentration of efforts on expansion and improvement of infrastructure. This will open up
areas of the County that are now reliant upon large tracts of land to support the required septic
and well systems for residential, commercial, and industrial units. County officials feel strongly
that without basic elements of potable water, sewer and paved roads in place, the housing
market will not offer the diversity of price and size that leads to affordability for all. In addition,
there will remain limited opportunities for competitive employment in the more remote areasof

the County without the proper infrastructure in place.

The County's other initiatives continue to focus on expanding job opportunities throughoutthe

county, especially in those areas that have a concentration of low- and moderate-income
households. The County continues to partner with agencies such as the Central South Carolina

Alliance to focus development efforts in the more rural parts of the County and support the

efforts of Midlands Technical College to bring continuing education programs to those areas.

Increased work force training partnered with an increase in job opportunities will lead to more

housing choice as the market follows demand and client.

The County is also actively involved in the Central Midlands Regional Transit Authority (CMRTA).
The CMRTA was established in October 2002 with the goals of providing safe, dependable,
accessible and affordable public transportation throughout the Midlands area including
Lexington County. Currently, public transportation is not available to allow potential workers to

get to industries located in or near the rural parts of the County. Improved transportation
would create greater wage-earning opportunities and increase housing options.

Lexui a;; County, Lou 0 Cu; oluia
2005/2006 Consolidated A'uiuol Peifounance and Eucluat;ort Ropor;



HUD defines a Continuum of Care as a community plan to organize and deliver housing and

services to meet the specific needs of people who are homeless as they move to stable housing
and maximum self-sufficiency. It includes action steps to end homelessness and prevent a
return to homelessness. Since 1994, HUD has been encouraging communities to addressthe
problems of housing and homelessness with the Continuum of Care concept. This concept is

designed to help communities develop the capacity to envision, organize, and plan
comprehensive and long-term solutions to addressing the problem of homelessness in their

community.

HUD identified the following as fundamental components of a comprehensive Continuum of

Care system:

• Outreach, intake, and assessment to:

o Identify an individual's or family's service and housing needs, and

o Link them to appropriate housing and/or service resource.

• Emergency shelter and safe, decent alternatives to the streets.

• Transitional housing with supportive services to help people develop the skills necessary
for permanent housing.

• Permanent housing and permanent supportive housing.

The Midlands Area Consortium for the Homeless (MACH) is the primary example of the
Continuum of Care concept in the Lexington County area. The MACH, formed in July 1994,
provides a linkage for the coordination of services to the homeless in Lexington County and

throughout the Midlands region. The MACH is a collective advocate for homeless persons.
Membership includes over 80 private, public, nonprofit, federal, state, city, and county agencies
including Lexington County. These agencies collectively and individually provide shelter,
housing, and other forms of assistance to the homeless and indigent population.

The MACH has identified gaps in the Continuum of Care including the need to improve services
and develop additional emergency shelter for persons who are not eligible for the existing
shelters, transitional housing and permanent housing for singles, families and persons living
with HP//AIDS. There are, however, few providers with the capacity to expand their existing
facilities. The MACH continues to promote collaboration to meet the changing needs of the
homeless community.

A subcommittee of the MACH, HP//AIDS Assisted Housing (formerly known as AIDS Housing of
Metro Columbia) seeks to address the housing needs of persons living with HP//AIDS. In
addition to its other efforts, this group is in charge of overseeing the Columbia EMSA HP//AIDS
Housing Plan. Lexington County is an active member of this organizatic'n.

Lexington County, South Carolina
2005/2006 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluatro'z Report



OBSTACLES TO MEETING UNDERSERVED NEEDS

Lexington Count:y has many housing and community development needs as outUned in the

County's 2005 — 2009 Consolidated Plan. The County is one of the largest in the State in
population and growth rates but receives the lowest amount of CDBG funds allocated to urban

counties in the State and is the only urban county not receiving HOME funds directly from HUD.

These limited resources result in a limited ability to fund identified needs.

During the 2005 program year, and as part of the 2006 Annual Action Plan process, Lexington

County continued to receive requests and inquiries regardLng possible CDBG funding assistance.

The requests typically concern a variety of needs including assistance with home renovation,

water and sewer line improvements, and road paving. To the extent possible based on their

priority, these needs are addressed either in the County's Annual Action Plans, or through
referral information to other resources.

GAPS IN INSTITUTIONAL STRUCTURE

Some of the area institutions contributing to the implementation of Lexington County1s housing

and community development objectives include:

Federal
• U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Deve!opment
• U.S. Department of Agriculture — Rural Development

State
• South Carolina Department of Commerce
• South Carolina State Housing Finance and Development Authority
• Office of the Governor — Office of Economic Opportunity
• S.C. Department of Health and Environmental Control — HOPWA Program

County
• Lexington County Department of Community Development
• Lexington County Department of Economic Development
• Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission
• Irmo-Chapin Recreation Commission
• Lexington County Department of Social Services

Non-Profits
• Domestic Abuse Center
• Rape Crisis Network
• Aiken/Barnwell/LexingtOn Community Action Commission
• American Red Cross — Central South Carolina Chapter
• Babcock Center
• Lexington Interfaith Community Services

text, ytwi Coy, dy, South Cc (1)1,0

2005/2006 Consol,drztcd A,,,iucl Perftlrmonce ccl Eyclrzcl,oa ReporL



• Columbia Urban League
• SisterCare
• Habitat For Humanity
• Lexington Children's Center
• Lexington/Richland Alcohol and Drug Abuse Commission

Though there are numerous public and private service providers serving the residents of
Lexington County, no comprehensive, formal integration of service delivery exists at this time.
However, informal linkages and smaller scale formal liaisons exist between individual agencies
and organizations for referrals, resource allocation, and other services. The County recognizes
the need for ongoing analysis, evaluation and improvement of the institutional structure.

PUBLIC HOUSING AND RESIDENT INITIATIVES

There is no Public Housing Authority for residents living in the unincorporated areas of the
County. The Cayce Housing Authority assists 40 households in four different housing
communfties in the City of Cayce and is the only public housing authority in Lexington County.
The Section 8 Housing Voucher Program administered by the South Carolina State Housing
Finance and Development Authority is the primary mechanism for public rental assistance for
most County residents. In recent years the emphasis of the Section 8 program has shifted from
project-based housing assistance, where housing units are subsidized, to tenant-based
assistance, where tenants are given funds to subsidize the housing of their choice within

program guidelines for cost and other associated standards. In 2005, 1,149 families in
Lexington County were assisted by funds from project and tenant-based rental assistance

totaling $5,177,693.

MONITORING

The Lexington County staff managing the CDBG program monitors all departmental and grantee
activities to the fullest extent possible within daily activities. The following steps summarize
mon toring standards through program implementation:

• Prepare detailed budget of project including all anticipated and potential costs.
• Prepare thorough and comprehensive subrecipient agreement providing details of the

project and requirements (as applicable).
• Evaluate environmental impact of project and implement required procedures.
• Prepare thorough and comprehensive engineering budget including all anticipated and

potential costs (as applicable).
• Review ongoing written status reports and other communications to monitor for

adherence to timelines and compliance requirements.
• Visit project site before, during and after construction (keeping a photographic log of

project).
• Approve payment requests after strict review of budget summaries, time sheets, wages,

accuracy to bid specs, etc.
• Prepare monthly Project Status reports detailing project accomplishments and

anticipated activities.

Lexington County, South Carolina
2005/2006 Consolido ted Annual PerJbrrnar ice and Evaluation Report



• Prepare monthly report of CDBG draws detailing funds drawn on each active project and

progress made to meet HIJD timeliness requirements.

EVALUATE AND REDUCE LEAD BASED PAINT HAZARDS

It is esflmated that 8.3% of the housing units in the County may have some lead-based paint.

Of these units, 95lOO% are estimated to be low and moderate-income households. The

County continues its efforts towards reducing the hazards of lead based paint to its citizens and

particularly those who are LMI. Staff maintains a variety of HUD-developed brochures
describing the dangers of cad and lead paint. The brochures include information on common

instances of lead-paint such as home remodeling. The County continues to make these

brochures available to the public and has ongoing communication with the South Carolina

Department of Health and Environmental Control and the County's Building Services division to

distribute this information.

OUTREACH TO MINORITY AND WOMEN-OWNED BUSINESSES

The Lexington County CDBG Program strives to make bid opportunities available to aU eligible

businesses, to include those owned by minorities and women. Advertisement efforts are
regional and statewide in nature and reflect the global and technological arena most businesses

operate in today. They include the South Carolina Business Opportunity Report, the County's
Internet website, and postings in the lobby of the County Administration building.

Lex,, gta Cow ry,So ti tJ Ca roLoc
2005/2006 Cot tsoI,dateil Azuwal Petfortutinco otiS Eua7tiattotz kayo,



ii

NATIONAL OBJECTIVES AND ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES
Each activity funded by the County's CDBG program addresses at least one of HUD's National
Objectives. The three National Objectives are:

• Benefit/ow and moderate-income persons (as an Area Henefit, Limited Clientele,
Housing, or Job Creation/Retention activity)

• Aid in the prevention or e/irnination of s/urns or b/ight (on an Area Basis, Spot
Basis, or a previously approved Urban Renewal project area)

• Meet an urgent need (must pose a serious and immediate threat; be of recent origin,
unable to be financed by the entitlement, and with no other sources of funding
avail a b e)

In addition to meeting a National Objective, Lexington County's CDBG funds are used only to
implement eligible activities determined by HUD. The Block Grant structure allows the local
jurisdiction flexibility in deciding on specific projects that meet the eligibility requirements. This
enables the County to best determine its needs and more effectively direct expenditures. The
basic types of eligible activities include:

• Activities Related to Real Property (i.e., public facilities and improvements, clearance
and demolition, rehabilitation)

• Activities Related to Economic Development (i.e., real property equipment and
improvements, micro-enterprise assistance)

• Activities Related to Public Services (i.e., job training and employment, crime prevention,
Fair Housing counseling)

• Assistance to Community Based Development Organizations (i.e., neighborhood
revitalization, energy conservation)

• Other Activities (i.e., relocation assistance, loss of rental income, assistance to
institutions of higher learning)

• Planning and Administration

Lexington County's project activities have included Public Facilities/Improvements projects and
Planning and Administration activities. The County's waterline project, road paving projects,
storm drainage improvements, and Fire Services projects all benefit low and moderate-income
persons as an Area Benefit. The location of the water line and its expected service area as well
as the road paving and storm drainage locations are eligible because the census tract data at
the time the projects were funded indicated that more than 51% of persons in each area were
low and moderate-income. During the program year, all applicable activities (100%) addressed
the National Objective of benefit to low and-moderate income persons.

Lexmgton County, South Carolzna
2005/2006 Cousolida ted Annual Performanee and Evaluation Report



DISPLACEMENT I RELOCATION

The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 requires
that an activity using federal funds that serves to displace or relocate individuals of low- and
moderate-income be undertaken in a specific manner, as prescribed by law, in order to
minimize the impact on the individual.

There were no activities undertaken during the program year that displaced or relocated any
residents.

MISCELLANEOUS ACTIVITIES

The CDBG program has several activity categories that should be commented on separately due
to additional requirements and reporting criteria:

Economic Development — There were no activities undertaken that would be eligible under the
Economic Development program and thus be subject to the Public Benefit Test and/or Job
Creation standard.

Limited Clientele — There were no activities undertaken serving a limited clientele not
considered such under HUD's definition of limited clientele.

Rehabiltation — There were no rehabilitation initiatives during this program year.

Enterprise Zone/Enterprise Community Neighborhood Revitalization — There are no HUD-

approved neighborhood revitalization efforts in Lexington County. Additionally, there are no
Federally-designated Enterprise Zones or Enterprise Communities within the County.

PROGRAM INCOME

There was no program income generated by any of the activities during the program year.
There were no revolving loan programs, float funded activities, sale of property, loan
repayments, lump sum draw down payments, or other activity that would generate income.

Lcxingtoii Cou, I I,j,So tix CzroIiic
2005/2006 Cc, ,sohdated AIX, U(l f'eJoIIzz(uIce (11111 EVCIIIO I iou Report



The Lexington County CDBG program continues to make efforts for improvement. The program
appreciates a commitment from County officials for professional development and staff
members plan to continue to expand their knowledge and skills in the area of community
programming and HLJD funding. Staff continues to attend training sessions on CDBG, Working
with Subrecipients, IDIS Reporting, and Conducting Environmental Reviews. The department is
a member of state and national organizations related to CDBG programming as well as general

community development.

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

CDBG staff attended the HUD Community Planning and Development Performance
Measurement Training in Dallas, Texas on August 15 and 16, 2Q06. The County prepared its
2006 Action Plan with performance measures included. Implementation of all current and
future projects will include appropriate performance measurement indicators. Beginning with
the 2006 CAPER, the County will report performance measurement results of its CDBG-funded

projects.

Lexington County, South Carolina
2 005/2006 Consohda ted Annual Perforrno ace and Evaluation Report



as
To be added following public hearing and comment period.

Levi, glen Cauri ly, Soji I It Cure lii a
2005/2006 Consolidated Antutal Pe;forn:a'tce and Evohuil on Rej ted



County of Lexington
Community Development Department

212 South Lake Drive
Lexington, SC 29072

Phone: (803) 785-8121
Fax: (803) 785-8188

MEMORANDUM

TO Planning and Administration Committee
Lexington County Council

THROUGH: Katherine Doucett, County Administrator

FROM. Ronald I. Scott, Community Development DirectcGjL

DATE August 14, 2006

RE: CDBG Minor Housing Repair Program Policies

A Minor Housing Repair Program was approved by County Council as one of our 2006
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) projects. Attached are the policies and
procedures for the program. These policies were prepared by staff, reviewed by HUD, and
reviewed and agreed upon by the County Attorney.

Some of the key policies to be aware of include.

• Applicants must be either disabled (as defined by the US Social Security
Administration), elderly (age 62÷), or a veteran. These are also the priorities of the
State Housing Authority to receive Lexington County Section 8 assistance

• Assistance will not exceed $5,000 per house.

• Repairs will be limited to those not disturbing a painted surface. This eliminates the
applicability of federal lead-based paint requirements.

• Applicants will be chosen by CDBG staff with the assistance cf the CDBG Community
Advisory Committee

We recommend Council approval of these policies



LEXINGTON COUNTY
MINOR HOME REPAR PROGRAM

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

_ ___ II

Community Dev&opment Block Grant Program
County Administration BuildLng

212 South Lake Drive
Lexington, South Carolina 29072

Telephone (803) 785-8121 Fax (803) 785-8188
vvww lax-co corn



Table of Contents

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS 4

Purpose of the Program
Program Funding Source
Minimum Property Standards
Applicability of Other Federal or State Regulations

II. TYPES AND TERMS OF PROGRAM ASSISTANCE 5

Type of Grant
Terms of Assistance
Minimum Grant Assistance
Maximum Number of Grants

Ill. CDBG ADVISORY COMMIUEE 5

IV. HOUSEHOLD SELECTION AND ELIGIBILITY 6

Household Status
Ownership
Occupancy
Property Taxes
Previous Grant
Maximum Income
Conflict of Interest
Moving Furnishings

V. PROPERTY SELECTION AND ELIGIBILITY 7

Location
Nature and Extent of Minor Repairs
Types of Structures
Maximum Number of Grants Per Property
Homeowner's Insurance

VI. DETERMINATION OF GROSS INCOME B

Annual Gross Ca?culation
Sources of Income
Federal Income Tax Returns

VII. IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES 10

Grant Application
Environmental Review
Initial Property Inspection
Work Write-Up
Transmittal of Work Write-Up to Homeowner
Contractor Selection
Bidding Process
Cost Reasonableness

7



Deferred Grant Agreement
Notice to Proceed
Contractor Payment
CHange Orders

VIII. MARKETING PROGRAM 15

lnformaUon Flyer
Newspapers

IX. APPEALS 16

X. PROGRAMCHANGES 16

Xl. FILESANDRECORDS 16

XII. DISCLAIMER 16



I I. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A. Purpose of the Program
The purpose of the Minor Repair Program is to provide assistance to low and
moderate-income residents for minor household repairs to their home. The
program is limited to families where the head, spouse or cohead is elderly,
disabled, or a veteran Minor home repairs may include the folEowing areas cr
functions in non-painted areas:

Minor Roof Repair Repair / Replace Door Locks
I

Repair / Replace Window Screens Minor Electrical

Repair / Replace Insulation II
Minor Floor Repairs

Repairing Concrete Walks or Steps
(

Connection to Public Water! Sewer Lines

Handrails or Banisters Tree Removal
I

Extermination of Vermin/Termites
II Repair! Replace Septic Tanks I

Repair! Replace Wells II Handicap Accessibility Improvements (Ramps, etc)

Repair / Replace Furnace
M Repair! Replace HVAC Systems

Repair! Replace Water Heater II
Repair I Replace Smoke Detectors

I

Repair! Replace Electrical Panel Boxes
II Minor Plumbing I

Ineligible repairs include, but are not limited to, work on other buildings on the
property not considered the primary residence (i.e. detached garage, sheds, and
barns) or the repair or replacement of non-essential items (hot tubs, swimming
pools, worn carpet, paint, etc

NO REHABILITATIONI'REPAIRS CAN BE UNDERTAKEN INVOLVING PAINT
DETERIORATION, LOOSE PAINT, VISIBLE SURFACE DUST, PAINT CHIPS,
OR ANY REHABILITATION OR REPAIR THAT WOULD INVOKE THE
REQUIREMENTS OF 24 CFR PART 35 (LEAD-BASED PAINT POISONING
PREVENTION IN CERTAIN RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURES).

The focus of this Program is to help homeowners correct minor deficient
conditions in their homes. Lexington County has a vested interest in working
with its residents to assure there is a quality housing stock. It is understood that
fully functional homes better protect the occupants and add value to the overall
neighborhood, thus increasing the livability of the entire county.

B. Program Funding Source
The funding source for the Minor Repair Program is the Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) program, administered by the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Lexington County receives funds from
this program on an annual basis to implement housing and community
development activities in Lexington County.

4



C. Minimum Property Standards
In compliance with CDBG and HUD requirements, the Minor Repair Program will
follow the 2003 International Property Maintenance Code as the minimum
property standard. This is the same standard utilized by the Lexington County
BUilding Inspections Division for all existing housing in Lexington County. This
standard ensures that all houses rehabilitated with HUD funds adequately
address and protect public health, safety and welfare.

D. Applicability of Other Federal or State Regulations
While all Minor Repair grants are sublect to the requirements of these
Guidelines, there may be additional special provisions and limitations on Minor
Repair grants depending on the funding source. Consequently, additional
requirements not shown in these Guidelines may apply and thus, these
Guidelines may be amended from time to time by the Community Development
Block Grant Division to reflect changes in the requirements of the funding source
of this program.

II. TYPES AND TERMS OF PROGRAM ASSISTANCE

A. Type of Grant
The program will provide up to $5,000 in CDBG funds per home for eligible minor
repairs The County reserves the right to exceed $5,000 per home on a case-by-
case basis

B. Terms of Assistance
Assistance is in the form of a grant. No repayment is required. Homeowners will
be required to maintain ownership of the residence for a period of twenty-four
(24) months after completion of the repairs If the property is sold or vacated
before the twenty-four month period expires, the homeowner will be required to
repay the CDBG grant in full. This will be enforced through a lien placed on the
property at the time repair work is completed.

C. Minimum Grant Assistance
To qualify for this program, repair costs must be estimated to be at east
$1,000.00

D. Maximum Number of Grants
An applicant may apply for grant assistance anytime applications are being
accepted. An applicant may only be awarded one grant from this program in a
ten-year period

Ill. CDBG ADVISORY COMMITTEE

The CDBG Community Advisory Committee meets at least quarterly throughout the
year. The Committee includes various agency and community representatives The
members of the Committee act in an advisory role to CDBG staff.

D



Among the responsibilities of the CDBG Community Advisory Committee is providing
feedback to CDBG staff on applications for minor home repair assistance based on
established eligibility criteria and staff recommendations The Committee will also
provide feedback to staff in reviewing written appeals.

IV. HOUSEHOLD SELECTION AND ELIGIBILITY

Only completed applications will be reviewed for eligibility. Eligibility will be assessed
on the following:

A. Household Status
The head, spouse or co-head of the household must be elderly, disabled, or a
veteran as defined below:

• Elderly: 62 years or older
• Disabled persons: Designated as such by the Social Security

Administration
• Veteran: Head of household, spouse or surviving spouse who was a

person who has served in the active military, naval, or air service, and
who was discharged or released there from under conditions other than
dishonorable.

B. Ownership
Applicants must be named on the Deed as the owner of the home and principal
resident The County tax record(s) will be the primary source of information to
determine ownership.

C. Occupancy
The applicant must be residing in the home at the time of application for grant
assistance.

D. Property Taxes
All delinquent property taxes shall be paid on the property prior to the
submission of application for assistance. Only written verifications will be
accepted and placed in the applicant's file.

E. Previous Grant
Previous assistance through any other government agency's housing
rehabilitation program prior to June 30, 2006, will not be considered as prior
assistance.

F. Maximum Income
For the purposes of this Program, all persons listed on the TITLE and all persons
in the residence are considered household members for the purposes of
determining income eligibility unless it can be proven through evdence
satisfactory to the County of Lexington that a person on title is NOT living in the
residence. The GROSS annual income for ALL household members cannot
exceed the applicable income shown in the following chart:

6



[ 2006 MAXIMUM INCOME CHART

HoUsehold Size
Maximum Income (80% of

the Area Median)

'1 533950

2 $38800

3 $43,650

4 $48500

5 $52,400

6 $56,250

7 $60,150

8 $64,000

Source' US. Department of Housing & Urban Development. These income
figures are subject to change annually

G. Conflict of Interest
Applicants can be denied participation in the Program if a conflict of interest
exists A conflict of interest exists if a grant applicant is an employee, officer,
elected official or appointed official of the County of Lexington, and the applicant'

1. Exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to
funds for this program

2. Participates in the decision making process re'ated to funds for this
program

3 Is in a position to gain inside information with regard to program activities

H. Moving Furnishings
Applicants are responsible for moving all furnishings before and after
rehabilitation work,

V. PROPERTY SELECTION AND ELIGIBILITY

Ehgibihty will also be assessed on the following:

A. Location
To qualify for a grant, the housing unit must be located within unincorporated
Lexington County. The property cannot be boated within the city limits of any of
the municipalities in Lexington County

7



B. Nature and Extent of Minor Repairs
As part of determining eligibility for this Program, all housing units will be
inspected to determine if repairs can be undertaken within the scope of the
Program. Factors to be evaluated include but are not limited to the type of repair,
ability to be undertaken without disturbing a painted surface, and the total cost of
the repair(s). If a unit does not qualify for assistance based on the inspection,
the homeowner wiEl be notified.

C. Types of Structures
Structures eligible for this program are single-family detached or manufactured
homes Manufactured homes must be on a permanent foUndation, no more than
20 years old, and the manufactured homeowner must own the land on which the
manufactured home is located. All structures must be owner-occupied.

D. Maximum Number of Grants Per Property
A property may only receive one grant award from this program in a ten-year
period, with no more than two grants total.

E. Homeowner's Insurance
Proof of insurance for up to the tax appraised value is required. If the property
lies in the floodplain zone, flood insurance is required.

VI. DETERMINATION OF GROSS INCOME

A. Annual Gross Calculation
Income is defined as the gross amount, before any deducLions have been taken,
of income that is anticipated to be received by all hoLisehold members and
persons on title during the upcoming twelve (12) months. Income of household
members under the age of 18 or a full-time student under the age of 25 is not
counted. Income must be verified no earlier than six (6) months from the date
the grant is made.

B. Sources of Income
Sources of income used in determining gross annual household income are as
follows

1 All wages and salaries, overtime pay, commissions, fees, tips,
bonuses, and other compensation for persona services (before any
payroll deductions). Employment income must be verified via third
party. This means that the verification must come directly from the
employer In the event that the employer refuses or fails to provide
verification, the number, date, and type of attempts (i.e. form sent to
employer, telephone call, etc.) and the results, must be noted. In these
instances, pay stubs will be used to determine the projected annual
income from employment

2. Net income from the operation of a business. This income is defined
as the higher of either current year-to-date net income (proven
through bank statements) or the highest net income shown on any

00



one of the last three years' Federal Income Tax Returns with all
schedules and attachments NET INCOME is defined as gross income
plus depreciation, plus amortization, plus deductions for use of a
home, plus deductions.

3. Interest, dividends and other net income of any kind from real or
personal property

4. All gross periodic payments received from social security, annuities,
insurance policies, retirement funds, pensions, disability or death
benefits and other similar types of periodic receipts, including a lump
sum payment for the delayed start of a periodic payment

5. Payment in lieu of earnings, such as unemployment, worker's
compensation, severance pay and welfare assistance. However, lump
sum payments under health and accident insurance such as workers
compensation are excluded.

6. Periodic and determinable allowances, such as alimony and child
support payments, and regular contributions or gifts received from
persons not residing in the dwelling to the extent that such payments
are reasonably expected to continue.

7. All regular pay, special pay and allowances of a member of the Armed
Forces (whether or not living in the dwelling) who is the head of the
family, spouse or other person whose dependents are residing in the
unit.

The following exceptions shall apply in the determination of gross income:

1. Income from the employment of children under the age of 18 years.

2. Payments received for the care of foster children. Note: Foster
children shall not be used in the determination of the number
of persons in the household.

3. Lump-sum additions to family assets, such as inheritance,
insurance payments (including payments under health and accident
insurance and worker's compensation), capital gains and
settlement for personal and property losses These items shall be
considered as assets for the purposes of this program.

4. Amounts that are specifically for, or in reimbursement of, the cost of
medical expenses

5. Income from a live-in aide. Note: A live-in aide shall not be
used in the determination of the number of persons in the
household.

6. Amounts of education scholarships paid directly to the student or
the educational institution and amounts paid by the government to

9



veterans for use in meeting the costs of tuition, fees, books and
equipment. Any amounts not used for these purposes are to be
included as income

7. Special pay for a household member serving in the Armed Forces
who is exposed to hostile fire

8. Amounts received under HUD-funded training programs or received
under a public assistance program that are specifically for out-of-
pocket costs made solely to allow participation in a specific
program.

9 Temporary, non-recurring or sporadic income.

10. Lump sum payments of SSI and lump sum payments of Social
Security benefits, the value of the allotment provided under the
Food Stamp Act of 1977.

C. Federal Income Tax Returns

All household members and all persons shown on the title shall be required to
provide Federal Income Tax Returns for two prior calendar years The Federal
Tax Return will be used as a basis to verify gross income as well as household
composition.

VII. IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDURES

The following implementation procedures may be modified at the discretion of the
Community Development Block Grant Division.

A. Grant Application

Applications will be provided to persons upon request. The application will also
be available on the Internet under Community Development Block Grant menu
on the County's website. The application packet includes:

1. Application for all persons on title including, but not limited to, the following
attachments

a. Current Monthly Income Chad

Household Composition Sheet

Applicant Checklist

2. A completed application will include, but may not be limited to:

a Copy of Deed

b. Copy of signed complete set of most recent and previous Federal
Income Tax Returns, including all schedules and attachments for all
persons in the household and on title.

10



o Third party verification of employment

d Other income documentation (supply a copy of the award letter or a
copy of the check or direct deposit statement):

1. Social Security/SSI

2 Retirement

3. Disability

4. AFDC

5. Rental Receipts

6. Interest on Savings/Income Earning Accounts

e Three (3) most recent bank statements

f Receipt for property tax payment

g. Copy of Social Security Card

h Copy of current identification (i.e., driver's license or State of South
Carolina ID card)

i. Other support documentation as requested by Lexington County

3 Upon receipt of the Application, Lexington County CDBG staff reviews the
application as follows

a. Lexington County CDBG staff determines if household and property
are eligible based on application and other supporting
documentation.

b. If applicant does not satisfy the program requirements, Staff sends
notice of ineligibility to applicant documenting the reasons for
ineligibility

c. If applicant is deenied eligible, Staff arranges for initial inspection of
the property to determine eligibility of the scope of repairs for the
property.

B. Environmental Review
Upon receipt of the application, Lexington County CDBG Staff prepares
environmental documentation assessing the environmental eligibility of the
rehabilitation project. This includes:

Staff shall determine whether the property to be rehabilitated meets the following:

Project does not result in a change in unit density of 20%,

2. Project does not involve changes in and use from residential to non-
residential, or

3. The estimated cost of rehabilitation is less than 75% of the total estimated
cost of replacement after rehabilitation.

11



nty CDBG Staff shall
evaluate the property
The property may not

determines that the applicant meets the
requirements, Staff arranges for one or
the homeowner. The inspection(s) will

any health or safety

D. Work Write-Up
Depending on the results of the initial inspection(s), a work write-up wEll be
prepared consisting of a detailed list of eligible work.

E. Transmittal of Work Write-Up to Homeowner
Once the work write-up is complete, Staff will:

1. Send or deliver a photocopy of the work write-up to the homeowner for
their review and signature.

2. File original work write-up with project file.

3. Send a letter to the homeowner announcing the start of the contractor
selection process.

F. Contractor Selection

Contractor Qualifications
Contractors interested in participating in the program must fill out an application
with the Lexington County Community Development Department. To be
considered a qualified contractor for this program, the mtnimum documentation
submitted must include.

• Completed contractor application form

• Lexington County bidder! vendor form

• Valid and current contractor's license from the State of South Carolina

• Record of credit and past performance (references from suppliers, banks
and recent customers)

• No record of federal debarment or suspension

• Insurance (NOTE Any exceptions to the minimum insurance requirements
will be based on the type of work performed and amount of the
construction contract and will be considered on a case-by-case basis.)

o Comprehensive General Liability Insurance coverage: Minimum of
$300,000 per occurrence and $100,000 general aggregate

12

If the property meets all of the above, Lexington Cou
prepare an environmental review screening checklist to
with the environmental requirements at 24 CFR Part 58.5.
be rehabilitated depending on the results of the checklist and evaluation.

C. Initial
Once
basic
more

Property Inspection
Lexington County CDBG Staff
financial and property eligibility
inspections of the house with

include an evaluation of the requested repair(s) and
deficiencies, based on the minimum property standard.



o Include Lexington County Community Development Department as
"Additional Insured" under the general liability

o Workman's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance

• Worker's Compensation. Statutory
• Employer's Liability:

• Each Accident: $100,000

o Disease $100,000 each employee, $500,000 policy
limit

o Automobile Liability Cnsuranoe

$300,000 Combined Single Limit or Equivalent Split Limit
coverage as approved by Lexington County.

Contractor Responsibilities
The Contractor is responsible for their quality of work, the work of his employees
and \vork performed by any subcontractors and their employees.

The Contractor is responsible for providing all manufacturers' warranties to the
homeowner and copies to the Lexington County CD Department.

The Contractor must warranty all work for a period of one (1) year from the date
of completion (final inspection and acceptance by owner) of the entire job under
contract. The Contractor will correct any defects that occur during that period at
no additional cost to the homeowner or County.

The responsible Contractor should respond to warranty calls within seven (7)
days of notification by the homeowner. Emergency warranty calls should be
responded to the same day the complaint is received

G. Bidding Process
At least three qualified contractors on the active bidders list will be asked to bid
on each rehabilitation contract. These contractors will be selected at random and
on a rotating basis so that each contractor will have an equal opportunity to bid
on projects. Potential contractors will be notified as to the date, time, and place
of the bid opening Staff will arrange to have a walk-through to allow the
contractors to inspect the house before submitting bids.

At the time of the walk-through each contractor will receive a bid-packet that will
contain a work write-up on each unit detailing the work to be performed,
information on the bidding policy, bid opening time, date, place and pay request
At the bid opening, bids will be opened and read aloud Al! bids will be recorded
and the apparent low bid will be reviewed to ensure it is complete and
responsive.

H. Cost Reasonableness
After bids are received, Staff will compare them to the work write-up to determine
the cost reasonableness of the contractor's bid The lowest bid must be within
10% of the work write-up.

13



If the lowest bid is 10% or more higher than the work write-up then the low bidder
will be given the opportunity to negotiate his bid into the acceptable range. If the
bid cannot be negotiated into the acceptable range then the house may be re-
bid, If the bid is reasonable, the Procurement Department approves the
contractor's bid Staff will then schedule a meeting with the homeowner and the
contractor (grant closing) to sign all required documents.

If the lowest bid is 10% or more lower than the work write-up then the low bid will
be evaluated to determine if their were any mistakes and that the contractor can
complete the work as outlined in the scope of work. If the bid is determined to be
reasonable and responsive it may be accepted as the winning bid

I. Deferred Grant Agreement
After approval of the bid, Staff prepares a Deferred Grant Agreement. Staff then
arranges a time and date with the homeowner and contractor to sign documents.
Staff prepares a letter to the homeowner and contractor confirming the date and
time of signing. Staff will mail the confirmation letter to the homeowner, along
with one copy of the Deferred Grant Agreement.

At signing. the homeowner (and any other persons lisled on the deed) and
contractor sign all required documents. The Contractor will also discuss the
details of the project with the homeowner and Staff. Staff will make three (3)
copies of the Deferred Grant Agreement: one copy for the file, one copy to the
homeowner, and one copy to the contractor.

J. Notice to Proceed
Following the execution of all grant documents, Staff shall issue a written Notice
to Proceed to the contractor. The Contractor will commence work no earlier than
three (3) business days and no later than ten (10) business days after the
execution of the Deferred Grant Agreement.

K. Contractor Payment
Request for payment
Upon completion of work set out in the Deferred Grant Agreement, the contractor
will submit the following to Lexington County CDBG staff:

• Original invoice identifying the work items completed (Notice of
Completion) and their cost.

• Original, completed and signed material and labor release forms; and

• Copy of signed-off building inspection cards.

Payment Process
Following receipt of all items in #1 above, Staff shall:

• Inspect the property to ensure all work has been completed and is in
compliance with all County codes.

14



o Determine if all applicable permits have been obtained; and

o Obtain a signature from the homeowner on the Homeowner Completion
Acknowledgement form that indicates the amount to be paid to the
contractor.

• Prepare a Request for Check form that includes:
o The original invoice, and
o Homeowner Completion Acknowledgement form

L. Change Orders
A change order occurs when there is any modification to the agreed upon scope
of work The modification may be relatively mrnor or incorporate a major change
A change order must be executed for any deviation, addition, or de'etion made to
the original job specification (even if there is no cost change). Change orders
must be in writing and approved by the homeowner, Rehabilitation Inspector, and
the Contractor

Since change orders add to the administrative cost of the lob they wifl only be
considered if additional code violations (2003 International Property Maintenance
Code) are discovered during the construction or if the change is necessary for
proper job oompletron

All change orders must be evaluated for cost reasonableness and for the effect it
will have on the amount of assistance approved prior to the change order. The
cost analysis of the recommended change will be documented and wtll nclude a
statement verifying that the approved cost is both reasonable and acceptable.
The Rehabilitation Inspector will establish the cost reasonableness of the change
order.

If a change order reduces or increases the amount of assistance provided] the
Deferred Grant Agreement will be amended

VIII. MARKETING PROGRAM

A. Information Flyer

Lexington County CDBG Staff will prepare an information flyer in order to inform
prospectEve applicants about the program, eligibility requirements and the minor
housing repair process. The flyer will cover the following:

1. Type of financial assistance (i.e type and terms of the grant)

2. Eligibility requirements

3. Application procedures; and

4 Telephone number and location of program office



The flyer will be provided to interested applicants as requested, and copies wiEl
be made available in various locations including the information desk in the
County Administration Building, Main Library, Department of Social Services and
other locations as deemed appropriate.

B. Newpapers

1. Stories of interest may be placed in the local newspapers.

2. Advertisements may be placed in local newspapers

IX. APPEALS

Applicants may appeal a decision of denial by filing a written appeal to the Lexington
County Community Development Department within 30 calendar days of receipt of such
a written decision. CDBG Staff and the CDBG Advisory Committee will review the
appeal. If the appeal is not approved the denial will be final.

X. PROGRAM CHANGES

At the discretion of the Community Development Block Grant Division, the program may
be modified to ensure maximum efficiency and effectiveness of program funds and to
otherwise meet the intent of assisting lower income households in improving their
homes through the program.

XI. FILES AND RECORDS

The Community Development Block Grant Division shall mainlain accurate files and
records on each applicant and shall retain all pertinent documentation for a period of
three (3) years the completion of the Program. The following forms will be included in
the files:

1 Homeownership Assistance Completion report (HUD-40096)
2. Minority/Women Owned Business Enterprise Report; and

3 Certificate of Completion

XII. DISCLAIMER

Any discussions with or any information given by a Lexington County employee or its
designee regarding application for the Lexington County Minor Home Repair Program
prior to receipt of a formal commitment letter from Lexington County or its designee
committing a specific amount of funds to the project is only for program information and
may not be considered a binding commitment on the part ol Lexington County to
provide funds or technical assistance to the project.

Any costs incurred prior to receipt of a formal commitment letter from Lexington County
or its designee committing a specific amount of funds to the project is at the risk and
expense of the applicant.

16



Lexington County does not discriminate on the basis of age, race, color, religion,
sex, national origin, disability or familial status in the admission or access to, or
treatment or employment in, its federally assisted programs or activities.

17



The Conrniittee Minutes are left out intentionally until approved by the
Committee. Upon the Committee's approval, the minutes will be available on the
internet.



The Committee Minutes are left out intentionally until approved by the
Committee. Upon the Committee's approval, the minutes wil] be available on the
internet.



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Grant Request Summary Form

Title of Grant: DHEC I EMS Grant-in-Aid

Fund: 2520 DREG / EMS Grant-in-Aid Department: 131400 Emergency Medical Senuces
No Title No Title

Grant Overview:
Yearly state Grant-in-Aid for the purpose of upgrading and/or expanding the Emergency Medical Services within Lexington
County. The County will purchase equipment and/or training programs approved by DFIEC

Grant Period: July 1, 2006 to June 30, 2007

Responsible Departmental Grant Personnel: Brian I-food

Date Grant Information Released: July 7,2006 Date Grant Application Due* October 1,2007
* Tins item L being brought out to full Council earlybecause of
a meeting the EMS Director has in mid-September on this topic

Grant Expenditures (Please attach a detailed budget with Excel spreadsheet. Overview, Line Item Narratives, etc.):

Personnel
Operating 47,37200

Capital

Total S 47,372.00

Local Match Required: Yes X
J

No

If Yes, What is the Percentage! Amount: 5.5% ibis amount is already budgeted in FY07
$ Amount

Requirements at Ihe End of this Grant (please explain in detail):
None other than records for thts grantbe retained for 6 years. These records shall be available for audit or inspection when
necessary by DII EC.

Dept Preparer ____________________________________

Dept Approval: BIl 08-14-06
F \windows\excei2k\fo, rns\grants\blankgrantsumrnaryformxls Finance Approval: KI I 08-I 4-0ff
I :it Updated 0 7120/06 Iiy KMII Jut/juts Date



DHEC
eROMOJE I'ROTEIT [tUS?]R

Clap I,jner.Com"itsnn,
:';omorugnacL5'v/eR/zng dip lru/ti ithPpr/b/iL ut

July 7, 2006

NIIEMORANDIJM

TO: Licensed Ambulance Service Directors
County Administrators

FROM: Aw.:iD:eczor / /4I / /

Division of Emergency Medical ervi4_/ u

SUBJEC'l': Grant-in-Aid Program Fiscal Year 2007

Enclosed are the forms and guidelines required to complete the application for EMS finding under the
state Grant-in-Aid. I am also enclosing a fact sheet showing how many emergent runs were madeby each
service during calendar year 2005 and how many dollars will be available to each county. The grams will
be based on a 945% state/5.5 % local cash match. Contracts will be sent underseparate cover letter to
each County Administrator.

The procedure to be followed for the completion of the application is included in the application
packet As soon as the applications reach DIJEC EMS our review will start and approval will be issued to
all counties that have applications compliant with the guidelines. Those counties, for which there is no
completed application received at DHEC by October 1, 2006, will forfeit their monie&

Priority emphasis should continue to be placed on upgrading the skills of the EMTs withinyour
services, especially those courses for the Intermediate or Paramedic level and for improving the quality of
care you provide to the citizens of this state This may mean additional training. Consequentlyyou may
consider placing additional emphasis on training under Grant-in-Aid. GIA funds are not retroactive for
training courses. Funds can not be spent on training or equipment BEFORE the effective date of the
contract or the date signed by all parties, whichever is later and the grant-in-aid application (DELEC
JOM) has been approved by DIJEC. In addition, GLA funds can not be utilized for
administrative/service cost. Please give special attention to the instructions in item #6 on the attached
document "The Description of the Grant-in-Aid process for FY2007."

Equipment items cannot includefood items or items which are a replacement of existing equipment The
list is rather broad in that it includes communications equipment, rescue equipment and computer software
as well as patient care equipment. However all ofthese support the system tor providing care for the
patient. Specific eligible equipment items arc described under equipment on the enclosed List of Eligible
Items FY2007.

appreciate your continued interest in the GIA Program and look forward to working with you during this
grant pcriod

OIJT}4 CAIOLl DEP:\RTfENT OF HEALTH AND ENVH )NMRNT AL CONTROL- —— -

260(1 Still Sn ent - Coh,rnh,3 SC 29201 • Phone (S03) SUS-3 t32Pv\VW.epI1l,C 0V



4,012,012
projections are readjusted to the 2000 Census count

$591,556.00

$1,183,112 I

2007 GRANT4N-AID DISTRIBtJ'flON & ADD1IONAL FUNDS

COUNTY COUNTY COUNTY % OF STATE SNARE BY EQUAL SHARE COUNTY
CODE NAME POPULATION POPULATION POPULATION

$591,556.00
PER COUNTY
$591,556.00

TOTAL

1 ABBEVILLE
2 AIKEN
3 ALLENDALE
4 ANDERSON

26,167
142,552

11,211
165,740

0.652216394%
3.553129951%
0.279435854%
4.131094324%

3,858.23
21,018.75

1,653.02
24,437.74

12,859.91
12,859.91
12859.91
12,85991

16,718
33,879
14,513
37,298

5 BAMBERG 16,658 0.415203145% 2,456.1€' 12,859.91 15,316
6 BARNWELL
7 BEAUFORT
8 BERKELEY
9 CALHOUN

10 CHARLESTON
11 CHEROKEE

23,478
120,937
142,651

15,185
309,969
52,537

0,585192666%
3.014372838%
3.555597541%
0.378488399%
7.726023751%
1.309492594%

3,461.74
17,831.70
21,033.35
2,238.97

45,703.76
7,746.38

12,859.91
12,859.91
12,85991
12,859.91
12,859.91
12,859.91

16,322
30,692
33893
15,099
58,564
20,606

12 CHESTER
13 CHESTERFIELD

34,068
42,768

0.849150003%
1.065998806%

5,023.20
6,305.98

12,859.91
12,859.91

17883
19,166

14 CLARENDON
15 COLLETON
16 DARLINGTON

32,502
38,264
67,394

0.810117218%
0.953735931%
1.679805544%

4,792.30
5,641.88
9,936.99

12,859.91
12,859.91
12,859.91

17,652
18,502
22,797

17 DiLLON
18 DORCHESTER

30,722
96,413

0.765750451%
2.403108.465%

4,529 84
14,215.73

12,859.91
12,859.91

17390
27,076

19 EDGEFIELD
20 FAIRFIELD
21 FLORENCE
22 GEORGETOWN
23 GREENVIlLE
24 GREENWOOD

24,595
23,454

125,761
55,797

379,616
66.271

0.613034059%
0.584594463%
3.134611761%
1.390748582%
9.461985657%
1.651814601%

3,626.44
3,458.20

18,542.98
8,227.06

55,972.94
9,771.41

12,859.91
12,859.91
12,859.91
12,859.91
12,859.91
12,859.91

16,486
16,318
31,403
21,087
68,833
22,631

25 HAMPTON
26 HORRY
27 JASPER
28 KERSHAW

21,386
196,629
20,678
52,647

0 533049253%
4.901007275%
0.515402247%
1.312234360%

3,153.28
28,992.20

3,048.89
7,762.80

12,859.91
12,859.91
12,859.91
12,859.91

16,013
41,852
15,909
20,623

29 LANCASTER
30 LAURENS

61,351
69,567

1.529182864%
1.733967894%

9,045.97
10,257.39

12,859.91
12,859,91

21,906
23,117

31 LEE
t 32 LEXINGTON

33 MCCORMICK

20,119
216,014

9,958

0.501469088%
5,384181304%
0.248204641%

2,966.47
31,850.45

1,468.27

12,859.91
12,859.91
12,859.91

15,826
44,710
14,328

34 MARION
35 MARLBORO

35,466
28,818

0.883995362%
0.718292966%

5,229.33
4,249.11

12,859.91
12,859.91

18,089
17,109

36 NEWBERRY
37 OCONEE
38 ORANGEBURG
39 PICKENS
40 RICHLAND

36,108
66.215
91,582

110,757
320,677

0.899997308%
1 650418792%
2.282695067%
2.760634814%
7.992922254%

5,323.99
9,763.15

13,503.42
16,330.70
47,282.61

12,859.91
12,859.91
12,859.91
12,859.91
12,859.91

18,184
22,623
26,363
29,191
60,143

41 SALUDA
42 SPARTANBURG
43 SUMTER
44 UNION
45 WILLLAMSBURG
46 YORK

19,181
253,791
104,646
29,881
37,217

164,614

0.478089298%
6.325778687%
2.608317223%
0.744785400%
0.927639299%
4.103025605%

2,828.17
37,420.52
15,429 66
4,405 84
5,487.51

24,271,71

12,859.91
12,859.91
12,859.91
12,859 91
12,859.91
12,859.91

15.688
50,280
28,290
17.266
18,347
37,132

]TATE TOTAL
Note: Population

100 $501,556.00

— 'I I I

Source. US Bureau of the Census, 2000 Census (as of 2000)
I

$1. 183.112



BUI)GET AMENDMENT RESOLUTION

Aaiendtuent No. 07—0 I 'I irijites Refer: \ugust 22, 2006 Effective Date: July 1,2006

It is hereby Resolved that the Current Budget be amended as foIIo s:

Appropriation 'Iratisfer:

Fund:

Dept:
Acet:

From:

Fund:

Dept:
A cct:

'I 0

Anouiit:

X ) Supplemeutal Appropriation ( ) Increase X ) Decrease Amount: (S [028 00)

Appropriation Revenue

Fund: 2520 I)ItEC/ EMS (]RANI-tN-AtD

Dept: I) t '10)1 kMt)R(1ENCY \t 1) )tCAt SERYtCES

Aect: SEt: A it ACHED

l'IJRI'OSE (1JESCRIBE):

F'uttd: 2520 DHLC / t:\lS GRAS I -iNT-AiI)

Dept: 000(100 NO COS t K_CS t i/H

Son rce: SEE A [TACt Ct)

10 REDUCE VHF DIIEC / EMS GRANT-IN-AID BUDGET TO TIlE AMOUNT ALLOCATIJI) FOR LEXINGION COUNTY
2006-07 A I'I'I((I\'I/t) tH1DCET

AMOtJV[ A'\ Akt)Et)

48,400

47,372

([028)

c Iii n at ii res

It))lliiiv \\' Jericoit

icrrgc Smo)cy t I t

20 t (Kid Cut] urn

I I])J5 3 SuInLners

0 rIsby C RosIer

Jnhn \\' Ciitie'g Jr

Wilitain C t)en (k

Jose1,!, \V Ovens

James C Rmnrrd Jr

c,celSThvum(mt



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
DUEC - EMS GRANT-IN-AID

Annual Budget
Fiscal Year - 2006-07

•*'I'otal Revenue 33,258 33,605 45,221 48400 47,372 -1,028

*'Fotal Appropriation

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Yeai

FUND BALANCE - Estimated
End of Year

48,400 47,372 -1,028

8 8 8

8 8 8

11 Months Amended
Received Budget Total Revised

Object Actual Thru May Turn May Approved Revenues BAR
Code Revenue Account Title 2004-05 2005-06 2005-06 2006-07 2006-07 07-031

EMS Grant-In-Aid 2520:

452220 DIIEC - Gold Cross Ambulance Grant 2,842 2,842 5,108 0 0 0

452221 DI NEC - Mobile Care Grant 0 0 1,980 0 0 0

452222 UNIEC - American Med Responsc Grant 0 0 104 0 0 0

459100 DFIEC - EMS Giant-In-Aid 28,094 28,095 35367 45,738 44,710 -1,028
461000 Investment Interest 12 6 0 0 0 0

801000 Operating Transfer from General Fund 2,310 2,662 2,662 2,662 2,662 0



COUNTY OF lEXINGTON
I)IIEC - EMS GRANT-IN-AID

Annual Budget
Fiscal Year - 2006-07

}:und 2520
Di' isiait' Public Safety

Organization' 131400 - Fiveiguncy Medical Services
BUDGET

2004-05 2005-06 2005-06 2006-07 2006-07 BAR
Object Expcii clii Lire P \penditu re Expenditure Amended Approved Revised 07—031

Code Classi 6 cation (Dcc) (Dcc)

Pc no nil ci

lotal Personnel 0 0 0 0 0 0

Operating Epenscs
521213 Public Education Supplies 396 0 0 400 0 -400
525210 Coiifeiencc & Meeting Expense 0 34650 34,650 45,000 47,372 2,372
525230 Suhseiiptions, Dues, & Books 0 0 0 3,000 -3,000

* Total Operating 396 34.650 34,650 48.400 47.372 -1,028

Total Personnel & Operating 396 34,650 34,650 48.400 47,372 -1,028

Capital
All QUiet Eouipmeni 31,112 2.739 2.775 0 0 0

** Total Capital 31,117 2.739 2,775 0 0 0

GRANT PERiOD' July I, 2006 to April 30, 2007
GRANTAWARI) Federal S44,710 and County
PERCI3N'[AGE SI ARED' 94.5% / 5.5%

*k*'FotaI Budget Appropriation 31.508 37389 37,425 48.400 47,372 -1,028



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
OHEC - EMS GRANT-IN-AID

Annual Budget
Fiscal Year - 2006-07

Fund. 2520
Dtvision: Non-departmental
Orgamzation 999900 Non-departmental

B fIDGET
2004-05 2005-06 2005-06 2006-07 2006-07 BAR

Object Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure Amended Approved Revised 07-031
Code Classifleatiun (Dcc) (Dcc)

Personnel
* Total Personnel 0 0 0 0 0 0

Operating Expenses
536029 DHEC - Gold Cross Ambulance Grant 2,842 0 5,108 0 0 0
536031 DREC - Mobile Care Grant 0 0 1,980 0 0 0
536032 DHEC - Aneneao Med Response Grant 0 0 104 0 0 0

* Total Operating 2,842 0 7,192 0 0 0

*x Total Personnel & Operating 2,842 0 7,192 0 0 0

Capital

**TotalCapitaI 0 0 0 0 0 0

***Total Budget Appropriation 2,842 0 7,192 0 0 0



The Committee Minutes are left out intentionally until approved by the
Committee. Upon the Committee's approval, the minutes will be available on the
internet.



This page has intentionally been left blank.



ORDINANCE 06—05

LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

AN ORIMNANCE

TO PROVIDE FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF
LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, SERIES 2006, TO PRESCRIBE THE
PURPOSES FOR WHICH THE PROCEEDS SHALL BE EXPENDED, TO PROVII)E FOR THE
PAYMENT THEREOF, AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.

_________—, 2006

Columbia 766015 I



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I

FINDINGS OF FACT

Scm ion I 0 I Recital o I' Statutoty Authorization . . . . .

Section I .02. Recital of Applicable Constitution Provisions . . .

Section 03. Recital of Pnrpocs md Ohjecti'es of Expendituies

ARTICLE II

I)EFINITIONS AND CONSTRUCtION

Section 21)1. I)efioitions 3

Sect i m 2 02. Consti uctioo 5

ARTICLE III

ISSUANCE OF BONDS

Section 3 06
Section 3 07,
Sectinn 3 05.
Section 309
Section 3.10
Section 3.11.
Section 3 12
Section 3 13
Section 3.14.
Sect ion 3 15.
Section 3.16.
Section 3.17.
Section 3.1$.
Section 3.19.

Date; Maturity of Bonds
Interest Rates: Payment of Interest
3ook—hntry System
Mcdin m of Payment, Form and Denomination ti I' Bonds. P1

Principal
Agreement to Maintain Registrai and Paying Agent
lix cc Lii ion and Authentication
Exchange of Bonds
Ti ans fei abi mv and Rem strv

hans let of Bonds
Regulations with Respect to Exchanges and'l'ransfers
Motilated, Destroyed. Lost andStolen Bonds
Holder As Owner of Bond.,.,,....,..,..,,,,.,..,,.,..,,,,......
Cancel I au on of Bonds
Conditions Relating to Namtng of Interest Rates
Paynients Due on Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays
'lax bxeniption in South Carolina
Order of Tax Levy to Pay Principai and lntei'est of Hoods
Notice to Auditor and Ti'easurer to Levy Tax

6
6
6

ace of I 'ayi iient of

S

"S
S

9

ID
ID
10
10

10
II

Sect ion
Sect ion
Section
Section

Section 3.0!. Ordering the Lssuanee of Bonds
3.02.
3,03,
3 04
3 05

6

Sect ion 3 20 ftri n of Bonds
Sect ion 3,2 I , I 3K aid Anticipation Notes



ARTICLE IV

REDEMPTION OR PURChASE OF BONDS

Section 401. Bonds Subject to Redemption 14

Section 4.02. County's Election to Redeem 14

Section 4.03. Notice of Redemption 14

Section 4.04. Selection by Regisirar of Bonds to Be Redeemed 15

Section 4.05. Deposit of Redemption Price IS

Section 4.06. Partial Redemption of Bonds IS

Section 4.07. Purchases of Bonds Outstanding IS

ARTICLE V

SALE OF BONI)S; APPROVAL
OF OFFICIAL STATEIVIENT

Section 5.01. Determination ofTime to Receive Bids-- Form of Notice of Sale 16

Section 5 02. Award of Bonds I6
Section 5 03 Approval of Official Statement 16

ARTICLE VI

DISPOSITION OF PROCEEDS OF SALE OF BONI)S

Section 6.01 Disposition of Bond Proceeds Including Feinporary Investments 17

ARTICLE VII

DEFEASANCE OF BONDS

Section 7.01. Discharge ofOrdinance-- Where and How Bonds Are Deemed to Have Been
Paid and Defeased IX

ARTICLE VIII

CONCERNING THE FIDUCIARIES

Section 8.01. Fiduciary; Appointment and Acceptance ofDuties 20
Section 8.02. Responsibilities of Fidnciaries 20
Section 8.03. Evidence on Which Fiduciaries May Act 20
Section 8.04. Compensation 21

Section 8.05. Certain Permitted Acts 2!
Section 806. Resignation of Any Fiduciary 21

Section 807 Removal of Fiduciary 21
Section S 08. Appointment of Successor Fiduciaries 21
Section 8.09. Transfer of RighLs and Property to Successor 21
Section 8 10. Merger or Consolidation 22
Section 8.11. Adoption of Authentication 22

— it —



ARTICLE IX

MISCELLANEOUS

SecLou 9.01 . Pail nrc to Present Bands 23

Section 9.02 I-latHing of Public I earing and Notice Thei cal 23
Section 9.03. Tax and Secud ties I aiws Covenants 23
Section 9 04. Ability to Meet Pu biti age Requirement. PH vale Acti vitv Limitations 23
Sceti o'i 9.05. Continuing Disc1 stiit 24

Section 9.06. Severability of Invalid Provisions 24

Section 9.07 Successors 24

Secnon 9 08 Ordinance to Constitute Contract. . 25

Section 909. Filing of Copies of Oi dinance S

Section 9 10. Further Aetioii by 01 fices ofCounty 25

Section 9.!!. Effecuve Date of Ot dinance 25

Ext-ti B IT ''A'' Form of Not ice of Public Head ny
EXHIBit' ''B'' Form of Bond
EXHIBlt'"C" Form of Notice of Sale
EXHIBIl' '1)'' Form of Continuing Disclosure Certificate
EXI-IlliIF "If'' Form of Bond Anticipation Note

- ill -



BE IT ORJMJNED BY THE LEXINGTON COUNTY COUNCIL, IN LEXINGTON
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AS FOLLOWS:

ARTICLE I

FINDINGS OF FACT

As an incident to the adoption of this Ordinance, and the issuance of the bonds provided for herein,
the Lexington County Cotincil (the "Council"), the governing body of Lexington County. South Carolina
(the 'County"), finds that the fiicts set forth in this Article exist and the statements made with respect
thereto are true and correct

Section 1.01. Recital of Statutory Authorization. By virtue of Title 4, Chapter 15, Code of
I .aws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, and supplemented by Title 11, Chapter 27, Code of Laws of
South Carolina, 1976, as amended (collectively, the "Enabling Act"), the County is empowered to issue
general obhgation bonds for any "authorized purpose" as therein defined.

Section 1.02. Recital of Applicahle Constitution Provisions. Section 14 of Article X of the
Constitution of the State of South Carolina (the 'Constitution") provides that the counties of the State may
isstie bonded indebtedness in an amount not exceeding eight percent (8%) of the assessed value of all
taxable property therein, and provides further that no bonded indebtedness incurred on or prior to
Ndvember 30, 1977, shall be charged against such eight percent (8%) debt limitation. Paragraph (6) of
Section 14 of Article X of ihe Constitution further provides that general obligation debt authorized by a
majority of the qualified electors of the issuer may be issued without consideration of the eight percent
(8%) limit otherwise imposed by Section 14 of Article X. The Council is informed that assessed value of
all taxable property located within the County for the year 2005 will upon completion be not less than the
stini of $825,000,000, and thus the eight percent (8%) debt limit of the County will be uot less than
$66,000,000 at the time of the issuance of the general obligation bonds authorized by this ordinance.
The County presently has ouLsLuding $8,660,000 aggregate pnneipal amount of general obligation debt
which chargeable against the eight percent (8%) limit. Thus, the Council will be authonzed issue the stim
of $l3,00O, general obligation debt as provided herein without the authorization required by Section
14(6) of the Constitution.

Section 1.03. Recital of Purposes and Objectives of Findings. In order to
promote economic development with the County, the Council has determined to finance the costs of the
development of an industrial park, including the acquisition of certain land and the construction of public
improvements thereupon, as well as certain site work and engineering and design services related thereto
(collectively, the "Project") through the issuance of general obligation bonds of the County. The Project
will include the purchase of approximately 500 acres of land, and the insudlation on that land of public
niads, as well as waterworks and sewer infrastructure. The total aniotint of funds required to finance the
Project, as well as the cost of issuance of the bonds authorized by this ordinance, is estiniated to be
$13,000,000.

The Council hexeby specifically finds and determines in connection with the acquisition and
construction of the Project as follows:

a. The ultimate goal of the acquisition and construction of tie Project is to promote industrial
development and thereby provide new job opportunities for citizens of the County.



h The pdniary beneficiaries of the Project will he citizens of the Cowity. who will enjoy an
increase in job oppot tunities,

c. The Project is located along Interstate l-Itghway 26 in au area well—suited oi iiidustt al
development and is high iy likely to provide the bench ts desi ed therefrom within a i easonahie

period.

d. The Project will serve the public interest by preservation and development of a large Ii act
suitable for industrial de eln1Ii nent, and by providing increased oh opportunities to citizens of I lie
County. The Council is i if onned that, upon completion, the Project will he the largest site within
the County developed and available for indtisuial use,

*

-7-



ARTICLE II

DEFJNITIONS AN!) CONSTRUCTION

Section 2.01. Definitions. As used in this Oidinaiice unless the context otherwise requites, the
Following terms shall have the following respective meanings

"Authorized Investments" mean and include any securities which are authorized for the
investment of funds of counties by the Code of Laws of South Carol na, 1976. as amended.

"Authorized Officer" means the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Council, the County
Administrator, and any other official of the County appointed by the Council to discharge any
responsibilities or undertakings with respect to this Ordinance or the Bonds,

'BANs" or Notes" means Bond Anticipation Notes of the County isued in accoidance with
Section 3 21 herein.

"Bond" or "Bonds" means any of the Bonds of the County antlionzed by this Ordinance

"Bondholder" or "Holder" or "Holders of Bonds" or "Owner" or similar tenn means, when
used with respect to a Bond or Bonds, any person who shall be registered as the owner of any Bond
Outstanding.

"Bond Payment Date" means each February 1 and August I on which interest on any of the
Bonds shall be payable or on which both the Pnncipal Installment and interest shall be payable on any of
the Bonds.

'Chairman" means the Chatrman of the Council

Code' means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended, and the Treasury Regulations
applicable thereto.

"Corporate Trust Office", when used with respect to any Paying Agent or Registrar, nicans the
office at which its principal corporate trust business shall be administered.

"Council" means the Lexington County Council, South Carolina, the goveniing body of
Lexington County or any successor governing body of said County.

"County" means Lexington Cotinty, South Carolina

"County Request" means a written request of the County signed by an Authorized Officer.

"Enabling Act" means Chapter 15, Title 4, Code olUws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended
and supplemented by Title 1!, Chapter 27, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as aiiieuded.

"Fiduciary" means any financial institution appointed to serve as the Paying Agent, the Registrar
and their successors and assigns.

"Government Obligations" means and includes direct general obligations ol the United States of
America or agencies thereof or obligations, the payment of principal or interest on which is fully and
unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America.

-3-



''Ordinance'' means this Ordinance as the saute 'nay be nitended or supplemented ow tiiiie to
U me in accordance wi di the terms her eol

''Outstanding'', whe ii used in this Ot di namice v ith respect to l3om ids, riieai is as of any date. all
Bonds theretofore authenticated and deliver ccl ptirsuint to iii is Ordinance e \cepi

(i) any Bond canceled or delivered to the Registrar for cancellation on ot before stucli date:

(ii) any Bond (or any portion thereof) clcettied to have been paid iii accordance with the
provisions of Section 701 hereof, and

(iii) any Bond in lieu of or a exchange for which another Bond shall have heen
authenticated and delivered pta suant to Section 3.1 I of this Ordinance,

"Paving Agent'' titeans any bank, mist company or national banking association which is
authorized to pay the principal or intetcst on any Bonds and having the duties. responsibilities and rights

provided for in this Ordinance, and its successor or stiecessors arid any other corporatron or association
which at any time may he substituted iii its place ptirstraiit to this Ordinance Tue instittition nairied as

Paying Agent may also act as Rein st rar

'Per-son" means an tndivttiua] a partnership, a cetpcuiattoti, a trust, a trustee, an ututicorpotated
ot'sanizttion. or a govemnnient or an agency or political subdivision thereof

"Principal Installment'' tiic:tns. as of any date of calculation, the principal attiourit at' all l3onds
due en a specified date

"Record Date'' means the frfieenmh day of the month rintnedtately pi ecedtng each Bond Payment
Date.

''Registrar'' means any h:uik, trust company. or national banking assocratron \\hichl is authorized
to maintain an accurate list of those who from time to time shall be the liolders of the Bonds and shall
effect the exchange and trutsfer of Bonds ul accordance rtli the provisions of this Otdinance and having
the duties, responsibilities, and rights provtded br ni this Ordi riance antI its successor or suecessot a and
any other corporation or association which at any tune nay be srrbstitnted in its place pursuant to this
Oiclinanee, The instittitton named as Regrsti u niay :ilso act as Pavoig Agent

''Securities I)eposifon"' slial I mean Tue Deposunr 'l'i-ust Company, New York. New York, or
other recognized securities depository selected by the County, which securities depositor y maintains a
book—entry system in i espect of tire l3onds and shall include arty sobstittite for or successor to the securities

depository initially acting as Securities Depository.

''Securities I)epository Nonunee'' shall nie:nl, as to any Sectrrit es Depository, such Sectinties
Depository or the nominee of' such See'tnities I)epository ni \\ hose titune theie shall be registered on the
registration books maintained by the Registi:tr the Bond certificates to be deli'.emed to and immobilized at
stich Securities Depositom'y diii lug the eonti matron vitli such Securities I)eposiiory of participation mu its

hook—entry system.

''Series'' or ''Ser'ite ol' Bonds shall riie:um such Bonds ltich have been authenticated and
delivered on om iginal issu,tnce in a sumnnltaiieotis Ii ansactiomm and designated as a single Series by the
Channiarm and any Bonds mfem'eafier atrtlmentieameti and delivered ni lietr of' or ni suhstittition for (btit not to

-4-



refund) such Bonds as herein provided, regardless of variations in matunty, interest rate or ether
provisions

'Taxable Bonds" shall mean Bonds of a Series designated as Series 200613 (Taxable Senes) by
the Chairman in accordance with Section 9.03 herem.

Section 2.02. Construction. In this Ordinance, unless the context otherwise requires:

(a) Articles and Sections referred to by number shall mean the corFesponding Articles and
Sections of this Ordinance.

(b) The terms "hereby", "hereof", "hereto", 'herein", "hereunder" and any similar terms refer
to this Ordinance, and the term "hereafter" shall mean after, and the term "heretofore" shall mean before,
the date of adoption of this Ordinance.

(c) Words of the masculine gender shall mean and include correlative words of the female and
neuter genders, and words importing the singular number shall mean arid include the plural number and
vice versa.

(tI) Any Fiduciary shall be deemed to hold an Authorized Investment in which money is
invested pursuant to the provisions of this Ordaiwice, even though such Autlorized Investment is
evidenced only hy a hook entry or similar record of investment

* * * *

-3-



ART1C[.E Ill

TSSUANCF OF BONDS

Section 3.0!. Orderinn the Issuance of Bonds. Pursuant to the prr visions of the Enabling Act.
and fbi the purpose of obtaining funds to deFray the costs of the Project desci-ibed iii Section 1 03 her eeL
there sI tall be issued not more than Thirteen Million Dollars (S I 3.000.000) or general 01)1 igation bonds of
the County. ii ic final nnount to he detenm ned by the Chairman w t h the ad vice of bond counsel. The
Bonds shall be issued in no more titan two Series, the first designated as ''Series 2(XYA '' If the issuance of
a second Series, the interest upon which will not he excludable from gross i nconie for federal income tax
purposes, is determined by the Chairman, ith the advice of bond cotinsel. to be in the best inter ests of the
County, such second series shall be designated as 'Series 200GB (Ta'cabie 5cr es).'

Section 3.02. lhrte Maturity of Bonds. A Senes of Bonds shall be dated as of the first (lay of
tire rrrorrtli ni winch tIre Bonds of such Senes are delivered or strch other (late as shah be determined by the
Clizirriniari wrrh the advice of bond counsel. The Chairman is further rtrtltorrz.ed to deterirnine the nitaturity
schedule fIr each Series of Bonds issued hereunder, provided, however, that lie final mattrrity of the
Bonds shall riot x'ctrr riot less than 5 nor more than 15 yeats horn the dated date thereoll Inrerest orr the
Bonds shall he payable on February I, 2007. and semianntrally thereafter on I'ebrirary I arid Angtrst I of
e.rch year trnti I payment of the principal thereof.

Section 3.03. Interest Ratest Payment of Interest. Tire Bonds of a Series shall hear such rate
oi rates of rnterest as shall at the sale of such Bonds reFlect the lowest ncr i riterest cost to the Cotinty
calcttlated in the manner, and strhj ect to the conditions. prcscirhed iii the Notice of Sale attached hereto as
E\htibit ''C'' The Bonds shall be authenticated on such dates as they shall. in each case, he delivered The
Bonds shall bear interest 'corn the Fehrtrarv 1 or the August I to which r rtter est has been paid next
preceding the attthentication date thereof, unless the authentication (late thereof is a February I or a August

iii which case. from stich authentication date, or From the February I 01 tue .'\ugust I to which interest
has last been paid. oi if dated prior to February 1. 2007, rhcn from the original issue date of stich Bonds
The i at crest to he pm d on any Fehrtrarv 1 or A nan St I shall be paid to the Pci son in whose n anie such B ( md
is regrstered at the close of business on the Record Date ne.\t preceding such h7ebi tiar y I or August I

Section 3.4)4. lhrnk-Entrv System. The Bonds will initially be rssued tinder the UIC Book—
liittrv Only Systerit in ftrl!y registered form, registered ni the riariie of Cede & Co. as the registered
owner and securities depositor y nominee of The Depository 'frtist Coriiptiiiv, New York, New York
(''DTC''), which will act as i iritial sectrrrtres depository for tire Bonds. Not witlistairdi rig anything to the
cotil raiy lierei n, so long as die Bonds are being held tnider a book—entry svsteiir of a securities
(le1iosl tory, transfers of beneficial ownership of tire Bonds will lie eflecied ptirstiaiit to rules and
Pr oceduries established by such securities depository. D'i'C and airy sud cessor securities depositories are
bet ci iiafrer referred to as the 'Securities Depository '' Cede & Co. and successor seeurilies depository
nonic ices are hereinafter referred tO as the ''Securities Deposiiorv Nonintee

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordi lance, as long as a hook—cut ry system
is iii effect for the Bontis, the Securities Depository Nominee will lie recognized as the holder of the
Bonds for the purposes of (i) pa) ing the principal, interest and r'edeirtpt ion premi nan. if inn', on such
Bonds. (ii) if Bondsare to he redeemed in part, selecting the portions ci such Bonds to he redeemed. (iii)
giving any notice permitted or required to be given to Bondholders tinder tlt is ordinance, (iv) registering
the it ans fet of Bonds, arid (v) requestine any consent or other rci ion to he taken by the holders of such
Bonds, and For all other purposes whatsoever, and the Cotinty shill not he afFected by any notice to the
c'oniti rry

-6-



(c) The County shall not have any responsibility or obligation to any participant, ally
beneficial owner or any other person claiming a beneficial ownership in any Bonds which are registered
to a Securities Depository Nominee under or through the Securities Depository with respect to any action
taken by the Securities Depository as holder of such Bonds.

(d) The County shall pay all principal, interest and redemption premium, if ally, on Bonds
issued under a book-entry system only to the Securities Depository or the Securities Depository
Nominee, as the case may be, for such Bonds, and all such payments shall be valid and effectual to fully
satisfy and discharge the obligations with respect to the principal of and redemption premium, if any.
and interest on such Bonds

(e) In the event that the County determines that it is in the best interest of the County to
tliscontinue the book-entry system of transfer for the Bonds, or that the interests of the beneficial owners
of the Bonds may be adversely affected if the book-entry system is continued, then the County shall
notify the Securities Depository of such detennination. In such event, the Registrar and Paying Agent
shall authenticate, register and deliver physical certificates for the Bonds in exchange for the Bonds
registered in the name of the Securities Depository Nominee.

(f) Iii the event that the Securities Depository for the Bonds discontinues providing its
services, the County shall either engage the services of another Secunties Depository or arrange with a
Registrar and Paying Agent for the delivery of physical certificates in the manner described in (e) above.

(g) In connection with any notice or other communication to be provided to the holders of
Bonds by the County or by the Registrar and Paying Agent with resct to any consent or other action to
he taken by the holders of Bonds, the County or the Registrar and Paying Agent, as the case may be,
shall establish a record date for such consent or other action and give the Securities Depository Nominee
notice of such record date not less than 15 days in advance of such record date to the extent possible.

(h) At the closing of the Bonds and the delivery of the same to the purchaser thereof
through the facilities of DTC, the Paying Agent and Registrar may maintain custody of Bond certificates
on behalf of DTC in accordance with DTC's "FAST Closing" procedures.

0) For as long as the Bonds are being held under a book-entry system of a securities
depository, the County shall remit to the Paying Agent and Registrar by 100 p.m. New York time on
each Bond Payment Date funds for all principal and interest payments due thereupon, or at such earlier
time as required by the Paying Agent and Registrar to guarantee that DTC or successor Securities
Depository will receive payment in same-day funds by 2:30 p.m. New York time on such Bond Payment
Dale. In addition, automated payment details receipt shall be provided by the Paying Agent by 12:00
nooii New York time of each Bond Payment Date for interest payments and by 2:30 p.m. New York time
br redemption and corporate action payments.

Section 3.05. Medium of Pament; Form and Denomination of Bonds Place of Payment of
Pnncipal. (a) The Bonds shall lxi payable as to Principal Installment and interest at the rates per annum
determined in the manner prescribed by Section 3.03 hereof (on the basis of a three hundred and sixty-day
year of twelve (12) tlurty-day months) in any coin or cwrency of the United States of America which at the
tune of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.

(b) The Bonds shall be issued in the form of fully registered Bonds. The Bonds shall be
issued in the denomination of $5,fXX) or any whole multiple theieof, not exceeding the principal amount of
the Bonds maturing in such year. Tile Bonds of each Series shall he numbered from 1 upwards in such
fashion as to maintain a proper record thereof.



(c) The Principal Iristal I went of all Bonds shall be payable at tire Corporate Trust Office of the
Paying Agent and payment of the i merest on each Bond shall he made by the Paying Agent to the Person
tppeai ing on each Record Date on the registration books of the County, which books shall be held by the
Registrar as provided in Section 3.09 hereof, as the registered owner thereof, by check or draft niailed to
such registered owner at his address as it appears on stich registration books in sufficient ti rile to reach srrch
registered owner on the Bond Payment Date. Payirient of the Pr iricipal Irstallment of all Bonds shall he
trade upon the presentation and Sn Tender for cancellation of s rich Bonds as the sruiie shal hecor ne (lire and

payable.

Section 3.06. A2reeriient to Maintain Retistrar arid Paving .4ent. As long as any of the
13 onds i cumin Outstandr iig there shall he a Registrar and a Paving Agent each of v hich mar nt ar ii Corpon ate
frost Offices where (r) the Bonds rrrav he presented for regrstr atioir of transfers and exchanges, (ii) notices
arid demands to or upon the County in respect of the Bonds nria' he served, and (iii) the Bonds may be
pr esenited for payment, exchange and tr anisfer. lie County Ad runt str'aior is authorized to select a Ii rraricial
rristitutron maintaining cor ixu ate trust of hces to seive as Registrar arid Pa) ing Agent. The iristitirt (iii 5(1
chosen slial I exercise both tire functions of the Paying Agent arid the Registrar for each Series oh' Bonds
isstrcd hereunder.

Section 3.07. Exeunt ion and .4 uthentication. (a) 'I 'lie I lorrds shall be exectited n t lie moire
and on behalf of the Count' by the signature of an Authorized Officer, with its corporate seal impressed,
i iriprmnted or otherwise reproduced thereon. and attested by the signature of the Clerk of [lie Council or
orher Atithorized Officer (otliei than the officer executing stieh h3onds). The signatures of the Authorized
Officers and/or the Clerk of the Council ma)' be manual or facsimile signatures. Bonds of a Series hearing
the signatun e of any Person wI ro shall have been such an Authorized 0 flicen at the ti tue s tich Bonds were
so executed shall hind the Coin ny notwithstanding tire Pie t ti tat lie or she tiiay have ceased to be such
Atrthorized Officer prior to the ruiberittcatiori and delivery of such Bonds or was not such Authorized
Officer at the dttte of tire arrtlient eat ion and delivery of strch i3orrds

(h) No Bond shall he s'ah id or obligatory for airy pt iiose or shall be entitled to airy right or
benefit hereunder trriless there slial I be endorsed on stich Bond a certificate of atntlienticatron in the ibnur set
lot th in this Ordinance. duly executed by the manual signattire of the Registrar arid stich cciii freate of
artthenticati on upon arm' 13o rid executed cii behalf of the Con ii iv shall be conclusive evidence that the B cud
so authetiticated has been titrls' issued hereunder and that the Holder thereof is entitled to the benefit of the
tertiis and pros is] ens of this Ord ni anrce.

Section 3.08. Exchran2e of Bonds. Bonds, upon surrender thereof at the office of the Registrar
with a written irustrunient of tr arusfer satisfactory to the Registr:u'. duly executed by the register ccl Holder or
lii s duly authorized attorney. rulay, at the option of the registered 1-lolder theieof. be exchanged for air equal
aggregate principal amount of l3onds in authorized detioiiiinatioiis of the sane Senes, interest rate,
redemption provi sioris. if airy, and maturity. So long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding, the County
shall make all necessary provisions to permit the exciratige of Bonds at the Corporate Trust Office of the

Registrar.

Section 3.09. Transferability and Registry. .\ll l3orids shall at tdl times, when tire same are
Outstanditig. he parable. both as to Pnncipal Installment and inter est to a Pet son, and shall be ti .tns fei able.
only in accordance with the provisions for registration and ti ansfer contained in this Ordinu cc and iii the
i3orids. So long as any of [lie Booths reirratti Outstanding, the County shall iiiaintatri arid keep, at the Oftke
of tire Registru', books for tire regrsu'ation and transfer of Bonds, and, upon presentation thereof for such
purpose at the Corporate 'frost Office of the Registrar, the County shall register or cause to lie registered
therein, arrd permit to be t n inrisfened thereoti, tinder such reasonable regulations as it or the Registrar ria'

.3-



prescnbe, any Bond, except that under no circumstances shall any Bond be registered or transfeiTed to
bearer. So long as any of the Bonds remain Outstanding, the County shall make ll necessary provisions to
permit the transfer of Bonds at the Corporate Trust Office of the Registrar

Section 3.10. Transfer of Bonds. Each Bond shall be transferable only upon the books of the
County, which shall be kept for such purpose at the Corporate Trust Office of the Registrar which shall be
maintained for such purpose by the Registrar, upon presentation and surrender thereof by the Holder of
such Bond in person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing, together with a written instrument of
transfer satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by the registered Holder or his duly authorized attorney.
Upon surrcnder for transfer of any such Bond, the County shall execute arid the Registrar shall authenticate
and deliver, in the name of the Person who is the transferee, one or more new Bonds of the same Series,
aggregate principal amount, redemption provisions, if any, and maturity arid rate of intetest as the
surrendered Bond. All action taken by the Registrar pursuant to this Section shaH be deemed to be the
action of the County.

Section 3.11. Regulations with Respect to Exchanges and Transfers. All Bonds surrendered
in any exchanges or transfers shall forthwith be canceled by the Registrar. For each such exchange or
transfer of Bonds, the County or the Registrar may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it or them for any
tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer, which
sum or sums shall be paid by the Holder requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to
the exercise of the privilege or making such exchange or transfer. The County shall not be obligated to (i)
issue, exchtuige or transfer any Bond during the 15 days next preceding any Bond Payment Date applicable
thereto, (ii) issue, exchange or transfer any Bond of a Series during a penod beginning at the opening of
business 15 days next preceding any selection of Bonds of such Series to be redeemed and ending at the
close of business on the date of the mailing of notice of such redemption, or (iii) transfer or exchange any
Bonds called or being called for redemption in whole or in part.

Section 3.12. Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost and Stolen Bonds. (a) If any mutilated Bond is
surrendered to the Registrar and the Registrar or the County receive evidence to their satisfaction of the
destruction, loss or theft of any Bond, and there is delivered to the Registrar, or the County such sccunty or
indemnity as may be required by them to save each of them harmless, then, in the absence of notice that
such Bond has been acquired by a bona jide purchaser, the County shall execute, and upon Cotinty request,
the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, in exchange for any such mutilated Bond or in lieu oF any such
destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, a new Bond of like Series, tenor principal amount and redemption
provisions, bearing a number unlike that of a Bond contemporaneously Outstanding. The Registrar shall
thereupon cancel any such mutilated Bond so surrendered. In case any such mutilated, destroyed, lost or
stolen Bond has become or is about to become due and payable, the County in its discretion may, instead of
issuing a new Bond, pay such Bond.

(b) Upon the issuance of any new Bond under this Section 3.12, the County may require the
payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax, fee or other governmental charge that may be imposed in
relation thereto and any other expenses, including counsel fees or other fees, of the County or the Registrar
connected therewith.

(c) Each new Bond issued pursuant to tIns Section in lieu of any destroyed, lost or stolen
Bond, shall constitute an additional contractual obligation of the County, whether or not the destroyed, lost
or stolen Bond shall at any time be enforceable by anyone, and shall be entitled to all the benefits hereof
equally and proportionately with any and all other Bonds duly issued pursuant to this Ordinance. All
Bcnds shall be held and owed upon the express condition that the foregoing provisions are exclusive with
respect to the replacement or payment of mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bonds and shall preclude (to

-9-



the cx lei it law ui) all other rights or remedies wit Ii respect to the replacet icr it or payment of iiiul I at ed,

destroyed, lost or stolen Bonds or securities.

Sect ion 3.13. Holder As Owner of Bond. The County. the Registrar and any Paying Agent
may [real die Holder of any Bond as the absolute owner thereof, whetFet such Bond shall be over due or
not, for the purpose or receiving payment of, or on account of, the Principal Installment of and interest on
such Bond arid lhr all other purposes, arid payment of tire Principal Install n ieut and interest shall be made
only to, or tipon the order of, such Holder. All payments to stich 1-lolder shall be valid and etfecltmal to
satisfy and discharge the liabi litv tipon such Bond to the extent of the sum i ir sunis so paid. arid neither the
County nor any Paying Age at shall be affected by arty a it ice to the contrary

Sect ion 3. 14. Cancel hit ion of Bonds. The Registrar shall destroy all Bonds sun en tIered to ii
for cancel latiori arid shall deliver a certi [kate to that effect to the County. No such Bonds shal be deenied
Outstanding under this Ordinance arid no Bonds shall he issued in lieu thereof

Section 3.15. Conditions Relating to Naming of Interest Rates. The Bonds of a Series shall
bear such rate or rates of interest as shall at the sale of such Bonds reflect the lowest net interest cost lo the
Coutity calculated in the manner her ernafter prescribed in this Secuori 3 15 at a price of not less than par
plus accrued niterest to the date (if deli very, but.

(a) all Bonds of the suiie Series and mntiltirniy shall bear the suurie rate of interest;

(b) no rate of r titer est named for a Series shall be more than i per centum (2%) lii pl icr than
I lie lowest rate of i rite rest so nariied;

(cj eac Ii i riterest rate named shall he a mu It p Ic of I /8th or 1/20th of one per cent no (I %). and

(d) an premititu offered must he paid ui cash as a part of the put chase price.

For the ptrrpose of delerrnirimng lowest net interest cost as to a Series. the aggregate of interest on
all Bonds of such Series frorii their original isstre dale trntr their respective maturities, less any strrii natiicd
by way of preririurn for stich Series, shall he deterruined on each bid arid i lie sr nra1 lest amount to be paid by
the Cotmty shall reflect lowest nei interest cost.

Section 3.16. Payments Due on Saturdays, Sundays and I loIida s. Tn any ease s her e the
Bond Paynireut Dale for a Series of Bonds shall be a Sattirdav or Sunday or shall be. at the place designated
for payn rieril , a legal holiday or a day on which bank i rig institutions are authorized by law to close, then
payriient of interest on or Principal lristallnient of the Bonds of such Series riced riot be made oil such date
btrt tiiay be n rade on I lie next su cceedi rig business day not a Sattrrday, S u niday or a legal hol klay or a day
tipon which banking instittitions are authorized by law to close, with the sanie force atid effect as if itiade
on the Bout! Payment Date and no interest shall accrue br the period after stichi date.

Sect ion 3.17. 'Fax Exenl ption in Soot Ii Carolina. Both the Principal In stallnie nt and i at crest
on the I3onds shall be exeriipt l'nonii all State. Cotinty. Municipal, School. Cotmuty. and all other taxes or
assessments of the State of Sotith Carolina, direct or indirect, general or special, whether imposed for the
purpose of general revenue or otherwise, except inheritance, estate tuid transfer taxes. btit the interest (in the
Bonds may lie includable for cci miii franchise fees or taxes

Section 3.18. Order of lax Levy to Pay Principal and Interest of Bonds. For the pavnient of
the Principal Installment and inter est on the Bonds as the same respectively niattire and for the ci cation of
such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor, the full faith, credit and taxing power of the Cotirity are
hereby irrevocably pledged, and t I iere shall he levied ann u ally by' the Audi t ir of Lexington C iii nt>, arid
collected by' t lie Treasurer of I .ex i ngton County, iii I lie same man icr as eotmnty taxes are levied arid

- IC -



collected, a tax on all taxable property in said County, sufficient to pay the Principal Installment and
interest on such Bonds as they respectively mature, and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary
therefor.

Section 3.19. Notice to Auditor and Treasurer to Levy Tax. The Auditor and Treasurer of
Lexington County, South Carolina, shall be notified of the issuance of any Bonds pursuant to this
Ordinance and directed to levy and collect, respectively, upon all taxable property in said County an annual
tax sufficient to meet the payment of the Principal Installments and interest on said Bonds, as the same
respectively mature, and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary therefor

Section 3.20. Form of Bonds. The form of the Bonds, and registration provisions to be
endorsed thereon shall be substantially as set forth in Exhibit "B" attached herelo and made a part of this
Ordinance.

Section 3.21. Bond Anticipation Notes. The Chairman may determine to issue one or more
series of notes in anticipation of the issuance of the Bonds ("BANs") in accordance with this Section 3.21.
The aggregate principal amount of BANs issued hereunder shall not exceed $12,500,000.

(a) The BANs shall be dated and bear interest from the date of deiery thereof, payable upon
the stated maturity thereof and shall mature on such date as selected by the County Administrator, without
pnvilege of prepayment. The BANs may be issued in denominations of $5,000 and integral multiples
thereof. The BANs shall be in form substantially similar to that appearing as Exhibit "E" hereto, signed by
an Authorized Officer, and the seal of the County shall be impressed thereon, attested by the signature of
an Authorized Officer, other than the Authorized Officer who signed the BANs. An Authorized Office
shall serve as registrar of the Notes (the "Note Registrar") and the County Treasurer of the County shall
serve as paying agent of the Notes (the "Note Paying Agent"). In the event the BANs are no longer held in
book-entry-only form and no other securities depository is named the County shall appoint a financial
institution maintaining corporate trust offices to serve as Registrar/Paying Agent for the BANs.

(b) The BANs shall be initially issued under the DTC Book-Entry-Only System in the fonn of
a single fully registered bond anticipation note, registered in the name of Cede & Co. as the registered
owner and nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York ("DTC"), which will act as
securities depository for the BANs.

(i) Transfers of beneficial ownership of the BANs will be effected pursuant to rules
and procedures established by such securities depository. The initial securities depository for the
BANs will be DTC. DTC and any successor securities depositories are hereinafter referred to as
the "Securities Depository." The BANs shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as the
initial securities depository nominee for the BANs. Cede & Co. and successor securities
depository nominees are hereinafter referred to as the "Securities Depository Nominee."

(ii) As long as a hook-entiy system is in effect for the BANs, the Securities
Depository Nominee will be recognized as the holder of the BANs for the purposes of (a) paying
the principal and interest on the BANs at the maturity thereof, (a) giving any notice permitted or
required to be given to beneficial owners of the BANs under this Ordinance, (c) registering the
transfer of beneficial ownership of the BANs, and (d) requesting any consent or other action to be
taken by the holders of the BANs, and for all other purposes whatsoever, and the County shall not
be affected by any notice to the contrary.

(iii) The County shall not have any responsibility or obligation to any participant, any
beneficial owner or any other person claiming a beneficial ownership in the BANs when registered

-11-



to a Securities Depository Nominee undei or though the Securities Depository with respect to any
action taken by the Securities Depository as holder of the BANS.

(iv) ]3oth the principal of and interest on the BANs shall be payable in any coin or
currency of the United States of America which is, at Lhe time of payment, legal tender for public
and private debts.

(c) Bids for the purchase of the BANs shall be solicited pursnant to a pielinunary offenng
memorandum with an accompanying notice of sale. Bids may be submitted in person and by electronic
bidding system and facsimile transmission. The Chairman or, in his absence, the Vice Chairman, is
authorized to award the BANs to the bidder offenng to purchase the BANs at the lowest net interest cost to
the Cotinty at a price of not less than par. Net interest cost will be determined by deducting premium, if
any, from the interest on the BANs, until natunty

(d) Proposals for the purchase of the BANs shall be accompanied by a good faith check in an
amowit determined by the County Adminisu-ator: provided, however, that bidders may ni
lieu of a good faith check submit a tinancitd surety bond in form satisfactory to the County
Admi n strator

(e) The County shall cause books (herein referred to as the "iegistry books") to he kept at the
offices of the Note Registrar, for the registration and transfer of the BANs. Upon
presentation tt its office for such purpose the Note Registrar shall register or transfèi, or
cause to he registered or transferred, on snch registry books, the BANs tinder such

reasonable regulations as die Note Registrar may prescribe.

(U Each BAN shall be transferable only upon the registry books of the County, which shall be
kept for such purpose at the principal office of the Note Registrar, by the registered owner
thereof in person or by his duly authorized attomey upon surrender thereof together with a
written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Note Registrar duly exectited by the
registered ovner or his duly atithorited attorney. Upon the transfer of any such BAN the
Note Registrar on behalf of the County shall issue in the name of the transferee a new fully
registered BAN or BANs, of the same aggregate pruicipal amount, interest rate and
maturity as the surrendered BA_N. Any BAN surrendered in exchange for a new registered
BAN pursuant to this Section shall be cancelletl by the Note Registrar.

(g) The County, the Note Registrar and the Note Paying Agent may deem or treat the person
in whose name any fully registered BAN shall be registered upon the registry hooks as the
absolute owner of such BAN, whether stich BAN shall he overdue or lint, for the purpose
of receiving payment of the principal of and interest on such BAN and for all other
purposes and all such payments so made to any such registered owner or upon hisorder

shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such BAN to the
extent of the sum or sums so paid. mid neither the County, the Note Registrar nor the Note
Paying Agent shall he affected by any notice to the contrary. In all cases in which the
privilege of transferring BANs is exercised, the County shall execute and the Note
Registrar shall authenticate and deliver BANs in accordance with the provisions of this
Ordinance. Neither thu County nor thu Note Registrar shall be obliged to make any such
transfer of BANs dunng the period beginning on the day after the fifteenth calendar day
preceding the maturity date thereoli

(h) In the event any BAN is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the County may execute a
new BAN of like date and clenoniination as that mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed;

12



provided that, in the case of any mutilated BAN, such mutilated BAN shall first be
surrendered to the County, and in the case of any lost, stolen or destroyed BAN, there shall
be first furnished to the County evidence of such loss, theft or destruction satisfactory to
the County, together with indemnity satisfactory to it; provided that, in the case of a holder
which is a bank or insurance company, the agreement of such bank or insurance company
to indemnify shall be sufficient In the event any such BAN shall have matured, instead of
issuing a duplicate BAN, the County may pay the same without surrender thereof. The
County may charge the holder of such BAN with its reasonable fees and expenses in this
connection.

(i) For the payment of the principal of and interest on the BANs as the same shall fall due, the
full faith, credit, resources and taxing power of the County shall be pledged. In addition
thereto, so much of the principal proceeds of the Bonds when issued shall and is hereby
directed to be applied, to the extent necessary, to the payment of the BANs; and, further,
the County covenants and irrevocably pledges to effect the issuance of the Bonds or, in the
alternative, to refund or renew outstanding BANs in order that the proceeds thereof will be
sufficient to provide for the retirement of any BANs issued pursuant hereto.

(j) The Board hereby authorizes the County Administrator to prepare, or cause to be
prepared, a Preliminary Offering Memorandum to be distributed physically or
electronically to prospective purchasers of the BANs together with the Notice of Sale.
The Board authorizes the County Administrator to designate the Preliminary Offering
Memorandum as 'near final" for purposes of Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities Exchange
Commission. The County Administrator is further authorized to complete or cause the
completion of the fmal form of the Offering Memorandum upon the sale of the BANs and
to provide the same to the purchaser of the BANs.

(k) The proceeds derived from the sale of the BANs issued pursuant to this Ordinance shall be
paid to the Treasurer of Lexington County, South Carolina to defray the such costs of the
Project and issuance costs as are applicable to the BAN. Pending the use of proceeds of
the BANs, the same shall be invested and reinvested by the Treasurer of Lexington
County, South Carolina, in such investments as are authorized by the Code of Laws of
South Carolina, 1976, as amended, with respect to funds of the counties of the State of
South Carolina. AlL earnings from such investments shall be applied to defray the cost of
the respective improvements for which the BANs were issued or to pay costs of issuance
associated with the BANs.

(1) The Council hereby authorizes Authorized Officers to execute any and all such documents
and instruments as may be necessary to effect the issuance of the BANs. All covenants
made and requirernent.s imposed in Section 9.03 and Section 904 pursuant to the Code
shall apply with equal force to any BANs issued hereunder. In that regard, the Chairman,
upon advice of bond counsel, is authorized to determine that interest on certain Notes is
not excludable from income for federal income tax purposes, and, in such case, shall
provide for the issuance of such Notes as taxable obligations. Such Notes shall bear a title
substantially similar to "Taxable General Obligation Bond Anticipation Note of 2006" or
other such year of issuance.

(m) All rnles. regulations, Ordinances and parts thereof, procedural or otherwise, in conflict
herewith or the proceedings authorizing the issuance of the BANs are, to the extent of
such conflict, hereby repealed and this Ordinance shall take effeci and be in full force from
and after its adoption.

- 13 -



ARTICLE IV

REI)EMPTION OR PURCHASE OF BONDS

Section 4.01. Bonds Subject to Redemption. All Bonds maturing subsequent to February 1,
2017, if any, shall be subject to redemption at the option of the County in whole or in part at any time on
and after February 1, 2017 at a tedemption price equal to the par amount of Bonds to be redeemed. In
the event less than all of the Bonds are to he redeemed, the Bonds shall be redeemed iii such Order of
matunties as shall he determined by the County. The Chairman may. upon the advice of bond counsel,
elect that Bonds of a Series Outstanding be subject to redemption beginning on a Bond Payment Date
which is earlier than February 1, 2017. The Chainnan may further elect that Bonds of a Series he subject
to redemption at redemption prices greater than par, but in no es eat greater than 102% of the principal
antount of Bonds to he redeenied.

Section 4.02. County's Election to Redeem. Tn the event that the County shall, in accordance
with the provisions of Section 4,01. elect to redeem Bonds, it shall give notice to the Registrar and Paying
Agent, of each optional redemption. Each such notice shall specify the date fixed for redemption and the
Bonds which aa-e to he redeemed. Such notice shall be given at least sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed
for redemption or such lesser number of days as shall he acceptable to the Registrar.

Section 4.03. Notice of Redemption. (a) When any Bonds are to be redeemed, the Registrar
shall give notice of the redemption of the Bonds in the name of the County specifying (t) the Bonds and
maturities to be redeemed; (ii) the redemption date; (iii) the redemption price; (iv) the Series, numbers and
other distinguishing marks of the Bonds to be redeemed unless all of the Bonds Outstanding are to he
redeemed; (v) the place or places where amounts clue upon such redemption will he payable; and (vi) in the
case of Bonds to be redeemed in part only, [lie respective poriions of the principal thereof to he redecitied.
Such notice shall further state that on such date theie shall become due and payable upon each Bond to he
redeemed the redemption price thereof, together with interest accrued to the redemption date, and that,
from and after such date, interest thereon shall cease to accrue. The Registrar shall mail by registered mail
a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, not less than thirty (30) days before the redemption date tothe

registered Holders of all Bonds or portions of Bonds which are to be redeemed at their addresses which
appear upon the registration hooks, but failure to so mail amy such notice to amy of such Holders shall not
affect the validity of the proceedings for the redemption of Bonds held by Flolders to whom written notice
has been mailed. The obligation of the Registrar to give the notice required by this Section 4 03 shall not
be condittoned upon the prior payment to the Paying Agent of money or the delivery to the Paying Agent
of Authorized Investments or Governnment Obligations sufficient to pay the redemption price of the Bonds
to which such notice relates or the interest thereon to the redemption date.

(b) Notice of redemption having been given as provided in subsection (a) hereof, the Bonds or
portions thereof so to he redeemed shall, on the date fixed for redemption, hecome dueand payable at the

redemption prtce specified theretn plus accrued tnterest to the redemption date, and upon presentation and

surrender thereof at the place specified in such notice, such Bonds or portions thereof shall be paid at the
redemption price, plus accrued interest to the redemption date. On and after the redemption date (unless
the County shall default in the payment of the redemption pnce and accrued interest), such Bonds shall
cease to hear interest, and such Bonds shall no longer be considered as Outstanding hereunder. If money
sufficient to pay the i-cdemption price and accmed interest has not been made available by the County to
the Paying Agent on the redemption date, stich Bonds shall conttnuc to bear interest until paid at the same
rate as they would have home, had they not been called for iedemption, until the same shall have been

paid.

-14-



Section 4.04. Selection by Reistrar of Bonds to Be Redeemed. (a) if less than all of the
Bonds of like maturity are to be redeemed, the particular Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall
he selected, not less than forty-five (45) days prior to the date fixed for redemption, by the Registrar by lot.

(b) In making such selection, the Registrar shall treat each Bond to be redeemed as
representing that number of Bonds of the lowest authorized denomination as is obtained by dividing the
principal amount of such Bond by such denomination, If any Bond is to be redeemed in part, the portion to
be so redeemed shall be in a principal amount of an authorized denomination. For so long as the Bonds are
held in book-entry only form, the selection of Bonds to be redeemed hereunder shall be in accordance
with the rules of the Securities Depository

(c) The Registrar shall promptly notify the County in writing of the Bonds so selected for
redemption.

Section 4.05. Deposit of Redemption Price. On or before any date fixed for redemption of any
Bonds, cash andlor a principal amount of non-callable Government Obligations maturing or redeemable at
the option of the Holder thereof not later than the date fixed for redemption which, together with income to
be earned on such Government Obligations prior to such date fixed for redemption, will be sufficient to
provide cash to pay the redemption price of and accrued interest on all Bonds or portions thereof which are
to be redeemed on such date, shall be deposited with the Paying Agent unless such amount shall have been
previously deposited with the Paying Agent.

Section 4.06. Partial Redemption of Bonds. In the event part but not all of a Bond
Outstanding shall be selected for redemption, upon presentation and surrender of such Bond by the Holder
thereof or his attorney duly authorized in writing (with, if the County or the Paying Agent so requires, due
endorsement by, or a wntten instrument of transfer in fonn satisfactory to the County and the Registrar
duly executed by, the Holder thereof or his attorney duly authorized in writing) to the Registrar, the County
shall execute and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver to or upon the order of such Holder, without
charge therefor, for the unredeemed portion of the principal amount of the Bond so surrendered, a Bond or
Bonds of any authorized denomination of 111cc tenor. Bonds so presented and surrendered shall be canceled
in accordance with Section 3.14 hereof.

Section 4.07. Purchases of Bonds Outstanding. Purchases of Bonds Outstanding may be
made by the County at any time with money available to it from any source Upon any such purchase the
County shall deliver such Bonds to the Registrar for cancellation.

* * * *

-15-



ARTICLE V

SALE OF BONDS; A1PROVAL
OF OFFICIAL STATEMENT

Section 5.01. Determination of Time to Receive Bids -- Form of Notice of Sale. Each Series
of Bonds shall he sold at public sale at a price of not less than par and accrued interest to the date of
delivery. Bids for the Bonds of a Senes shall be received until 12:00 Noon (local time) on a date or dates
to be selected by the Chairman. The Bonds shall he advertised for sale in THEBOND BUYER, a tiiiancial

journal published in the City of New York, or in TheState, and which shall appear at least once, not less
than seven (7) days before the date set for said sale. The fonii of the Notice of Sale shal he substantially' as
set forth in Exhibit "C'' attached hereto and the conditions of sale of the Bonds shall be as set forth in the
Notice of Sale; provided, however, that a summary notice of sale may be published in THE BOND BUYER

or The State.

Section 5.02. Award of Bonds. Unless all bids are re1ected, the award of the Bonds of a Series
shall be made by the Chairman, or, ui his absence, the Vice Chairman of the Council. following the receipt
of bids as provided in this Ordinance, to the bidder offering the lowest net interest cost therefor.

Section 5.03. Approval of Official Statement. The County Administrator is hereby authorized
to deem a preliminary Official Stateineiit to be "final'' within the meaning of Rule I 5(c)(2)—( 12) of the
United States Securities and Exchange Commission as of its date, and the Council hereby authonzes the
disiribution of such preliminary Official Statement, when so deemed final, to prospective bidders. Such
distribution lila)' be made in electronic Idnu or by way of printed documents. The Council ftulher
authod>'es and approves the distribution and delivery of a final Official Statement in print and in electronic
fornmt by' the successful bidders in connection with the reoffering and sale of the Bonds by' the successful
bidders.

*

- 6-



ARTICLE VI

DISPOSITION OF PROCEEDS OF SALE OF BONDS

Section 6.01. Disposition of Bond Proceeds Includinu I'eniporai-v Investments. The
proceeds den ved from the sale of a Series of Bonds issued pursuant to this Ordinance sha]l be paid to the
Treasurer of Lexington County. to be deposited in a Bond Account Fund for the County, and shall be
exjnded and made use of by the Council as follows:

(a) any accrued interest shall be applied to the payincin of the first installment of
interest to become due on such Series of Bonds;

(h) any premium shall be applied to the payment of the first installment of principal
of such Series of Bonds;

(c) he remaining proceeds shall be expended and made use of by the Council to
defray the cost of issuing such Series of Bonds and to defray those costs of the Project as described
in Section 103 hereof which are applicable to such Series. Pending the use of Bond proceeds, the
same shall be invested and reinvested by the Treasurer of Lexington County in Authorized
Investrirents. Subject to the obligation of the County to rebate certain investment earnings to the
United States Treasury in accordance with Section 148W of the Code, earnings from such
investments shall be applied, at the direction of the Council, either (I) to defray the cost of the
tmadertakings for wlflch the Bonds are issued and if not required for this purpose, then (2) to pay
the first inatunng installments of interest on the applicable Series of Bonds, and

(d) if any balance remarns, it shall be expended on County capital projects as shall be
authonzed by ordinance supplemental hereto or held by the Treasurer of Lexington County in a
special fund and used to effect the retirement of the applicable Senes of Ronds.

Neither the purchasers nor any 1-lolder of the Bonds shall be liable for the proper application of the
proceeds thereof.

* * * *

- 17 -



ARTICLE VII

DEFEASANCE OF BONDS

Section 7.4)!. Discharge of Ordinance .. Where and How Ihuiufs Are I )eeiued to Flave Been
Paid and I )et'eased. (a) I I' al I of die Bonds issued pursuant to this Or dinanee and ill interest thereon shall
have been paid and discharged, then the obligations of the County under this Or diururce and all other rights
granted hereby shall cease and determine The Bonds shall be dccii ied to ia ye been paid arid di schai ged
ssntlnii tire iireairing of this Article under any ol' the following circumstances. viz

(i) If the Paying Agent shall hold, at the stated niatnrities of the Bonds, in trust and
I revocably appropriated thereto, sufficient moneys for the payment ot the Principal Installment

and interest thereof; or

(ii) If default in the payment of the principal of the Bonds or the inter est thereon slial I
have occuri ed on any Bond Payment I)ate. arid thercall ci tender of pay men! sI all have been ii iade,
and at such time as the Paying Agent shall hold in trust and ii tevocably appropriated thereto
sufficient moneys for the payment thereof to the date of the tender of payment ; or

(i i ) If the Cottut v shall have deposited 'wi tli the l'ayi hg Agent, ni an in evocable trust,
either moneys in an amount which shall be stifficient, or direct general oh! igations of the United
States of Airierica. which are not subject to redemption by the issner p or to the date of maturity
thereof, as the case may he, the principal of and interest on which, when due, and withotit
reinvestment thereof. \vtll provide moneys, which. together with the itioticys, if any, deposited with
lie Pavi iii A gel' t at the same tune. shall be sufficient to pay. when due, the pd nci pal. iii terest. and

redemption premium or premiums. if any, due and to becotne dtie on tIre Bonds and prior to the
niatut ity date or dates of the Bonds, or, if the County slial I elect to redeeiti the Bonds prior to their
stated mat tin ties, and shall have irrevocably bound atid obl i g:ited itself to gi ' e notice of
i edeniption thereof in the manner provided in the fonii of the Bonds hei ciii. on and prior to the
rcdeniptton date oi dates of the Bonds, as the ease may he: or

(iv) If there shall have been deposited with the Paying Agent either moneys iti an
aniotnit wIde!, shall be sufficient, ot direct genera! obligations of the United States of America the
principal of and interest on which, when dtrc, will pi ovicle i none ys which, together vi th the
i honeys, if Zn iy, deposited with the Paving Agent at the sa inc t i ne. shall he sti I ft cien t to pay, when
dtie. rite principal and interest due and to become due on the Bonds on lie maturity thereof.

(b) iii addition to the abo e requirements of panttgrtiphs (t), (ii), (iii), and (iv). in ordei for this
Ord i nai ice to be diSc! iargcd. all other fees, exnses and cha rges ol tile I 'avi ng Agent have been paid infull

it lint tnne.

(e) Notwithstanding the satisfaction and discharge of this Ut d iiiance, the Paying Agent shall
eoii tin i ie to lie obligated to hold in trust any moneys or investments t hen lie! d by t lie Paving A gentfor the
payment of the principal of. prennttm. if any. and interest oii, the Bonds, to pay to the owners of Bonds the
tini rls so lie Id by the Pavi tig Agent as and when pa mclii hem ii nes rI tie.

(d) Any release under this Section shall he without prej ndiee to the rights of the Paying Agent
ta he paid reasonable compensation for all services rendered tinder thus Or dnianee atid all reasonable
expenses. charges. and other dtsbuisements and those of their respective attorneys. agents. and employees.
incurred oil and about die performance of the powers and duties under this Ordinance

- Is-



(e) Any moneys which at any time shall be deposited with the Paying Agent by or on behalf
of the County for the purpose of paying and discharging any Bonds of a Series shall be and are hereby
assigned, transferred, and set over to the Paying Agent in trust for the respective holders of the Bonds of
such Series, and the moneys shall be and are hereby irrevocably appropriated to the payment and discharge
thereof If, through lapse of time or otherwise, the holders of such Bonds shall no longer be entitled to
enforce payment of their obligations, then, in that event, it shall be the duty of the Paying Agent to transfer
the funds to the County.

(1) In the event any Bonds are not to be redeemed within the sixty (60) days next succeeding
the date the deposit required by this Section 7.Ol(a)(ili) or (iv) is made, the County shall give the Registrar
irrevocable instructions to mail, as soon as practicable by registered or certified mail, a notice to the owners
of the Bonds at the addresses shown on the registry books that (i) the deposit required by subparagraph
(a)(ili) or (a)(iv) of this Section 7.01 has been made with the Paythg Agent, (ii) the Bonds are deemed to
have been paid in accordance with this Section and stating the maturity or redemption dales upon which
moneys are to be available for the payment of the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on, the
Bonds, and (iii) stating whether the County has irrevocably waived any rights to redeem the Bonds, or any
of them, prior to the maturity or redemption dates set forth in the preceding clause (ii).

(g) The County covenants and agrees that any moneys which it sha[l deposit with the Paying
Agent shall be deemed to be deposited in accordance with, and subject to, the applicable provisions of this
Section, mid whenever it shall have elected to redeem Bonds, it will irrevocably bind and obligate itself to
give notice of redemption thereof, and will further authorize and empower the Registrar to cause notice of
redemption to be given in its name and on its behalf.

* * * *

- J9-



ARTICLE VIII

cor'cERrN1N(; TIlE FII)UCIARIES

Section 8.01. Fiduciary; Appointment and Acceptance of Duties. A financial institution
chosen to act as Paying Agent and Registrar hereunder shall accept the duties and trusts imposed upon it by
this Ordinance and shall agree in writing to perform such trusts but only upon the terms and conditions set
forth in this Article Vifi. Similarly, each financial institution appointed as a successor Registrar or as a
successor Paying Agent shall signify its acceptance of the duties and trusts unposed by this Ordinance by a

written acceptance.

Section 8.02. Responsibilities of Fiduciaries. 'l'he recitals of fact herein and in the Bonds
contained shall be taken as the statements of the County and no Fiduciary assumes any responsibility for
the correctness of the same except in respect of the authentication certificate of the Registrar endorsed on
the Bonds. No Fiduciary makes any representations as to the validity or sufficiency of this Ordinance or of
any Bonds or as to the seeunty afforded by this Ordinance, and no Fiduciary shall incur any liability' iii
respect thereof No Fiduciary shall he under any responsibility or duty' with respect to the application of
any moneys paid to any other Fidtrciary No Fiduciary' shall he under any obligation or duty to perform
any act which would involve it in expense or liability or to institute or defend any suit in respect hereof or
to advance any of its own moneys, unless indeninified to its reasonahle satisfaction. No Fiduciruy shall he
liable in connection with the performance of its duties hereunder except for its own negligence or willful
rniscondtict

Section 8.03. Evidence on Which Fiduciaries May Act. (a) Each Fidticiary. upon receipt of
any notice, resoltition, request, consent order, certificate, report, opinion, bond, or other paper or document
furnished to it purstiant to any' provision of this Ordinance, shall examine stich insti timent to detenviine
whether it confoniis to the requirements of this Ordinance and shall be protected in acting upon any such
instrument believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by' the propei party or parties.
Each Fiduciary may constilt with counsel, who iiiay or may not he of counsel to the County, and the
opinion of such counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection in respect of any action
taken or suffered by' it tinder this Ordinance in good faith and in accordance therewith.

(h) Whenever any Fiduciary shall deem it necessary or desirable that a matter to be piD\'ed or
established prior to taking or suffering any action under this Ordinance, such matter (unless other evidence
in respect thereof be therein specifically prescribed) may he deemed to be conclusively proved and
established by a certificate of an Authorized Officer, and such certificate shall be full warrant for any action
taken or suffered in good faith under the provisions of this Ordinance upon the faith thereof: but in its
discretion the Fiduciary may in lieti thereof accept other evidence of such fact or matter or may reqture
such further or additional evidence as to it may deem reasonable.

(c) Except as othenvise expressly provided in this Ordinance any request. order, notice or
other direction required or permitted to be fumished pursuant to an)' provision thereof by the County to any
Fiduciary shall he sufficiently executed if executed in the name of the County by an Authonzed Officer

- 20 -



Section 8.04. Compensation. Ilie County shall pay to each Fidt]ciary from time to time
reasonable compensation based on the then standard fee schedule of the Fiduciary for all services rendered
under this Ordinance, and also all reasonable expenses, charges, counsel fees and other disbursements,
including those of its attorneys, agents, and employees, incurred in and about the performance of their
powers and duties under this Ordinance; provided, however, that any specific agreement between the
County and a Fiduciary with respect to (he compensation of such Fiduciary shall control the compensation
to be paid to such Fiduciary. Subject to the provisions of Section 802 hereof, the Cotnity further agrees to
indemnify mid save each Fiduciary harmless against any liabilities which it may incur in the exercise and
performance of its powers and duties hereunder and which me not due to its negligence or willful
misconduct.

Section 8.95. Certain Permitted Acts. Any l-'idticiaiy may become thc owner or undei'riter
of any Bonds, notes or other obligations of the County or conduct any banking activities with respect to the
County, with the same nghts it would have if it were not a Fiduciary To the extent permitted by law, any
Fiduciary may act as depositary for, and pennit any of its officers or directors to effect or aid in any
reorganization growing out of the enforcement of the Bonds or this Ordinance.

Section 8.06. Resignation of Any Fiduciary. Any Fiduciary may at any time resign and be
discharged of the duties and obligations created by this Ordinance by giving not less than sixty (60) days'
written notice to the County and not less than thirty (30) days' written notice to the Holders of the Bonds as
established by the books of registration prior to the next succeeding Bond Payment Date and such
resignation shall take effect upon the date specified in such notice unless previously a successor shall have
been appointed by the County pursuant to Section 808 hereof in which event such resignation shall take
effect immediately on the appointment of such successor. In no event, however, shall such a resignation
take effect until a successor has been appointed.

Section 8.07. Remoyal of Fiduciary. Any Fiduciary may he removed at any time by an
instrument or concurrent instruments in writing, filed with the County and such Fiduciary, and signed by
the Bondholders representing a majority in pnncipal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding or their
attorneys in fact duly authorized, excluding any Bonds hcld by or for the account of the County.

Section 8.08. Appointment of Successor Fiduciaries. In case any Fiduciary hereunder shall
resign or be removed, or he dissolved, or shall be in the course of dissolution or liquidation, or otherwise
become incapable or acting hereunder, or in case it shall be taken under the control of any public officer or
officers, or of a receiver appointed by a court, a successor shall be appointed by the County. Every such
Fiduciary appointed pursuant to the provisions of this Section shall be a trust company or bank organized
under the laws of the United States of Atnerica or any state thereof and which is in good standing, within or
ouLside the State of South Carolina, having a stockholders' equity of not less than $50,000.000 if there be
such an institution willing, qualified and able to accept the trusts upon reasonable and customary terms.

If in a proper ease no appointment of a successor Fiduciary shall be made by the County pursuant
to the foregoing provisions of this Section within forty-Five (45) days after any Fiduciary shall have given
to the County written notice as provided in Section 8.06 hereof or after a vacancy in the office of such
Fiduciary shall have oceutTed by reason of its tenioval Of inability to act, the former Fiduciary or any
Bondholder may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a successor. Said court may
thereupon, after such notice, if any, as such court may deem proper, appoint a successor.

Section 8.09. Transfer of Ri2lils and Property to Successor. Any successor Fiduciary
appointed under this Ordinance shall execute, acknowledge mid deliver to its predecessor, and also to the
County, an instrument accepting such appointment, and thereupon such successor, without any further act,
deed or conveyance, shall become fully vested with all moneys, estates, properties, rights, powers, duties

- 2t -



and obligations of such predecessor Fiduciary, with like effect as ii originally named iii such capacity; but

the Fiduciary ceasing to act shal nevertheless, on the wi ittcn request of the County, or of the successor,

execute, acknowledge and deli 'er such nsti u I nents of ccii veyan cc a' id fri i Wet ass nra nec tnt1 do sucl othet
things as may reasonably he required for more fully and cci tai ily vest i hg and conlin ni ng in stich stiecessot
all the right, title and interest of the predecessor Fiduciary in and to any property held by it tinder this
Orcli nanee, and shall pay over, assign and dcli yen to the sticcessor Fiduciary ,iny n lones' or oilier p operty
subject to the trusts and conditions heretn set foi th Should any riced, conveyance or nistrrniient in wntmg
from the Cotinty be reqtnred by such sticcessor Fiduciary or nion c [tilly and cci tai lily vesting in and
conlimiing to such sticeessor any such estates, rights, powers and duties, any and al such deeds.
conveyances and instruments in writing shall, on nequest. and so ai as iiiay be authorized by law, be
executed, acknowledged and delivered by the County Any such si iccessor FrI lie!at y slid I prot upt I y tot i fv

lie Paying Agent and depos 'lanes, if any. of, is appoi n uiieii as F i dtic I ary

Section 8.10. Mer2er or Consolidation. Any cc inpan y iii to winch any I icli ci mv n lay be
merged or converted or with In cli it mae he consul i dated 01 any con ipan y lest,] Ii ng In o'i i au y n terger,

conversion or consolidation to which it iliac be party or any company to v Inch any Fidticiary nay sell or
transfer all or substantially all of its corpoiate titist business, provided such company shall he a bank or
trust company organized under the laws of any state of the United States oi a national banking association,
and shall be authorized by law to perfonu all the duties imposed upon it by this Ordntiunce. shall he the
successor to such Flduciar\' without the execution or filing of IIi\ paper or die pert orunance of any fciu ther
act.

Section 8.11. Adoption of Atithentication. In case any of the Bonds contemplated un be isstied
under this Ordinance shall have been atithcnticated but not dcli veu ed. any successor Registrar utiac adapt
the certificate of authentication of any predecessor Registrar so acitlicnticating such Bonds and deliver stich
Bonds so authenticated. In case any such Bonds shall not have been authenticated, auiv stir cessor Registi ar
may atithenticate stich Bonds in the name of the predecessor Registrar or in the name of the successor
Registrar. and in all such cases such certificate shall he of full l'oi cc and effect

* *

- -



ARTICLE LX

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 9.01. Failure to Present Bonds. Anything in this Ordinance to the contrary
notwithstanding, any money held by the Paying Agent in trust for the payment and discharge of any of the
Bonds, or the interest thereon, which remains unclaimed for such period of time, after the date when such
Bonds have become due and payable, that the Holdcr thcreof shall no longer be able to enforce the
payment thereof, the Paying Agent shall at the wnttcn rcqucst of the County pay such money to the County
as its absolute property and free from trust, and the Paying Agent shall thereupon be released and
discharged with respect thereto and the Bondholders shall look only to the County for the payment of such
Bonds; provided, however, the Paying Agent shall forward to the County all moneys which remain
unclaimed during a period five (5) years from a Bond Payment Date, provided, however, that before being
required to make any such payment to the County, the Paying Agent, at the expense of the County, may
conduct such investigations as may in the opinion of the Paying Agent be necessary to locate the Holders
of those who would take if the Holder shall have died.

Section 9.02. Holding of Public Hearing and Notice Thereof. Pursuant to the provisions of
Section 4-9-130 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, a public hearing, after giving
reasonable notice, shall be conducted prior to the third and final reading of this Ordinance by the Council.
In accordance with this provision, a public hearing shall be conducted and due notice shall be provided all
as required by said Section 4-9-130. The form of the notice to be published, with such changes as may be
approved by the County Administrator, is attached hereto as Exhibit 'A".

Section 9.03. Tax Laws Covenants. The Council hereby covenants and agrees that it will
comply with the requirements of the Code, compliance with which is required in order that interest on the
Bonds, other than Taxable Bonds. be and remain excludable from the gross income of the Holders for
Federal income tax purposes, including, but not limited to, the obligation to rebate certain investment
earnings to the United States Treasury. The Council further covenants to tile Internal Revenue Service
form 8038-G at the time and in the place reqnired therefor under the Code. Prior to the issuance of any
Bonds, the Chairman will consult with bond counsel, and designate as Series 2006B (Taxable Series) any
Bonds to be issued for purposes inconsistent with the private activity limitations of the Code described in
Section 9.04 herein. The Chairman of Council, with the advice of bond counsel, is authorized to designate
the Bonds, other than the Taxable Bonds, as "qualified Lax-exempt obligations" pursuant to Section
265(b)(3)(B) of the Code if he reasonably determines that the total amount of tax-exempt obligations to be
issued by the County and entities subordinate thereto in calendar yeas 2006, excepting certain private
activity bonds, will not exceed $10 million.

Section 9.04. Ability to Meet Arbitrage Requirement; Private Activity Limitations.
Careful consideration has been given to the time in which the expendittire of the proceeds of the Bonds,
other than Taxable Bonds, will be made, and it has been ascertained that all of the money received from the
proceeds of such Bonds will be expended within the limitations imposed by the internal Revenue Code of
1986 as anended (the "Code"); accordingly the Council will be able to certify upon reasonable grounds
that the Bonds are not "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code.

The Council hercby covenants to comply with all of the restrictions and requirements of the Code
as its provisions are applicable to the Bonds, other than the Taxable Bonds in order that such Bonds shall
be and remain exempt from federal income taxation. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the
Council specifically covenants that

- 23 -



(a) All property provided by the net proceeds of such Bonds will he ned by the County in
accordance with the rules governing the ownership of property for federal income tax pm-poses.

(b) The County shall not pci mit the proceeds of such Bonds or any facility financed with the
procccds of such Bonds to he used in any manner thai would result in (a) ten percent (10%) or note of
such proceeds henig considered as having been used directly or indirectly in any trade or business
carned on by any natut al person or in any activity carried on by a person other than a natural per son
other than a governmental unit as pros ided in Section 141(b) of the Code, or (b) five percent (5%) or
more of such proceeds being considered as having been used directly or indirectly to make or finance
loans to any person other than a governinetital unit as provided in Section 141(c) of the Code

(c) The County is not a party to nor will it enter into any contracts with any person for the
use or management of any facility provided with the proceeds of such Bonds that do not conform to the
guidelines set forth in Revenue Procedure 97-13, as modified by the Code or subsequent
pronouncements by the Interrutl Revenue Service, or the County obtains the opinion of nationally
recognized bond counsel that such anangeinent will not adversely affect the tax exemption of such
Bonds.

(d) The County will not sell or lease the Project or any property provided hy such Bonds to
any person unless it obtains the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel that such lease or sale will
not affect the tax exemption of such Bonds.

(e) The Bonds ml I not be federally guaranteed within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the
Code. The County is not a pm ly to any leases or sales or service contracts with any federal government
agency with respect to the Project and will not enter into any such leases or contracts unless it obtains the
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel that such action will not affect the tax exemption of such
Bonds.

Section 9.05. Continuing Disclosure. (a) In accordance with Act No. 442 of the Acts and Joint
Resolutions of the General Assembly of the State of South Carolina, 1994, the County representsuid
covenanLs that it will file with WwW disclosuretiSAcomu or other municipal securities information
repository upon request a copy of its annual independent audit within thirty (30) days of its receipt and
acceptance and event—specific infonmiation. within thirty (30) days of an event adversely affecting more
than five percent (5%) of its revenues or five percent (5%) of its tax base.

(b) The Council hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with the recjturements of (i) Rule
I Sc-I 2 promulgated by the Securities and E\change Commission and (ii) Section I I-I -85. Code of Laws
of Souih Carolina, 1976, as such may be amended In Wi s regard, the County Administrator is hereby
authorized to execute and deliver on behalf of the County a Continuing Disclosure Certificate in
substantially the fonn of Exhibit 'D' hereto. itli such changes as may he approved by the County
Administrator, his appiova! to be evidenced by her execution thereof

Section 9.06. Severability of Invalid F'rovisions. If any one or more of the covenants or
agreements provided in this Oidinance should be contrary to law, then such covenant or covenants or
agreement or agreements shall be deemed severable from the rcinmning covenants and agreements, and
shall in no way affect the validity of the other piovisions of this Otdinancc.

Section 9.07. Successors. Whenever in this Ordinance the County is nanied or refcired to. it
shall be deemed to include uw entity, which may succeed to the principal functions and powers of the
County. and all the covenants and agreements contained in this Ordinance or by or on behalf of the Count)
shall bind and inure to the benefit of said successor whether so expressed or not

- 24 -



Section 9.08. Ordinance to Constitute Contract. In consideration of the purchase and
acceptance of the Bonds by those who shall purchase and hold the same from time to time, the provisions
of this Ordinance shall be deemed to he and shall constitute a contract between the County and the Holders
from time to time of the Bonds, and such provisions are covenants and agreements with such Holders
which the County hereby determined to be necessary and desirable for the security and payment thereof.
The pledge hereof and the provisions, covenants, and agreements herein set forth to be performed on behalf
of the County shall be for the equal benefit, protection, and security of the Holders of any and all of the
Bonds, all of which shall be of equal rank without preference, priority or distinction of any Bonds over any
other Bonds

Section 9.09. Filing of Copies of Ordinance. Copies of this Ordinance shall be filed iii the
offices of the Council, the office of the Clerk of Court for Lexington County (as a part of the Transcript of
Proceedings) and at the offices of each of the Paying Agent and Registrar.

Section 9.10. Further Action by Offices of County. The proper officers of the County are
fully authorized and empowered to take the actions required to implement the provisions of this Ordinance
and to furnish such certificates and other proofs as may be required of them, which includes but is not
limited to providing the notice and conducting the public hearing described in Section 9.02 hereof

Section 9.11. Effective Pate of Ordinance. This Bond Ordinance shall take effect upon its
third reading and shall be forthwith codified in the Code of County Ordinances and indexed under the
general heading 'Bond Lssue — Not Exceeding $13,0(X),000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006MB, of
Lexington Counly, South Carolina."

* * * *

- 25 -



DONE IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED, this_____ clay ci _______ 2006.

(SE4L) Chairman, I County Council

Attest:

Clerk, Lexington County Council

- 26 -



EXHIBIT "A"

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Lexington County Council, State of South Carolina, at its
meeting on the ______ day of _________ 2006, in County Council Chambers, Lexington County
Administration Building, 212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, South Carolina, at p.nt, will conduct a
public hearing on the proposed adoption of an Ordinance entitled "TO PROVIDE FOR THE
ISSUANCE AND SALE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF LEXINGTON COUNTY,
SOUTH CAROLINA, SERIES 2006, TO PRESCRIBE THE PURPOSES FOR WIIICH TIlE
PROCEEDS SHALL BE EXPENDED, TO PROVIDE FOR TIlE PAYMENT THEREOF, AM)
OTHER MATFERS RELATING THERETO."

Pursuant to the Ordinance, the County Council proposes the issuance of not exceeding
$13,000,000 of general obligation bonds of the County to defray the cost of acquisition and improvement
of land for use as an industrial park, as well as certain costs associated therewith and costs of issuance of
such bonds. For the payment of the principal of and interest on the bonds authorized by said Ordinance,
there shall be pledged the full faith, credit and taxing power of Lexington County and there shall be levied
ad valorein taxes sufflcieiit in amount to pay said principal and interest on the bonds.

At the time and place fixed for said public hearing all taxpayers, residents or other interested
persons who appeax will be given an opportunity to express their views for or against the adoption of the
Ordinance. Assistance is available for those who are visually or hearing-impaired. For assistance, call the
Clerk to Lexington Counly Council, telephone (803) 785-8103.

Chairman, Lexington County Council

A-i



EXI-ITBIT "B"

(FORM OF BOND)

UNITED STATES OF AIIERJCA
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND, SERIES 2006(A/B)iIAX BLF SFiUtS)

No. _____

IN't'EItrSTItATF. MATURITY DATE ISSUE D4TE
-

CIiSll

______ I, 2006

Registered [-lolder:

Pn ncipai Amount: DO! LAWS

LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLJNA (the "County"), ackoowledges itself indebted
and for value received hereby promises to pay, solely as hereinafter provided, to the Registered Holder
(named aboe) or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set forth above on the Maturity Dale stated
akwe, unless this Bond be subject to redemption and shall have been redeemed prior thereto as hereinafter
provided, upon presentation arid surrendei of this Bond at the Corporate Trust Office of __________
______________________ ia the Oty of ______________________, State of ____________ (ihe 'Paying
Agent"). asd to pay interest on such Principal Amount as hereinafter provided at the annual Interest Rate
stated above (calculated on the basis of a three hundred and sixty-day year of twelve (12) fluty—day
months), until the obligation of the County with resçxet to the payi nent of such Pr! uci pal Amount shd I he

discharged.

This Bonds shall hear interest from the February 1 or the August I to which interest has been paid
next preceding the authentication date thereof, unless the authentication date thereof is a Februtuy I or a
August I, in which ease, from such authentication date, or from the February I or the August 1 to which
interest has last been paid, or if dated pnor to February 1. 2007, then from the original isstie date of such
Bonds. The interest to he paid on any February 1 or August I shall be paid to the Person in whose name
such Bond is registered at the close of business on the Record Date next preceding such February 1 or
August 1. Interest on this Bond is payable on Februaiy I and August 1 of each year beginning February 1
2007, a which time interest fr _______() months will be dtic. The taterest so payable on any February
I or August 1 shall be payable to the rson in whose name this Bond is registered at the close of business
on the ii fteenth day of the February or on the ii fteentlt day of the August next preceding such February I or
August I

Interest hereon shall be payable by check or draft mailed at the times provided herein from the
office of the Paying Agent to the petson in whose name this Bond is registered at the address shown on the
registration books. The principal of and interest on tins Bond aie payable in any coin or currency of the

13 — I



United States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private
debts; provided, however, that payment of the interest on this Bond shall be effected by check or draft as
set forth above.

This Bond is one of an issue of Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of ____________Dollars
($ ) of like tenor, except as to number, rate of interest, date of maturity and redemption
provisions, issued pursuant to and in accordance with the Constitution and Statutes of the State of South
Carolina, including particularly the provisions of Title 4, Chapter 15, Code of Laws of South Carolina,
1976, as amended, as amended and supplemented by Title 11, Chapter 27, Code of Laws of South
Carolina, 1976, as amended (the "Enabling Act"), and an Ordinance duly adopted by the County Council
of the County (the "Ordirance").

Certain capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined shall have the meanings ascribed
thereto in the Ordinance. Certified copies of the Ordinance are on file in the office of the Registrar, in the
office of the Paying Agent and in the office of the Clerk of Court of Lexington County, South Carolina.

For the prompt payment hereof, both principal and interest, as the same shall become due, the full
faith, credit and taxing power of the County are irrevocably pledged.

This Bond and the interest hereon are exempt from all State, county, municipal, school district, and
all other taxes or assessments imposed within the State of South Carolina, direct or indirect, general or
special, whether imposed for the purpose of general revenue or otherwise, except inheritance, estate and
transfer taxes, but the interest hereon may be includable for franchise fees and taxes.

The Bonds axe issuable only as fully registered Bonds without coupons in the denomination of
$5,000 or any multiple thereof not exceeding the principal amount of the Bonds maturing in such year.

[All Bonds maturing subsequent to February 1, 2017, shall be subject to redemption at the option
of the County in whole or in party at any time on and after February 1, 2017 at a redemption price equal
to the par amount of Bonds to be redeemed. Iii the event less than all of the Bonds are to be redeemed, the
Bonds shall be redeemed in such order of maturities as shall be determined by the County and by lot within
amaturity.1

When any Bonds are to be redeemed, the Registrar shall give notice of the redemption of the
Bonds in the name of the County speciing (i) the Bonds and niaturities to be redeemed; (ii) the
redemption date; (iii) the redemption price; (iv) the Series, numbers and other distinguishing marks of the
Bonds to be redeemed unless all of the Bonds Outstanding are to be redeemed; (v) the place or places
where amounts due upon such redemption will be payable; and (vi) in the case oF Bonds to be redeemed in
part only, the respective portions of the principal thereof to be redeemed. Such notice shall further state
that on such date there shall become due and payable upon each Bond to be redeemed the redemption price
thereof, together with interest accrued to the redemption date, and that, from and after such date, interest
thereon shall cease to accrue. The Registrar shall mail by registered mall a copy of such notice, postage
prepaid, not less than thirty (30) days before the redemption date to the registered Holders of all Bonds or
portions of Bonds which are to be redeemed at their addresses which appear upon the registration books,
but failure to so mail any such notice to any of such Holders shall not affect the validity of the proceedings
for the redemption of Bonds held by Holders to whom written notice has been mailed. Interest on the
Bonds to he redeemed shall cease to accrue From and after the redemption date specified in such notice,
unless the County defaults in making due provision for the payment of the redemption price thereof.

The Bonds are being issued by means of a book-entry system with no physical distnhution of
Bond certificates to be made except as provided in the Ordinance. One Bond certificate with respect to

B - 2



each date on which the Bonds are sUited to nia(urc, reaistered in (lie name of the Securities Depository
Nominee (as defined in the Ordinance), is being issued and required to be deposited with (lie Securities
Depository and iinniobi]ized iii its custody. The book—entry system will evidence positions held in the
Bonds by the Securities Depository's Participants, beneficial ownership of the Bonds in (lie principal
amount of $5,000 or any multiple thereof being evidenced in (lie records of such Participants. Transfers of
ownership shall be effected on the records of (lie Securities Depository and its Participants pursuuit to rules
arid procedures established by the Securities Depository and its Participants The County, the Registrar and
the Paying Agent will recognize the Securities Depository Nominee, while the registered owner of this
Bond, as the owner of this Bond for all purposes. including payments of prineipad of and interest on, this
Bond, notices and voting. Transfer of principal and interest to Ptuticipants of the Securities Depository
will be the responsibility of the Securities Depository, and transfer of pnneipd and interest to beneficial
owners of (lie Bonds by Participants of the Securities Depository will he the responsibility of such
Participants and other noniinees of such henelicia] owners The County will not be responsible or liable for
such transfers of payments or for niainttuning, supervision or ieviewing the records maintained by die
Securities Depository, the Securities Depository Nominee, its Participants or persons acting through such
Participants While the Securities Depository Nominee is the owner of this Bond. notwithstanding the
provision hereinabove contained, payments of principal of and niterest on, this Bond shall be made in
accordance with existing arrangenienLs between the Paying Agent or its successors tinder the Orduianee
and the Securities Depository.

This Bond is transferable, as provided in the Ordinance, only upon the registrauon books kept for
that purpose at the (Corporate Trust Office) of (lie Registrar by the Registered Holder in person or by his
duly authorized attorney, upon (i) surrender of this Bond together with a written instrument of transfer
satisfactory to the Registrar duly executed by the Registered I-folder or Ins duly authonzed attorney and (ii)
paynient of the charges, if any, prescribed in the Ordinance. Thereupon a new fully registered Bond or
Bonds of like niattirity, interest rate, and redemption provisions and in a like aggregate principal aniowit
shall be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided iii the Ordinance. The County, die Paying
Agent and the Registrar may deem and treat the person in whose name this Bontl is registered as the
absolute owner hereof for the purpose of receiving paynient of or on account of the principal and interest
due hereon and for all other ptirposcs

For every exchange or transfer of the Bonds, the County, the Paynig Agent, or the Registnrr niay
make a charge sufficient to reunhurse it for any tax, fee or other governmental charge ret]uircd to he paid
with respoct to such exchange or transfer.

it is hereby certified and iecited that all conditions, acts and things required by the Coiistitutioii aiid
Stattites of the State of South Carolina to exist, be perfonned or happen precedent to or ni the issuance of
this Boritl, exist, have been perfomiiied arid have happened, that the amotmnt of this Bond, together with all
other intlebtcdness of the County, does riot exceed any limit prescribed by such Constittrtion or Statutes,
and that provision has been made for the rdlocation, on an anntral basis, of sufficient tax revenues to
provide for the ptmctual paynient of the principal of and interest on this Bond and the issue of Bontis of
which this Bond is one.

This Bond shall not be valid or obligatory for any ptirpose until the Certificate of Authentication
hereon shall have been duly executed by die Registrar.

B - 3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lexington County, South Carolina, has caused this Bond to be
signed in its name by the manual signature of the Chairman of the Lexington County Council and its
corporate seal to be hereon reproduced and attested to by the manual signature of the Clerk to the
Lexington County Council.

LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA
(SEAL)

By
Chairman, Lexington County Council

Attest:

Clerk, Lexington County Council

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This Bond is one of the Bonds of the issue descnbed in the within mentioned Ordinance.

REGISTRAR

By_____________
Authorized Officer

Authentication Date:

B4



(FORM OF ASSIGNMENT)

FOR VALUE RECEIVED ihe undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto

(please print or type name and address of Transferee and Social Security or other identifying number of

Transferee)

the within Bond arid all nghts and I tic thereunder, and hereby inevocably constitutes and appoints
attorney to transfer the within Bond on the hooks kept for registration thereof,

with full po cc of substitution in the premises.

Date: ________________

5-5



EXHIBIT "C"

OFFICIAL NOTICE OF SALE

$13,000,000
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2006(A/B)CfAXABLE SERIES)

LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

Time and Place of Sale: NOTICE IS UERI:BY GIVEN that sealed proposals, addressed to the
undersigned, will be received by the County Council, the governing body of Lexington County, South
Carolina (the "County"), until 12:00 Noon (local time) on

2006

at which time said proposals will be publicly opened in the Office of the County Administrator,
Lexington County Administration Building, 212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, South Carolina for the
purchase of $_________General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006(AIB)(Taxable Sci cs), of Lexington County,
South Carolina (the "Bonds").

Details of the Bonds: The Bonds will be issued initially under the DTC book-entry only system in
the form of single, fully registered bonds in the aggregate principal amount maturing in each year, registered
in the name of Cede & Co., as the registered owner and nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New
York, New York ("DTC"), which will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be dated
as of __________ 1, 2006; will be numbered from R-1 upward; and will mature serially in successive
annual installments, on February 1 lii each of the years and in the principal amounts as follows:

Principal Principal
Year Amount Year Amount

SAID BONDS will bear interest from________ I, 2006, at a rate or rates to be named by the bidder,
payable on February 1 arid August 1 of each year (the "Bond Payment Dates") commencing February 1,
2007, at which time interest for ______ U months will be due.

Registrar and Paying Agent: A financial institution maintaining corporate trust offices will be
selected by the County to serve at Registrar and Paying Agent. So long as the Bonds remain outstanding in
book-entry form with DTC, all payments of principal and interest with respect to the Bonds shall be througi
the facilities of DTC.

Redemption Provisions: All Bonds maturing subsequent to February 1, 2017, shall he subject to
redemption at the option of the County in whole or in part at any time on and after February 1, 2017 at a
redemption price equal to par. In the event less than all of the Bonds are to be redeemed, the Bonds shall
be redeemed in such order of maturities as shall be detennined by the County and by lot within a maturity.

When any Bonds are to be redeemed, the Registrar shall give notice of the redemption of the Bonds
in the name of the County specifying (i) the Bonds and maturities to be redeemed; (ii) the redemption date;
(ill) the redemption price; (iv) the Series, numbers and other distinguishing marks of the Bonds to be
redeemed unless all of the Bonds Outstanding are to be redeemed; (v) the place or places where amounts
due upon such redemption will be payable; and (vi) in the case of Bonds to be redeemed in pail only, the

C-I



respective portions of the principal thereof to be redeemed. Such notice shall furthei sLate that on such dale
there shall become due arid payable upon each Bond to he redeemed the redemption price thereol, together
with interest accrued to the redemption dale, and that, from and after such date, interest thereon shall cease
to accrue. The Registrar shall mail by registered mail a copy of such notice, postage piepaid, not less tItan
thirty (30) days before the redemption dale to the registered Holders of all Bonds or portions of Bonds
which are to be redeemed at their addresses which appear upon the registration books, hut failure to so mail
any such notice to any of such 1-lolders shall not affect the validity of the proccedings for the redemption of
Bonds held by Holders to whom written notice has been mailed. Interest on the Bonds to be redeemed shall
cease to accrue from and after the redemption date specified in such nonce, unless the County defaults in
making clue provision for the payment of the redemption price thereof.

Rid Requireiiienls: Bidders are invited to name the rate or rates of interest which the Bonds are to
bear, and unless all bids are rejected, they will he awarded to the bidder offering to purchase them at the
lowest net interest cost to the County at a price of not less than par and accrued interest to the date of
delivery. Bidders may name any number of rates of interest, in any variations selected by the bidder except
that.

(a) all Bonds of the same maturity shall hear the same rate of interest:

(b) ito rate of interest shall be more than two per centuni (2%) higher than the lowest tate
of interest named;

(c) each interest rate named shall be a multiple of one—twentieth (1/20th) or one—eighth

(1/8) of one per centnm (1%): and

(d) any sum named by way of premium shall be paid in cash as a part of the purchase
price.

Interest cost \vi II he determined by deducting premium, if any. front the aggregate of interest on the
Bonds front __________ 1, 2006, until their respective maturities. Bidders are requested to present
tabulations showing aggregate interest cost in dollars and cents, hut such tabulations are not required and
will not be regarded as a past of the bid. The right is reserved to reject all proposals, and to waive
technicalities, hut no auction sale will be conducted.

Proposals may he delivered by hand or by mail or by facsimile transmission to (803) hut

no proposal shall he considered which is not actually received by the County at the place, date and time

appointed. The County shall not be responsible for aily failure, misdirection or error in the means of
transmission selected by any bidder. No agent or employee of the County will undertake to receive
proposals by means of oral counnunication.

Electronic bids must be suhnnfletl to the Parity Electronic Bid Submission System ("PARITY'). No
other fonu of hid or provider of electronic bidding services will he accepted. Such bids are to be publicly
opened and read at such tune and place on said day. For the purposes of both the written sealed hid prtxess
and the electronic bidding process. the tune as maintained by PARITY shall constitute the official tittie with
respect to all bids submitted.

if any provisions of this Official Notice of Sale conflict v.ith information provided by PARITY as
the approved provider of electronic bidding services, this Official Notice of Sale shall control Further
information about PARITY may he obtained from PARITY. 1359 Broadway, 2nd Floor, New York, NY

10018, telephone (212) 849-5025

C-2



Written bids must be submitted on the Official Bid Form included with the Preliminary Official
Statement or on a reasonable facsimile thereof. Electronic bids must be submitted to PARITY. Both written
bids and electronic bids must be unconditional and received by the County and(or PARITY, respectively,
before the time stated above. Each bid must be accompanied by a Good Faith Deposit or Financial Surety
Bond (see below). The County is not liable for any costs incurred in the preparation, delivery, acceptance
or rejection of any bid, including, without limitation, the providing of a bid security deposit.

Bids will be accepted or rejected by 2:00 p.m. (local time) on the day of the sale. No proposal for
the purchase of less than all of the Bonds, or, at a price less than par and accrued interest to the date of
delivery, will be considered.

Bidders shall specify the rate or rates of interest per annum which such Bonds are to hear, to be
expressed in multiples of 1/20th or 1/8th of 1% with no greater difference than 2% between the highest and
lowest rates of interest named by a bidder. Bidders are not limited as to the number of rates of interest
named, but the rate of interest on each separate maturity must be the same single rate for the Bonds of that
maturity from their date to such maturity date. A bid for less than all the Bonds, or at a price less than par,
will not be considered. lii addition to the bid price, the successful bidder must pay accrued interest from the
date of the Bonds to the date of full payment of the purchase price. Any premium offered must be paid as
part of the purchase price of the Bonds at the delivery thereof.

Award of Bonds on N/C Basis: The Bonds will be awarded to the bidder or bidders offering to
purchase the Bonds at the lowest net interest cost to the County, such interest cost to be determined by
computing the total dollar interest cost froth the date of the Bonds to the respective maturity dates and
deducting therefrom the amount of the premium offered, if any, over and above the principal amount. The
County reserves the right to reject any and all bids or to waive irregularities in any bid.

Good Faith Check A Good Faith Deposit ("Deposit") in the form of a certified or cashiers check
or a Financial Surety Bond in the amount of $ , payable to the order of (he County, is required for
each bid to be considered. if a check is used, it must accompany each bid. If a Financial Surety Bond is
used, it must be from an insurance company licensed to issue such a bond in the State of South Carolina,
and such bond must be submitted to the County prior to the opening of the bids. The Financial Surety
Bond must identify each bidder whose Deposit is guaranteed by such Financial Surety Bond. If the Bonds
are awarded to a bidder utilizing a Financial Surety Bond, that purchaser ("Purchaser") is required to
submit its Deposit to the County in the form of a cashier's check (or wire transfer such amount as instructed
by the County) not later than 3:30 p.m. (local time) on the next business day following the award. if such
Deposit is not received by that time, the Financial Surety Bond may be drawn by the County to satisfy the
Deposit requirement. No interest on the Deposit will accrue to the Purchaser. The Deposit will be applied
to the purchase price of the Bonds. In the event the Purchaser fails to honor its accepted bid, the Deposit
will be retained by the County.

Municipal Bond Insurance. If a bidder for the Bonds desires to have the Bonds insured, the bidder
shall specify in its bid whether bond insurance will be purchased and the premium of such bond insurance
must be paid at or prior to closing by the successful bidder.

Bid Form: Each bid shall be enclosed in a sealed envelope and marked "proposal for $_______
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006(AJB)(Taxahle Series), of Lexington County, South Carolina" and
should be directed to the undersigned at the address in the first paragraph hereof. Each bid shall be
conditioned in accordance with this Notice of Sale. It is requested but not required that you submit your
hid on the Proposal for Purchase of Bonds supplied with the Preliminary Official Statement

C-3



Security: The Bonds shall constitnie binding general obligations of the County and the full faith,
credit, resources and taxing power of the County ac irrevocably pledged for the payment of the Bonds
There shall be levied and collected annually in the same manner as all other county taxes are levied and
collected, a tax, without limit, on all taxable property in the County sufficient to pay the principal and
interest of the Bonds as they respectively mature and to create such sinking fund as may be necessary
therefor.

Purpose: The Bonds aie isstrcd for the purpose of providing funds for various costs of acquiring
and constructing facilities for the County and defraying the cost and expenses of issuance of the Bonds.

Legal Opitnoit: Purchasers will be furnished with the Bonds and an opinion on their validity' by
I-Iaynsworth Sinkler Boyd, PA, Attorneys at Law, Columbia, South Carolina. bond counsel, a copy of
which will be attached to each Bond and with the usual closing proofs, which will include (a) a certificate
that there is no litigation threatened or pending to restrain the issuance or sale of said Bonds, (and (b)
certificates establishing that the Bonds me not ''arhitiage'' bonds, within the meaning of Section 148 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as nnended. and the applicable regulations issued thereunder as in effect
on the occasion of the delivery of the Bonds.)

The Purchaser wifl also he furnished with the opinion of l-laynsworth Sinkler Boyd.. PA. to the
eftect that the Bonds are 'qualified tax-exempt obligations" within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the
Internal Reenue Code of 1986, as amended.]

[Certificate as to Issue Price and Yield: Within forty-eight (48) hours after the award of the
Bonds, the successful bidder shall submit to the County a certificate, in form mid substance satisfactory to
bond counsel, specifying for each maturity the expected hona Mc reoffenng price of the Bonds of each
maturity, as of the date of the award of the Bonds, mid the "yield" on the Bonds calculated in accordance
with Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Prior to delivery of the Bonds, the
successful bidder rntist submit to the County a certificate, in form mid substance satisfactory to bond
counsel, stating that a hona fide offering of the Bonds was made to the public at the prices indicated in the
first certificate, and identifying the amounts, maturities, and prices at which any Bonds were actually sold
to institutions or other investors at a discount from the offering prices to the public. For purposes of this
paragraph, sales of Bonds to other securities brokers or dealers will riot be counteti as sales to the public

Delivery: The Bonds will be delivered to DTC on or about _________ , 2006, against payment in
federal or other immediately available funds. The certificates and other documents relating to the Bonds
will he delivered to the Purchasers on the date of delivery of tile Bonds/The Bonds will be delivered within
thb-ty (30) days of the date of sale, in New York, New York, at the expense of the County, or at suchother
place as may be agreed upon with the Purchasets at the expense of the Purchaser. Thebalance of the
purchase pnce then due (including the amount of accrued interest) must he paid in Federal funds orother

nitmediately available ftuids.

Official Statement: The Prehniinary Ofticial Statement dated __________, 200 has been deemed
final by the County for purposes of paragraph (b)(l) of Rule lSc2-12 of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the ''Rule'') but is stmhject to revision, Lunendmcnt and completion in a final Oflic ial
Statement as provided in the Rule The Preliminary Official Statement may be accessed via the Internet at
www.i-dealprospectus.com. The County shall deliver, at closing, a certificate executed by an appropriate
official of the County to the effect that as of the date of dehery the information contained in the Official
Statement, and any supplement to the Official Statement, relating to the County and the Bonds is tineand

correct in all material respects, and that the Official Statement does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessiu'y to make the statements therein, in light of the
circumstances under which they' were made, not mislearhug.

C-4



The County will furnish without cost up to one hundred (1(X)) copies of the Official Statement to
the successful bidder within seven (7) workuig days after the award of the Bonds. The successful bidder
must notify the County in writing within five (5) working days of the award of the Bonds if the bidder
requires additional copies of the Official Statement. The cost for the additional copies will he paid by the
successful bidder.

-

Continuing Disclosure: in order to assist bidders in complying with the provisions of the Rule, the
County will undertake, pursuant to the Bond Ordinance and a Continuing Disclosure Certificate, to provide
certain annual information reports and notices of certain events. A description of this undertaking is set
forth in the Preliminary Official Statement and will also be set foiih in the final Official Statement. The
delivery by the County of a fully executed Continuing Disclosure Certificate by the County dated the date
of delivery of the Bonds, is a condition precedent to the delivery of the Bonds as described in the Notice of
Sale. Failure by the County to deliver such Continuing Disclosure Certificate will relieve the successful
bidder of its contractual obligation arising from the acceptance of its bid. The Preliminary Official
Statement has been deemed final by the County for purposes of paragraph (b)(I) of the Rule but is subject
to revision, amendment and completion in the final Official Stateiirent as provided in the Rule.

In accordance with Section 1-1 1-85 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, the
County has covenanted in the Bond Ordtaance authoriting the issuance of the Bonds to file with a central
repository for availability in the secondary bond market when requested an annual independent audit,
within thirty (30) days of the County's receipt of the audit, and event-specific information, within thirty
(30) days of an event adversely affecting more than five percent (5%) of the Cotmtys revenue or tax base.
The only remedy for failure by the County to comply with this covenant shall he an action for specific
perfonnance. Moreover, the County has specifically reserved the right to amend the covenant to reflect
any change in Section 1-11-85 without the consent of any bondholder.

CUSP' Numbers It ts anticipated that CUS I P identi ficatton numbers will be printed on the Bonds,
but neither the failure to print such numbers on any Bond nor any error with respect thereto shall constitute
cause for failure or refusal by the Purchaser thereof to accept delivery of and pay for said Bonds. All
expenses of preparation of the Bonds shall be paid by the County, but the CUSIP Bureau charge for the
assignment of the numbers shall be paid by the Purchaser of the Bonds

Additional bifoi7nauon: Persons seeking information should communicate with Kathenne
Doucette, County Administrator, Lexington County, Lexington County Administration Bwldrng, 212 S.
Lake Drive, Lexington, South Carolina 29072, (telephone (803) 785-8100) or Theodore B. DuBose,
Esquire, l-iaynsworth Suikler Boyd, P A., 1201 Main Street, Columbia, South Carolina 29201 (telephone
(803) 779-3080).

This Notice is given to evidence i/ic County's intent to receive bids for and att'ard the Bonds on
i/ic date stated above. Siw/i sale nay he postponed prior to the tune bids are to he received and as
published on Thomson Municipal Market Monitor, Bloomherg, or other electronic information service.
If canceled, the sale may he thereafter rescheduled within 60 days of the date of the publication of tins
Official Notice of Sale, and notice of sac/I rescheduled slate of sale will be posted at least 48 hours prior
to the time for receipt of bids on ihoinson Municipal Market Monitor, Blootnbcrg, i-dealprosyectus.com
or other electronic information service.

County Administrator
lexington County, South Carolina

C-S



i:xi-tini'i' "I)"

FORM OF CONTINUING I)ISCLOSURI( CERTIFICA'l'I(

This Continuing DisclosureCern [kate (the' Disclosui e Cci ti kate'') is e\ectited ant! dcl \'ered this
day of ___________________ , 2006. by Lex ngt on Cou n iv. Soui Cat ol ma (the ''Cou ntv or the I sstier ) in

connectioii with the issuance of the County's $__________________ Gencial Ohi eation Bonds, Series
2006(AJB)(Taxable Series) (the Bonds)

The Bonds at-c being issued pursuant to an Ordinance (the' Ordinance ) adopted
2006 (the ''Ordinance''), by the County Council of the County (the 'County Council'') anihori'atg the
issuance of the Bonds. The County covenants and agiees as follows

Section 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate. Ihis Diselosut e Ceitificate is being evecnted
and delivered by the County for the benefit of the holdei s and I3eitefici aT O\vnei of the Bonds and in order
to assist the Participating lindertt ntets in eonlpl\ uigwith SEC Rule I 5c2— I 2(h)(5)

Section 2. Definitions, in addiuon to the definitions set Iorth in the Di duiaiice, which apply to

any capitalized terms used in this Section. the following capitalized teiitts shall have the lollowing
meanings:

''Annual Report'' means the annual repot t pi ovided by the Cotniiv put stiant to. and as described
ui. Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Cciii [kate.

"Beneficial Owner" means any person which (a) has the power, di ret-tI y ot intl it eel Iv, to vote or
consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownet ship of, any Bonds (ineltidi ng persons holding Bonds
through nominees, depositories or other i nteniiediaries). or (h) is ti e:ned as the owner of any Bonds for

federal income tax purposes

"Thssernination Agent'' means any person designated in writing bs' the Cou ntv and wInch has
filed with the Count\ a written acceptance of such designation

''Listed Events'' nieans any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure Certificate.

"National Repository'' means any Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities blot ni,ition
Repository for purposes of the Rule. The National Repositories cnn enily approved by the Sectirities and
Exchange Commission are set forth in Exhibit 'A''. To the e\tent perniitted by United States Securities
and Exchange Commission, the filing of any i nforination heretinder 'auth the facilities of the Texas
Munictpai Council at ww\v disclosuietis:i.eoni shall constittite a filing of the same with all National

Repositories.

"Official Statement'' means the Official Statetrienl dated 20(16, Pi'eP ed In
connection with the Bonds.

'Participating Underwriter'' means any of the irigi nal nnderw i ilei s of tIe ft nids requ'mm cd to
comply with the R tile in connection with the of! eting of the Bonds.

''Repository'' means each National Repository and each State lZep isiioi y.



"Rule" means Rule I 5e2- I 2(h)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time.

''State" means the State of South Carolina.

"State Repository" means ally public or private repository or entity designated by the State as a
state repository for purposes of the Rule and recognized as such by the Securities and Exchange
Commission. As of the date of this Disclosure Certificate, there is no State Repository.

Section 3. Provision of Annual Reports. (a) The County shall, not later seven (7) months from
the end of the County's fiscal year (currently June 30), commencing with the report for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2006, provide to each Repository an Annual Report which is consistent with the
requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate The Annual Report may he submitted as a single
document or as separate documents conipnsing a package, and may cross-refeience other information as
provided in Section 4 of this Certificate; pvu1ed, /zo;l'cveI; that the audited Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report of the County for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006, and for each subsequent fiscal year
may be submitted separately from the remainder of the Annual Report, and later than the date required for
the filing of the Annual Report if they are not available by that (late. The County shall make a copy of any
Annual Report available to any person who requests a copy at a cost not exceeding the reasonable cost of
duplication arid delivery. If the County's fiscal year changes, it shall give notice of such change in the same
manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(a).

(b) If the County is unable to provide to the Repositones an Annual Report by the date required in
subsection (a) above, the County shall send a notice to each Repository in subsiantially the fonn attached
hereto as Exhibit "B".

(c) In the event that there is a Dissemination Agent, then not later than fifteen (15) business days
prior to each due date, conitnencing _______ , , the Coanty shall provide the Annual Report to the
Dissemination Agent for distribution to the Repositones. In connection with this distribution of the Annual
Report, the Dissemination Agent shall:

(i) determine each year prior to the date for providing the Annual Report the name and address of
each National Repository and each State Repository, if any, and

(ii) file a report with the County certifying that the Annual Report has been provided pursuant to
this Disclosure Certificate, stating the date it was provided and listing all the Repositories to which it
was provided.

Section 4. Contents of Annual Reports. The Annual Report shall contain or incorporate by
reference the following:

(a) The audited Comprehensive Anntial Financial Report of the County for the fiscal year ended
on the previous June 30, prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable
to government entities from time to time by the Governmental Accounting Standards BoardT If the
County's audited financial statenients are not availahle by the time the Annual Report is requtred to be filed
pursuant to Section 3(a), the Annual Report shall include unaudited financial statemenLs in a format similar
to the financial statenierits contained in the Official Statement or summarized under the heading, "THE
COUNTY FINANCIAL AND lAX INFORMATION - Five Year Summary of General Fund
Operations", and the audited financial statenients shall be filed in the sanie manner as the Annual Report
when they become available.

D-2



(b) Total expected appiopi muons to the lssuei flow the Stale of South Carolina For the then
curreul Fiscal Year;

(c) Most recently finalized Market \'alue/Asscssiicnt Suniriciry, including manufacturers'
properly exempt From taxes of Issuer;

(d) TreK levy and collections For pnor Fiscal Yew:

(e) Ten Largest Taxpayers for prior Fiscal Year

(Q Tax Levy (in mills) For then current Fiscal Year,

(a) Summary of General Fund Budget lot then current Fiscal Ye:o,

The Animal Report may consist of one or niot e documents. Anyor all of the items listed above
may he included by speci tic reference to other docinneats. including official statements of debt issues of
the County. which have been submitted by the Countr' to each of the Repositories. IF the document
included by reference is a final official statement, it must he available From the NI unicrp:d Securities
Rulemaking Board. The County shall clearly identify each such other docuntent so included by reference

Section 5. Reporting of Siruficant Events. (a) Pui suant to the provisions of this Section 5. the
Cotafly shall give, or cnuse to be an en. nottce of the occuiTence of any oF the hdlowing events with respect
to the Bonds, if material'

(1) Pr] nd pal and i ntet est payment de Ii nquencies:

In) non—pavnieu t related defaults;

(iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting timi:nicial di Iliculues,

(iv) unscheduled draws on credit enhancenient reflecting financial di I fieult es:

(v) sttbstituuon of the credit or liquidity providers or their fai liii e to perforiti.

(vi) adverse tax opinions or events affecting the ia.\-exeinpi status of the Bonds,

(vii) modifications to rights of bondholders;

(viii) bond calls;

(ix) defeasancos;

(x) release. stibstitution. or sale of property sectin ng repayi tent of the secui i tic's: :uid

(xt) rating changes.

(h) Whenever the County obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a I usted I vent, the County
Adrniiistrator shrdl as soon as possible deterritine if such e\ cut would be niaterial tinder tedei al securities
to vs



(c) If the County Administrator detennines that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event
would be material under applicable federal securities laws, the County shall promptly file a notice of such
occurrence with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and each Repository, prot'idcd, that any
notice of any event listed tinder (a)(viii) or (ix) above need not be given any earlier than the notice (if any)
of such event is given to holders of affected Bonds pursuant to the Ordinance

Section ti. Termination of Reporting Obligation. The Countys obligations under this
Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in lull of all
of the Bonds. II such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the County shall give
notice of such termination in the same iiituiner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c).

Section 7. Dissemination Agent. The County may, from time to time, appoint or engage a
Dissemination Agent to assist in its carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate, and may
discharge any such Dissemination Agent, with or without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent
The Dissemination Agent shall not he responsible in any manner for the content of any notice or report
prepared hy the Cotinty pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate.

Section 8. Amendment; Waiver. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure
Certificate, the County may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure
Certificate may be waived, provided that the following conditions arc satisfied:

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4 or 5(a), itmay only be
made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements or
change in law;

(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the opinion of
nationally recognized bond counsel, have coniplied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the
original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule,
as well as any change in circumstances; and

(c) The amendment or waiver does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel,
matenally impair the interests of the holders or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the County
shall describe such amendment in the next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative
explanation of the reason for he amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a
change of accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being
presented by the County. In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed
in preparing financial statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the stune manner as for a
Listed Event under Section 5(c), and (n) the Annual Report for ihe year in which the change is made
should prepare a comparison (in narrative fomi and also, if feasible, in quantitative fonn) between the
financial statements as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the
basis of the former accounting principles.

Section 9. Additional Information. Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to
prevent the County from disseminating any other infonnation, using the means of dissemination set forth in
this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of cormnunication, or including any other infonnation in any
Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this
Disclosure Certificate, If the County chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of
occwTence of a listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by tins Disclosure Certificate,

D-4



the County sliiill have no obligation under this Disclosure Cetaficate ii update such inlorinatiun or include
it in any future Aniitial Report or notice of occunence ofa Listed Event.

Section ID. Default. Tn the event of a flu lure of the Count ' to comply with any pi ovisiail of this
Di srI estee Cern Ii cat e, an v holder or Beneficial Owner of the B oiids n civ take such actions as may be
necessary and appi opnate. including seeking inuiwiwnits or specific pci formance by court oi cler, to cause
the Count to coiripiy with its obligations inuier this Disclosure Certificate A default tinder his Disclosure
Certificate shall not be tleenied an event of default tinder the Ordinance, and the sole remedy tinder this
Disclosure Cern ficHe ii the event of aiiy Lu ut e of the County to comply svi th this Diselostu e Ccrt kate
shall he an action to compel performance

Section I I Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of the Dissemination A2ent . The

Dissemination Agent shall have only such cRitics as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Certificate,
and the County agi ees. to the extent pcnnitted by law, to indemnify and save that Dissemination Agent, its
officers, directot s, employees and agents, har titless against any loss. Cspensi' and liabilities wInch it may
incur arising out of or in the exercise or pcrlomiance of its powers aid duties hereunder, mel ndi hg the costs
and expenses (including attorneys' fees) of defending against wry elm iii oil iabi lity. hut excluding liabilities
due to the Disseniin:itron Agent's negligence or willful niisconduet. 'l'Iie obligations of' the Cotnity tinder
tins Section shall stir vrve resignation or rertioval of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds.

Section 12. Beneficiaries. This Disclosure Certificate shail intire solely to the benefit of the
County. the Dissemination Agent, the Pat t cipatitig Under riters and holders and Beneficial Ownei s from
time to time of the i3onds. and shall create no rights in any other pet son or entity. TIns Discinstire
Cciii fieatc is not i mended to create nny monetary rights on behalf of any jxi son,

Section 13. SIate—Mandated Cont inui112 Disclosure. In add it on to the requirements set forth in
Section 3 of this Disclosure Certificate (with resxet to the filing of the Annual Report) and iii Section 5 of
this Disclosure Certificate (with resxct to the reporting of Listed Events), the County furilier agrees,
ptirsnanr to the retlu iretuents of S.C Code Sect ion 1—11—85, to file upon tedltiest with a central in trination
repository (a) its annual ndependent audit within thirty (30) days of its i ecetpt, and (b) event—specific
information within thirty (30) days of an event ad ersely affect i rn tunic than bye pet cent (5%) of its
revenue or tax base. The County e \pects that, iii meeting the i equi retnents of Sections 3 arid 5 of tills
Disclosure Certificate, it also \¼ ill meet the requirements of this Section 13: however, to the extent that
certain information is reqttired to he filed pursuant to State law which is not required to be fi ccl tnidei the
Rttle or the other provisions of this Disclosure Certificate, the Coittity ill provide notice of such
in formation to cacti Repos i tiny.

Ll:xIN(;TON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

County Administrator, Lexington County,
South Carolina

Dated: ___________—' 2006

I) - 5



EXHIBIT "A"

The following arc National Rccognied Municipal Securities Repositories approved by the
Securities and Exchange Commission as of __________, 2006:

Bloomberg Municipal Repository FT Interactive Data
100 Business Park Drive Attn: NRMSIR
Skiliman, NJ 08558-3629 100 William Street, 15°' Floor
Phone: (609) 279-3225 New York, NY 10038
Fax (609) 279-5962 Phone. (2]2) 771-6999
Email: rnunis@bloomberg.com Fax: (212) 771-7390 (Secondary Market Info.)

Fax: (212) 771-7391 (Primary Market Information)
Email: nrmsir@ftid.com

Standard & Poor's Securities Evaluations, Inc. DPC Data, Inc.
55 Water Street, 45± Floor One Executive Dnve
New York, NY 10041 Fort Lee, NJ 07024
Phone: (212) 438-4595 Phone: (201) 346-0701
Fax: (212) 438-3975 Fax: (20!) 947-0107
Eiiiail: nrmsir_repositoiy@sandp.com Email: nrmsir@dpcdata.com

D-6



ICXIIIBIT ''B''

NOTICE TO REI'OSITORIFS OF FAILURE TO FJLE ANNUAL REPORTS

Name oF! ssuer: Lex I ngt i (ountv, Soul1 i Car olin a

Name of Bond Issue. S__________ Genei al Obligation Bends. Series 2tX)6(A/B)(Taxahle Series)

Date of issuance: ____________ I 20{)6

NOtICE IS I IEREBY (;IV EN that the issuer ias not provided ni Annual Report with espect to the
above—i eker enced Bonds as requiied by Section 3 (Ii the Continuing Disclosure Certificate (kited ______________

2006. The Issuer anticipates that the Ajinual Repoi will be filed by _____________________________ -

Dated

LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROl iNA

BY: Tttle

I) - 7



EXHIBIT 'E!'

(FORM OF BONI))

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
c14XABLE1 GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE OF 2006

No.1 $_____

INTEREST RATE MATURITY DATE ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE CUSIP

Rcgistered Holder:

Principal Amount:

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that Lexington County, South Carolina (the
"County") hereby acknowledges itself indebted, and for value received promises to pay to the registered
owner hereof (named above) or registered assigns, the principal sum of ___________________
DOLLARS at Office of the County Treasurer of Lexington County in the City of Lexington, State of South
Carolina on the day of __________,200, and to pay interest, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year
consisting of twelve 30-day months, on said principal sum from the date hereof, at the rate of _____ per
centum (%) per annum, payable upon the maturity of this note. This note is riot subject to prepayment
prior to its maturity.

Both the principal of and interest on this note are payable in any coin or currency of the United
States of America which is, at the time of payment, legal tender for the payment of public and private
debts.

This note is the single Bond Anticipation Note (the "Note"), issued by the County, pursuant to the
authorization of Title 11, Chapter 17, Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as amended, in anticipation
of the receipt of the proceeds to be derived from the general obligation bonds of the County (the "Bonds")
to be issued pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of the Constitution and Laws of the State of
South Carolina including Article X, Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of South Carolina, 1895, as
amended; Title 11, Chapter 27, Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended; Title 4, Chapter 15 of
the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, and an Ordinance duly adopted by the County
Council of the County on __________, 2006 (the "Ordinance"). The full faith, credit, resources and taxing
power of the County and the proceeds to be derived from the sale of Bonds are pledged for the payment of
the principal of and interest on the Notes.

E-1



This Note and tire interest liereon are exempt from all state, county, municipal, school County. and
all other taxes or assessments of the State of South Carolina, direct or indirecL, general or special, whether

imposed for the purpose of general revenue or othenvise, except inheritance, estate or ti ansfer taxes. but the

mterest hercon may be included as franchise fees or taxes.

This Note is being issued by means of a book—entry system with no physical distribution of
certificates to he made. This Note, registered in the name of the Securities Depository Nominee, is being
issued and required to be deposited with the Securities Depository and immohili,ed in its custody. The
book—entry system will evidence positions held in the Note by the Securities Depository's Participants,
beneficial ownership of the Note iii the principal amount of S,(XX) or any multiple thereof being evidenced
in the records of such Participants. l'ransfers of o\\nership shtdl be effected on the records of the Securities
Depository and its Participants pursuant to rules and procedures established by the Securities Depository
and its Participants. The County and the Registrar/Paying Agent will recognize the Securities Depository
Nominee, while die registered owner of this Note, as the owner of this Note for all purposes, including
payments of principal of and interest on tins Note, notices and '.oting. Transfer of principal and interest
payments to Participants of the Securities Depository will he the responsibility of the Securities Depository,
and transfer of principal and interest payments to beneficial owners of this Note by Participants of the
Securities Depository will be the responsibility' of such Participants and other nominees of such beneficial
owners. 'the County will not be responsible or liable for such transfers of payments or for maintaining.
supervision or reviewing the records maintained by the Securities Depository, the Securities Depository
Nominee, its Participants or persons acting through such Participants. While the Securities Depository
Nominee is the owner of this Note, notwithstanding the provision hereinabove contained, payments of
principal of and interest on this Note shall he made in accordance with existing arrangements between the
Registrar/Paying Agent or its successors tinder the Ordinance and the Securities Depository.

11' 15 HEREBY CERTIPIEI) AND RECITED that all acts, conditions and things required b the
Constitution and Statutes of the State of South Carolina to exist, to happen. or to be performed precedent to
or in the issuance of tIns Note do exist, have happened, and have been performed in regularand due time.
form and manner, and the amount of tlus Note does not exceed any constitutional or statutory limitation.

iN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lexington County, South Carolina. has caused this Note to be signed
in its name by tire manual signature of the Chairman of the Lexington County Council and its corporate
seal to he hereori reproduced and attested to by the manual signature of the Clerk to the Lexington County
Council.

LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

(SE1I L)

By
Chairman, I exington County Council

Attest'

Clei'k, Lexington County Council

E-2



CERTWICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This Note is one of the Note of the issue described in the within mentioned Ordinance.

REGISTRAR

By
Authorized Officer, Lexington County, South Carolina

Authentication Date:

B-3



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

I, the undersigned, Clerk of the County Council of Lexington County, South Carolina (''County
Council"), DO hEREBYCERTIFY:

That the foregoing constitutes a true, correct and verbatim copy of an Ordinance which was given
three (3) readings on three (3) separate days, with an interval of not less than seven (7) days between the
second and third readings. That each of said meetings was duly called, and all members of the County
Council were notified of the same; that ak/a majority of the membership were notified of each meeting and
remained throughout the proceedings incident to the adoption of this Ordinance. Such Ordinance has not
been amended, modified or rescinded as of the date hereof Ihe onginal of this Ordinance is duly entered
in the pennanent records of minutes of meetings of the County Council, in my custody as such Clerk..

IN WITNESS WhEREOF, I have hereunto set my f-land and the Seal of the County, this
day of _____________,2006.

(SEAL)

Clerk, County Council of Lexington County,
South Carolina

First reading: 2006

Second reading: _________ , 2006

Public Hearing: 2006

Third reading: _________ , 2006



Lexthgton County

ORDINANCE NO. p

AN ORDINANCE TO DEVELOP A JOINT INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS PARK IN
CONJUNCTION WITH SALUDA COUNTY, SUCH INDUSTRTAIJBUSINESS PARK
TO BE IMTIALLY GEOGRAPHICALLY LOCATED IN SALUDA COUNTY AND
ESTABLISHED PURSUANT TO SECTION 4-1-170 OF TIlE CODE OF LAWS OF
SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED; AND TO PROVIDE FOR A WRIY]TEN
AGREEMENT WITH SALUDA COUNTY TO PROVIDE FOR THE EXPENSES OF
THE PARK, THE PERCENTAGE OF REVENUE APPLICATION, AND
DISTRIBUTTON OF FEES IN LIEU OF AD VALOREM TAXATION.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUT'flY COUNCIL OF LEXiNGTON COUNTY,
SOUTH CAROLINA:

SECTION I: Lexington County is hereby authorized to jointly develop an industrial
and business park with Saluda County (the "Park"). The Park shall be located initially on lands
located in Saluda County only as authorized by Sec. 4-1-170 of the South Carolina Code of Laws
1976, as amended.

SECTION H: Lexington County will enter into a written agreement to develop the
Park jointly with Saluda County in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A and
incorporated herein by reference (the "Park Agreement"). The Chairman of Lexington County
Council is hereby authorized to execute the Park Agreement on behalf of Lexington County,
with such changes thereto as the Chairman shall deem, upon advice of counsel, necessary and do
not materially change the import of the matters contained in the form of agreement set forth in
Exhibit A.

SECTION ifi: The businesses or industries located in the Park will pay a fee in lieu of
ad valorem taxes as provided for in the Park Agreement. With respect to properties located in
the Lexington County portion of the Park, the fee paid in lieu of ad valorem taxes shall be paid to
the Treasurer of Lexington County. That portion of such fee allocated pursuant to the Park
Agreement to Saluda County shall be thereafter paid by the Treasurer of Lexington County to the
Treasurer of Saluda County within thirty (30) business days of receipt for distribution in
accordance with the terms of the agreement. With respect to properties located in the Saluda
County portion of the Park, the fee paid in lieu of ad valorem taxes shall be paid to the Treasurer
of Saluda County. That portion of such fee allocated pursuant to the Park Agreement to
Lexington County shall thereafter be paid by the Treasurer of Saluda County to the Treasurer of
Lexington County within thirty (30) business days of receipt for distribution in accordance with
the terms of the Park Agreement. Payments of fees in lieu of taxes will be made on or before the
due date for taxes for a particular year. Penalties for late payment will be at the same rate as late
tax payment. Any late payment beyond said date will accrue interest at the rate of statutory
judgment interest. The counties, acting by and through the Treasurers of Lexington County and
Saluda County, shall maintain all liens and rights to foreclose upon liens provided for counties in
the collection of ad valorem taxes.

Columbia: 786115 v I



SECTION IV: Any ordinances of Lexington County and Saluda County concerning
zoning, health and safety regulations, and building code requirements will apply for the
respective portions of the Park in Lexington County and Saluda County.

SECTION V: The Sheriffs Departments of Lexington County and Saluda County will
have jurisdiction to make arrests and exercise all authority and power within the boundaries of
the respective portions of the Park in Lexington County and Saluda County.

SECTION VI: Revenues generated from industries or businesses located in the
Lexington County portion of the Park and to be retained by Lexington County pursuant to the
Park Agreement shall be distributed within Lexington County in the following manner:

First, unless Lexington County elects to pay or credit the same from only those
revenues which Lexington County would otherwise be entitled to reeeie as
provided under "Third" below, to pay annual debt service on any special source
revenue bonds issued by Lexington County pursuant to, or to be utilized as a
credit in the manner provided in the second paragraph o1 Section 4-1-175, Code
of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, or any successor statutes or
provisions, payable in whole or in part by or from revenues generated from any
properties in the Park; and

Second, at the option of Lexington County, to reimburse Lexington County for
any expenses incurred by it in the development, operation, maintenance and
promotion of the Park or the businesses located therein;

Third, to those taxing districts, which overlap the applicable properties \vithin
Lexington County's portion of the Park, in a pro-rata fashion based on
comparative millage rates for the year in question of such taxing districts;

provided, however, that (i) all taxing districts which overlap the applicable properties within the
Park shall receive at least some portion of the revenues generated from such properties; and (ii)
all revenues receivable by a taxing entity in a fiscal year shall he allocated to operations and
maintenance and to debt service as determined by the governing body of such taxing entity; and
(iii) the County may, by ordinance, from time to time, amend the distribution of the fee in lieu of
tax payments to all taxing entities.

SECTION VTT: This Ordinance shall supereede and amend in its entirety any other
ordinances or resolutions of Lexington County Council pertaining to the Park.

SECTION VIII: Should any section of this Ordinance be, for any reason, held void or
invalid, it shall not affect the validity of any other section hereof which is not itself void or
invalid.

SECTION IX: This Ordinance shall be effective after third and final reading thereof

Columbia 7861 iS v 1 2



DONE in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of 2006.

LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

Chairman, Lexington County Council

ATTEST:

Lexington County Manager

1St Reading: _______________, 2006
7nd Reading: _______________, 2006
3rd Reading _______________, 2006

Public Hearing _______________, 2006

Columbia 7R61 15 vi 3



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLfNA
)

COUNTY OF LEXNGTON

I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Lexington County. South Carohna, (10
hereby certify that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance \Vl1!CI1
was given reading, and received majority approval, by the County Council at meelings of
__________ __________ and __________ which meetings a quorum of members of County Council
were prcscnt and voted, and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of
the County Council.

Clerk, Lexington County Council

Dated: 2006

CuluTlibla 786115 v 4



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF
) A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL

COUNTY OF SALIJDA ) AJ'D BUSINESS PARK
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

SALUDA AND LEXINGTON COUNTIES

THIS AGREEMENT for the development of a joint county industrial and business park

to be located within Saluda County and Lexington County is made and entered into as of this

____ day of ________________, 2006, by and between Lexington County and Saluda County.

WIT NE S SET I-I:

WHEREAS, Saluda County, South Carolina ("Saluda County") and Lexington County,

South Carolina ("Lexington County"), are contiguous counties which, pursuant to ordinance no.

09-06 adopted by Saluda County Council on ________________,2006, and ordinance no. _____

adopted by Lexington County Council on _____________, 2006 (collectively, the "Enabling

Ordinances"), have each determined that, in order to promote economic development and thus

provide additional employment opportunities within both of said counties, there should be

established in Saluda County and Lexington County a Joint County Industrial and Business Park

(the "Park"), initially to be located upon property described in Exhibit A hereto; and

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the establishment of the Park, property comprising the

Park and all property having a sims therein shall be exempt from ad valorem taxation pursuant to

Article \Tffl, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, but the owners or lessees of such

property shall pay annual fees in an amount equal to that amount for which such owner or lessee

would be liable except for such exemption;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement, representations and

benefits contained in this Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt

and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:

Columbia 784043 v I



1. Bindiut Agreement. This Agreement serves as a written instrument setting forth

the entire agreement between the panes and shall he binding on Saluda County and Lexington

County, and their successors and assigns.

2. Authorization. Article Viii. Section 13(D) of the Constitution of South Carolina

provides that counties may jointly develop an industrial or business park with other counties

within the geographical boundaries of one or more of the member counties, provided that certain

conditions specified therein are met and further provided that the General Assembly of the State

of South Carolina provides by law a manner in which the value of property iii such park will tic

considered for purposes of bonded indebtedness of political subdivisions and school districts and

for purposes of computing the index of taxpaying ability pursuant to any provision of law which

measures the relative fiscal capacity of a school district to support its schools based on the

assessed valuation of taxable property in the district as compared to the assessed valuation of

taxable property m all school districts in South Carolina. Section 4-1-70, Code of Laws of South

Carolina 1976. as amended (the "Code") satisfied the conditions imposed by Article Viii,

Section 13(D) of the Constitution and provides the statutory vehicle whereby a joint county

industrial or business park may he created.

3. Location of the Park.

(A) As of the date of this Agreement, the Park consists of properties located in Saluda

County only, as further identified in Exhibit A (Saluda) hereto. it is specifically recognized that

the Park may, from time to time, consist of non-contiguous properties within each county. The

boundaries of the Park may be enlarged or diminished from time to tune as authori7ed hy

ordinances of the County Councils of both Saluda County and Lexington County. If the Park

Coiuinb'a 784043w I 1



encompasses all or a portion of a municipality, the counties must obtain the consent of the

municipality prior to creation of thc Park.

(B) In the event of any enlargement or diminution of the boundaries of the Park, this

Agreement shall be deemed amended and there shall be attached hereto a revised Exhibit A

(Saluda) or Exhibit B (Lexington) as the case may be, which shall contain a legal description of

the boundaries of the Park, as enlarged or diminished, together with a copy of the ordinances of

Saluda County Council and Lexington County Counci] pursuant to which such enlargement or

diminution was authorized.

(C) Prior to the adoption by Saluda County Council and by Lexington County Council

of ordinances authorizing the diminution of the boundaries of the Park, scparate public hearings

shall first be held by Saluda County Council and by Lexington County Council. Notice of such

public hearings shall be published in newspapers of general circulation in Saluda County and

Lexington County, respectively, at least once and not less than fifteen (15) days prior to such

hearing. Notice of such public hearings shall also be served in the manner of service of process

at least fifteen (15) days prior to such public hearing upon the owner and, if applicable, the lcsscc

of any real property which would be excluded from the Park by virtue of the diminution.

(D) The owner, or, if applicable, lessee of any property located \vithrn the Park, may

remove personal property from the Park at any time, and the owner of property may sell the

property owned by such owner at any time, unless specifically prohibited otherwise.

4. Fee in Lieu of Taxes. Pursuant to Article Vifi, Section 13(D), South Carolina

Constitution, property located in the Park shall be exempt from ad valorem taxation. The owners

or lessees of any property situated in the Park shall pay in accordance with this Agreement an

amount (referred to as fees in lieu of ad valorem property taxes) equivalent to the ad valorern

Columbia 784O43 I 3



property taxes that would have been due and payable but For the location of such property within

the Park.

5. Allocation of Expenses. Saluda County and Lexington County shall hear

expenses, including, but not limited to, development, operation, maintenance and promotion of

the Park and the cost of providing public services, in the Following proportions:

Ifpropertv is in Saluda County portion of the Park:

(1) Saluda County 100%

(2) Lexington County 0/

If property is in Lexington County portion of the Park:

A. Saluda County 0%

B. Lexington County 100%

6. Allocation of Revenues. Saluda County and Lexington County shall receive an

allocation of all revenue generated by the Park through payment of fees in lieu of ad valorem

property taxes or from any other source in the following proportions:

If property is in Saluda County portion of the Park:

A. Saluda County 99%

B. Lexington County 1%

lfproperty is in Lexington County portion of the Park:

A. Saluda County 1%

B. Lexington County 99%

7. Revenue Allocation Within Each County.

(A) Revenues generated by the Park through the payment of fees in lieu of ad valoreni

property taxes shall be distributed to Saluda County and to Lexington County. as the case may

Columbia: 7S4(143 v 1 4



be, according to the proportions established by Paragraph 6 herein. With respect to revenues

allocable to Saluda County or Lexington County by way of fees in lieu of taxes generated within

its own County (the "Host County"), such revenue shall be distributed within the Host County in

the manner provided by ordinance of the county council of the Host County; provided, that (i)all

taxing districts which overlap the applicable revenue-generating portion of the Park shall receive

at least some portion of the revenues generated from such portion, and (ii) with respect to

amounts receivable in any fiscal year by a taxing entity, the governing body of such taxing entity

shall allocate the revenues received to operations ancL/or debt service of such entity. Each Host

County is hereby specifically authorized to usc a portion of revenue for economic development

purposes as permitted by law and as established by act of the County Council of the Host

County.

(B) Revenues allocable to Saluda County by way of fees in lieu of taxes generated

within Lexington County shall be distributed solely to Saluda County Revenues allocated to

Lexington County by way of fees in lieu of taxes generated within Saluda County shall be

distributed solely to Lexington County.

8. Fees hi Lieu of Taxes Pursuant to Title 4, Code of Laws of South Carolina. It is

hereby agreed that the entry by Saluda County into any one or more fee in lieu of tax agreements

pursuant to Title 4 or Title 12 of the Code with respect to property located within the Saluda

County portion of the Park and the terms of such agreements shall be at the sole discretion of

Saluda County, Likewise, entry by Lexington County into any one or more fee in lieu of tax

agreements pursuant to Title 4 or Title 12, of the Code as amended, with respect to property

located within the Lexington County portion of the Park and the tern's of such agreements shall

be at the sole discretion of Lexington County.

Columbia 784043 v.1 5



9. Assessed Valuation. For the purpose of calculating the bonded indebtedness

limitation and for the purpose of computing the index of taxpaying ability pursuant to Section

59-20-20(3) of the Code, allocation of the assessed value of property within the Park to Saluda

County and Lexington County and to each of the taxing entities within the participating counties

shall he identical to the allocation of revenue received and retained by each of the counties and

by each of the taxing entities within the participating counties, pursuant to Paragraph 6 and 7

herein.

10. Severability. In the event and to the extent (and only to the extent) that any

provision or any part of a provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by

any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable the

remainder of that provision or any other provision or part ofa provision olthis Agreement

11. Termination. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,

Saluda County and Lexington County agree that this Agreement shall terminate after _____ years

from the effective date hereoC provided, however, that the parties may agree to extend the term

of this Agreement by written instrument duly authorized by each County.

[Signature Page Follows.]

Columbia 7R4043 V I 6



WITNESS our hands and seals as of the date first above written.

SALUDA COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA

(SEAL)

Chairman, Saluda County Council

ATTEST:

Clerk to Council, Saluda County Council

LEXINGTON COUT'fl7Y, SOUTH CAROLINA

(SEAL)

Chairman, Lexington County Council

ATTEST:

Clerk to Council, Lexington County Council

Columbia 784043 v 1 7



EXHI1III' A

SALUDA COUNI'Y PROPERTWS



EXHIBIT B

LEXINGTON COUNTY PROPERTIES

None as of / /2006



The Conmñttee Minutes are left out intentionally untfl approved by the
Committee. Upon the Committee's approval, the minutes will be available on the
internet.



RESOLUTION

IN SUPPORT OF THE ISSUANCE BY THE SOUTH CAROLINA
JOBS-ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF ITS ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT REVENUE BONDS (GOODWILL INDUSTRIES OF UPPER
SOUTH CAROLINA, INC. PROJECT) SERIES 2006, PURSUANT TO 'tilE
PROVISIONS OF TITLE 41, CHAPTER 43, OF THE CODE OF LAWS OF
SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED, IN TIlE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL
AMOUNT OF NOT EXCEEDING $14,000,000.

WTIEREAS, the South Carolina Jobs-Economic Development Authority (the "Authouly") is
authonzed and empowered under and pursuant to the provisions of Title 41, Chapter 43, of the Code of
Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the "Act"), to utilize any of its program funds to establish loan
programs for the pm-pose of reducing the cost of capital to business enterprises which meet the eligibility
requirements of Section 41-43-150 of the Act and for other purposes descnbed in Section 41-43-160 of the
Act and thus provide maximum opportunities for the creation and retention ofjobs and improvement of the
standard of living of the citizens of the State of South Carolina; and

WhEREAS, the Authority is further authonzed by Section 41-43-110 of the Act to issue revenue
bonds, payable by the Authonty solely from a revenue producing source and secured by a pledge of said
revenues, to defray the cost a business enterpnse as defined in the Act; and

WhEREAS, the Authonty and Goodwill Industnes of Upper South Carolina, Inc., a South
Carolina corporation (the "Burrower"), entered into an Inducement Agreement dated April 17, 2006 (the
"Inducement Agreement"), pursuant to which and in order to implement the public purposes enumerated in
the Act, and in furtherance thereof to comply with the undertakings of the Authority pursuant to the
Inducement Agreement, the Authonty proposes, subject to such approval of the State Budget and Control
Board of South Carolina and Lexington County as may be required by law, to issue not exceeding
$14,000,000 aggregate pnneipal amount of its Economic Development Revenue Bonds (Goodwill
Industries of Upper South Carolina, Inc Project) Series 2006 (the "Bonds"), under and pursuant to Section
41-43-110 of the Act for the purpose of financing or refinancing, as applicable, all or a portion of the
following: (a) the costs of the acquisition, construction, renovation, equipping and installation, as
applicable, of land, buildings, equipment, fixtures and furnishings constituting facilities related to
providing opportumty for work and employment for and training of people with disabilities and other
harriers to employment, to include centers for the donation, processing and resale andlor auction of
various household goods and vehicles, and office space and related facilities and activities in thrtheranee
of the Borrower's mission on an approximately 2 acre lot located on the north side of West Main Street
immediately west of 754 West Main Street in Lexmgton, South Carolina (the "Project'); and (h) costs
pertaining to the issuance of the Bonds; and

WITEREAS, the Project will be owned by or leased to and operated by the Borrower, an
organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; and

'WHEREAS, the Borrower is projecting that the assistance of the Authority by the issuance of the
Bonds will result in maintaining employment of approximately S full-time people and by providing
employment for approximately 2 additional full-time people within 12 months from Lexington County
and surrounding areas and that the portion of the Project located in Lexington County will stimulate the



economy of Lexington County and surrounding areas by mci-eased payrolls. capital investment and tax
revenues; and

W1{EREAS, the County Council of Lexington County and the Authority have on this date jointly
held a public hearing, duly noticed by publication in a newspaper having general circulation in I exington
County, not less than 15 days prior to the date hereof, at which all interested persons have been given a
ieasonahle opportunity to express their views;

NOW, THEREFORE. BE IT RESOLVED by the County Council of Lexington County. South
Carolina. as follows:

SFCTTON 1. It is hereby Ibund. determined and declared that the Project is anticipated to benefit
the general public welfare of Lexington County by providing services, employment. recreation, or other
public benefits not othenvise provided locally.

SFC1ION 2. The Project will not give rise to any pecuniary liability of Lexington County or a
chargc against its general credit or taxing power.

SECTION 3. 'l'he amount of bonds required to finance the Project is set forth above No reserve
fund is required to be established.

SECTION 4. The County Council of Lexington County supports the Authority in its determination
to issue the Bonds to deftay the costs related to the Project

SECTION S. All orders and resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are to the extent of
such conflict hereby repealed, and this resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its
adoption.

Adopted this day olSeptember, 2006.

LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTh CAROLINA

(SEAL)

Chairman. County Council of
Lexington County, South Carolina

Attest:

Clerk to County Council of
Lexington County, South Carolina



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

I, the undersigned Clerk of the County Council of Lexington County, South Carolina, do hereby
certif3' that the foregoing is a true, correct and verbatim copy of a Resolution duly adopted at a meeting of
said County Council held on September , 2006, at which meeting a quorum was at all times present.

WITNESS MY HAND this_____ day of September, 2006.

Clerk to County Council of
Lexmgton County, South Carolina



LEXINGTON COUNTY

Mr. Bobby Keisler
163 Gravedigger Road
Lexington, SC 29073

Dear Mr. Keisler:

July 26, 2006

Enclosed is a Resolution for consideration by your governing body regarding the
request by the Town of South Congaree to become a member of the Commission. They
have completed all other requirements for membership.

Please have this matter considered by your governing body at your next meeting.
If you have any questions, please feel free to call me.

WCB :srrn
cc Stephanie R. Morton, Commission Clerk

Sincerely,

General Manager

Post Office Box i 966 ' Lexington South Carolina 29071 • Telephone (803) 359-8373 • Fax (803) 359-6553

lP.mc.ss THROIJOK COOPERAT1ONI



A JOINT RESOLIJFION APPROVING TEL APPLICATION OF TI-IF TOWN OF SOUTH
CONGAREE TO JOIN Till: LEXINGTON COUNTY JOINT MUNICIPAL \VATR AN!)
SEWER COMMTSSION AND OTHER MATTERS RELA'I'!NG THERETO

\V1—IITREAS, the own of South Congaree, South Carolina, is a body politic and

corporate and a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina (tile ' Member'') wili liii!
ilOwei' and ant ii on ty to o per; t c a vat en an ci sewer system w tin n its service a rca; and

WHEREAS. the ,loint Municipal \Vater Systems Act, Title 6. Chapter 25 of the Code of
Laws of South Carolina. 1976. a amended (the Act") atrthior-ii,cs innnicipa[ities (as defined iii the
Act to include counties. towns, and cities, consolidated political subdivisions; coninnssioners of
public works; and, any agency or public body created by the General j\ssenibiv or under die laws
of' South Catolina and eneaged in the sale and service of' water for industrial and domestic
purposes) to form a lonlt nninicipal nater system tinder die t\ct for the purposes of plannntg.
Iniancing, developing, constructing, acquiring, irnpioving, enlarging. selling, leasing,
maintaining, and opei'atirig a pro ect For the present and Ititrire needs of their service areas and oh'
the areas of tile State in 'li cli hey serve; and

WHEREAS, the Lexington Counts' Joint Municipal Water and Sewer Commission (tIle
''System'') was chartered on October 7. 1992. and its ntientibers include Lexington County, South
Carolina, and tile municipalities of Cavce. Pelion. Swansea. West Columbia, l,exnigton.
Ratesburg—Leesville, Sprintidale, Gaston and the Gmlhert Stitninit Rural Water District
(collectively the "Participants'), and

\Vl—IERFAS. the Member has filed a resolution with the Commission mdicaling its desire
to join the Participants iii the System for the following reasons'

i) The Meniber and the Participants provRle services in Lexington Conniy, South
Carolina (tile ''County'') which has no dominant supplier of water and sewer services capable of
prov id i rig s rich ser' ices t Iii ou gh out tIle Cou iit';

(ii) N'tticfi of the County is undet served for water and sewer services \\ h ich lack of
service adversely affects the abilit of' the County to attract new industrial. commercial. mcI
residential development.

(iii) Many of the smaller municipal svstenis in [lie County face requirements For the
upgrade of existing systems to new' federal amId! state standards. the cost w hich cannot i'easonably
be borne by tile relatively sinaI I rate base of stich systems;

(iv) There is a need in the County for ;t vehicle by w Inch the existing providei's nay
coordinate their act iv iii esancl investment in new eapac tv for treatment, collection, and
distribution so as to provide waler and sewer services at rates that aire reasonable for the residents
of' the Cotni' and the nnnicipalities located therein and to attract new industrial, commercial.
and residential development.

(\) The absence of count\ wide systems and Ge need for upgrading exist aig systems
poses potential health lia'zarcls to the residents of the Menilier and the Participants;

(vi) 'I'he Member believes that joining the System w'm II thcilitate the development of
tile use and tile capacity of the Plant and that by oining the Participants, the System 'a ill become



a better vehicle to undertake new projects for the provision of water and sewer treatment services
which cannot feasibly be undertaken without such ajoint agency; and

WHEREAS, this resolution is being presented in separate meeting to each of the
Participants for adoption as ajoint resolution;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IF RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE
COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA, IN MEETING DULY CALLED AND
A S S EM B LED

SECTION 1. The application of the Member tojoin with the Participants in the System
is hereby approved.

SECTION 2. Each of the Participants herby authorizes its Mayor (County
Administrator in the case of the County) and its representative to the System to execute such
documents and thing as are necessary to proceed with the acceptance of the Member into the
System and the filing of a statement of change in membership with the Secretaty of State of
South Carolina.

Done in meeting duly assembled this day of August, 2006.

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

By:___________________
Mayor of Town Council

(SEAL)

ATTEST:

Clerk



4 CcLr,Ty

Ms Katherine Doueett
Lox in gte n County Ad mu seat tor
212 South LuRe Di Re
Lexington, SC 29072

July 17. 2006

Re

Dear Katherine

Recinested change to LIuC 208 \Vatot Q at ty Management Plan for the
Central Midlands Region (relates only to sower).

Lexington County Joint N'iuiuioipal \Vaior and Sower Commission Las enclosed
the signed and dated letters that mncheatocl i hat the Fe! lowim g maui emualities stippor the
ehauge From Lexington Cot nlv to the Lexington Cootii' Joint iviuni cipal Wa mc and
Sower Commission

The City of Cayce has not acted on this roclue;t as oi the date of this letter, once
they hoee approved or d isapIdi OVen thC rOCltiest t \Vi II ide to \Vardiedl

The Commission i eq nest that LeA inglon Coui i ty Cotitici I Oviev this niormation.
and iecnmest tad support this issue at Contmtml Midlands.

Commission employees are avmt table to moot with Lexington Co unty Council to
discuss and answer any questions

S IiNd :s cm

Si nec.rel y,/c/
Stephen i-h Ni ann

Assistant Ceucial Maimugei

cc Bobby Kemslet

William C Bull, LC JN4WSC

Fas Odice Lox 1 961; LaxHa-ro;u SortS OamtIF'a I (elasIwi iS (SOS ,brt•5373 Fax (395) C59-6s53



Auc 06 06 12:17p CITY OF CRYCE 003 7969072 p.S

-fl"ciow LJNn

Mayor Aven- Willcerson, Jr
P0 Rox sog7
Columbia,. SC 29202

Dear Mayor:

May 2, 2006

There apparently was a misunderstanding recently involving the LexingtonCount', Council arid the Comn-iissinn regarding the issue of Managoment Agrncy
Designation for the 208 \Vater Quality Management Plan for the Central Midlands
Region (relates onls to sewer).

The role of the Management Agency is to truplernent the Water Quality
Management Plan for its designa:ed area to ensure effective regional plamtlrg, to
promote orderly development of sewer infrastructure, to meet nrojec:ed demands. and to
foster economic deveiopmen, II does NOT mean that the Management Agency must bethe sewer serviceprovider

In that Lexington Coun' is no longer in the sewer business, and, the Commissionneeds to be able to accomplish its role as Management Agency from a planning
perspective, the Corrtmjsston has requested that County Council support a revision of the
current 208 Plan, throueth the Central Midlands COG,designating the Commission as the
Management Agency for a ponion of the area currently assigned to Lexington County.
This change 'will NQI affect current public service providers who, by contract or
other-wise, serve areas within the designated planning area.

The overall 208 Plan is rather complicated and, therefore, could be
misunderstood The Commission has been directed by County Council to seek appsoval
from public entities within the affected area to ensure that there is no conflict in
considering this change,

If you have no concern regarding this matter, we request that the Mayor sign and
return this letter to the Commission. Ifyou have a concern, I request that 'you let me
know so we can meet with you to address any and all concerns you may have. We look
forward to working with you on this matter, and continuing to cooperate with all
Commission members in meeting the needs of Lexington County.

Date --

Post 0ce Box 956- Lexington South Carohna 29071 Teleohone (803) 359-8373 Fa (803) 359-6553

S• cml

C. Ru I
General Manager



Lx;:c7c,N CCUNTY

iosvn of Lexington
Post Office Box 397
Lexington, SC 29071

J)ear Mayor

June 21 2006

Thei-e apparently was a nusunderstandig rceen tly involving the Lexington
County Council and the Cojaunissiori regarding the issue of Management Agency
Designation for the 208 \Vater Quality Management Plan for the Central Midlands
Regton (relates ih to sewer).

The role of the Management Agency is to implement the Water Quality
Management Plan for its designated area to ensure effective egional planning, to
promote orderly development of sewer infi-astrueture, to meet projected demands, and to
foster economic development. [t does NOd' mean that the Management Agency must he
the sewer servmce provider.

tu that Lexington County is no longer in the sewer business, and the Commission
needs to he able to accomplish its role as Management Agency from a planning
perspective, the Commission has requested that Connty Council

support a revision of the
current 208 Plan, through the Central Midlands COG, designating time Commission as the
Management Agency for a portion of the area currently assigned to Lexington County.This change wid NOT affect current public sen'ice providers who, by contract 0!
otherwise, scm ye areas within the designated plarming area

[he overall 208 Plan is mather complicated and, therelbre, could he
nnsnndei stood. The Commission has been directed by County Council to seek approval
Porn public entities within the affected area to ensui e that there is 110 conflict in
considering tIns change.

If you have no concern regarding tins
mnatem, we request that the Mayom sign and

return this lctter to the Commission. If
you have a concern, T request that you let inc

know so we can meet with yoti to address any and all conceins you may have. We look
forward to working with you on this matter, and comiti nung to cooperame with all
Conunission members in meeting the needs of Lexington Counly

\Vijliam C. Bnll

General Manager

_y7' ayor
c,v 1Q( I

/

JDate



E;Nc;n;4 CCJ;4T,

Mayor Pat Smith
2915 hiatt Snrins Rd
Spi iambic. SC 29170

Deat Mayor

N'bay 2. 2006

There a itp ttre n ift
County Council and the
Designation Pot- the 208
Region (ielates only to scorer)

The mole ol the Management Agency is 10 implemneill the Water ualitv
bianagemuent P]aii for its designated ai en to ensnre effective m-eeoiiai pitnmniitg, to
liroinote ordelv developnieitt 01 sewer inhnstrucinre. 10 meet prOjECtetl deimiand , and to
mater economic development It does NOl' amean that ]tc N1amiagemnemmt '\genev must he
the server servIce pi-ovider.

In that Lexington County is no longer in the sewer business, and the Comimmission
needs to he able to accomplish its role as Ma nagcntcmat Agency coal a talanning
perspective, the Commission has i-equested that Conittv Counet] support a revm a ion ol the
current 208 Plan, tLrotrgh the Central Midlands COO desianamitto the Commission as mime
Management \ genev for a portion of' the area currently assigned to Lexingion Cotmnty.
This chance will NIT alihet current public scivice prov'ders who. hy contract ot
otherwise, serve areas within the designated planning area

[he overall 208 Plan is rathet complicated and, iherelbre, could be
misunderstood. 'Ihe Commission has been directed by Cot]ntr' Council to seek approval
Corn public entities within the affected area to ensure that theme is "o conflict in
coosmdering uris clranoc,

If you have no concern regarding this matter. we teqnest that the bIas or sign and
return this letter to the Commission If you have a concer-in I request that voim let tue
know so we can meet ni th you to address any and all concerns you may have bYe I onk
forward to working with you on tins rrtatter and comatiimtnng to cooperate with all
Commission members iii meeting she needs of I ex ngtc'i County.

71 ayor

Shtberely.

/Jt/(tcKLt
\Villiatn C. Bull
Cetiral Mt'rer7/

was a mismnìderstamsdint; recently
Comnuirssicms regai ding the msstme

V/at cc Quality Man a get-n en P] au

invnlvtiti the Lexingmomt
of Managemrient Agency

liar the Central 'vitetlands



Lrx:':GTCN CC.LN ri'

Mayor James I. Sharpe
P0 Box 164
Gaston, SC 29053

May 2. 2006

Dear N'faor:

There apparently was a misunderstanding recently involving the Lexington
County Conneil and the Commission regarding the issue of Management Agency
Designation for the 208 Water Qurtlity Management Plan for tire Central Midlands
Region (relates only to sewer).

The role of tire Management Agency is to Implement the Water Quality
Management P]an for its designated area to ensure effective regional planning, to
promote orderly development of sewer inftas1ruetnre to meet projected demands, and to
foster economic development. It does NOT mean lInt the Management Agency mnst he
the sewer service provider.

In that Lexington County is no longer in the sewer business, and the Commission
needs to he able to accomplish its role as Management Agency Porn a planning
perspective, the Commisson has requested that County Council suppoi a revision of the
current 208 Plan, tough the Central Midlands COG, designating ihe Commission as the
Management Agency for it pothon of the area cunently assigned to Lexington County.
fhis change will NOl' affect current public service providers who, by contract or
otherwise, sewe areas within tire designated plairning area

The overall 208 Plan is rather complicated and, thereibre, could he
misunderstood The Commission has been directed by County Council to seek appro\al
from public entities within the affected area to ensure that there is no conflict in
considering this change.

If you have no concern regarding this matter, we request that the Mayor sign and
return this letter to the Commission. If you have a concern, I request that you let ne
know so we can meet with you to address aily and all concerns yon may have. We look
forward to working with you on this matter, and continuing to eoopernte with all
Commission naeinbcrs in ineeti ig the needs of Lexington County.

Mayor

rncerely,

\Vlllianl C. Bull
General Manager

5.- 5-ci6
Date



icr,! CCUNIY

Manor Bobby E Ho ton

HO Box 4014

\Vest Columbia, PC 29171

Heat Mayct-:

klan A 2006

County Council and the Couscitissioti cc trdtiig the issue of ebt actnertt 1\getten
f)esignruton for the 202 Water Quality Nlattageitteict Plan hi the Cc-tittal Mkllirncls

Resiun (relates only to sewer)

'lhe iofo (ii the Mattageitteiti Agency is to tntple:umt the \Vatcc Quality

iMannnemeitt Plait for its tlesictiated circa to ensure c ffeett\ C rcgiuriiil planning, to

lin)ntote orderly cleveb pmcnt of sewer itifl astruetrite, to meet pixyected (leniatids and to
foster economic development. It does OT mean that the Matiageinent Aneuca twist be
[lie sewer service pros ider.

In that Lexington County is no longer in 'lie sewcr business, and the Cotnciiission

needs to he ahie to accomplish its role as N'l:tuasensetit Agency front plancicng

the Commission has requested that Cotinlv Council support a revision of the

current 208 Plan, throuelt the Central Midlands COG, destenat;ng the Conuitission as the
Managenient Agency for a portion of the area cnt-i-cntly assigned to Lexington County.

This change will NOT affect current public scrvce çsroviders rOta. liv eoitti-act or
cthejwise. serve (fleas within the desienated planning! area

The overall 20$ Plan is tather complicated and, tlterctotc. could he
inissindeistood. The Commission has been directed by Caunty Conned to seek appional
flout public entities rvitlun the atfected ama to ensut-e that there is no conflict in
considering tlu s change

If you hai e no concern regarding this matter. we request tIed the L-layct sign and
return this letter to the Commission If you have a concern, I request that yott let cue
know so we can mcci wili on to address ann and all cuncet us ott nitty have. We lorslc
forwatci to worlenig with you cit this mattet. and contintittig o ceaperatc with all
Cotttuussion members in meeting tice needs of hex]ngtnu County

/

1)a to

iDrct flt[!r.m P''' I 0515 •

thncerely.

frtL
\\'ilhmi C. Bull

General Manasci

ErcrrY. rHior1c.,i ceorerAvcrJS]



LEXr N Ore N CO JN

Ni ityor .1 ames Wiszowaty
(hOC) NV. Go! umbi a Ave

I3atesbtirg-Leesvi]Ie, SC 29070

May 2. 2006

Dccii Ni ctyor'

There apparently was a niisunriersanding recently mi c.lving the Lexition
Cut ty Cu tincli naG the Cunintission rccn ci gthe;saue a f tanage mont Agency
Design ation for the 208 Water Quality Ni anageinent Plan for the Ccnti-al Mid lands
Region (relates only to sewer)

The role of the Management Agorey is to jmpleinen' the Wator Quality
Management P1 an for its designated at en 10 easui-e effective i egional planning, to
promote orderly development of sewet infrasti ueture, to meet projected demands, and to
foster economic development. [t does NOT niena that the Management Agency must be
(lie se\Ver service provider.

In that Lexington Coun is no longer in lie sower business and the Comaiisstoii
teeds to he able to accomplish its role as Management Aget icy from a plat uiiiig
perspective, the Commission has i eqtiested I hat County Council support a revision iii the
current 208 Plan, through the Central Ni idhinds COG, designating the Cominissioti as I lie
Management Agency for a portion of (lie area currently assigned to Lexington County.
'his change will NOT affect curront public service providers who, by contract or

otherwise, serve areas within Ihe designated planning area
The overall 208 Plan is rather complicated and, rhet-efore, co tild be

n isundorstood The Commission has been cluected by County Council to seek apol oval
ft oni public entities within the affected at ea to ensure that ihere is no con 11 let in
considering this change.

If you have no concern regarcliiig Otis matter, we request thrit the Mayor sign and
I e turn this letter to the Commission. If you have a concern, J request that you let I tic
lciioiv so we can meet with you to acldi ess any and all conceins you may have. \Ve look
fin ward to working with you on this matter, and continuing to cooperate \vi th all
Conitit issi on members in nieeti ng the iicc'ds of Leaington County.

f 5RESSTN T'UGhI COOP LINATIONI

Date



LEX iCTO COUt.T I

Mayor Charles M/ f-Iaogooj
I owit o He] ion
PC Ihox 7

June 21. 2006

Pehoii, SC 29123

Deit Mayor

bee apparently was a oiisunderstaitciiitg recenilv invols-inci he Leaingtoit
County Councti and the Conitut sston egat dug lie issue of h-I nit ernent Agency
Designation fbi- he 20S Water Quality Minagenicaii ['Ian for the Centrai iv]tdlands

Region (relates only to sea-cur)
The rotc of the Management Agency is to 'iiip]eiiient the V/nier Qtialiy

hianageineni fan for its designated area to ensure efkenve regional pianring. ta
promote orderly development of sewer mirastructuro, to meet prcrcted demands, and to

foster economic cievcloprnent. It (toes hill mean that thu Manacetoetir /gencv must he

the sewer xci vice pi-ovider
In that Lexington County is no ]otiuer in the sewer business, ann the Coiniussioti

neenk to he able to accomplish its 1010 05 Maii:igcmeiit Acency ftom a planiiing
peispective, the Coninussion has requested that County Council support a rerisioti of the
ourient 208 Plan. tHough the Central hlidlaiic]s COG, designating the Commission as the
Management Agency for a portion of the atea Gui I eiiity ttssigncd m L;—angtoo County
'[his change will hOT affect etirrent public 5€rviee IO Vi clers who, by coonact or
oWe] \VISC. serve areas within the designated planning itteni

The ovein]] 208 Plan is tatfer complicated and. tbeieFore. could be

iii I snnnlerstood 'the Comm issi on has been di rooted by Coun or Council io seek niupi oval

Pont public entities within the affected area to eilstire that theie ix no conilict in
considei ing this change

If you have no concern regarding this matter, we I erjuest that thc h—favor sign and
return tins letter to the Commission if you have a coiicein. I request that you tet inc
know so ave can meet with you to address any and at] concerns you may have \Ve took
fbi avai d to avoi king avi th you ott this mat [ci ,aiid eunti iiiniig to cooi atew hit a]]

Coiiiiaiissiou inciohcrs ut meeting the needs of Lexington County

8ieere-ly, 4

7e,L(LV//
TVi!]ain C I3u]

Cenei nil Manager

/

]tcecnFss 18RCUr:I C,,OF

/2 /�ia/ Date
O- r --fl------ -



LEXNC [CU CCJNY

Mayor Ray Spires
00 Box 429

Swansea. SC 29160

Dear Mayor:
1 Iieroappai-ently was a misunderstanding

County Conned and tire Commission regarding die

May 2, 2006

Designation for the 208 Waler Quality Management Plan for the Central Midlands

The role of the Management Agency is to implement the Water Quality
N4anagement Plan for its designated area to ensure effective regional planning, to
promote orderly development of sewer infrastructure to meetprojected demands, anti lo
bster economic development, it does NOT mean that the Managcinent Agency must he
tire sewer service provider.

In that Lexington County is no longer in the sewer business, and the Coniinission
needs to he able 10 accomplish its role as Management Agency from a planning
perspective, the Commission has requested that County Council support a revision of the
eunent 208 Plan, through the Central Midlands COG, designating theCommission as the
Management Agency for a podion of the area cunently assigned to Lexington County.This change will NOT affect current public service providers who, by contract or
otherwise, serve areas within the designated planning area.

208 Plan is rather complicated and, therefore, could he
misunderstood. I'he Commission has been directed by Connty Council to seek approval
from public entities within the affected area to ensuro that there is no conflict in
considering this change.

If you have no concern regarding this matter, we request that the Mayor sign and
return this letter to tneCommission If you have a concern, I request that you let, inn
know so we can meet with you to address any and all concei-ns you may have We look
forwai d to work ing with you on this matter, and continuing to cooperate with all
Commission members in meeting the needs ofLexington County.

C 0A7 IC N

Region (relates only to sewer)

recently involving the Lexington
issue of Management i\oency

The overall

S eerely,

William C. flul

pneral N'ianager



IJ
ni

ac
nc

nI
 

A
rc

/'n
 

fin
 

C
l 

ilr
jl 

P
'll

IL
ni

 k 

/ 

E
l 

E
l-'

--
 

E
l 

C
i- 

E
l 

-"
-"

- E
l- 

E
l 

E
l' 

E
l 

E
l''

 

E
l—

--
 

E
l—

 

E
l 

E
l 

E
l 

'-—
--

 E
l 

E
l'-

--
 

E
l 

- 

- 

1/
 7 - 

H
'--

- 

--
- // U
 

- 

N
 / 2-

- 

--
 

- 

- 

-/
I-

 '' 

- / 

- 1_
7 

/ 1'
- 

\(
 / Ll

_ 

/ - - - 

- H
 

-I
I _/

_ 

-\
 

N
- 

7 I_
 

''N
 5 U

—
 -j 

--
3 

/ / 



W
as

te
w

at
er

 M
an

ag
en

ie
nt

 A
rc

as
 in

 th
e 

C
en

tr
al

 M
id

la
nd

s 
R

eg
io

n 

Le
ge

nd
 

P
riv

at
e 

S
er

vi
ce

 
A

re
as

 
ee

l 
cv

oe
ea

 

in
: 

Ii ;
ir,

rr
,e

..r
, 

C
S

 is
le

V
.e

i S
ee

e 
Li

lli
l s

 5
ur

ro
t c

:j,
 

lo
on

_a
 

U
_l

ay
 
i,.

 
Lc

C
i 

ht
5i

: R
an

t v
irs

co
i-n

rn
n-

 
L_

_J
 

ce
ci

l: 

P
ub

lic
 li

an
ag

e 
m

et
er

 A
 ye

nc
pe

 
__

__
_ 

F
 i4

d 
C

S
c i

cy
 

U
ne

n 
at

 

<
e 

ce
o 

C
i 

Le
ei

oa
ns

ee
O

eL
ar

: 
re

es
e'

 L
ei

oy
'a

n 

ic
ea

nU
es

y 
C

oa
st

, 
V

A
S

 v
s l

ai
r0

 
T

ee
n:

 I 
F

vi
vi

te
nd

 
C

ou
nt

y 
C

S
en

et
uv

u:
ec

e 

LI
II 

B
ni

ni
ia

-L
e 

si
R

e 
vu

 
no

Ii.
ln

S
'e

 M
e 

A
ce

 C
S

ji 
A

c 

S
er

ve
, &

ea
n 

or
 
pi

vo
ts

 
iie

ss
bu

un
 a

re
 e

rr
as

 c
A

er
e 

th
e 

S
co

tt 
C

er
at

ne
 

P
ub

lic
 S

en
 
a.

 C
 s

rn
,r

s,
iS

i 
he

n 
eu

th
oe

ze
 d

 rh
o 

so
 u

 S
tR

ee
ts

 P
iO

 0
 0

 

F
ig

uu
e%

 
0r

o1
4 

- 
G

O
U

 L
D

IN
G

 
-' 

se
° 



The Committee Minutes are left out intentionally until approved by the
Committee. Upon the Committee's approval, the minutes will be available on the
internet.



APPOINTMENTS-BOARDS&COMMISSIONS

August 22, 2006

JIM KINARE)
Children's Shelter - Suzanne Clark - Term expires 06/30/06 - Eligible for reappointment
Planning Commission - Warren L. Cope Terms expires 08/26/06 - Eligible for reappointment

BILLY DERRICK
Museum Commission — Louise J. Riley - Term expires 11/01/06 - NTot eligible for reappointment

SMOKEY DAVIS
Children's Shelter - David S. Hipp - Term expires 06/30/06 - Not eligible for reappointment
Museum Commission - Kelley Mintz - Term expires 11/01/06 - Eligible for reappointment

BOBBY KEISLFLR

Planning Commission - Billy F. irwin - Term expires 08/26/06 - Eligible for reappointment

JOHNNY JEFFCOAT
Assessment Appeals Board - Vacant - Term expires 09/21/07
Museum Commission - Sandra Burdett - Term expired 11/01/05 - Not eligible for reappointment

JOHN CARRICC
Assessment Appeals Board - Vacant - Term expires 09/21/06
Children's Shelter - Vacant - Term expired 6/30/01
Museum Commission - Vacant - Term expires 11/01/06

TODD CULLUM
Children's Shelter - Vacant - Term expired 6/30/03
Board of Zoning Appeals - Marvin Stanley Smith - Term expired 12/31/05 - Eligible for

reappointment



AIKEN/BARNWFThIJLFXINGTON COUNTIES COMMUNITY ACTION COMMISSION. INC.
Juaiiiee Aaron — Term expired 12/31/05 — Eligible for reappointment

BUILDING COl)E BOARD OF APPEALS
Plumbing — Pony K imbiI I — Term expired 3/13/03 — Nor eligible for reappointment

MIDLANDS WORKEORCE I)EVEIOPMENT BOARD
Vacant - Term expires 06/30/07

Jhkc1apittil 1,11 Jiwnt



Ca:

/ ,MIDLANDS WORKFORCEW JDEVELOPMENT BOARD
Working Together for Tomorrow's Work force

August 4, 2006

Mr. Todd Cullum, Chairman
Lexington County Council
212 South Lake Drive
Lexington, SC 29072

Dear Mr. Cullum:

Enc!osed 2re two nomnat:on forms for the vacancy of the 'Jocaticna! Rehab:htct:cn
seat. This seat was previously occupied by Todd Blake and his term expires on June
30, 2007. Mr. Blake has moved recently and is no longer ir compliance with the
County's residence request.

The two nominations from SC Vocational Rehabilitiation bo:h meet the residency
requirement by residing in Lexington County. Mr. Hewett served as the Lexington Area
Supervisor and Ms. Brasher s a Counselor in the Lexington Vocational Rehabilitation
office. We are requesting one of these nominations be appointed to the Midlands
Workforce Development Board to complete Mr. Blake's term.

The Board and I appreciate the continued support of Council as we work together to
serve the residents of Lexington County and improve their standard of living and quality
of life. If you need any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me at
(803) 744-1670 ext 101.

Sincer ly,

Bonnie Austin, Director
Midlands Workforce Investment Area

Enclosure

iOO Executrve center Drive, Sute 218• columbia, South Carolina 29210 • Phone. (803) 744-1671
www midlandsworkforce.org



LEXINGTON COUNTY COUNCIL

BOARD/COMMISSION NOMINATION FORM

Name of Board/Commission: Midlands Workforce Development Board

Nominee: Mr. Roy Hewett

Address: 132 Twin Hickory Court, Lexing.t211, SC 29072

Employed by: SC Vocational Rehabilitation

Address: 1330 Boston Avenue, Columbia, SC 29170

Home Telephone: 356-2759 Business Telephone: 896-6377

Mobile Phone: 730-0938 Beeper Number: N/A

Fax Number: 896-6373

Is nominee aware of board/commission activities and responsibilities: As Area

Supervisor of the Lexington SCVR office, Mr Hewett has assigned an employee to work

closely with the One-Stop Centers in identifying and addressing the needs of people with

disabUities in order to assist them with the needed services to help them become gainfully

employed. This is a great resource for our clients as they assess training and employment

opportunities through the One-Stop Centers

Background information (include education, community- service activities, previous

service on county boards/commissions):

Bachelor of Science — Limestone college

Master of Public Administration — University of South Carolina

Member of the Lexington Chamber of Commerce

Member of the Lexington Technology Center Advisory Board

Former member of the Columbia Chamber of Commerce

Active member of First Baptist Church - Lexington

Submitted by:

Date:________________________



LEXINGTON COUNTY COUNCIL

BOARD/COMMISSION NOMINATION FORM

Name of Board/Commission: Midlands Workforce Development Board

Nominee: Mrs. Tracy Brasher

Address: 261 Hallmark Drive, Lexington, SC 29072

Employed by: SC Vocational Rehabilitation

Address: 1330 Boston Avenue, Columbia, SC 29170

Home Telephone: (803)358-6557 Business Telephone: (803)896-6333

Mobile Phone: none Beeper Number: none

Fax Number: (803) 896-6373

Is nominee aware of board/commission activities and responsibilities: As a Vocational

Rehabilitation Counselor in the Lexington SCVR office, Mrs. Brasher identifies and addresses

the needs of people with disabilities in order to assist them with the needed services to help

them become gainfully employed. She uses the One Stop centers as a great resource for our

clients.

Background information (include education, community- service activities, previous
service on county boards/commissions):

Mrs. Brasher has her Master's of Education in RehabiHtation Counseling and a B.A. in

Psychology. She is a Certified Rehabilitation Counselor (CRC) and a Certified Brain Iniury

Specialist (CBIS). She works closely with the Brain Injury Alliance of South Carolina and is

currently serving on their Awareness and Prevention Committee.

Submitted by: ___________________
Date:_______ A



AL, 15. 2Li)6 7:28.\1 1153 P.

8/7/2D@S 14:28 8d335511
— - LE<INVST[Th4 CaTh411 SC RAGE @1/1

LEXINGTON COUNTY COUNCIL
BOARIVCOMNISSLON NOMINAflON JRISI

Ne oIBoardlComtissiofl. ; , —

None: i?1,f I. ;tc i

Ad&ass: z,' L tJ,1 (/c,,I;4, /( aV ——
Btotdb /mc J'y' . fricn -.- _________—

Ats )7 /#1eJ,4,, A/2t Ee/w.t44iC 711L_
Home Te1hone: f°12 75t-5' BusinessTelephone:

Mobile Phone: 803-9a 9- fii t Beeper N1bat

FaxNinber: —

Isnominea awa1- ofbo&d/comSssioii activifies and _____

Backgmund tSn (include education, community service actint , prey OUS service Oh

countyboaxt/conssioiis or any otiw bcerds/coissio11S iwhichyou aiv ciMently saving):

ii /92Q.
/ltt5y /AAt,,A1 Uic,jfYt

/ 7Ldo-

/A,,-,, (Qt,!Jk<- /2L1/?'J 1C/ CL4a
C /t4r.J_Cit Ifi' -/7tL..' —

-. - Dv.-'i CA// (4L._-_
i4,+ Li- h1

A 4r — Aeri( CsP

Submitted ___________________ Lexbton Cotmty Coun ;il

Date: ? - IS- O, ________________ Te,hOtC SO3-7-S103

An±Mn1rt/auixic1/nctfttWtd (04,02/os)
FA) - 803-785-8101



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Procurement Services

MEMORANDUM
(0)785-8319
(F) 785-2240

DATE: August 9, 2006

TO: Katherine Doucett
County Administrator

THROUGH: Sh Rlm,CPPB

FROM: Donna J. PoUs, CPPB
Procurement Officer ' -

SUBJECT: Dell Poweredge Server with Linux Operatiiig System -Clerk of Court

Wc have rcceived a purchase request for one (1) Dell Powcredge Servcr with Linux Operating
System for the Clerk of Court. The server will be purchased directly from the manufacturer
(Dcli) through the South Carolina State Contract #05-56636-Al 1104.

The database server currently used by General Sessions and Family Court cannot be upgraded
from Progress Version1 9.1 C without upgrading the UnixWare operating system. Information
Services is migrating all UnixWare operatthg systems to Linux. Linux is less expensive to
purchase and maintain, and is more widely supported by Progress and other software vendors.
Although the State Case Management System will eliminate the use of the current General
Sessions system, the Family Court System will see at least another four to five years of usage.

Jim Schafer, Director of hiformation Services has reviewed and recommended this purchase.

The total cost including applicable sales tax is $8,437.92.

Funds are appropriated in the following account:

1000-141 l00-5A7123 — Linux Operating System - $8,437.92

I concur with the above reeonmmendation and flirther recommend that thispurchase be placed on
County Council's agenda for their next scheduled meeting on August 22, 2006.

copy: Larry Porth, Director of Finance/Msistant County Administrator
Beth Carrigg, Clerk of Court
Jim Schafer, Director of Information Services



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Procurement Services

MEMORANDUM
(0) 785-8385
(F) 785-2240

DATE: August II, 2006

TO: Katherine L, Doucett
County Administrator

THROUGH: Sheila R. Fuliner, CPPB 41i2
Procurement Manager

FROM: Janice A. Bell, CPP
Procurement Officer

-

SUBJECT: Fleet Vehicle Replacement — Public Safety I EMS

We have received a requisition Ihr the purchase of one (I) New 2007 Ford Crown Victoria Patrol Sedan for
the Public Salbty / EMS Department This vehicle will replace the 1992 Crown Victona used by the EMS
Coordinator which has met or exceeded the expected capital recovery and is recommended and approved in
accordance with the Fleet Management Policy by Ellis Ganimons, Fleet Manager. Tins vehicle is available
from \Tic Bailey Ford through South Carolina State Contract Number 05-S6673-A 1156.

The cost of this vehicle is $20,978.00 including applicable sales tax.

Funds are appropriated in the following account.

l000-l31400-5A7098 (I) Sedan— Replacement $20,978.00

I concur with the above recommendation and further recommend that this purchase be placed on County
Council's agenda for their next scheduled meeting on August 22, 2006.

copy: Larry Porth, Director of Finance/Assistant County Administrator
Chief Anice Rucker, Assistant Sheriff/Director of Public Safety & Homeland Security
Chief Brian Hood, EMS Coordinator
Ellis Ganimons, Fleet Manager



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Procurement Services

MEMORANDUM
(0)785-8385

(F) 785-2240

DATE: August 10, 2006

TO: Kathenne L. Doucett

County Administrator

THROUGH: SheilaRFu1meCPPB 59j,j )4_d
FROM: Janice A Bell, CPPB

Procurement Officer

SUBJECT: fleet Vehicle Replacements
Public Safety/Fire Service

We received requisitions for the purchase of one (1) New 2007 Ford E-350 Club Wagon and two (2) New 2007 Ford P450 Cab and
Chassis Truck,s for Public Safety/Fire Service The Club Wagon is available from Benson Ford Mercury through South Carolina State
Contract Number 05-S6673-A1 1160. The trucks are available from Bums Automotive through South Carolina State Contract Number
05-56667-All 151, These vehicles will require accessories to bc installed Quotations were obtained for these accessories and
recommcnded award as shown below (see attached hid tabulation) These vehicles arc recommended and approved in accordance with
the fleet Management Policy by Fibs Garnmons, Fleet Manager.

The Club Wagon has been recommended to replace a 1997 Ford Taurus and is to have emergency lighting installed. 'l'he trucks are used
for transporting specialized equipment and personnel to emergency scenes. The Insurance Service Office and the National Fire
Protection Association recognize these trucks as vital pieces of firefighting equipment

The cost for the Ford Cab and Chassis Trucks is $92,323 58 including applicable taxes The cost for the Ford Club Wagon is
$18,262.00 including applicable taxes. The cost for the emergency lighting and accessories is $17 068.75 mcluding applicable taxes.
The total cost including applicable sales tax is $127,654 33 It is recommended to çrocess purchase orders to the following cndors:

Benson Ford Meraiiy $18,262.00
Burns Automotive 92,323 58
West Chatham Warning Devices 10,772.97
Hanseus Gold Leaf 1,367 40
Motorola, Inc. 3,416.88
Carolina Rim & 'Wheel 579.82
Slagle's Fire Equipment & Supply 931 68

Funds are appropnated in the following reounis

1000-131 500-5A71 06 (2) Service Truck Replacements $108,694.93
1000-131 500-5A7l07 (I) Vehicle Replacement 18,959.40

I concur with the above recommendation and further reeonimend that these purchases he placed on County Council's agenda for their
next scheduled meeting on August 22, 2006.

Attachment

copy: Larry Porth, Director of Finance/Assistant County Administrator
Chief Bruce Rueker, Assistant Shenff/ Director of Public Safety & Homeland Security
Chief Russell Rawl, Fire Serice Coordinator
Etlis Gamnions, Fleet Manager



C
ou

nt
y 

of
 L

ex
in

gt
on

 

B
id

 T
ab

ul
at

io
n 

F
le

et
 V

eh
ic

le
 A

cc
es

so
rie

s 
ja

b 
08

/1
 0

/0
6 

F
LE

E
T

 V
E

H
IC

LE
 A

C
C

E
S

S
O

R
IE

S
 

'1
W

es
tC

ha
th

an
1i

H
 

P
al

m
et

to
 D

is
tr

ib
ut

or
s 

S
la

gl
e'

s 
F

ire
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t 
Q

ua
nt

ity
 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

U
rii

tP
ric

ei
 

'iT
ot

áI
ti 

U
ni

t 
P

ric
e 

T
ot

al
 

U
ni

t 
P

ric
e 

T
ot

al
 

4 
W

H
E

-5
0R

O
3Z

C
F

 
LE

D
 S

yn
c 

U
/$

87
00

 :
t$

34
8'

00
 

$8
0.

00
 

$3
20

.0
0 

$1
23

.1
4 

$4
92

56
 

4 
W

H
E

-5
T

S
M

A
B

 S
ur

fa
ce

 M
t 

K
it 

ifi
4$

5i
0 

rc
oc

$2
0,

40
 

$7
00

 
$2

80
0 

N
o 

B
id

 

4 
W

H
E

-7
02

00
3R

U
 L

in
st

ro
be

 R
ed

 
t:$

73
.2

0 
$2

92
:8

0 
$7

5.
00

 
$3

00
.0

0 
$1

12
.0

0 
$4

48
00

 
4 

W
H

E
-7

E
G

R
IL

B
 H

ou
si

ng
 

K
it 

:$
32

4O
 Li

D
:$

12
96

0 
$3

60
0 

$1
44

.0
0 

N
o 

B
id

 

16
 W

H
E

-5
8E

C
2O

R
L S

tr
ob

e 
R

ed
 

T
:$

10
2.

80
 
'iY

$1
64

i6
0 

$9
6.

00
 

$1
,5

36
.0

0 
$9

6.
31

 
$1

,5
40

.9
6 

16
 W

H
E

-5
O

8T
R

IM
 C

ro
m

e 
T

rim
 R

in
g 

ii7
di

'i$
7/

50
 

LJ
i4

iR
i$

l2
O

00
 

$7
00

 
$1

12
.0

0 
N

o 
B

id
 

4 
W

H
E

-5
8E

C
2O

A
L S

tr
ob

e 
A

m
be

r 
f:1

$1
02

60
 o

r4
;s

41
0:

40
 

$9
6.

00
 

$3
84

 0
0 

$9
6.

81
 

$3
87

24
 

4 
W

H
E

-5
O

8T
R

IM
 C

hr
om

e 
T

rim
 R

in
g 

tt,
$7

50
 

A
$3

00
O

 
$7

.0
0 

$2
80

0 
N

o 
B

id
 

6 
W

H
E

U
P

S
69

0 
S

tr
ob

e 
P

ow
er

 S
up

pl
y 

:L
t$

29
00

0 
$l

,7
40

0O
 

N
o 

B
id

 
$4

70
32

 
$2

,8
21

.9
2 

2 
W

H
E

-P
C

C
F

-I
D

1 
H

ea
vy

 D
ut

y 
S

w
itc

h 
B

ox
 

;i/
$1

7.
88

0 
tc

$3
57

60
 

$1
84

00
 

$3
68

.0
0 

$2
73

.9
7 

$5
47

94
 

2 
W

H
E

-2
95

H
F

5A
1 

S
ire

n 
A

m
pl

ifi
er

 
/T

ht
$2

23
i8

0 
tiE

$4
47

6O
 

$2
31

.0
0 

$4
62

.0
0 

53
45

 3
7 

$6
90

.7
4 

4 
W

H
E

-S
A

34
O

S
T

S
 S

pe
ak

er
 

.$
15

1:
20

 0
$6

04
80

 
$1

56
00

 
$6

24
.0

0 
$2

32
.0

2 
$9

28
.0

8 
2 

JO
T

-C
C

F
S

E
R

IE
 D

as
h 

M
ou

nt
ed

 C
on

so
le

 '/
:$

24
5:

O
0 

'':
';$

49
00

0 
$2

60
.0

0 
$5

20
.0

0 
$2

63
 2

7 
$5

26
.5

4 
2 

W
H

E
-9

M
14

20
00

 S
tr

ob
e 

R
ed

 
i$

54
0O

0 
C

$1
,0

80
10

0 
$8

00
00

 
$1

,6
00

 0
0 

$8
71

.0
5 

$1
,7

42
.1

0 
2 

La
bo

r t
o 

In
st

al
l 

$9
50

.0
0 

$t
90

aO
O

 
N

o 
B

id
 

$2
,6

41
 

00
 

$5
,2

82
.0

0 
,::

;-
..:

: 
S

ub
-T

ot
al

 
h.

'4
p&

 
i$

96
12

80
 

r' 
.' 

T
ax

 
$4

62
77

 

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

 
;::

*'
,C

1 
T

h$
10

07
5.

57
 

R
ej

ec
te

d 
P

al
m

et
to

 D
is

tr
ib

ut
or

s 
an

d 
S

la
gl

e'
s 

F
ire

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t - 

di
d 

no
t 

bi
d 

on
 a

ll 
ite

m
s.

 

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t O
ffi

ce
r 

Ja
ni

ce
 A

. 
B

el
l, 

C
P

P
B

 



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Procurement Services

MEMORANDUM
(0) 785-8319
(F) 785-2240

DATE: August 9, 2006

TO: Katherine Doucett
County Administrator

TIIROUCII: Sheila R. Fulmer, CPPB cç,/' .(Procurement Manager -

FROM: Donna J. Potts, CPPB
Procurement Officer i.d'7c( -I 6?

SUBJECT: Roadway Improvements Roseoe Road - "C" Funds - Public Works
DLI) NO. B07003-07/06/O6H

Invitations for bids were advertised and solicited from qualified contractors for Roadway Improvements
Roscoc Road. The project mcludes the construction of approximately 1.5 miles of asphalt roadway and
other appurtenances for Roscoe Road. There is an estimated 2,259 L.F. of 18", 208 LF. oF 24", 1.056
hF. of3O", 140 L.F. of36" and 112 L.F. of 54" R,C. pipe, 14,000 C.Y. of Excavation, 335 S.Y. Rip Rap
lou headwalls, 24,617 S.Y. Compacted Mccadum Basc and 23,770 S.Y. of Type I Asphalt Surface
Course. We received bids from eight (8) contractors (sec attached bid tab).

I3icIs were evaluated by John Fechtel, Director of Public Works; Jim Starling. Engineering Associalc III,
Public Works; Joseph I). McIntyre, PP., Power Engineering Company Incorporated; and Donna J. Potts,
Procurement Officer. It is our recommendation to award this contract to CBC. Incorporated as being the
lowest responsive bidder. The total bid for the project, based on estimated quantities, is S922,563 32.

funds arc appropriated in account: 2700-121 300-SROO IS — Roscoe Road

I concur with the above recommendation and Further recommend that this bid he placed on County
Council's agenda for their next scheduled meeting on August 22, 2006.

Al tac hnicnts

copy: Larry Porth, Director of Finance / Assistant County Administrator
John Fechtcl, Director of Public Works



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON

BID TABULATION SHEET

BID: 1307003-07/06/06 Fl DATE: August 10, 2006

ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS ROSCOF RUM)

RIDDER TOTAL BID

CRC. Incorporated $922,563.32

Cherokee, Incorporined 5970,329.22

Mabus I3rothers Construcuon Company, SI ,02 1.37479

incorporaied
C. R. Jackson, Incorporated S ,084,497.40

P]owdcn Construction Company, Incorporated $1,086,142.00

Eagle Coos! ruction Company, Incorporated $1,094,534.75

U. S. Const:-uc!ors, Incorporated SI .237,420.00

Rca Contracting, LLC $1,275,745.60

Rids Opened: July 6, 2006 3:00 p.m.

/ .2 1// . / -—
1 / cL( (>-'

I5onna J Potts, CPPR
Procurc'mcnl Ofuicer



Lethigton County GIS Map Page 1 a

'V
'V
'V

Legend

Local Roads

Cdleclor Roads

Axle nat Roads

Intels1ates

County Cm t1nie

t4inaiy

oScc€

4

http://rnaps.lex-co. conilscrvletlcom.
6/29/2006



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Procurement Services

MEMORANDUM
(0)785-8385
(F) 785-2240

DATE: August 9, 2006

TO: Katherine L. Doucett
County Administrator

ThROUGh: S R.FuhneCPPB uJ— —

FROM: Janice A Bell,
Procurement Officer

SUBIECI': New 2007 Chevrolet Tahoe
Bid No. B07006-08108106B
Sheriff's Department / Fleet Vehicle Replacement

Competitive bids were solicited and advertised for a New 2007 Cheviolet Tahoe for the Shenffs Deparhneut. The
requested vehicle is replacing an unmarked Blazer and is recommended and approved in accordance with the Fleet
Management Policy by Ellis (3ammons, Fleet Manager. We received six (6) bids (see attached bid tabulation) Bids
were evaluated by Ellis Gammons. Fleet Manager; Chief Keith Kuchuier, Assistant Sheriff; and Jamce A. Bell.
Procuremeni Officer

'We recommend award to Bums Automotive as the low biddci meeting specifications This vehicle will require
emeigeney equipment to be installed The emergency eqoipnient and installation is available from Light-N-Up
through County Contract ftC050 11 -02!09/05B.

The cost or the Chevrolet l'ahoe is $35,049 00 including applicable sales tax. The cost for the emergency
equipment and installation is $240.00. The total cost tocluding applicable sales tax is $35,289 00.

Funds are appiopriated in the following account:

1000-15] 200-5A7355 (l)Unmarkcd Vehicle with Equipment $35,289.00

I eoncui with the above recommendation and thrther recommend that tIns hid he placed on County Council's agenda
for their next scheduled meeting on August 22, 2006.

Attachment

copy: Larry Porth, Direclor of Finance/Assistant County Administrator
Sheiiffjanies Mctts
Chief Bruce Rucker, Assistant Sheriff! Director of Public Safbty & Homeland Security
Chief Keith Kirchner, Assistant Sheriff
Ellis Ganimons, Fleet Manager
Celonel Alan Paavel, Shenfis Department
Sylvia Dillon, Sheriffs Department



B07006-08/08/06B

NEW 2007 CHEVROLET TAHOE

County of Lexington

Bid Tabulation

807006
jab

08i06/06

Whiteside Chevrolet I-lerndon Chevrolet
Quantity Description ff:iir,TotaI::E Unit Price Total Unit Price Totalfl2t5Fij3:2/'E3

1 2007 Tahoe 15fl344J300/ ffT11$34r41300i. 535,99000 $35,990 00 $35,1 1800 $35,118 00
1 Locking differential I 5$23600E 3j,t4$236.00 $240.00 $24000 $25600 $256.00
1 Trailer towing pkq Stàndâfdth'i; N/C $0.00 Standard $000
1 While leltered tires i$i0000 /iiit,i':$100,00i $110.00 $110.00 $112.00 $112.00

Tax flttt,i V ,, $300 00 $ 300 00 $300 00
Grand Total iiji$35,049 OO $36640.00 $35786.00

Quantity Description
Whitesde Chevrolet

Unit Price Total
Capital Chevrolet

Unit Price Total
Capital Chevrolet

Unit Price Total

1 2007 Tahoe $35,980 00 $35,980.00 534,677.23 $34,667 23 $34,677 23 $34,667.23
1 Locking differential $240 00 5240.00 5259.60 $259 60 $259 60 5259.60
1 Trailer towing pkg Included $0 00 Standard $0 00 Standard 50 00

Whiteletteredtires 5110,00 S1'l000 S1000 511000 53200 $13200
Tax 5300 00 5300 00 $300 00
Grand Total $36,630 00 535,336 83 535,35883

Cpened. Augusta, 2006

Janice A. Bell,C
Procurement Officer



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Procurement Services

MEMORANDUM
(0)785-8319
(F) 785-2240

DATE: August 10, 2006

TO: Katherine Doucett
County Administrator

THROUGH: Sheila R. Fulmer, CPPB
Procurement Manager -

/
FROM: Donna J. Potts, CPPB // /

Procurement Officer

SUBJECT: Accurate Compactors / Sole Source Procurement -Solid Waste Management

We have received a purchase request from the Department of Solid Waste Management for the
purchase of two (2) Accurate Compactors. These two (2) compactors will be installed at the
Bailey Collection Station. Inclusion of these machines in the new version of this Collection
Station will bring the station iii line with recently established station equipment standards and
allow for a higher level of efficiency and belier service to the citizens of the County.

This has been deemed a Sole Source through Amick Equipment Company, as theyare the sole
authorized dealer for South Carolina.

The cost of this purchase is $59,237.04 including shipping, installation, sales tax and one-year
man ufacturers warranty.

Funds are appropriated in the following account:

5700-121203-5A7322 —(2) Solid Waste Compactors -$59,237.04

I concur with the above recommendation and further recommend that this purchase be placed on
County Council's agenda for their next scheduled meeting on August 22, 2006.

copy: Larry Porth, Director of Finance/Assistant County Administrator
Joe Mergo, ifi, Director of Solid Waste Management



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
Procurement Services

MEMORANDUM
(0)785-8319
(F) 785-2240

DATE: August 10, 2006

TO: Katherine Doucett
County Administrator

THROUGH: SheilaRFuImerCPPB

FROM: Donna S. Potts, CPPB /7 J ,i(/gProcurement Officer /1..Jt'fO/1

SUBJECT: Pyramat Matting I Sole Source Procurement - Solid Waste Management

We have received a purchase request from the Department of Solid Waste Management for the
purchase of Pyramat Matting to include sod staples. This item(s) was originally funded in FY05-
06 as a non-capital item. These funds were carried forward from FYO5-06 and budgeted as a
Capital Item for FY06-07. Installation of this matting is the next step towards completing an
ongoing effort to abate erosion problems in the landfill. Lexington County Public Works and
Solid Waste Management personnel have been actively involved in this abatement process for
the past several months. This Pyramat mailing and component supplies are necessary to meet
South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control (DHEC) requirements for
Sediment and Erosion Control in the landfill. This particular product meets the recommended
specifications of both DHEC and the County's contracted environmental engineers. Solid
Waste Management has used this product in the past for this same purpose in other areas of the
landfill with very positive results. The product comes with a lifetimewarranty.

This has been deemed a Sole Source through Pennington Seed Incorporated, as theyare the sole
authorized dealer for South Carolina.

The cost of this purchase is $34,296.30 inciuding, shipping and applicable sales tax.

Funds are appropriated in the following account:

5700-l21204-5A6523 - Erosion Control Pyramat w/Staples - $34,296.30

I concur with the above recommendation and further rccornmcnd that thispurchase be placed on
County Council's agenda for thcir next scheduled meeting on August 22, 2006.

copy: Larry Porth, Director of Finance/Assistant County Administrator
Joe Mergo, ifi, Director of Solid Waste Management



The Minutes are left out intentionally until approved by Lexington County
Council. Upon Council's approval, the minutes will be available on the internet.



-,
/

a-

/

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

Cornmuni Development
County Adnmiisnauon Buildmg (803) 785-8121

212 South Lake Drive Lexington. South Carolma 29072

ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT APPLICATION # T05-l I

Section(s) of the Zoning Ordinance which are affected:
Article 2— Application of Regulations; Chapter 3, Buffering Restrictions

Reason for the request (use the back of this application form if necessary):

In order to address the unique scenic vistas of waterways tn Lexmaton County. this text amendment
proposes to review the heiehtregulations of the Zoninn Ordinance as they apnlv to the shores of the Saluda
River. the Edisto River. the Conuaree River. and Lake Murray. The attached draft is proposed as a starilne
point-for discussion. -

Even though this application will be carefully
the amendment rests with the applicant.

Date 12/13/05

Telephone # (803) 785-8121

Name (print) Charles M Compton, Planning Director
for Lexington County Council

Address 212 South Lake Dnve
Lexington. South Carolina 29072

*********** '***************************************************** Ic**********************
1. 12/13 / 05
2. /NA/
3. /\ /N

Application Received
Fee Received
Newspaper Advertisement

/ /O P1ag Conmtission Reeoendation: P/c IAafl

t 3 mencir Crx4 /1

'jB First Reading /L/ogPubc Hearing /1CCSecond Reading

Results.

H \DOCS\ZONJNQ\FORMS\textamciicjO5-II wjxi

Signature

** ** ***'** *** ** * *** * ** * ****** ** ** *** ***** * c**** * *** ********* ,c**,*** * ****** ********* ***
/ / Third Readine



Chapter 3. Buffering Restrictions

Height regulations are based on the establishment cia height control slope. Initially, a 20-Foot rise is permitted
at the property line peqiendicular to tile pi-operty line. 3 hen. based on the disinet concerned, and the activity
involved.aheightcontrol slope is speeifledm terms ol'a ratio ofverncalnse to horizontal distance. Porexample.
a 2 1 ratio means that for every two feet of vertical rise, an additional one foot ofhonzontaldistance is measured
off into the interior of tile property. The following diagram describes the nature of the height control slope:

3hie following chart is published to assist iii determining the maximum pennissible structure height allowed with
various height control slopes. T-fciglits are listed in feel based upon an initial 20-foot rise at the property line.

ncefrtiii
5 21 25 22.5 25 30 35 40

10 - 225 25 30 40 50 — 60

15 2375 275 I 35 50 65 80

20 25 30 40 60 80 100

25 26.25 325 45 70 95 120

30 27.5 35 50 80 ItO 140

35 28.75 375 55 90 125 160

40 30 40 60 100 lLtO ISO

45

50

31.25 42.5 65 110 155 200

32.5 45 70 120 170 220

55 33.75 475 75 130 185 240

200 26060 — 35 50 80 140

65 36.25 52.5 85 150 215 280

70 37.5 55 90 160

170

230 300

245 32075 38.75 575 95

80 40 60 100 180 260 340

85 41.25 62.5 I 105 190 275 360

90 d25 65 110 200 290 380

95 43.75 675 115 210 — 305 400

100 45 70 120 220 320 420

A maximum of two above-ground stories arc permitted in the LC District.

The chart in Section 23.50 lists the height requirements oithis ordinance by activity type and location.

24 ART IC IL 2 -APPLICAF1OT' OF REGuLATIONS

23.00 Eleight Regulations

...Efl H
\ S'

U
C
B

SHE
HE

Rise —

Distance from
Propei'ty line

EE:



July 20, 2006— The Planning Commission recommended some additional changes to the newly
created Section 23.01. The proposed changes are unique to the Edisto and Saluda Rivers and are

highlighted below.

23.01 Special Requirements for Waterfront Property

In order to protect the unique scenic vistas of significant waterways m Lexington County, special
requirements are to be applied to the development of properties in the vicinity of the Saludu River, the
Edisto River, the Congaree River, and Lake Mm-ray. Where there are multiple methods for computing
the allowed height for a building in this Chapter, the most restrictive shall apply.

Lake Mui: A special height control slope of V2. 1 is to be used along the shores of Lake
Murray where the regulated property is designatcd as a Restrictive Development District. If the
property is designated as an Intensive Development District, then a height control slope of 2:1
shall apply. Along the shores of Lake Murray, the location of the mitial 20-foot rise shall be
considered to be the location of the 360-foot (mean sea level) contour. Ml property within 1000
feet of thu 360-foot contour and designated as a Restrictive Development District shall also
comply with the following additional height restnctions which are based on the street
classification providing access to the proposed activity:

Local (L) Street No building taller than 70 feet is allowed. That height is measured from
the average elevation of the building as it leaves the ground.

Colluetor (C) Street — No building taller than 100 feet is allowed. That height is measured
from the average elevation of the building as it leaves the ground.

Arterial (A) —Height of buildings shall be determined by the other requirements from this

Chapter.

Congaree River: Because of the extremely varied terrain along the banks of this river, it is very
difficult to determine the best elevation from which to. measure the "initial 20-foot rise"
referenced in Section 23.00. For this nver this begmning elevation for calculating the height
control slope for the waterfront property line shall be unifi)rm along the river bank. That
elevation shall be the same as the highest elevation on the property that falls within 300 feet of
the waterfront property line. A height control slope of 1:1 shall apply to this waterfront property
line.

Saluda River: Because of the unique scenic character of the Saluda River. stricter height
requirements apply to the adjacent lands. All buildings within 500 feet of the waterfront
property lines shall not exceed 40 feet. Buildings further than 500 feet but within 1000 feet of
the waterfront property lines shall not exceed 60 feet. That height is measured from the a%LiagL

highest elevation of the building as it leaves the ground. A height control slope of 1:1 shall also
apply to the waterfront property lmes. For the purposes of this ordinance, the Saluda River
is considered to begin 4000 feet downstream from its discharge point below the Lake Murray
Dam.

Edisto River: Because of the unique "black water" aspects of the North Fork of the Edisto
River, stricter height requirements apply to the adjacent lands. MI buildings within 500 feet of
the waterfront property lines shall not exceed 40 feet. That height is measured from the a-vth agc
highest eluvation of the buildmg as it leaves the around. A height control slope of 1:1 shall also
apply to the waterfront property lines. For the purposes of this ordinance, the Edisto River is
considered to begin at the L20 bridge crossing.

The average elevation as referenced in these regulations shall be computed by selecting the ha1'ay
point between the highest and lowest ground elevations surrounding the structure.



buiidmgs to residennal aenvities mustmainran a mimmun three-footsezhaekfromauioimngpropc'rwlines. The
chart m Section 2350 lists two types of setbacks based on the type of aetivtty and location. Tnev are measured
either from a road right-of-way or an adjoming property line. Setbacks abutting existing roads shall be measured
from the proposed right-of-way as sho\vnin the Right-of-Way Plan if that width is greater than the existing right—
of-wa-v. However, forResidential Detached or clobile Home activities being estahhshed on an exisiing dead-end-
road, which has limited potential for htmre widening, the extstng toad right-of-way shall be usec.

2334) Screening

Screening consists of natural vegetation, landscaped vegetation (includmg planted bernis). walls, or fences
desimied to lessen the visual inieracrion between adjacent activities or accessories thereto. 1vcgetation used for
screening must be evereen, tlrouirht-toletant. and disease resistant. Screening may be required with no buffer
in\olved. or in contbtnaton with a buffer. The heigni of the screening shall be sufficient to block the view of the
activity for which the screening is required from the adjoining property. The substance of the screening shall be
determined by the Zonmg Adininistratorin consultation with the property owners involved andbased on the nature
of the acvity proposed, with he final arbiter being the Board of Zoning Appeals. The two types of screening
listed in the chart in Section 23.50 are total and partial, and are nieasured in linear feet. If the activity occurs
wtthin the designated distance ofthe pronertv line, then that pine screening is required Total screening is defined
as bemg visually opaque Partial screening is defined as being approximately 50% visually opaque

23.40 Architectural Standards

fihebuffering restricrionseoritainedin this article are designed to improve the compatibility ofadjoining actrvities,
especially where a non-residential activity is located adjacent to a residential activity or within a Restrictive
Development District. For that reason the more intense activitmes are required to nieet largerbuffering restrictions.
Architectural standards ire ot'fered as an altenuative to compliance with the full extent of these restrictions.

Any activity meeting the following architectural standards \vill be allowed to redtiee the buffering restrictions of
this article by 50%.

a. Strueitires shall have an appearance that would be considered more of a residential than commercial style.
They shall also have exterior elements that are created at a hunian scale.

b . All stn'.ctures will include the use ofextenor materials that are commonly used for house construction in the
area, such as brick, stucco, etc.

e. Roofing design should generally be gabled ratherthan flat, mansard. etc., unless that is thercsideritial roofing
design in the area.

d. Wmndows should generallybe something otherthan solid expanses of glass. Snallerpanes andwndows with
mullions. or other designs mote compatible with the residential setting. would be expected as a pan of the
design.

e. All accessory structures shall be desiaied with the same 'residential pattern" as the primary structures. This
would include accessory features such as porticos. sheds, canopies, equipment structures, other buildings.
etc.

11 All business signs will meet the standards found in Section 25.55, winch concerns signs on scenic comdors
and in Restricted Development Districts. fn addition, business shins must be designed as 'pedestal signs'
that do not exceed a height of 12 feet. Marquee and canopy signs are not allowed and wall signs shall be the
ntimniuni size necessary to be readable from the adjoining road way or drive.

a. A landscape plan must be proposed that exceeds the recuirements of the Lexington County Landscape
Ordinance by mcluding shrubbery that enhances the site in the same way that it adds to the visual appeal of
a residential setting.

In determinmg if a proposed development meets these architectural standards, the ZoningAdminisinator shall
act as the initial evaluator and will be required to render a decision as to whether the proposed design meets
the tntent of this secuon of the Ordinance. .yone disagreeing with that decision may file an appeal '.vith
the Board of Zoning Appeals which shall act as the final arbiter.

26 xnccb im. ArrucA ION OF RrOUi— I ioNs



23.50 Chart of ButTering Restrfi:tions

The columnar chartbclow lists the buffering restrictions defined in tIns chapteras they apply to specific activities.
Following are general rules and special rules for interpreting the chart:

23.51 General Rules

I. The restrictive (R) requirements in the chart apply to protected property lines within a Restrictive
Development District or those which serve as the boundary between a Restrictive Development
Dtstrict and a Li-tinted Restriction District, a municipality withm Lexington County, or an adjacent
cc unty

2. The intensive (I) requirements in the chart apply to protected property lmes within an Intensive
Development District or those which serve as the boundary between an Intensive DevelopmentDistrict
arid a Limited Restriction District, a mumcipahty within Lexington County, or an adjacent county.

3. For property lines which serve as the boundary between a Restrictne Development Disti-ict and an
Intensive Development District, the resmctive (TR) requirements shall apply for the protection of
property on the Restrictive Development District side of the boundary relative to land uses on the
Ititensive Develorment District side of the boundary. Similarly, the intensive (TI) requirements shall
appTy for the protection ofproperty on the Intensive Development District side ofthe boundaryrelative
to land uses on the Restrictive Development District side of the boundary.

Wien an activity is located on a parcel which is separated from sunounding protected prope hy
existing road or railroad rights-o f-way, by utility rights-of-way, by water bodies, or by other parcels,
then the buffering restrictions applicable to that activity shall be measured across such separation from
the protected property lines.

5. Activities that provide total screening using existing natural vegetation andlor landscaped vegetation
(incLuding planted berms) shall be eligible for a 50% reduction-in buffer and setback requirements.
Acceptability of screening for this reduction shall be determined by the Zoning Administrator. - The

following activities are not eligible: Detention Centers, Recycling Centers, Salvage/Wrechng Yards,
Scrap Operations. Sexually Oriented Businesses, and Utility Substations.

23.52 Special Rules

However, the general rules above for interpreting the chart shall be modi fled by the special rules below
in items "1" througlr'5" where applicable.

1. Urandfathered residential uscs within an Intensive Development District shall be afforded the
restricttve (R) requirements in the chartrelative to land uses on surrounding properties in the following
manner:

Those portions of the property lmes of a andfathered residential use which are within 125 feet
of that use's principal activity [generally the building footprint(s) shall be considered protected
property lines to the extent of 100% of the restrictive (R) requirements in the chart relative to the
applicable activity on the surrounding property.

Those portions of the property lines of a andfathered residential use which are within 250 tèet
of, but more than 125 feet from, that use's principal activity [generally the building footprint(s)]
shall be considered protected property lines to the extent of 50% ofthe restrictive (R) requirements
in the chart relative to the applicable activity on the surrounding property. TIns 5O°/ level of
protection shall be determined by halving the distances imposed for the height, buffer, setback
from adjoining property, total screening, and partial screening requirements.

Those portions of the property lines of a grandfathered residential use which are more than 250
feet ftom that use's principal activity [generally the building footprint(s)] shall be considered
protected property lines to the extent of 100%ofthe intensive (1) requirements in the chart relative
to the applicable activity on the surrounding property.

2. Those portions of the property lines ofa parcel within a Restrictive Development Disthct which serve
as the boundary between the Restrictive Development District and an Intensive Development Dislnct,

ARTIcLE 2 - AppucnoN OF REGULATIONS 27



and which have no randlbthcred residential use within 125 feet. shall be considered protected
property lines to the extent of 50% of the restrictive (It) requirements in the chart relative to the
applicable activity in the Intensive Development District. This 5O% level of protection shall be
determined by halving the distances imposed for the height, buffer, setback from adjoining property,
total screening, and partial screening requirements.

3 Notwithstanding special rules I and 2 above, certain portions of the property lines of a parcel within
either a Restrictive Development District or an Intensive Development District, or both, upon which
there is an existing non—residential principal acnvitv, shall be considered protected properi lilies only
to the extent of 100% of the intensive requirements in the chart relative tn the applicable activity
on the surrounding property. The portions of the property Inie so protected shall be those svithm 250
feet of either the principal or accessory uses of this non-residential activity.

4. When a protected property line rtins through or borders an impoundment of water, but not a free—
flowing watercourse, then the distances imposed fbr the buffer, setback from adjoining properly, total
screening, and partial screemng, but not height. reqtnicmcnts (as first determined by applying the
general rules and special rtiles above) shall be measured such that each linear foot of traserse over the
water impoundment shall count as only one half foot toward the total distance iniposed. On Lake
Murray the water impoundment is considered tobc that area boundedhy the 360-foot contour (MSL).
Since screening of activities on water surfaces is not feasible, the partial screening requirements will
typically control the distance separation over water impoundments.

5. All activities shall provide partial screening, as applicable. relative to Residential Detached and Mohi Ic
flonie activity already in use or permitted prior to October 28, 1998, on surrotinding properties also
located in an Intensive Development District. In such cases the extent of this extra protection, if any.
shall be detcnnined in accordance with Special Role

Any Residential Detached or Mobile I-Tome activity in an Intensive Development District ni use or
permitted alter October 27, 1998, shall be responsible lbr providing their own screening, if desired, from
adjacent land uses.

ACTIVITIES

=t—t
tILEIGllT BUFFER

-_ -, Cl •4fl1 w—=.;—-
SETBACKSfro SGREENLN

aljIaI
Adniinistrative Offices

/ 20 30 30 30

f

50

Advertising Signs

Addluonal height limitations are found

I

in Secuon 23 60.

3t) so 30

10 It)

50

Anmial Operations

Setbacks apply 10 hnilciings only

+v
I1 3

30 30

[

-

Boat Docks

Bus and Transit Tenninals

R 50 30

50

30

50 75

JI
2

½ 1

3

70 100 150 225

BusinessServiees
30 50

J

30 75

Cemeteries

Ofild or Adult Day Care

jI

I

+ 'A

3

3

0

10

30

10

tO

50

30

20

30

20

50

40

75

Churches
V4 30 50 30

j
28 ARTiCLE2.AipucAlioN 01 RIi{IIJLA1ION5



ACTIVITIES

R +'/ I 20
Group Housing = _____

I
* Setback must mamtain a mmamurn 30 line of sight.

Hospitals

Kennels and Stables

ARTiCLE 2 - APPUCATION OF REGULATiONS 29

Communication Towers

Screening requnemerns apply to the ffrst 20 feet of the tower above the ground.

Community Education
50 75 30 75 100

1 2

Consfruction Services
R—
I

V 70 100 50 150 225

3

Crops

Sethacks apply to buildings only

+¼ I 30

L
30

Detention Centers

Total road &ontage screening is reqwred

—
I

,/ 400 100 1000 1500

I oO 100 0 00 70
m any resUoctive development district.

Essential Services (Lumted)

ftontage screening is required

RI— 30 50 30 50 fl 75
-

II 2

Total road for a utility substation m any restrictive district

.
Essential

.

(Extensive)
R—
I

50 75 30 50 75

2

Food Services — 1 50 75 40—______ 75 QQ
J

I 2
,

I
I General Repair

FR1 11

and Maintenance ServicesL___________ '3 50 75 30 75 100

General Retail (Lmited)
.

General Retail (Extensive)
-

Group Assembly (Limited)

Group Assembly (Intennediate)

Group Assembly (Extensive)

Tk— 50 75 40
—_______

75 100

I 2

R 70 100 50 150 225

1

R—
1

R

_1
R

2

30 75 40 s 1 100

j
70 100

HF
100 250

50

L_____—
100

100

150

150

300

'

I
20* 20



[hIç5KSJfom3
ACTIVITIES

Landfills (Lnniled)

Landfills (Intermediate)

Landfills (Extensive)

tifii !
Wro1wrty; ROWt.i3i3 r-J t-a.n-. ir.tr-

150/2004 30 700 1000

75/2004 20 100/7004 600/1000/I

200/5004 50

20

900 l00
100/5004 .L00/9004 700/15004

300/10004 100 1200 2000

I 00/ 1000// 50 600/1200/f 900/20001/

acrivity was a GraMfathered Residential Use

Total road footage screening is required In all districts.
4 This extra protection shall be afThrded in all districts, hut only relanve to Residential Detached and Mobile

Home acnvilv afteadx' muse on surrounding rrocerr.es In such cases the extent of this extra protection. if
mv, shall be determined in accordance 'adi Spectal Rule/fl as if the Restdcnnal Detached or idobde Home

'vithin an Intensive Development Distinct.

Manufacturing (Light Assembly) — 50 75 30 75 100

P

Manufacrunng (Ltmited)
R i/ 70 100 50 150 225

-1 I

-

Manufacturing (Intermediate)

Manufaciunng (Extensive)

R 125 250 150 200 300i
R

2

— 250 500 200 500 750

—T 1 100 150 100 250

Marinas
R/2—
I a

50 70 iQ 75 100

.

Medical Services — ½ 20 30 30 30 50

Milita Installations

Mining (Lted)

i 500 1000 200 600 1000

1

=I
I L

250

50

20

500

150

100

30 700 1000

75 20 300 600

Mining (Intermediate)

Mining (Extensive)

Total road frontage screening is required

ft 100 200 [ 50 900 1200

30 100 J 20 400 700

ft V. 200 300 100 1200 1800

1 70 100 50 600 900

in all districts

Mini-Parks
R— +i6

3

—

Mobile Homes
IR

Sethadk may be reduced to 5' if a minimum 10' line ofstght is mainimoed.
Setback horn road rights-of-way may be reduced om minimum of5' on Local roads provided oil-street parking
and si'4hl lictance requirements are met

30 ARnULE a - Apvu.:anoN OF REGULATIONS



T3 -irMt;t-aA%'x,-'-

Wiit&

Setback ma\ be reduced to 5' iSa minimum 10' line of sight i5 mamtamed.
*" Setback from road ughrs-of-way may be reduced to a minimum of 5' on Local roads provided off-street panting

md siuht distance requirements are met.

ART CLE - APPL4CAIION OF REGULATIONS 31

ACTIVITIES

ct4'*
BIEIGUT'

%7" ,'..'
RI Iii Elt' ItIR SUiKSit-orri

.Lf,. %d j(IIi1Iii4 s.''� .j!j -.'.t3'4\s' .i? 'd.P2. .a2}): ' iv--n1R + 0/30# 20/754 1 30 0/504 0/754
Mobile Home Parks (Limited') —

I 3 0/504 20/754 30 0/504 0/75#

R 30/604 75/1504 75 50/1004 75/i50
Mobtie Home Parks (Extensive) —

I 3 01604 20/1304 30 01100# 0/1504

4 This extra irotecuon shall be afforded mall thsn-icrs, but relative to Residential Detached and lindividual
Mobile Home activity already in ose on surrounding properties. In such case the extcnt ofthis extra
protecnon, ifany, shall be determined m accordance with Special Rule #1 as if the Residential Detached or
Mobile Home activity was a Grandfathered Residential Use within an Intensive Development Disfrict

Natural Reserves
T +'/2 1 30

I 3

Non-Assembly Cultural
R 20 30 30 30 50

I 3

Nunsincr Homes
R— V2 30 50 30 50 75

3

.
Personal Convenience Services

R— 30 50 30 50 75

[ 3

Plant Nursenes — +'A 30 30 30

1 3

Power Plants
JR 250 500

—

200 500 750
IJI 1 100 150

—_______

—__100
250

Professional Services
R— 20 30 30 30 50.

-

I i

Rathoacnve Matenuls Handling
i— 4000 6000 500 8000

1 1 2000 3000 500 5000

Railroad
'

R 250 400 200 500 750

I 3

Recycling Centers

** Total scneeinng required

R— 30 50 30

I I
**

Research Services 'Th11— 30 50 30 50 75

I 10* [0**
Residential Detached

3 I 10* lO**
I

* Setback may be reduced to 5' iSa minimum 10 line of sight is maintained.
** Setback from road ughts-ol-way may be reduced to a minimum of 5' on Local roads provided off-street parhng

and sight distance requirements are met.

Residential Attached (two dwelling units) PH
10* 10"
l0 L



32 ARTiCJ 02 -.IiIACATiON OF Roria,A'riuxs

HEIG<H174

02

<C

BIJFIflh3R 7SF HACKSfIoiii

c4oimn ttoati<
Eiro1)ii?ty R:O\V4.r '*-

ACTIVITIES
JSCREEN[NG
E a,ft<Lctt.
FqW, d.i1'i!!±

Residential Attached (three or more + 100# 20'II00# 20 120# l8O#

divellina umts) 3 20< 20

Setback may he reducect to 10 if a minimum 20r line of sight is m,untained
* Setback lam road nghts-of-wav may be reduced to a minImum of 5 on Local aads provided off-sn'eet parking

and s ighi ci ist aiiee require meets are met.
# This cxii a protection shall be afforded in all dismets. hut only i dative to Resideniial Detached and Mobile

ldonie activity already in use on surrounding properties. In such cases the extent of this extra proiecflon. if
any. shall be deteunitied in aecordance'.nth Special Rttle Si as if the Residential Detached or Mobile Home
activity was a Ciandfathered Residenttal Use within an Intensive Development Disirict

Petii ement Ccii terslAss sted Living

* 5 See catcgoiy above

H 100# l0Il00# 30 1 1205 1305

I a PP ,,M

'H
Salvagc/Wioekinu Yard

T

* * rota1 sci ecu i ng requ irci I

/4 250 400 200

1 30 75 aO

H
Scrap Operations —

I
Total screening is reqtnred in all districts.

250 400 200

I 30 75 50

Speculative Development — Individual tenants must meet all applicable requirements On then principal activity and be
per-mtttetl separately before locanrici vitIiin ihe designated development. Individual tenants
may have less restnetive requirements than the Spccutative Development.

I'3usnicss Parks Business Parks

Shopp nig Centers

Industrial Parks

P. JL__so 75' 30 75 100

1 2

P. 70 too so iso 225

I 2

P. 250 500 200 §00 750

I 1 100 150 100 250

Towing and Impoundment Lot f
50

1 1

Total screening of an impoundment yard is requffed in all distriers.

Tiade Enterpi ises
50

1 2

30

I

75 100

75 30
-

75 100

Transient I lahitation
P. 70 100 50 ISO 225

1 3

Transpoi t and Warehousing (Limtted)
1 3

Transport and Waiehousing (Extensive) H

P.
Transport Services I 2

ljndertakiiig
F

70 100

200

50

30

50 100 ISO

150 100 200 350

30 30 50 75

20 30

J

iit________
30 5

Utilities (Limited)
1

/
3

20 30 20 30 50

Utilities (Intermediate)
40 502 L______I__30

1
60 100

I



ARTICLE 2- APPLICATION OP FLOULAT1ONS 33

ACTIV ITIES
'flflCHT;#IgS4

-BUFFER
C4 - ,4#Cj tv,t' -

SETBAGESfromL S€REENThGW4h&P -iatI;JJ!ktqTUtilities (Extensive)

Vehicle Parkmg
1HI

Road ROW. setback applies to building only.

½
J

100 150

50

50-
50

150
4

225

1
125

/ 30 50 30 75 100

3

Vehicle Repair
/ 70 100

-
50 150 225

I
25 50I I

Vehicle Sales
1 3 J

70 100

I

150 225

Vehicle Sen'icrng (Lmrncd)
50 75

=
30 75 100

I 2

Vehicle Scrvicing (Extensive)
70

I 2

FRI 20
Veterinarian

I

100

30

40

=3011

100 175

30 50

If_________

Zoos
3

I

70 100 5011251200



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

Community Development
County Administration Building, 4th Floor

212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, SC 29072
(803)785-8121

ZONIJG TEXT AMENDMENT APPLICATION # T06-04

Section(s) of the Zoning Ordinance that are affected:

Article 2 - Applicatiori of Regulations; Chapter 1. Schedule of Permitted Uses,
Chapter 2. General Requirements

Reason for the request: hi order to better address the often intimate relationship between golf
courses and the residential development along the fairways, a new definition of golf
courses is prcpoed. That definition includes all of the activities associated with that type
operation. Having sucha definition will allow another opportunuty to insure that fairways
adjacent to any residential development can carry the same development limitations as the
residential development without hindering the operation of the golf facilities.

Even though this request will be carefully reviewed and considered, the burden of
proving the need for the amendment rests with the applicant.

Date of Application: 04-20-06

Phone #(s): ork ( 03) 7$ 121 _____ _____

Signature: (J)
Street/Mailing Address: 212 South Lake Dr, Lexington, SC 29072

Printed Name: Charles M. Compton

04-20-06 Application Received N/A Fee Receipted
Newspaper Advertisement

Planning Commission Recommendation:

ia/.

/to /o'

.1JriQA
Planning Commission

j2etOA,eib

-09-06
First
Reading

Results:

06-20-06 Public
Hearing 7/tC/06

Second
Reading

Third
Reading



Cominumeation l'owers include those used hr radio, television, and telephone transmittal. The buildings
attendant to such use may be incorporated into the Business Services activity.

Comniunitv Education activities iiielude public, parochial.and pnvare kindergartens,priniaryandsecondary
schools. colleges,junior colleges, technical education centers, and universities. Day care centers, stadiums.
dormitories and other activities attendant to scholastic endeavors shall he dealt with as separate activity
types, not to be included within the scope of this definition.

Construction Services include the storage olniaterials and equipmernused to operate aconstructionbusiness

Crops include the raising of trees, vines. Field, Forage or other plant crops intended to provide food or fiber.

Detention Centers. pnsons, or correctional institutions, but not half-way houses.

Essential Services include all flicilities which provide power. communications, orpersonalhealthprotection
and eniergency services aa specified below. Any such ilicility owned andlor operated by the Irnio Fire
District is exempt froni the provisions ofthis Oidinance. provided all locations are approved by Lexington
County Council.

Escntial Services (Linined) shall include communication equipment installations and exchanges, natural
gas substations, electric substanons. neighborhood newspaper distribution centers, and post offices
(excluding major mail processuig centers).

dsscntial Services (Extensive') shall include recycling stations, solid waste transfer stations. law
enforcement stations, tire slations. ambulance substations, and emergency first aid stations.

Food Services include Functions periormed by restaurants or other establishments wherein prepared food or
beverages are sold t'or take-out, home delivery, or on-site consuniption. A drive-through operation is
considered accessory to the pert'iirniance of the activit. Entcrtainnient activities accessory to the principal

activity niay be permitted

General Repairand Maintenance Services include activities such as appliance repair, fianiiture repairandlor
refinishing, electronics repair, small engine repan. welding shops (excluding fabrication), and minor
mechanical repairs. Work is completed primarily on-site, to include the storage of pads and items under

repair.

General Retail ([muted') activities include the wholesale or retail sale or rental of goods or services
customarily associated ith clothing shops, convenience stores, drug stores, jewelry shops, florist shops,
specialty gill shops, appliance stores, pet shops, hardware stores. garden supply shops, shoe stores., book
stores, art studios, photography studios, stationery stores, and the like wherein the goods or services are
oliered at one location, eiiher in the same htnlding or in a series of buildings, which, in the aggresate. do not
exceed 5,000 square feet in size. liiis activity also includes the sale oftires, batteries and vehicle accessories
whereni the storage and/or display oF goods and materials is conducted inside the buildings. The dispensing
of petroleum products niay he included as accessory to a General Retail (Limited) activity. Amusement
centers featuring electronic games shall he included within this activity type.

General Retail (Extensive) activities include the wholesale or retail sale or rental of goods or services
wherein a wide variety ofstich goods or services arc offered at one location, either in the same building or
in a series of buildings.

Golf Courses inc/tide the playingcource itselfas i;'ell as the support activities essential to itS operation
sue/i as pro shop. foot! service, group assembly qor less than 500 participants), maintenance sheds.
daj'lig/it driving ranze, and cart storage. -inj' oilier activities must meet tire requirements of the
appropriate category as defined in i/tic section.

Group Assenihlv (Limited') activities include the provision of cultural, entertamment, educational,
recreational, and athletic services to assembled groups of spectators or participants smaller than 250 in

nuniber. 'l'his activity includes clubs, lodges. meeting halls, and temporary festivals. It also meludes a single
lane boat ramp access into a body nfwater provided it is not available to the general public. Parcels located
on water may also support fishing piers. swimming areas, and couesy docks provdcd no water craft are

6 ICLE 2- APi'i.iC, nUN (in REG[iu\ nIc,Ns



agencies havingjunsdiction over such activities. A hst of these agencies shall be niaintamed by the Zoning
Administrator.

Medical Services include the therapeutic, preventative, or corrective personal treatment of people normally
performed by physicians, dentists, or other practitioners, as well as medical testing and analysis services.
This activity niay include a public health clinic but would exclude any ihcilities providing extended or
rnpatient care.

Military Installations.

Mining includes the extraction orremoval ofminerals for sale, processing, or consumption even if the mining
activity is not required to obtain a mining permit from the South Carolina Department of Health and
Environmental Control (SCDHEC). It does not include grading, backfiuing, plowmg, or excavating areas
for agnculture or on-site construction, unless the extraction or removal of minerals exceeds 25,000 cubic
yards or the activity continues for longer than six months.

Mining (Limited) mcludes all mining operations where the mining area does not exceed five (5) acres.
Tins activity category does not permit on-site mineral processing, including but not limned to, milling,
crushing, screening, washing, flotation, or refining. This activity category does not mclude chemical
leaching of minerals, hard rock quarrying, or blasting.

Mining (Intermediate) mcludes all mining operations where the minmg area does not exceed twenty-five
(25) acres This activity categoi5' permits on-site mineral processing, chemical leaching ofminerals, hard
rock quarrying, or blasting, provided that the blasting or chemical leaching of minerals meets the
buffenng rcstrictions of the Mining (Extensive) caregon'.

Mining (Extensive) includes all other mining activities not included within the definition of Mining
(Linuted) or Mining (Intermediate). This activity category perrmts on-site mineral processing, chemical
leaching, and blasting.

Mini-Parks are recreational areas with no more than playground equipmeni and picnic facilities.

Mini-Warehouses include the operation of warehousing and storage wherein the storage capacity of
individual units is less tItan 1,000 square feet of floor area and individual keys are provided to lock each unit
during the term of a rental agreement.

Mobile Home activities, including manufactured homes, are transportable dwellings intended forpermanent
residential occupancy. They may be contained in either one unit or multiple units designed to be joined
together into one integral unit, arnve at a site complete and ready for occupancy except for minor and
incidental assembly operations, and are constructed so that they may be used without a permanent
foundation. This activity shall not include modular residential construction, as defmed within the South
Carolina Modular Buildings Construction Act of 1976. N'! odular residential construction shall be included
in the Residential Detached or Residential Attached activity types, as appropriate.

Mobile Home Parks (Limited) Three or more mobile homes, exclusive of a mobile home occupied by the
property owner, that are opented as a single entity and Iocatcd within the vicinity of one another. The park
may be located on a single parcel, or multiple parcels in the same or different ownership. The minimum size
:of an individual mobile home space in this type of development is 20,000 square feet.

Mobile Home Parks (Extensive) Three or more mobile homes, exclusive of a mobile home occupied by the
property owner, that are operated as a single entity and located within the vicinity of one another. The park
maybe located on a single parcel, or multiple parcels m the same or different owmcrship. The minimum size
of an individual mobile home space in this type of development is 6,000 suarc feet.

Natural Reserves and undeveloped open spaces include parks with minimum equipment, botanical gardens
and arboretums, golf Lu.-1 (pt tilL Uulldh1 vv IULII ai tu L WLLJIL aLts v it) t)pc bud

and the like.

Non-Assenibly Cultural activities include public, parochial and private museums, art galleries, libraries, and
observatories.

AitncIii 2. APP1.ICAiiON OF REGULATiONS 9



b The provisions of Chapters 2, 3. and 4 of this Article shall apply in all districts to all listed activities as
applicable, The application of these provisions may prohibit an activity from locating in a particular
district.

c. Within the Limited Restriction (ER) district, all activities except the following arc penmrted without
review for compliance with [lie specific provisions o[tliis Ordinance:

Extremely 1-lazardous Materials as regulated by Article 3
Mtning Operations as regulated by Article S
Mobile 1-Ionic Parks as regulated by Ai-ticle 7
Sexually Oriented Businesses as regulated by Article 10

21.31 Chart of Permitted Activities by District

Those activities that are niarked by an asteisk (*) arc allowed onlywhen granteda special exception
by the Board of Zoning Appeals as outlined in Aitiele 12 of this Ordinance.

/' V V V V V Adimmstrative Offices
V V V V V Advertising Signs

V V V V V V V Airports
V V V V V Animal Operations

V V V V V V V lioatDocks
V V V Bus and Transit Teniiinals
V V V V l3usiness Services

V V V V V V V V Cemetenes
V V V V V V V V V V ChildorAdultDayCaie

V V V V V V V V V V V Churches
V V V Communication Towei s

" V V V V V V V V Community Education
V V V V Construcuon Services

V V V V V Crops
V V V Detentron Centeis

V V V V V V V V V V V Essential Services (Linitied)

V V V V V V V V Essential Services (Extensive)

V V V V V Food Services
V V V V General Repair and Maintenance Services

V V V V V General Retail (Linutcd)
V V V V General Retail (Extensive)V / /## V V V V V V V GoIfC'ourses

VU V# VU VU V V V V V V Group Assembly (Limited)
V V V V V Group Assembly (Interniediate)

V V V V Group Assembly (Extensive)
V V V V V V V V V Groupilousirig

V V V V V llespitals
V V V V V Kennels and Stables

V V V Landfills (Limited)
V V V Landfills (Intermediate)
V V V Landfills (Extensive)
V V V V Manufacturing (Light Assembly)
V V V Manufactunng (Lmiiied)
V V V Mannfacrunng (Tntennediatc)
V V V Manufacturing (Extensive)
V V V V Mannas

'RI ICES 2- \ppuCvnoN OF 'tIGIiIj, Iii )NS 1 5



V V V V V V Medical Services
V V V Military Installanons

V V V V V Mining(Limited)
V V V Mining (btertnediate)
V V V Mining (Extensivel

V V V V V .( V V V V V Mini-Parks
V V V V Mini-Warehouses

V V V V V V V V V MobileHomes
V V V V V Mobile Home Parks (Limited)
V V V V V Mobile Home Parks (Extensive) *

V V V V V V V V V V V NaunalReserves
V V V V V V V Non-Assembly Cultural

V V V V V V V V V V NursingHomes
V V V V V Personal Convemence Services

V V V V V V V V PlantNurseries
V V V Power Plants
V V V V V V Professional Services
V V V Radioactive Matenals Handlmg
V V V Railroad
V V V Recycling Centers
V V V V Research Services

V V V V V V V V V V V ResidentialDetached
V V V V V V V V Residential Attached (2 dwelling units)

V V V V V Residential Attached (3 or more dwelling units).
V V V V V Retirement Centers/Assisted Living

V V V Salvage/Wrecking Yard
V V V ScrapOperations
V V V V V BusinessParks J

Shoppmg Centers J Speculative Development
Industrial Parks

V V V V
f V V

V V V V Towing and Impoundment Lot
V V V V Trade Enterpnses
V V V V Transient Habitanon
V V V V Transport and Warehousing (Limited)
V V V Transport and Warehousing (Extensive)
V V V V V Transport Services
V V V V Undertaking

V V V V V V V V V V V Utilities
V V V V Vehicle Parking

. V V V V VehicleRepair
V V V V Vehicle Sales
/ V V V V Vehicle Servicing (Limited)/ V V V Vehicle Servicmg (Extensive)

V V V V V Veterinarian
— L L LL L Zoos

# The permitting of this activity in these districts is allowed only if the Group Assembly (Limited) activity is a membership
facility owned, operated, and used by the property owners in the surrounding residential area for which the facility is being
established.

## The permitting of this activity in these districts is allowed only f the Golf courseactivity is a part of aplanned
development that includes residential development as a pan of its design.

16 ARTICLE 2 . APPLiCATiON OE RCOUI.ATiONS



/ / 7 / 09 FAR Administrative Offices

7 Adverüsmg Signs

V V V Airports
V V V Animal Operations

V V V Boat Docks

V V Bus and Transit Terminals

V V V / 05 FAR Busmess Services

V V V V Cemetenes

V V V Child or Adult Day Care

V V V Churches

V V V / 03 FAR Communication Towers

V V V Conmiuniw Educanon

V V V Constmcnon Services

V V V V Crous

V - / Detention Centers

V V V V Essential Services (Lumted)

V V V Essential Service (Extensive)

V V V Food Services

V V V General Repair and Maintenance Services

V V V / .03 FAR General Retail (Limited)

V V V / .03 FAR General Retail (Ectensive)

V V V / Affi VI Golf Counes

V V 7 V Vs / Group Assembly (Limited)

V V 7 V / / Group Assembly (Intermediate)

V V VII Group Assembly (ENtensive)

V V V V / 5.5 DtJ/acre Group Flousmg
V V VII Hospitals
V V V Kennels and Stables

V V I Landfills (Linined)

V V / Lancififis (Iniennediate)

V V Landfills (Extensive)

V V I Manufactoung (Lieht Asseriibly)

V V I \-tanufactunng (Limited)

V V I Mallufacnirme (Intenriediate)

V V Manufacturing (Extensive)

V V I Mamas

V V V / 07 FAR Medical Services

V V Military Installations

V V V Mining (Luniied)

V V V Mining (Intermediate)

V V Mining (Extensive)

V V V V V V V Mim-Parks

V V V Mim-Watehouses

V V V V V V V 4 DU/acre Mobile Homes

V V V V V 6 DlJ/acre Mobile Home Parks

V V V V V V V Natural Reserves

V V V V Non-Assembly Cultinal

V V V / 12 Beds/acre Nursing Homes

1 8 ARm ices. z - aPPLICA I ON OF REGCLA iONs



/ V / / 03 FAR
J Personal Convemence Senuces

7 1 1 / Plant Nursenes/ 1 Power PlantsI I I / 09 FAR Professional ServicesI I Radioactive Matenals Handlmg/ RailroadI I / Recycling CentersI I 1 / 09 FAR Research Services
I I I V I I / 4 Dt7acre Residential Detached
7 I I I / 4 DU/acre Residential Attached(2 Dwelling Lime)I I I V / 6 DU/acre Residential Auached<i or in OwethngUrnts)I I I I / 6 DU/acre Retirement Centers/Assisted Living
1 1 1 Salvage! Wrecking YardI I I Scrap Operations/ - /

I
1
I Business Parks

SpeculativeShoppmg Centers
Development

lndustial Parks

I
I I - / -

I I I Towing and Impoundment LotI I I Trade Enterprises
V I I rransient Habitation/ / / Transport & Warehousing (Limited)
V I I Iransport & Warehousing (Extensive)
V I I Transport Services
V V I UndertakingI I I I I I I Utilities
V I I Vehicle ParlongI I I I Vehicle Repair
V I I / 03 FAR Vehicle Sales/ / / Vehicle Servicing (Limited)/ / / Vehicle Servicing (Extensive)
1 1 1 VetermananI / I Zoos

* Access by these classificitions is allowed only if the Group Assembly (Limited) activity is a membership
facility owned, operated, and used by the property owners In the sw-rounding residential area for wInch the
facility is being established.

Access by these classifications is allowed only if the street is paved.

# Access by this classificaon is allowed only if the activity also has access to an Arterial or Collector Street.

Access by this classification is allowed only if the Golf Course activity is a part of a planned development
that includes residential development as a pan' of its design.

22.10 Driveway and Street Restrictions

22.11 Vision Clearance

For the safety of the traveling and pedestrian public, all intersections will maintain a vision clearance
triangle These triangles must be kept clear of all vegetation, walls, or structures between a height of two
and one-half (2.5) feet and ten (10) feet to provide for safer movement of motorists and pedestrians.
Depending on the location, intersections must mect one of the followmg cntena:

2 - APPLICATION OE REGULATIONS 1 9



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

Community Development
County Administration Building. 4th Floor

212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, SC 29072
(803)785-8121

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION # M06-1 2

Address and/or description of the property for which the amendment is requested:

West Side of Charter Oak Road between US I and US 378

Zoning Classifications. (Current) Restrictive Development (RO) (Proposed) Intensive
Development (ID)

TMS#: 004200-05-005 Property Owner: Marshall Hartmann

Reason for the request: The change in the zoning district is requested to reduce the buffer
restrictions for a proposed office complex and craft storage area.

Even though this request will be carefully reviewed and considered, the burden of
proving the need for the amendment rests with the applicant.

Date of Application: 8/4/2006 Applicant: Owner LII Agent Z

Phone #(s): cell ç?03)206-7003

StreetlMailing Address: 955 Old Cherokee Road,

Printed Name: Reggie Enlow

Lexinqton 29072

1 8/4/2006 Application Received I 8/4/2006 Fee Receipted
I Newspaper Advertisement Property Posted

Notices Mailed Planning Commission

Planning Commission Recommendation:

First Public
Reading Hearing

Second
Reading

Third
— Reading

Results:

Signature:



Z
O

N
IN

G
 M

A
P 

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
 R

E
Q

U
E

ST
 #

M
O

6-
12

 



ORDINANCE NO. 06-09

AN ORDNANCE TO Th'IFOSE THE PROVISIONS AS ALLOWED BY SOUTH CAROLINA
CODE SECTION 12-37-670 SO AS TO ALLOW IMPROVEMENTS THAT ARE
COMPLETED ON OR BEFORE JUNE 30" TO BE TAXABLE FOR THE PERIOD FOR JULY
IS! TO DECEMBER 3l OF THAT PROPERTY TAX YEAR.

WHEREAS, the General Assembly has amended 12-37-670 to allow for taxation of
improvements to real property that are completed on or before June 30, of the property tax year;
and

WHEREAS, the provisions of the South Carolina Code §12-37-670(b)(2) provides for any
irnprovcmcn listed with ihe County Auditor on or before June 30 to pay additional property tax for
the period from July l to December 31n for that property year; and

WHEREAS, the provisions of 12-32-670 require the County to enact an Ordinqnce to
impose the provisions of the state statute.

NOW THEREFORE, BE liT ORDAINED AND ENACTED BY THE LEXINGTON
COUNTY COUNCIL, AS THE GOVERNiNG BODY OF LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH
CAROLINA, [N MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED:

Section 1

The provisions of S.C. Code Section 12-37-670(h) arc hereby adopted and incorporated herein and
specifically provide as follows:

1) An owner of land on which a new structure has been erected and that has not been
appraised for taxation shall list the new structure for taxation with the County
Auditor of the County in which it is located by the first day of the next month
after a certificate of occupancy is issued for the structure. A new structure must
not be listed or assessed until it is completed and fit for the usc for which it is
intended, as evidenced by the issuance of the certificate of occupancy.

2) Additional property tax attributable to improvements listed with the County
Auditor on or before June 30th is due for the period from July l to December 3 l
for that property year, and payable when taxes are due on the property for that
property tax year. Additional property tax attributable to improvements listed
with the County Auditor after June 30thof the property tax year is due and payable
when taxes are due on the property for the next property tax year.

Section 2

Pursuant to the provisions of 12-37-670(b)(3), the provisions of this ordinance are also binding on
all municipalities within the County.

1



Section 3—Effective Date

The provisions ofthis ordinance shall he effective For the 2007 real property tax year.

Enacted this ______ day of_____________________ 2006.

Chairman, Lexington County Cousici I

Attest:

Diana Burnett, Clerk

First Reading: ____________________________________

Second Reading: ____________________________
Public Nearing: __________________________
Third & Final Reading: _____________________
Filed w/Clerk of Court: _____________________

2



COMMITTEE REPORT
RE: Lexington County Recreation Request

DATE: July 26, 2006

COMMITTEE: Public Works

MAJORITY REPORT: Yes

The Public Works Conmuittee convened on Tuesday, July 25, 2006 to consider a rcquest by Jay
Criscione, Executive Director of the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission.

Mr. John Fechtel, Director of Public Works, stated that he received a letter from Mr. Criscione
requesting permission to use a small portion (310' by 310) of county property located on the back
southwest corner of the County maintenance facility located at Ball Park Road to establish a ball
field that will link to their existing park.

Mr. Fechtel stated that this site may be on top of an old landfill and recommended that the County
not allow any pemianent structures such as light posts, fencing, etc. be installed.

If permanent structures are needed by the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission, it
is understood that the Lexington County Recreation and Aging Commission will have to formally
request from County Council that they be allowed to procure engineering services to conduct a study
of the conditions of the site for SCDIT{EC approval.

The Public Works Committee voted to reconinend that Councilapprove the request and that the
County follow the County Zoning Ordinance for set back requirements.



DATE

TO:

FROM.

RE

COUNTY OF LEXINGTON
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

ENGINEERING

MEMORANDUM

June 12, 2006

Katherine Doucett
County Administrator

John Fechtel, Public Works Director
Assistant County Administrator

Lexington County Recreation Request

Attached is a request from Jay Criscione, Executive Director of Recreation
and Aging Commission, for use of additional property for another ball field on
Ball Park Road. Also attached are two (2) maps.

1) Overall location of site requested

2) Site plan in greater detail. Public Works does not have a concern
with this location other than it may be on top of the old landfill.
We would need to verify that this type of facility could be used on
this area and under what conditions.

We recommend County Council approving this site for a ball field based on
their engineer clarifying this issue with SCDHEC

440 BALLPARK ROAD • LExINGTON, SOUTh CAROLINA 29072• (803)-785-8201

- /



Lexington County Qccreation 5' A51n8 Cofflmiion

Mi, John Fechtel
Director of Public Works
Lexington County

Dear John)

803-3534Q43 John J. CSciorje
tXthIJUVc Dictator

Per our discussion I would like to ask pennission from Council to use a small portion of
County property located on the back southwest corner of the County maintenance facility
in Lexington to establish a bail field that vd11 lixik to our existing park it appears that this
acreage is on the Did landfill, which would restrict its usage for County services.

I would also like to request that we increase the size of the property so that the right
angles would show 3] 0 feet as opposed to the 210 feet you and 1 frst discussed.

if this is agreeable with you and council please advise at your convenience.

563 &uth take Driyejcxjnton &uth Cn4liu 29072

June 9, 2006

tncere y,

L RAC

Lon,' lik 0

DNI9 W D3 AID X31 62E65EEe3 8tt 903/6Is2@/Q 3Dd







COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

Community Development
County Administration BuUding, 4th Floor

212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, SC 29072
(803)785-8121

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION # M06-06

Address and/or description of the property for which the amendment is requested:

Applicant requests to change Road Classification of Indian River Drive from Local(L) to
Residential Local Four(RL4) road.

Zoning Classifications: (Current) Local

TMS#: Property Owner -

(Proposed) RL4

Reason for the request: In order to keep character of the immediate area to single family
residential only.

Even though this request will be carefully reviewed and considered, the burden of
proving the need for the amendment rests with the applicant.

Date of Application: 05/09'06 Applicant: Owner fl Agent Z

Phone #(s): ho7ie 803-755-9820 ____________

Signature:

Street'Mailing Address: 112 Pinehurst Court, West

Printed Name: Joe Mergo. Ill

Columbia SC 29170

05/09/06 Application Received ] os7c/o Fee Receipted
oi/o/°' Newspaper Advertisement Property Posted

/o Notices Mailed Planning Commission

Planning Commission Recommendation:

First Public
Reading /t/0Hearing

Second F

Reading
Third

- Reading

Results:

work 803-755-3325



STAFF SUMMARY
ZONING MAP AMENDMENT #M06-06

Description of the Amendment: TIns map amendment request is for a change in road classification
from Local (L) to Residential Local Four (RIA) road.

Character of the Area: Single Family Residential off of Indian River Drive with the Indian River
Golf Coarse on either side of the road.

Zoning History: A small section of Indian River Drive is rn the Eastern Lexington County Planning
area zoned on February 14, 1980 The majority of Indian River Drive is in the Central Lexington
County Planning area zoned on December 9, 1986 Since 1990, there have been five (5) map
anendnient requests in the area.

Council District: Five - Mr Bobby C. Keisler

Attachments: Chart of Allowed Uses by Zoning District
Political Boundaries Maps
Location Maps

7



cia ptcr 2. General Requirements

22(n) 51 reet Cl assilicatiotis and A ccvs

All streets on the zoning naps shall l'c designated one of [lie follo rig classi ications as shown cr1 tire Right—of—
Way Plan. The colnninarchart which follows in Section 22.02 identifies the type street required to provide access
to each activity,

Arterial (A ii A street ol regional importance or a main toad of the conininn its which is expected to earn either
heavy vehic ular traffic ''ci untes or hinh—speed ti attic or both. Tm [tic intensive commercial, industrial and high—
Lleilsit\ iesidential activities should be encouraged to develop on Arterial roads.

Collector (C A street which is used or intended to be used for moving traffic from lcs'al streets to Arlerials.
Collectors ate generally shorter than Artenials, hut carry high volunEs of traffic. Theiefor'e. development crf land
along Cu] lector should he compatible wtlh high traffic volunias.

Local t U: A street which pnniarilv provides access to nonresidential land uses and connects residential streets
to the Arterials and Collectors. Land uses should be compatible with higher traffic volumes, Hots ever, the most
intensive land i.tsos which etierale extremel high levels of traffic should be prehihited from direct access. The
ft dlowing additional categories ,f Local streets are established to handle the special circttmsiances described

Residential Local Si RLo1: A street with frontage ,'er 51if, i esidentiallv developed il the tim of
en-ac iment of this Ordinance or platted as :1 residential sutxll\ i sion - This type st reel is intended to
acconmiodate residential activities at six dwelling units per acre. .ccess t' ill be limited to this t\ Pe
de e lopment and al lotved home occupations or accessory icti itres.

Residential Local Five /RL51: A street with frontage over 5tY residentially developed at the time of
enactment of this Ordinance or plaited as a residential subdivision. This tv street is intended to
accommodate some residential activities at five dwelling units per acre. Access will he limited lo this type
development and allowed home occupations or accessory activities.

Residential Local Four (RL4r: A street with frontage over 5(I residentially developed at the time of
enactment of this Ordinance or platted as a residential subdivision. This type sti'eet is intended to
accommodate some residential activities at four dwelling units per acre. Access will ['c limited to this tpe
development and allowed home occupations or accessory actix tries.

Li mi ted Local LEt: A stme.l Ihat contains a locational or design flaw which limits traffic volume, The
conditions of the pioblem should be virtually impossible to curreci or very unlikely to be inipro ed. A ccess
to this type street will he lttiii ted to those activities expected to generate traffic olu roes equal to ii less than
Detached Resident il de elopit eat at four dwellintz trnits per acre.

22.1)1 New Streets Cnate(l

Whenevernew streets are added to the roadway system within the zoningjuiischction olLexington County,
these slicers shall he classified according to Ihe criteria specified within this section. The Zoning
Administrator, upon the apjituval and confirmation of the classification by the Planning Coninnssion, shall
cause same to he placed upon the Lotting map.

22.1)2 Chart of Permit ted Acees' by Street Ctassiticiti,,rt

The following chart designates the stieet classifications necessary to access each of the major activities.
A I uincrpal jetty is c'li cli is restricted from access to a specific street class ficnttcsn nia\ 1 ut lcicate where
the activitY is reachable cmlv throttgh the use of a street with such a restncted classification.

Thereareliniitsplaced on snnw actrvitiesaltowed toaccess',mLirnited Local LL)srreet classification The
last column in the chart describes the specific nature of these limits where 1.hev exist. They ale expressed
in either inaximuni number of dwelling units OU) per acre, maximum number of beds per acre, or
maximum floor area ratio i FAR). A flcw'r area ratio is ari expression of the total floor area of a sinicrure

IS M<TiCU. 2- pDucATmoN



or hui]drriu. rriclttdirtsz irserhIe hosemeak. eorap.urvd Io Ire lcrta] kit arc:t. For e\aIlpIe. a I 0110 squiie jexil

bUiIt1fl
113.0131.) IO WOuld lnne a 1Ni iiea I.rITO ot. 10.

' C—.
N K

I RI 6
K

=______________RI IrRr4I II tc. Ni I\ I IIHII% tk \C US ITIUS—
N tY [AR Ad nIrni'rr alive Olnee

K Ativer iisiiig Siens
N N N Arrpoirc
N N N — -\ 'Irma I ri dons

N N N Boat Din ks

N N [ILK and Ti ansn Te ml

N N N N .03 FAR Business Serviecn

N N N N Ccrwieries
N N N Ch,}l or AL1Ilir [ky Care

N N N Chrirelies

N N N N 03 FAR C' nnnuriieation Toers
X N N C n1rnumiri Etlriiamic',)

N N N Curiot net ion Se r ices

N N N N Crops\ I kieiriiiii Centers
N N N N EsrnLi,il Sen ices (Linrmr
N N N [snri,iil Services iE\terIsi\e)
N N N Fixti Services
N N N Gcneial Reprr- :mrtd M;irrrenarree Servites
N N N N .03 FAR Cit neral Rerai Linriiedi
N N N N 3)3 FAR Genei :d Rerail Exre,rsive1
N N N X N N Group Asseriibiv Lirnireil)
x x N N- N — N' nip -\ sseithiy 1 oLe inlet liii
N N N#

N

Cr oip Assembly r Lvendve
N N N N 55 DU'acre Gririp Houdne
N N N Hltrsprmals

N N N Ne erIe Is and Stable

N ) N Larmdflhlc (LinrireLl

\ sç \" — Lirrillills (l:riermnediare I

N N ' l_rmrrclliIIs ( Eierisic ci

)t N )t \lar,urrretc,, inc (I_melt Asser'rllv i

\ \Iaaufaemu,ine Limited)
N N N \Iancriaemurinc (l,iLermnecliate I

N N \1iriuirremurmne 'Eie nsive

N N N Marlois
N N N N 1)7 FAR \Iederi SeF\ ices
N N NIrliran. 1ncra]larrcrs

). N N )tI,riine '1_i tilteD

N N 'C Nirnirie Irk rinetliare)
N N Ninirre 'ExieriLice)

N N N N N N N MinI-Parks

N N N \Iriri-W:nehuinses

N N N N N N N 2 DlSaerc Mobile H ones
N N N N N DU/mere \Iolrile Home Ruks

ARtIcLE: - riecirt's 19



I I
&k?c:L RL6 ]RLSJTRL:4) LL;&Màifjhjjts
X X X X X X N NaturaiReserves
N N X N Non-Assembly Cultural
N X N N 12 Beds'acre Nursine Home>
N N K N 0$ FAR Persona] Crave rue nec Services
X X K N Plant Nurseries
N N Power Plants
X X N N N FAR Professional Senices
N N Radioactive Materials Handling
X N Railroad
X

RecvclingCeniems
N N N N 09 FAR Research Services
N

N

N

X

N

X
X

N

N

X

X N 4 DU'acr
N 4 DU/acre

Residential Detiched

Residential .Aitctd2
N N N N N ôDUiacre Residential Attachedm;or
X X X X N 6 DU/acre Retirement Cenrersf;ssisted Living
N N X SalvagAVreckino Yard
N N N Scrap Operatior
N N N Business Paths -

Shopping Centers Speculative
[)evekapnntIndustrial Parts

X

N N N
X X N Towing and Impouncimein Lot
N N N Trade Enterprises
N N N Transient Habitation
N N N Transport & Warehousing (Limited)
N N N Transport & Warehousing (Etcnsive)
N N N Transport Services
N N N

Undenaking
N N N N N N N Utilities
N N N Vehicle Parking
N N N N Vehicle Repair
N N N N 03 FAR Vehicle Saks
N N N Vehic!e Sen'king cLimited
X N N

Vehicle Senicing tExtensive)
N N N Velerinarian
N N N Zoos

2 Access by these classifications is allowed univ if the Group Assembly (Urnhedj activity is a membership
facility owmd operated, and used by the property owners in the surrounding residentialarea for which thefacility is beine established.

Access by these claifications is allowed only if the stied i paved.

4 Access by this classification is allowed only lithe activity also has access toanArierial or( ofle-ctoc Sweet

a



ZONING DISTRICT DENSITY (clwe]litw units r eross acre)
R3 20
R2 S
RI, D.RA 4

DENSITY (dwelling tinits per gross acre)
Unlimited

STREET CLASSIFICATION
A Arterial
C Collector
L Lccal

RL6 Residential Local Six
R Ii Residential Local Five
RL4 Residential Local Four

LL Limited Local

12
8
6
5
4
4*

* Refer to Section 22.00 for a full understanding of the Limited Local mstridlloris,

A lot in existence prior to the adoption of this Ordinance, which dces not comply with the requirements of this
section. shall he allowed to support one dwelling unit without regard to densav or lot area, provided the activity
complies with all other toning requirements and any applicable health and safety standards.

22.30 Residential Density

Residential types of activities as permitted in RI. R2, R3. ft and RA districts are subject to maximum density
limits to support the contemplated acvity. Density is to he measured as the total area of land within the property
bounclanes, including those which are permanently under watel or subject to inundation, or which are contained
in an easement. prosed roads., or other gmnt of use. However, density calculations shall not include rights-of-
wa for existing roads

The allowable density of residential developirnt hall he in accord with the following listings for the zoning
districts androad classifications, the most restrictive ofwhich shall apply. Miniinumlotareasare thenestablished
via Ihistable in conjunctionwith adherence tothe buffering restridions of Article 2, Cbapter2. However, nothing
contained herein shall be construed so as to circumvent the specific lot area requirennts of DHEC regulations
as adnutusrered by the Lexington County Health Department for individual wells and septic tanks.



Z
O

N
IN

G
 M

A
P 

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
 A

PP
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 #

M
06

-0
6 



Z
O

N
IN

G
 M

A
P 

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
 A

PP
L

IC
A

T
IO

N
 #

M
06

-0
6 



C
O

U
N

T
Y

 C
O

U
N

C
IL

 D
IS

T
R

IC
T

 M
A

P 



Existing Landuse
Map Amendment # M06-06

I

EXISTING LAND USE

CLUBHOUSE] COUNTRY CLUB

GOLF COURSE

RESIDENTIAL - IMPROVED

RESIDENTIAL - UNIMPROVED

RURAL - IMPROVED

RURAL - UNIMPROVED



Existing Zoning

ZONING DESIGNATIONS
ROAD CLASSIFICATION

I - lnbrU..
A-AITIIoal Road

C - Co&cn Road

LL LnI4 Local Road

L - Local Road

C 101.4 - ReONeI01I Local 4

IOLS - RosenlIj Local 5

PLO - PoseT0IoJ Local 0

RESTRICTIVE DEVELOPMENT

RA - RtOeaOKlnal/AgrIClRuIal

0 0o,tEpmeoT

RI- Lso Otosly Re5D0TT'aI

IC - M1Ion1 Debt0 ReoeT010IaI

C 103- HE Densoy
RI) - RoccDoe DeOeCyOTRTI

INTENSIVE DEVELOPMENT

LO - LImbed CommoIDal

CI - NeehE3Ibcd CoTnnercl

O-O,Coe1nbcIaI
LI ID- ITon,e Deo,bp.TbeoT

SPECIAL DISTRICTS

LR - L.IASE ReW,cEon

PD - PIavIed Deonpnee4

Map Amendment # M06-06



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

Community Development
County Administration Building, 4 Floor

212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, SC 29072
(803)785-8121

ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT APPLICATION #

Section(s) of the Zoning Ordinance that are affected:

T06-05

Article 2-Application of Regulations; Schedule of Permifted Uses, General Requirements,
Buffering Restrictions

Reason for the request: In order to bring the language and definitions of the Zoning Ordinance
for kennels more in line with the language and definitions of the County Animal Control
Ordinance and to further expand on a clearer intent within the Zoning Ordinance.

Even though this request will be carefully reviewed and considered, the burden of
proving the need for the amendment rests with the applicant.

Date of Application: 05/04106

Phone #(s : work (803)-785-8121

Signatu . ____________________ Printed Name: Bruce Hiller- 0ev. Admin.

Street/Mailing Address: 212 South Lake Drive, Ledngton, SC 29072

fl 05/04/06 Application Received N/A Fee Receipted
Lô,/&a/oc Newspaper Advertisement H / Planning commission

Planning commission Recommendation:

First Public
Reading / Hearing

Second
Reading

Third
Reading

Results:



ARTICLE 2- APPLICATION OF REGULATIONS

Chapter 1. Schedule of Permitted Uses

21.10 Description of Principal Activities

Fancier's Kennel,ratterv includes a private kennel or tatterv niaintauied by a fancier to keep or train cats or
(Jogs Ajancier means a person who owiis or keeps 3 or more dogs or eats for noncommercial hunting or/or
breeding purposes in order to regular/v participate in exhibition in shows or field trials, or obedience or
performance tnt/Is at ARC (American Kennel Club), CKC (Ciiited Kennel Club,), or Cf A (Cat Fancier
Association,) licensed shows.

Kennels. Catteries, and Stables include aiiv person, estahhislunent,part;iership, corporation, or oilier legal en/i/v
that owns, keeps. harbors, or is custodian u/domestic aiiinials and/or domestic fowl kept or used/or stud/or
which a fee is charged and/or/or breeding purposes Jor which ajee is charged for the offspring, or for the
purpose of commercial hoarding, grooniing, stile *, or training. I)UUlldlUflt ftLL IIdiL that nu JL fcn tilL

ten pci ui buaid u, LiUlik' , tnd b1 cLdilig cf IIL1IL dli WAb Ulijul dolnLt;L k'l. Animal rescue and/or
adoption/acilities, whether operated for profit or as anon—profIt organization, shall be included iii tIns category.
Activities wider this category shall not include livestock and other/arm animals used in customary and normal
agricultural hitvhtuidry practices or a/aiicier 's kennel or ctittcry or an An anal Hospital maintained hya licensed
veterinarian.

* A pet shop, as defined as any person, paraiership or corporation, whether operatedseparately or in connection
with another busmess enterprise or other legal entiTy that hu-vs or brokers tiny species o/animal/or resale as
pets shall be classified as General Retail (I amnied) unless the activity is included within a larger GeneralRetail

(Extensive,) activity.

21.3t Chart of Permitted Activities by District

Those activities that are marked by an asterisk (*) are allowed only when granted a special exception by
the Board of Zoning Appeals as outlined in Article 12 of this Ordinance.

V V V V V Animal Operations

V V V / V V V Fancier's Kenncl/Catterv

V V I / V V V Kennels, Cattenes, and Stables

V / V V V Vetennarian

V 1/ V V Zoos

RiJR2ft:R3'WW)tI{At'RD I ____



Chapter 2. General Requirements

22.02 Chart of Permitted Access by Street Classification

The Following chart designates the street classifications necessary to access each of the major
activities. A prncipal activity which is restricted from access to a specific streetclassification may
not locate whore the activity is reachable only through the use of a street with such a restricted
classification.

There are limits placed on some activities allowed to access a Limited Local (LL) sbeet
classification. The last column in the chart describes the specific nature of these limits where they
exist. They are expressed in either maximum number ofdwelling units (DIJ) per acre, maximum
number of beds per acre, or maxiniuin floor area ratio (FAR) .A floorarea ratio is an expression of
the total floor area ofa structure or building, including useable basements, compared to the total lot
area. For example, a 1003 square foot building on a 10,000 square foot lot would have a floor area
ratio of 13

/ / 7 Animal Operations
/-. / / —. . Fonczer s Kenhet/Cotterr
7 7 V —. Kennels. Catteres, and Stables
7 , 7 —. Veterinarian

" ...L_ Zoos

Chapter 3. Buffering Restrictions

23.50 Chart of Buffering Restrictions

The columnar chart below lists the buffering restrictions defined in this chapter as they apply to specific
activities. Following are general rules and special rules for interpreting the chart:

23.51 General Rules

The restrictive (R) requirements in the chart apply to protected proper' lineswithin
a Restrictive Development District or those which serve as the boundary between
a Restrictive Development District and a Limited Restriction District, a

municipality within Lexington County, or an adjacent county.

2. 'Ilie intensive (I) requirements in the chart apply to protected property lines within
an Intensive Development District or those which serve as the boundary between
an Intensive DevelopmentDistrictand a LimitedRestriction District, a municipality
with in Lexington County, or an adjacent county.

3. For property lines which serve as the boundary between a Restrictive Development
District and an Intensive Development District, the restrictive (R) requirements
shall apply for the protection of property on the Restrictive Development District
side ofihe boundary relative to land uses on the Intensive Development Disu-ict side
of the bouiidaiy. Similarly, the intensive (1) requirements shall apply for the
protection of property on the Intensive Development District side of the boundary
relative 10 land uses on the Restrictive Development District side of the boundary.

4. When an activity is located on a parcel which is separated from surrounding
protected property by existing road or railroad rights-of-way, by utility rights-of-



Way, by water bodies, or by other parcels, then tile butTering restrictions applicable
to thitactivitysliuII be measured aetoss such separation from the protected property
lines.

5. \ctrvities that provide toed screening using existing natural vegetation and/or
landscaped vegelaiion (incitielnia planted herms) shall he eligible Icr a 50%
reduenon iii huller and setback requirements. Acceptability of screening for this
reduction shall be deteiinntecl by the Zoning Administrator. The following
activitiesaie not eligible. Detennon Centers. ReeyclingCeiiters. Salvage/Wrecking
Yards. Sci'ap Operations. Sextitille Oriented Businesses. and ljrilitv Stibstattous.

23.52 Special Rules

However. tlte general tales above ihr nierpretnig the chart shall be modified by the speetal
rules belo\\ in items I' through 5' where applicable

Oiandfatliered residential uses within an Intensive Development District shall he
afforded the restrictive (R) reqcnicinenis in the chart relative to land uses on
surrounding properties iii the Ibllowing manner.

Those port ions of the property lines of a grandfathered residential tise
which aie wirhui 125 feet of that use's principal activity {aeaerally the
building footprnit(s)} shall he considered protected property lines to the
extent of I 00% of the i-estrtci ye (R) requirements in die chart relative to
the applicable activity on the surrounding property

Those portions of the property lines of a grandthtliered residential use
which are \vrtliin 250 fcei oIl htit more than 125 feet from. that use's
pi meipal aciivity generallv the building lbotpriiit(s)1 shall be considered
protected property linos to ilte exient of 50% of the restrictive (R)
reqtiircnients ni the chart relative to the applicable activity on the
surrounding property This 50% level of protection shall be determined by
halvingthechisiaiices imposed l'ortlic lieiglii. btiffer,setback from adjoining
property, iotal setcoiti ig mxl virtrtl screening requiremeuis.

Those portions nf the propert lutes of a grandfathered residential use
which arc mire than 25(1 foci honi iltat use's principal activity [generally
the htirlding lbotpr mi(s)] shall he considered protected property lines to the
extent of 100% ofilie intensive (I) requirements iii the chart dative to the
applicable activity on the sni rounding property.

2. Those portions of the property lines of a parcel \vitliiri a Restrictive Development
District wIt ich serve as the boundrir'v between the Restrictive Development District
and an Intensive Development District, and vltteh have no grandlhrliered residential
tise within I 25 Ieee shall be considered protected proper lines to the extent of
50% of the restrictive (R) requireinciits in the chart relative to the applicable
activity iii the lntensi e Development District. This 50% level of protection shall
he detci in med by halving I lie cl istuices imposed br the height. buffer. setback from

ad1oining property, total screening, and partial sereeiinig requirements.

3. Norsvitlistanding special rtiles I arid 2 ahoe. eeru ni portions of the property lines
of a parcel withtn either a Restrictive Development District or an Intensive
Development District, or boil]) upon which there is.ii] existing non-residential
principal activity, shall he considered protected property lines only to the extent of
100% of the intensive (I) requirements in the chart relative to the applicable activin'
on the sun onndins properly 1 lie port ions ofthe property line so protected shall be
those \vithm 250 Ihet ofeither tire principal or accessory uses of this non-residential

4. When a protected property line nuts tltrotigit or borders an impoundment of\vater,
but not a t'i'ee-f1oving watercourse. then the ci istances imposed for the buffer.



setback from adjoining property, total screening, and partial screening, but not
height, requirements (as first determined by applying the genera! rules and special
rules above) shall be measured such that each linear foot of traverse over the water
impoundment shall count is only one half Ibot toward the total distance imposed.
On Lake MulTay the water niipoundinent is considered to be that area bounded by
the 360-foot contour (MSL). Since screening of activities on water surfaces is not
Feasible, the partial screening requirements will typically control the distance
separation over water un poundnien ts.

-

S All activities shall provide partial screening, as applicable, relative to Residential
Detached and Mobile Home activity already in use or permitted prior to October28,
1998, on surrounding properties also located in an intensive DevelopmentDistrict.
[n such cases the extent of this extra protection, if any, shall be determined in
accordance with Special Rule #1.

Any Residential Detached or Mobile Home activity in an Intensive Development District
in use or permitted after October 27, 1998. shall be responsible for providing their own
screening, if desired, from adjacent land uses.

In all districts, all pennittsd act ivities shall comply with the Per Ibrrnance Standards contained
in Chapter 4. For activities particularly associated wi/h anticipated higher dezrees of noise and

ilEhi. the zoning application and site olan suhnzzttal shall address the proposed method(s) of
corn plzance with the Performance Standards of this Ovdinance.

ACTIVITIES

RAnimal Operations
Setbacks apply to buildiags only

fiiElc.WF

i TII
1FER

I

I

fA€m
rty

I 30
I

30

I al
Ii II

Tf?11 ½
Fznczer s Kewie!1Cottery

2

I

R TI

Kennels, Cazieries. and Stab'es —
II

2

Veterinarian
IIll

Zoos
It V.

30 I 50 30 II 50 F

II0
1 [ 7 40 75 100

II
20

—_______

30 30 30 T 50

I___ftl00 +4*t/50 50
I

e&iso 1 %225



The attached

Lexington County Animal
Control Ordinance

is provided for the purpose of comparison
with the proposed

Zoning Text Amendment
# T06-05



XRJTCLE ii. ANJMAL. CONTRLL Page o[6

ARTICLE II. ANIMAL CONTROL

DIVISION 1. GENERALLY*

*EditorIs note: Ord. No. 02-8, adopted Jan. 14, 2003, was deemed as superseding the former Ad. II, Div. 1,
§ 10-31—10-40 The former Ad. II pertained to similar subject mailer and denved from Code 1983 § 4-12-A-
20, 4-39.

Sec. 10-31. Definitions.
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed to

them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Abandonment means a situation in which the owner/caretaker of a pet does not provide for humane
disposal of the pet, or transfer ownership to a responsible person or who does not provide or arrange for
adequate food, water, shelter and care.

Animal control officer means the person employed by the county as the enforcement officer of the
provisions of this article

Animal shelter means any premises so designated by the county council for the purpose of impounding
and caring for all pets found in violation of this article or which the owner/custodian or citizen surrenders

Attack dog means a dog that has been Irained to attack persons independently or upon verbal
command or hand signal.

At large means any pet that is not under restraint. Any pet not so restrained will be deemed unlawfully
running at large.

Catteiy means any person engaging in the business of breeding, buying, selling or boarding of cats.

Commercial boarding kennel/cattery means any establishment for the commercial boarding, grooming,
sale or training of dogs/cats for which a fee is charged. An animal hospital maintained by a licensed
veterinarian as pad of the practice of veterinary medicine for the treatment of animals shall not be considered a
"commercial boarding kennel/cattery

Commercial breeding kennel/cattery means any person. partnership or corporation or other legal entity
that owns, keeps, harbors or is custodian of pets kept or used for stud for which a fee is charged and/or for
breeding purposes for which a fee is charged for the offspnng. Commercial breeding kennel/cattery shall not

include:

(1) Livestock and other farm animals used in customary and normal agricultural husbandry
practices.

(2) A fancier's kennel/cattery.

Custodian means any person having custody or custodial power

Dangerous pet means any pet evidencing characteristics usually associated with an abnormal

inclination to attack other pets or persons without provocation.

Exposure to rabies means any person or pet that has been bitten by or exposed to any pet known to

have been infected with rabies The county health department or a licensed veterinarian shall make this
determination.

Fanc:er means a person who owns or keeps three or more dogs or cats for noncommercial hunting or

hrtp//lihiarv4.nlLlnicode.eom/mcc/DCCViCW/1 I I 62/1/28/30/31 5/4/2006



ARTICLE IL *NIMAL CONTROL Page 2 of 6

for breeding purposes in order to regularly particpate in tracking, exhibition in shows, or field or
obedience or performance trials at AKC (American Kennel Club), UKC (United Kennel Club) or CEA (Cat
fancier Association) licensed shows.

Fancier's kennel means a private kennel maintained by a fancier to keep or train dogs or oats.

Guard dog means any dog that is reasonably expected to perform as a guardian of its owner/custodian
and/or the property upon and within which the dog is located and is owned by a licensed security service or
commercial establishment.

Hybrid means the offspring of wild animals crossbred with domesticated dogs and cats.

Kenne/ means any person engaging in the business of breeding, buying, selling or the boarding of
dogs.

Maltreatment means the act of any person who deprives any pet of necessary sustenance or shelter,
or inflicts unnecessary pain or suffering upon any pet, or causes these things to be done.

Owner means any person who

(1) Has a right of property in a pet.

(2) Keeps or harbors a pet or who has it in his care or acts as its custodian.

(3) Permits a pet to remain on or about any premises occupied by said person for a period of
- - - five or more days

Pet means dog or cat

Pet shop means any person, partnership, or corporation, whether operated separately or in connection
with another business enterprise or other legal entity that buys or brokers any species of animal for resale as
pets

Public nuisance means any pet found at large or making loud or objectionable sounds.

Restraint means a situation in which a pet is.

(1) Controlled by a leash when outside the property limits of its owner/custcdian

(2) Under the control and obedient to the owner/custodian's commands within the property
limits of the owner/custodian.

(3) Confined in a secure enclosure

Sterilized pe/ means any pet that has had surgery to remove the reproductive organs.

(Ord No. 02-8, § 1-1, 1-14-2003)

Cross references: Definitions generally, § 1-2; exotic animals, 10-91, et seq

Sec. 10-32. Commercial breeding kennels/cafteries.

No person shall own or operate a commercial breeding kennel/catterj within the county without first
obtaining a certificate of inspection from the animal services division, issued pursuant to this section for which
a fee of $200.00 shall be paid for a two-year period. The fees shall be collected by animal services and turned
over to the county treasurer Such fees shall go toward the cost of defraying the expense of operating the
animal shelter

(Ord. No. 02-8, § 1-2, 1-14-2003)

Sec. 10-33. Pet identification.

Every owner/custodian is required to see that an identification tag is securely fastened to his or her
pet's collar or harness The tag will clearly indicate the name and phone number of the owner and must be
worn by the pet at all times, unless the pet, accompanied by the owner/custodian, is engaged in hunting or

hap //librarv4.municodc conVmcc/DocView/1 1162/1/23/30/31 5/4/2006



ARTICLE Ii. ANiMAL CON'I'ItOL Png' 3 aUG

other activity where a collar might endanger the pet's safety.

(Ord. No. 02-8, § 1-3, 1-14-2003)

Sec. 10-34. Restraint and confinement.

(a) The owner/custodian shaH keep his pet under restraint at all times

(b) Invisible fencing must be clearly marked and labeled 0 e sign on mailbox post, tree).

(c) No pet shall be permitted to be on school grounds or in a shopping area or similar public place
unless on a leash at all times

(d) No person owning or harboring or having the care or the custody of a dangerous animal may
permit the animal to go unconfined on his premises A dangerous animal is unconfined if the animal is
not confned securely indoors or confined in a securely enclosed fence or securely enclosed and locked
pen or run area upon the person's premises The pen or run area must be clearly marked as containing
a dangerous animal and must be designed to prevent the entry of the general public, including children.
and to prevent the escape or release of the animal The animal must not he removed from such
building or enclosure unless the pet is sedurely muzzled and under restraint.

(e) Every female pet in heat shall be kept confined in a building or secure enclosure or in a vetennanj
hospital or boarding kennel in such-a manner so as not to create a nuisance by attracting other pets.

(f) Any person reporting a violation of this section must identify himself to the animal control officer and
must sign a nuisance violation

çg) It shall be unlawful for any person to keep upon his premises any pet that is deemed a public
nuisance

(h) If an animal control officer observes an animal at large, they may pursue the animal onto private
property.

(i) The owner of every pet shall be responsible for the removal of any excreta deposited by the pet on
public walks and ways, recreation areas, or private property

(j) No pet shall be kept on a property that the owner/custodian does not occupy on a permanent basis

(Ord. No 02-8, § 1-4, 1-14-2003)

Sec. 10-35. Abandonment and maltreatment.

(a) It shall be unlawful for the owner/custodian of any pet in the county to abandon it.

(b) It shall be unlawful for anyone in the county to treat any pet in a cruel andlor inhumane manner.

(Ord. No 02-8, § 1-5, 1-14-2003)

Sec. 10-36. impoundment.
(a) Immediately after impounding any pet, the animal control officer shall make a reasonable effort to
notify the owner/custodian of its impoundment and to inform the owner/custodian of the conditions
whereby he can regain custody of the pet.

(b) Any pet impounded under the provisions of this article and not claimed by its owner within five
business days becomes the property of Lexington County Animal Services and may be humanely
destroyed by animal services

(Ord. Nb. 02-3, § 1-6, 1-14-2003)

htrpilihr:irv4.niuncode.coin/mcc/DocVicw/1 II 62/l/2S/3013 I 3/4/2006



ARTICLE II. ANIMAL CONTROL Page 4 of 6

Sec. 10-37. Dangerous dogs.
(a) The animal services director in conjunction with the animal services coordinator shall have the
authority to determine if a dog is a dangerous dog. Animal services must notify the owner/custodian of
the dog in writing that the animal must be registered with animal services as dangerous.

(b) The owner shall notify animal services if any changes cccur with the following:

(1) Ownership of the dog.
(2) Name, address and te{ephone number of a new owner/custodian.

(3) Address change of the owner/custodian or any change in the location in which the dog is
housed.

(4) Any change in the health status of the dog.

(5) Death of the animal

(c) If the dog is outdoors and attended, the dog shall be muzzled, on a leash and under the control of
the owner/custodian.

(d) If the dog is outdoors and unattended, the dog must be locked in an escape-proof kennel.
Minimum standards shall include the following:

(1) Fencing materials shall not have openings with a diameter of more than two inches; in the
case of a wooden fence, the gaps shall not be more than two inches.

(2) Any gates within such pen or structure shall be padlocked and of such design to prevent
the entry of children or the escape of the dog.

(3) The required pen or structure shall have secure sides and a secure top. If the pen or
structure has no bottom secured to the sides, the sides shall be imbedded into the ground or
concrete.

(4) The pen or sLructure shall protect the animal from the elements.

(5) A universal sign denoting a dangerous animal shall be displayed on all four sides of the pen
or structure.

(e) It shall be illegal for anyone to own or be the custodian of a hybrid

(Ord. No. 02-8, § 1-7, 1-14-2003)

Sec. 10-38. Redemption.

(a) The owner shall be entitled to resume possession of an impounded pet, except as provided in this
section in the cases of certain pets, upon providing proof of a valid rabies inoculation for the year in
which the pet is being held and proper identification requirements and the payment of redemption fees
set forth in this section.

(b) In the case of a dangerous dog that the owner has failed to control properly and which has been
impounded, redemption may be made only with the consent of the animal services director

(c) The owner of an impounded pet must apply for the redemption of his pet. The pet may not be
released unless authorized by the animal control officer with assurance from the owner that proper care
and custody will be maintained.

(d) The fees in this subsection shall be collected from the owner by animal services and turned over to
the county treasurer, who shall make a monthly accounting of such funds. Such fees, when collected,
shall go toward defraying the expense of operating the animal shelter. An initial fee of $1500 will be
charged for impoundment for a period of one to five days. The additional surn of $5.00 will be charged
for each day the animal is kept beyond five days. Upon a second offense, a fee of $30.00 will be
charged Upon a third offense, if the animal services director allows the pet to be reclaimed, a fee of
$50.00 will be charged.

(e) If an owner redeeming a pet cannot show proof of inoculation against rabies for the year in which

htp://library4.munjeodecomjmce/DocVjcw/1 1162/1/28/30/31 5/4/2006



*RTtCLE U. ANIMAL CONTROL Yge 5 ofo

the pet is being held, the owner shall be required to pay 310.00 for the rabies inoculation

(Ord. No 02-8. § 1-8, 1-14-2003)

Sec. 10-39. Adoption.

(a) Any pet impounded under the provisions of this article may, at the end of the legal detention
period, he adopted by a person deemed to be a responsible and suitable owner, who will agree to
comply with the provisions of this article. All required fees must be paid at the time of adoption in
addition to an adoption fee Those individuals adopting puppies or kittens to young to receive rabies
inoculation wUl pay the cost for this procedure at the time of adoption and be given an appointment for a
later timeto have this procedure accomplished.

(b) No unsterilized pet. which has been impounded by animal services, shall be allowed to be adopted
unless it has been stenlized.

(Ord. No 02-8 § 1-9, 1-14-2003)

Sec. 1040. Injured, diseased and dead animals.

(a) Anyone who strikes a pet with a motor vehicle or bicycle and injures or kills the pet must notify
animal services or the sheriffs department immediately The animal control officer or the sheriffs
department will then take the necessary steps to provide for the proper treatment or disposal of the pet.

(b) Any pet received by animal services in critical condition from wounds, injuries or disease may be
destroyed at the discretion of the animal services director and/or the animal services coordinator if the
owner/custodian cannot be contacted. If the pet is suffering great pain, it may be destroyed
immediately

(c) The owner/custodian of any pet, which dies, shall immediately provide for its burial or cremation if
he knows of its death and The location of its remains. If he fails to do so within three hours, the animal
control officer shall arrange for The disposal and the owner/custodian shall be required to pay the cost
thereof, not to exceed $50.00

(d) The animal control officer shall cause to be collected all dead domestic animals found on public
grounds or roadways of the county. If the animal is identifiable, the animal control officer will notify the
owner/custodian of the animal as soon as practical. Citizens may call 359-8364 if the animal is on a
county road or 359-4103 if the animal is on a state road

(Ord No 02-8, § 1-10, 1-14-2003)

Sec. 10-41. Enforcement of article.
(a) The provisions of this article shall be enforced by animal services under the supervision of the
director in all unincorporated areas of the county except wherein the governing body of any
municipality, by resolution filed with the clerk, so indicates that it desires the provisions of this article be
enforced within the jurisdictional limits of the respective municipality.

(b) The animal services' staff shall be appointed as county code enforcement officers.

(c) If the animal control officers are unable to respond to complaints due to other commitments, the
county sheriffs department or other authorized law enforcement agency may respond to complaints

(d) Persons empowered to enforce this article shall have the authonty to destroy any pet, which
appears to be dangerous. and may endanger their safety or the safety of other persons or animals.

(e) The animal control officers will, if necessary, obtain a search warrant to enter any premises upon
which it is suspected a violation of this article exists. The officer may demand to examine such pet and
take possession of the pet when, in his opinion, it requires removal from the premises.

(f No person shall interfere with, hinder or molest the animal services' staff in the execution of their

hp://Iihrai4 inunicodc.com/mcc/DocVicw/1 I t62/l/28/30/3 1 5/4/2006



ARTICLE [I. ANIMAL CONTROL Page 6 of 6

duties, or seek to release any pet in the custody of animal services

(g) Vlhen a pet is found in violation of any provision of this article, animal control officers, at their
discretion, may:

(1) Impound the pet.
(2) Issue notice of violation.

(3) Issue court summons.

(Ord. No. 02-8, § 1-11, 1-14-2003)

Sec. 10-42. Penalty for violation of article.

The violation of any section of this article shall constitute a misdemeanor and shall be punishable under
magistrate's court jurisdiction.

(Ord. No. 02-8. § 1-2, 1-14-2003)

Secs 10-43--10-60 Reserved

http:fihihrary4.municode.com/mcc/Docyjew/ I II ô2/ /28/30'/3 1 5/4/2006



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

Community Development
County Administration Building, 4th Floor

212 South Lake Drive, Lexington, SC 29072
(803)785-8121

ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT APPLICATION # T06-09

Section(s) of the Zoning Ordinance that are affected:

Section 21.10 (Description of Principal Activities) of Article 2, Application of Regulations, and
Section 71.20 (Definitions) of Article 7, Mobile Home Parks.

Reason for the request: The definition of a Mobile Home Park is proposed to be altered and
expanded so that the general public can better understand that portion of the Zoning
Ordinance. The proposed text does not change the essence of the current definition but
should assist the zoning staff in more clearly defining its intent and limitations.

Even though this request will be carefully reviewed and considered, the
proving the need for the amendment rests with the applicant.

Date of Application: 06/09/06

burden of

wcwk( 03)-785-8121

Street/Mailing Address: 212 South Lake Drive, Lexington,

06/09/06 Application Received L NA Fee Receipted
L Newspaper Advertisement Planning Commission

Planning Commission Recommendation:

/to/o
First Public
Reading Headng

Second
Reading

Third
Reading

Results:

Phone #(s):

Signature: Printed Name: Charles M. Compton

SC 29072



The proposed definition is intended to replace the existing definition from
Section 21.10 (Description of Principal Activities) of Article 2,
Application of Regulations, and also Section 71.20 (Definitions) of
Article 7, Mobile Home Parks.

Existing Definition

Mobile Home Parks (Limited) Three or more mobile homes, exclusive of a mobile home occupied by the
property owner, that are operated as a single entity and located within the vicinity of one another. The park
may be located on a single parcel, or multiple parcels in the same or different ownership. The minimum size
of an individual mobile home space in this type of development is 20,000 square feet.

Mobile Home Parks (Extensive) Three or more mobile homes, exclusive of a mobile home occupied by the
property owner, that are operated as a single entity and located within the vicinity of one another. The park
may be located on a single parcel, ormultiple parcels in the same or different ownership. The minimum size
of an individual mobile home space inthis type of development is 6,000 square feet.

Proposed Definition
Mobile Home Parks Three or more mobile homes or mobile home spaces, exclusive of a mobile home
occupied by the property owner as a legal residence, that are located within the vicinity of one another
and operated in any coordinated manner The park may be located on a single parcel, or multiple parcels
in the same or different ownership.

Mobile Home Parks (Limited) The minimum size of an individual mobile home space m this type of
development is 20,000 square feet.

Mobile 1-Ionic Parks (Extensive) The minimum size of an individual mobile home space in this type of
development is 6,000 square feet.

NOTE: The following shall be used in detcrnumng compliance with the definition above of a
Mobile Home Pane

a. A mobile home on a parcel(s) shall be counted toward the maximumnumber allowed even if the
mobile home is unoccupied, used for storage, or not ciurently connected to electricity.

b. The subdividing of a parcel(s) in order to circumvent this Ordinance is not allowed by this
definition.

c. Separating the ownership of mobile homes or mobile home spaces into two or niore legal entities
for the purpose of avoiding being defined as a mobile home park is not allowed, If the mobile
homes or mobile home spaces are m the same viciniry and their management is not clearly

-
handled as separate entities, then they shall be considered part of a single mobile home park.

d. "Viemiry" means being near and not remote, but does not have to he adjacent. It does not
include locations sites that are miles apart, but may include sites that are adjacent to each other,
across the street from each other, or thousands of feet away from each other, but m the same
general area or proximity.



COUNTY OF LEXINGTON, SOUTH CAROLINA

Ordinance 06—04

Authorizing the Acceptance of the transfer of authority for conducting municipal
elections in municipalities within the County of Lexington to the Lexington County
Voter Registration and Election Conimission.

BE iT ORDAINED AN1) ENACTED BY TI-fE LEXINGTON COUNTY COUNCil,
AS THE GOVERNING BODY OF LEXINGTON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, IN
MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED:

Section 1—Finding

As an incident to the adoption of this ordinance, Lexington County Council as the
governing body of Lexington County, South Carolina makes the following findings. Section
5-15-145 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended, provides for the transfer of
the powers, duties anct responsibilities for conducting municipal elections from municipal
elections commissions to county elections conimissions upon the adoption of an appropriate
ordinance by the governing body of the municipality transferring such powers, duties and
responsibilities and adoption of an ordinance by the county governing body of an appropriate
ordinance accepting the transfer of authority for conducting municipal elections.

Lexington County has deterniined that it will accept the transfer of authority for
conducting any municipal elections within Lexington County upon the specific conditions set
forth herein.

Section 2—Acceptance of authority for conducting municipal elections

Lexington County Council, as the governing body of Lexington County, South
Carolina, hereby aceepis authority for conducting municipal elections in any municipality that
complies with the terms herein and such authority is hereby transfer-ed from the Municipal
Election Commission for each respective municipality to the Registration and Election
Commission for Lexington County in the following particulars:

(a) The Lexington County Voter Registration and Election Commission shall
advertise municipal elections, prepare and distribute ballots and election materials,
appotht managers of election For each polling place, and otherwise supervise and
conduct all municipal elections within each municipality;

(b) Immediately upon the closing of the polls at any municipal election, the Lexington
County Voter Registration and Election Commission shall begin to count votes
cast and make a statement of the whole number of the votes cast in such election
together with the number of votes cast in the municipal election, canvas the vote
and publicly display the unofficial results;

(c) The Voter Registration and Election Commission shall thereafter certify the results
of the elections and transmit the certified results to the municipalities as soon as
practicable following the certification;



(d) Accept candidate El lags and fi Ii ng fees. i neT cdi ng, hat not limited to notices of
candidacy, candidacy pledges, hear and decide protests and rerti ft the restil is of
m tim eipal elections;

(e) Utilize an Automated Election System and computer counting with the cotint
publicly conducted;

(1) lake such other action as may he necessary or appropriate to conduct municipal
elections and certify the results

Section 3—Reinibursernent of election costs

Each municipality shall reimburse the Registration and Election Comm i ssiori of
Lex iiigton County for all costs incurred iii pi-ovidi ng ballots, advertising electrons, print i rig
costs, postage, transportation costs. tenipornrv help, programming charges, 1)011 niarlarters'
compensation and other related additional e'<penses incurred in its conduct of municipal
elections. In the event a protest is filed or litigation is commenced in connection with the
condtiet of municipal elections, the muni eipalitv shall pay all court costs, attorney fbcs,
couit ieporter fees and costs, and oilier costs and expenses incurred in such protest or
litigation. The Lexington County Registration and Election Commissien slial I provide
invoices and/or other documentation to the awn icipalitv of all such costs and expenses
iucui-rcd in the conduct of municipal elections, protests, certification of results, litigation
or other costs which may be incurred, not specifically mentioned in this ordinance.

Sectioii 4—Effective Date

lliis ordinance shall take effect upon the successful completion of the following necessary
actions prerequisite under federal and state law to effect the changes called for hereunder:
(a) Adoption of an appropriate ordinance by the govcmi rig body of any munici piility in

Lexington County transferring the authority accepted hereunder:
(h) Stibmission to the United States J tistice Department and subsequent receipt of pre—

clearance and positive response to the transfer of authoruy for conducting municipal
elections which would be effected hereunder.

Section 5—Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances

All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby
repealed to the extent of inconsistency.

Chai niian, Lexington County Council

Attest:

Diana Burnett. Clerk

First Reading: ____________________________________

Second Readine: ______________________________
Public Rearing: _____________________________________________

Third & Final Reading: ______________________________________

Filed w/Clcrk of Court: _______________________

-3
















































	Committee Meetings
	Agenda
	A
	B
	C
	D
	E
	F
	G
	H
	I
	J
	K
	L
	M
	N
	O
	P
	Q
	R
	S
	T
	U
	V
	W
	X
	Y
	Z
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	6
	7
	8
	9
	10
	11
	12
	13
	14
	15



